
This Institution is an Equal Opportunity Provider and Employer 
Agenda November 15, 2023 MTHCD Special Board Meeting  

 
P. O. Box 95 

San Andreas, CA 95249 

(209) 754-4468 Phone 

(209) 754-2537 Fax 

 
 
 
 

 
Special Meeting of the Board of 

Directors 
Mark Twain Medical Center 

Classroom 5 
768 Mountain Ranch Rd, 

San Andreas, CA 
 

       Wednesday November 15, 2023 
9:00am 

 
        Agenda    

 
Zoom – Public Invitation information is at the End of the Agenda 

 

Mark Twain Health Care District Mission Statement 
“Through community collaboration, we serve as the stewards of a community health system that 

ensures our residents have the dignity of access to care that provides high quality, professional and 
compassionate health care”. 

 
 
1. Call to order with Flag Salute: 

 
2. Roll Call: 

 
3. Approval of Agenda: Public Comment - Action 

 
4. Public Comment On Matters Not Listed On The Agenda: 

 
The purpose of this section of the agenda is to allow comments and input from the public on 
matters within the jurisdiction of the Mark Twain Health Care District not listed on the Agenda. 
(The public may also comment on any item listed on the Agenda prior to Board action on such 
item.) Limit of 3 minutes per speaker. The Board appreciates your comments however it will not 
discuss and cannot act on items not on the agenda. 
 

 

1



This Institution is an Equal Opportunity Provider and Employer 
Agenda November 15, 2023 MTHCD Special Board Meeting  

 
5. Consent Agenda: Public Comment - Action 

All Consent items are considered routine and may be approved by the District Board without any 
discussion by a single roll-call vote. Any Board Member or member of the public may remove any 
item from the Consent list. If an item is removed, it will be discussed separately following approval 
of the remainder of the Consent items. 

A. Un-Approved Minutes: 
 

• Un-Approved Special Board Meeting for September 5, 2023:  
• Un-Approved Finance Committee Meeting for September 20, 2023: 
• Un-Approved Board Meeting for September 27, 2023:  
• Un-Approved Finance Committee Meeting for October 18, 2023:  
• There was no October 25, 2023 BOD meeting:               

 
6. MTHCD Reports: 

 
A. President’s Report ...................................................................................................... Ms. Reed 

 
• Association of California Health Care Districts (ACHD) October 2023 Advocate: 

 
• Meetings With MTHCD CEO: 

 
• California Advancing & Innovating Medi-Cal Program (Cal Aim):…….………….Ms. Hack 
 

B. MTMC Community Board Report:…………………………………………………………Ms. Sellick 
 

C. MTMC Board of Directors:…………………………………………………………..……….Ms. Reed 
 

D. Chief Executive Officer’s Report…………………………………………………………...Dr. Smart 
 

• General Comments: 
 

• MTMC Capital Improvement – Plan / Process: Property Condition Assessment (PCA) 
 

o PCA Contract: Public Comment – Action …………………Mr. Randolph / Dr. Smart  
 
• Mi-wok Monument Proposal – Information:               
 
• Strategic Planning & Projects Matrix:       
 
• LED MTMC Project: Public Comment – Action 
 
• Personnel Manual Section 2008 Change: Public Comment - Action 
 
• Grant Report:  
 
• Presentation –Children’s Advocacy Program:………………………………………Ms. West 

2



This Institution is an Equal Opportunity Provider and Employer 
Agenda November 15, 2023 MTHCD Special Board Meeting  

 
• Programs Coordinator:……….……………………………….…….…………………..Ms. Dickey  
 

o Robo-Doc  
o Stay Vertical Calaveras 
o AED For Life  
o Sports Physicals- May 22, 2024 

 
• VSH&W Center – Policies and Forms: Public Comment – Action 

 
o Policies for Sept 2023 Valley Springs Health & Wellness Center:           
 

New Policies  
Standardized Procedure for Depo Provera Injection 
 
Revised Policies 
Autoclave Use and Maintenance 
Autoclave Spore Testing 
Emerging Infectious Disease 
New Employee Onboarding and Annual Training 
Waste, Fraud, and Abuse 
 
Bi-Annual Review Policies (no changes to policy content) 
Billing for Services Provided Off-Site 
Business Hours 
Cash Collections 
Cleaning Duties 
Fit Testing 
Medication Management – Storage of Multi-Use Containers 
On-Call Program 
Provider on Site  
Quality Assurance Guidelines 
Quality Assurance & Continued Quality Improvement Plan 
Shelter in Place for Patients and Staff 
Standardized Procedure for Employee Influenza Vaccine Administration 
Standardized Procedure for Patients Presenting with URI Symptoms 
Sterile Shelf Life 
Universal Precautions 
Unscheduled Downtime of Electronic Medical Record 
PMHNP Standardized Procedures 

 
E. BHCiP – Round 5 Update: 

 
F. VSHWC Quality Reports ..................................................................................... Ms. Terradista 

 
• Quality – September 2023:             

 
• MedStatix – September 2023:    

3



This Institution is an Equal Opportunity Provider and Employer 
Agenda November 15, 2023 MTHCD Special Board Meeting  

 
7. Committee Reports: 

 
A. Finance Committee:……………………………………………....................Ms. Hack / Mr. Wood 

 
• Financial Statements – September 2023: Public Comment – Action 

 
• Financial Statements – October 2023: Public Comment – Action 

 
• Annual Financial Audit Update: Public Comment – Action ……………………Mr. Jackson       
 

B. Ad Hoc Policy Committee: ............................................................ Ms. Hack / Ms. Vermeltfoort 
 
• Policies Were Presented for 30-Day Review on Sept. 27, 2023:  

 
   Resolution 2023 - 09 to Approve: Public Comment – Action 
 

o Policy #  4:  Officers of the District:  
o Policy #  5:  Committees of The Board: Public Information Officer: Auditors:  
o Policy # 12: Conflict of Interest Code and Ethics:   
o Policy # 27: Credit Card:  

 
• Policies Presented for 30-Day Review:  

 
o Policy # 13: Appointments to the District Board: 
o Policy # 14:  Conduct Related to Elections:  

 
C. Ad Hoc Community Grants: .......................................................... ……..Ms. Sellick / Ms. Reed 

 
• Calaveras County Senior Center: Public Comment – Action  
• Calaveras Mentoring Foundation: Public Comment – Action  
• Hospice of Amador & Calaveras: Public Comment – Action 

 
D. Ad Hoc Community Engagement: ............................................................................ Ms. Reed 

 
E. Ad Hoc Real Estate: ............................................................................................. Mr. Randolph 

 
F. Ad Hoc Personnel Committee ...................................................... Ms. Reed / Ms. Vermeltfoort 

 
8. Board Comment and Request for Future Agenda Items: 

 
A. Announcements of Interest to the Board or the Public: 

 
• Thanksgiving Holiday November 23 and 24, 2023:             

 
9. Next Meeting: 

 
• Holiday Schedule for Board Meetings: Dark for December, 2023. 

4



This Institution is an Equal Opportunity Provider and Employer 
Agenda November 15, 2023 MTHCD Special Board Meeting  

• The next MTHCD Board Meeting will be Wed. January 24, 2024 at 9am. 
 

10. Adjournment: Public Comment – Action: 
 
 
 
 
Traci Whittington is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting. 
 
Topic: MTHCD Special Board of Directors Meeting 
Time: Nov 15, 2023 08:30 AM Pacific Time (US and Canada) 
 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88201017931?pwd=Nzl3dnZ3aUJ3ckpnWVVmb2
5lUUx6QT09 
 
Meeting ID: 882 0101 7931 
Passcode: 046396 

 
 
One tap mobile 
+16699006833,,88201017931#,,,,*046396# US (San Jose) 
+16694449171,,88201017931#,,,,*046396# US 

 
 
Dial by your location 
• +1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) 
• +1 669 444 9171 US 
• +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
• +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 
• +1 719 359 4580 US 
• +1 253 205 0468 US 
• +1 564 217 2000 US 
• +1 646 931 3860 US 
• +1 689 278 1000 US 
• +1 929 205 6099 US (New York) 
• +1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 
• +1 305 224 1968 US 
• +1 309 205 3325 US 
• +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
• +1 360 209 5623 US 
• +1 386 347 5053 US 
• +1 507 473 4847 US 
 
Meeting ID: 882 0101 7931 
Passcode: 046396 
 
Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kd1KzoIzl7         

5

https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kd1KzoIzl7


This Institution is an Equal Opportunity Provider and Employer 
Minutes September 5, 2023 MTHCD Special Board Meeting 

P. O. Box 95 
San Andreas, CA 95249 
(209) 754-4468 Phone 
(209) 754-2537 Fax 

Special Meeting of the Board of Directors 
Mark Twain Medical Center 

Classroom 5 
768 Mountain Ranch Rd, 

San Andreas, CA 

Tuesday September 5, 2023 
9:00am 

UN -  Approved Minutes 

Zoom – Public Invitation information is at the End of the Agenda 

Mark Twain Health Care District Mission Statement 
“Through community collaboration, we serve as the stewards of a community health system that 

ensures our residents have the dignity of access to care that provides high quality, professional and 
compassionate health care.” 

1. Call to order with Flag Salute:

Meeting called to order by Ms. Hack at 9:00am

2. Roll Call:

Member In Person Via Zoom/Phone Absent Time of Arrival 
Linda Reed Excused 
Debbra Sellick Excused 
Lori Hack X 
Richard Randolph X 
Johanna Vermeltfoort X 

Quorum :  Yes 

6



This Institution is an Equal Opportunity Provider and Employer 
Minutes September 5, 2023 MTHCD Special Board Meeting 

3. Approval of Agenda: Public Comment – Action

Motion to approve agenda by Mr. Randolph 
Second: Ms. Vermeltfoort 
Ayes: 3 
Nays: 0 

4. Public Comment On Matters Not Listed On The Agenda:

Hearing none 

5. BCHiP – Round 5:  Public Comment

 Rescind Resolution 2023- 06 Behavioral Health Continuum Infrastructure Prog. (BHCIP)  – Action: 

Motion to approve rescinding of Resolution 2023-06 by Mr. Randolph 
Second: Ms. Vermeltfoort 
Ayes: 3 
Nays: 0 

Resolution 2023-08 Behavioral Health Continuum Infrastructure Prog. (BHCIP): Public Comment - Action: 

Motion to approve Resolution 2023-08 by Mr. Randolph 
Second: Ms. Vermeltfoort 
Ayes: 3 
Nays: 0       

6. Announcements of Interest to the Board or the Public:

The VSHWC had 2200 appointments for August 

7. Next Meeting:

• The next MTHCD Board Meeting will be Wed. September 27, 2023 at 9am.

8. Adjournment:  Public Comment – Action:

Motion to adjourn by Mr. Randolph 
Second: Ms. Vermeltfoort 
Ayes: 3 
Nays: 0 
Time: 9:14am 

7



This Institution is an Equal Opportunity Provider and Employer 
Minutes September 5, 2023 MTHCD Special Board Meeting 

Traci Whittington is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting. 
Topic: Tuesday, September 5, 2023 MTHCD Special Board of Directors Meeting 
Time: Sep 5, 2023 09:00 AM Pacific Time (US and Canada) 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83113575827?pwd=M1VoUld3SVN1MWxXMlB2b3hTWXkvUT09 
Meeting ID: 831 1357 5827 
Passcode: 637646 
 
One tap mobile 
+16699006833,,83113575827#,,,,*637646# US (San Jose) 
+16694449171,,83113575827#,,,,*637646# US 
 
Dial by your location 
• +1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) 
• +1 669 444 9171 US 
• +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
• +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 
• +1 719 359 4580 US 
• +1 253 205 0468 US 
• +1 360 209 5623 US 
• +1 386 347 5053 US 
• +1 507 473 4847 US 
• +1 564 217 2000 US 
• +1 646 931 3860 US 
• +1 689 278 1000 US 
• +1 929 205 6099 US (New York) 
• +1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 
• +1 305 224 1968 US 
• +1 309 205 3325 US 
• +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
 
Meeting ID: 831 1357 5827 
Passcode: 637646 
 
Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kbZ1wsnRhj 

8

https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kbZ1wsnRhj


This Ins�tu�on is an Equal Opportunity Provider and Employer 
Minutes  –  Sept. 20, 2023 MTHCD Finance Commitee Mee�ng 

 

Finance Committee Meeting 

Mark Twain Medical Center Classroom 5 
768 Mountain Ranch Road 

San Andreas, CA 
 

Wednesday September 20, 2023 
9:00am 

 
Participation:  Zoom – Invite information is at the End of the Agenda 

Or Participate in Person 
 

 Un-   Approved Minutes 
 

Mark Twain Health Care District Mission Statement 
“Through community collaboration, we serve as the stewards of a community health system that 

Ensures our residents have the dignity of access to care that provides high quality, professional and 
compassionate health care.” 

 
 

1. Call to order with Flag Salute: 
 
 

Meeting called to order by Ms. Hack at 9:01am 
 
 
 

2. Roll Call: 
 

Member In Person Via Zoom/Phone Absent Time of Arrival 
Lori Hack  X   
Richard Randolph X    
Pat Bettinger X    

        Quorum: YES 
 

 
 

P. O. Box 95 
San Andreas, CA 95249 
(209) 754-4468 Phone 
(209) 754-2537 Fax 

 
 
 

9



This Ins�tu�on is an Equal Opportunity Provider and Employer 
Minutes  –  Sept. 20, 2023 MTHCD Finance Commitee Mee�ng 

 
3. Approval of Agenda: 

 
Motion to approve agenda by Mr. Randolph 
Second: Ms. Bettinger 
Ayes:3 
Nays: 0 

 
 

4. Public Comment On Matters Not Listed On The Agenda: 
 

Hearing none 

 

5. Consent Agenda: Public Comment- Action 

 
A. Un-Approved Minutes: 

 
• Finance Committee Meeting Minutes for August. 16, 2023: 

 
 

Motion to approve Consent Agenda and Minutes by Mr. Randolph 
Second: Ms. Bettinger 
Ayes:3 
Nays: 0 
 

 
6. Chief Executive Officer’s Report: 

 
 

• BHCIP Application Update:        
 

Scope of Work was received on 9/19/23. The architect contract went out for bid with 
only one company responding.     

 
 

• MTMC – Building Assessment: 
 

Three firms have bid on the MTMC Building Assessment Contract. 
 

 
7. Real Estate Review: 

 
• MOB 704: Stockton Cardiology Lease: 

 
Lease for Stockton Cardiology has been extended until February 2027. 

 
 

10



This Ins�tu�on is an Equal Opportunity Provider and Employer 
Minutes  –  Sept. 20, 2023 MTHCD Finance Commitee Mee�ng 

 
8. Accountant’s Report: 

 
• August 2023 Financials Will Be Presented: Public Comment- Action 

 
The VSHWC had a great month. The Balance sheet shows a strong cash position. 
The Interest & Reserves are strong. 

 
 Motion to approve August Financials and I & R Report by Ms. Bettinger 

Second: Mr. Randolph 
Ayes: 3 
Nays: 0 
 

• Annual Audit for 2022-2023: 
 
All requests for information have been sent to the Auditor.  

 
• Reserve Recommendation: Public Comment-Action    

 
Recommended Reserve allocations will be sent to the Board for approval. 

 
 Motion to approve recommendations to Reserve Accounts by Mr. Randolph 
 Second: Ms. Bettinger 
 Ayes: 3  
 Nays: 0 
 

9. Treasurer’s Report: 
 

No Report. 
 

10.  Comments and Future Agenda Items: 
 
Hearing none. 
 

11.  Next Meeting: 
 

Next Finance Committee Meeting will be October 18, 2023 at 9:00am   
  

12.  Adjournment: Public Comment – Action 
 

Motion to adjourn by Mr. Randolph 
Second: Ms. Bettinger 
Ayes: 3 
Nays: 0 

 
 

11



This Ins�tu�on is an Equal Opportunity Provider and Employer 
Minutes  –  Sept. 20, 2023 MTHCD Finance Commitee Mee�ng 

Traci Whittington is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting. 
 
Topic: MTHCD Finance Committee Meeting 
Time: Sep 20, 2023 09:00 AM Pacific Time (US and Canada) 
 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81064092606?pwd=bFdhdUlzajZFT0d3SVlQaHBNdTA3Zz09 
Meeting ID: 810 6409 2606 
Passcode: 735442 
One tap mobile 
+16694449171,,81064092606#,,,,*735442# US 
+16699006833,,81064092606#,,,,*735442# US (San Jose) 
Dial by your location 
• +1 669 444 9171 US 
• +1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) 
• +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 
• +1 719 359 4580 US 
• +1 253 205 0468 US 
• +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
• +1 689 278 1000 US 
• +1 929 205 6099 US (New York) 
• +1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 
• +1 305 224 1968 US 
• +1 309 205 3325 US 
• +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
• +1 360 209 5623 US 
• +1 386 347 5053 US 
• +1 507 473 4847 US 
• +1 564 217 2000 US 
• +1 646 931 3860 US 
Meeting ID: 810 6409 2606 
Passcode: 735442 
Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kSdg51kFp 
 

 

12



 This Institution is an Equal Opportunity Provider and Employer 
Minutes September 27, 2023 MTHCD Board Meeting 

P. O. Box 95 

San Andreas, CA 95249 

(209) 754-4468 Phone 

(209) 754-2537 Fax 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
Mark Twain Medical Center 

Classroom 5 
768 Mountain Ranch Rd, 

San Andreas, CA 

Wednesday September 27,2023 
9:00am 

UN Approved Minutes 

Ms. Hack will be remote (by Zoom) at 135 W. 50th St. New York, NY 10020 

Zoom – Public Invitation information is at the End of the Agenda 

Mark Twain Health Care District Mission Statement 
“Through community collaboration, we serve as the stewards of a community health system that 

ensures our residents have the dignity of access to care that provides high quality, professional and 
compassionate health care”. 

1. Call to order with Flag Salute:

    Meeting called to order by Ms. Reed at 9:02am 

2. Roll Call:

Member In Person Via Zoom/Phone Absent Time of Arrival 
Linda Reed X 
Debbra Sellick X 
Lori Hack X 
Richard Randolph X 
Johanna Vermeltfoort X 

Quorum :  Yes 

13



 This Institution is an Equal Opportunity Provider and Employer 
Minutes September 27, 2023 MTHCD Board Meeting 

3. Approval of Agenda: Public Comment – Action

Motion to approve agenda by Mr. Randolph 
Second: Ms. Vermeltfoort 
Ayes: 5 
Nays: 0 

4. Public Comment On Matters Not Listed On The Agenda:

     Hearing None 

5. Consent Agenda: Public Comment - Action

A. Un-Approved Minutes:

• Un-Approved Finance Committee Meeting for August 16, 2023:
• Un-Approved Board Meeting for August 23, 2023:

 Motion to approve consent agenda and minutes by Ms. Vermeltfoort 
Second: Mr. Randolph 
Ayes: 5 
Nays: 0 

6. MTHCD Reports:

A. President’s Report:

• Association of California Health Care Districts (ACHD) September 2023 Advocate:

o Update on ACHD Annual Meeting:

  Future Annual Meetings will be held in Sacramento, Ca. 

o Review Recently Passed CA Legislation:

• Meetings With MTHCD CEO:

14



                                           This Institution is an Equal Opportunity Provider and Employer 
Minutes September 27, 2023 MTHCD Board Meeting 

 
 

• California Advancing & Innovating Medi-Cal Program (Cal Aim): 
 

$200mil in funds are going to available soon 
 

 
B. MTMC Community Board Report: 

 
    August was a good month for the MTMC standing at  3% over budget.  

 
 

C. MTMC Board of Directors: 
 

    Meeting on Friday. 
 
 

D. Chief Executive Officer’s Report: 
 

• General Comments:  
 

 
• MTMC Capital Improvement – Plan / Process:  

 
 MTMC equipment Property Survey has received 3 bids. 
 

 
• Mi-wok Monument Proposal – Information:           
 

The monument will be displayed at The Red Barn and the museum in San Andreas,  
as well as in West Point. 

 
• Strategic Planning & Projects Matrix:           
 
 

Chronic Disease meeting today 
 

 
• Grant Report:          

 
Approved for $50,000 grant for Data Information Sharing 

 
 

 
• Programs Coordinator: 
 

o Robo-Doc: 
 

                  The Robo-Doc program is in 6 schools. 

15



                                           This Institution is an Equal Opportunity Provider and Employer 
Minutes September 27, 2023 MTHCD Board Meeting 

 
 

o Stay Vertical Calaveras 
 

Searching for a venue in Angels Camp. The program is seeing about 5-6 new 
participants weekly. 

 
 

o AED For Life  
 

10 AED have been allocated in Phase 1. Emails have been sent out to the recipients. 
 
 

 
• Robo-Doc – Presentation: 

 
The average Robo-Doc call lasts 6.8 minutes. Students are usually only out of the            
classroom for 10-15 Minutes. 97.7% of students who used the Robo-Doc service  
Stayed in school. 

 
 
• VSH&W Center – Policies and Forms: Public Comment – Action 

 
o Policies for Sept. 2023 Valley Springs Health & Wellness Center:            

 
Revised Policies 
Appointment Notification 
Appointment Rescheduling 
Consents For Treatment – Guidance 
Contagious Patient 
Emergency Operations Plan 
Employee COVID-19 Vaccine and Precautions Policy 
Employee Dress Code Guidelines 
Standardized Procedure for Employee COVID-19 Rapid Testing 
Waived Testing - LeadCare II 

 
Bi-Annual Review Policies (no changes to policy content) 
Active Shooter 
AED Use and Maintenance 
Bioterrorism Threat 
Drug Free Workplace 
Earthquake or Weather Emergency 
EKG 
Incident Reports 
Patient Rights and Responsibilities Statement 
Patient Rights and Responsibilities Statement Spanish 
Preventative Maintenance Inspections 
Reference Resources 

16



                                           This Institution is an Equal Opportunity Provider and Employer 
Minutes September 27, 2023 MTHCD Board Meeting 

Section 504 Grievance 
Section 504 Grievance Spanish 
Section 504 Notice Of Program Accessibility 
Section 504 Notice Of Program Accessibility Spanish 
Standardized Procedures for Mid-level Practitioners (NP, PA) 
Sterile Field 
Influenza A and B Test – Waived 

 
 

Motion to approve policies with extraction of Consents For Treatment – Guidance by Mr. Randolph 
Second: Ms. Vermeltfoort 
Ayes: 5 
Nays: 0 

 
 

E. VSHWC Quality Reports: 
 

• Quality – August 2023:             
 
           The VSHWC saw 2201 patients in August. Registered 156 New Patients.  
 

• MedStatix – August 2023:    
 
            96% patient satisfaction. New Dental Receptionist on board helping things run smoothly. 
 

 
F. BHCiP – Round 5 Update:  

 
 

The Scope of Work (SOW) was completed. Working on Architect Contracting. 
 

 
7. Committee Reports: 

 
A. Finance Committee: 

 
• Financial Statements – August 2023: Public Comment – Action 

 
 
           August looked good for the District and the Clinic.  
 
 

Motion to approve Financials with I & R Report by Mr. Randolph 
Second: Ms. Sellick 
Ayes: 5 
Nays: 0 

17



                                           This Institution is an Equal Opportunity Provider and Employer 
Minutes September 27, 2023 MTHCD Board Meeting 

 
• Annual Financial Audit: 

 
             Auditor has started communications. He has 90% of information needed. 
 

 
• Reserve Recommendation From: Public Comment – Action         

 
 

Motion to approve recommendation for reserve allocations by Ms. Vermeltfoort 
Second: Mr. Randolph 
Ayes: 5 
Nays: 0 

 
 

B. Ad Hoc Policy Committee: 
 
• Policies Presented for 30-Day Review:  

 
o Policy #  4:  Officers of the District:  
o Policy #  5:  Committees of The Board: Public Information Officer: Auditors:  
o Policy # 12: Conflict of Interest Code and Ethics:   
o Policy # 27: Credit Card:  

 
 

C. Ad Hoc Community Grants: 
 
        
            Meeting today. 
 
 
 

D. Ad Hoc Community Engagement: 
 

No Report 
 
 
 

E. Ad Hoc Real Estate: 
 
 

Stockton Cardiology Lease Renewal still in progress. 
Working on Sub-Lease for Mental Health for 701-104 Mountain Ranch Rd. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

18



                                           This Institution is an Equal Opportunity Provider and Employer 
Minutes September 27, 2023 MTHCD Board Meeting 

 
F. Ad Hoc Personnel Committee: 

 
Dress code Policy was discussed. 
 
 

 
8. Board Comment and Request for Future Agenda Items: 

 
A. Announcements of Interest to the Board or the Public: 

 
• MTMC Health Fair – Sat. Sept. 30, 2023  
• Cancer Support Group - Fri. Oct. 13, 2023: 
• MACT Health Fair in San Andreas - Sat. Oct. 14, 2023:  

 
9. Next Meeting: 

 
• The next MTHCD Board Meeting will be Wed. October 25, 2023 at 9am. 
• Holiday Schedule for Board Meetings: Nov. 15, 2023 and Dark in December. 

 
10. Adjournment: Public Comment – Action: 

 
Motion to adjourn by Mr. Randolph 
Second: Ms. Vermeltfoort 
Ayes: 5 
Nays: 0 
Time: 11:13am 

 
 

Traci Whittington is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting. 

 Topic: MTHCD September 27, 2023 Board of Directors Meeting 

Time: Sep 27, 2023 09:00 AM Pacific Time (US and Canada) 

Join Zoom Meeting 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81658615914?pwd=dmhCQTJrMStmVnRFa2ZoU

Xk4UUVTUT09 

Meeting ID: 816 5861 5914 

Passcode: 818052 

19



                                           This Institution is an Equal Opportunity Provider and Employer 
Minutes September 27, 2023 MTHCD Board Meeting 

One tap mobile 

+16694449171,,81658615914#,,,,*818052# US 

+16699006833,,81658615914#,,,,*818052# US (San Jose 

Dial by your location 

• +1 669 444 9171 US 

• +1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) 

• +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 

• +1 719 359 4580 US 

• +1 253 205 0468 US 

• +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 

• +1 360 209 5623 US 

• +1 386 347 5053 US 

• +1 507 473 4847 US 

• +1 564 217 2000 US 

• +1 646 931 3860 US 

• +1 689 278 1000 US 

• +1 929 205 6099 US (New York) 

• +1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 

• +1 305 224 1968 US 

• +1 309 205 3325 US 

• +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 

Meeting ID: 816 5861 5914 

Passcode: 818052 

 

Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kdOQQLLQde   

20



This Ins�tu�on is an Equal Opportunity Provider and Employer 
Minutes  –  Oct. 18, 2023 MTHCD Finance Commitee Mee�ng 

Finance Committee Meeting 

Mark Twain Medical Center Classroom 5 
768 Mountain Ranch Road 

San Andreas, CA 
 

Wednesday October 18, 2023 
9:00am 

 
Participation:  Zoom – Invite information is at the End of the Agenda 

Or Participate in Person 
 

                                                  UN-     Approved Minutes  
 

Mark Twain Health Care District Mission Statement 
“Through community collaboration, we serve as the stewards of a community health system that 

Ensures our residents have the dignity of access to care that provides high quality, professional and 
compassionate health care.” 

 
 

1. Call to order with Flag Salute: 
 

Meeting called to order by Ms. Hack at 9:03am 
 

2. Roll Call: 
 

Member In Person Via Zoom/Phone Absent Time of Arrival 
Lori Hack X    
Richard Randolph X    
Pat Bettinger X    

                                                  Quorum:  YES 
 
 
 
  
 

 
 

P. O. Box 95 
San Andreas, CA 95249 
(209) 754-4468 Phone 
(209) 754-2537 Fax 

 
 
 

21



This Ins�tu�on is an Equal Opportunity Provider and Employer 
Minutes  –  Oct. 18, 2023 MTHCD Finance Commitee Mee�ng 

3. Approval of Agenda: 
 
Motion to approve agenda by Mr. Randolph 
Second: Ms. Bettinger 
Ayes: 3 
Nays: 0 
 

4. Public Comment On Matters Not Listed On The Agenda: 
 

Hearing none 

 
5. Consent Agenda: Public Comment- Action 

 
A. Un-Approved Minutes: 

 
• Finance Committee Meeting Minutes for September 20, 2023:   

 
 

Motion to approve consent agenda and minutes by Ms. Bettinger 
Second: Mr. Randolph 
Ayes: 3 
Nays: 0 
 

 
6. Chief Executive Officer’s Report: 

 
 

• MTMC Seismic Retrofit Update: 
 
 

The assessment team is onsite visually inspecting the property. 
 

 
• BHCIP Application Update:  

 
 

The Architectural Contract was finalized with Aspen Street Architects, Inc. 
The Program Funding Agreement should be received next week. 

 
• MTMC – Building Assessment: 

 
 

There was a meeting yesterday to discuss bids. Recommendation will be brought to  
Board of Directors meeting next week. 

 
 

22



This Ins�tu�on is an Equal Opportunity Provider and Employer 
Minutes  –  Oct. 18, 2023 MTHCD Finance Commitee Mee�ng 

7. Real Estate Review: 
 

Stockton Cardiology Lease Renewal has been signed. Working on Sub-Lease for Mental 
Health for 704 Mountain Ranch Rd. 

 
8. Accountant’s Report: 

 
• September 2023 Financials Will Be Presented: Public Comment- Action      

 
Motion to approve September Financials with I&R report by Ms. Bettinger 
Second: Mr. Randolph 
Ayes: 3  
Nays: 0 

 
• Annual Audit for 2022-2023: 

 

The auditor has almost all of the requested material. 

o Management Comments: 
 

The District staff have conducted an informal facility assessment of the Valley Springs Health & 
Wellness Center. A list of issues was developed and will be addressed by facility management. 
The cost this fiscal year will be immaterial. 

 
9. Treasurer’s Report: 

 
No Report. 

 
10.  Comments and Future Agenda Items: 

 
11.  Next Meeting: 

 
Next Finance Committee Meeting will be November 15, 2023 at 7:30am   
  

12.  Adjournment: Public Comment – Action 
 
Motion to adjourn by Mr. Randolph 
Second: Ms. Bettinger 
Ayes: 3 
Nays: 0 
Time: 9:49am 

 
Traci Whittington is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting. 
 
Topic: MTHCD Finance Committee Meeting 

23



This Ins�tu�on is an Equal Opportunity Provider and Employer 
Minutes  –  Oct. 18, 2023 MTHCD Finance Commitee Mee�ng 

Time: Oct 18, 2023 08:00 AM Pacific Time (US and Canada) 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87634606722?pwd=Mm1FUEJWS01xWjdJbUp3a0U2YU
03dz09 
Meeting ID: 876 3460 6722 
Passcode: 888954 
One tap mobile 
+16694449171,,87634606722#,,,,*888954# US 
+16699006833,,87634606722#,,,,*888954# US (San Jose) 
Dial by your location 
• +1 669 444 9171 US 
• +1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) 
• +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 
• +1 719 359 4580 US 
• +1 253 205 0468 US 
• +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
• +1 646 931 3860 US 
• +1 689 278 1000 US 
• +1 929 205 6099 US (New York) 
• +1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 
• +1 305 224 1968 US 
• +1 309 205 3325 US 
• +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
• +1 360 209 5623 US 
• +1 386 347 5053 US 
• +1 507 473 4847 US 
• +1 564 217 2000 US 
Meeting ID: 876 3460 6722 
Passcode: 888954 
 
Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kbyKRbjU9Q 
 

24



 

   

ACHD Advocate 
October 2023 

 

 

 

 

 
 

  
 

   

What's New This Month: 
• Members Gathered at ACHD's 71st Annual Meeting 
• Advocacy Update 
• LeadingAge offering dementia care toolkit webinar 

 

  

Greetings from the other side of ACHD’s annual conference! 
This year, members gathered in Olympic Valley from 
September 13th-15th to learn, network and share best practices. 
Thank you to all of the members who made the journey to 
be with us. Your attendance was an integral part of our 
success! The ACHD website has been updated with some 
great photos from the event, so be sure to check them out! 
Mark your calendars for our 72nd Annual Meeting, September 
25-27, 2024, in Sacramento!   
 
It is finally feeling like fall in the Capitol City, not only because of cooler weather, 
but because law makers have returned to their districts having wrapped up 
legislative business on September 14th. The Governor has until October 14th to 
sign or veto legislation that made it to his desk this year. At that time, 
ACHD’s Sarah Bridge will issue an update to the membership regarding the 
Governor’s final actions. As a reminder, SB 784, ACHD’s sponsored legislation, 
which would allow district hospitals to employ physicians directly, is a two-year bill 
and is eligible to be taken up again in January.  
 
ACHD is currently seeking member CEOs or district trustees to serve on the 
ACHD Board of Directors. Apply to serve on the board by submitting a resume or 
statement of qualifications to ACHD by October 31st. The Governance Committee 
will review and recommend candidates to be approved by the full ACHD Board on 
November 15th. Please note: The district board of directors' chair and/or the 
CEO must support the nomination in writing at the time of submission. 
Individual directors serve three-year terms, up to two terms, and their 
appointment becomes effective upon approval by the ACHD Board.  
 
The ACHD Annual Meeting marks the “new year” for the Association. We look 
forward to another active and engaging 2023-24 with all of you. Please feel free to 
reach out to the ACHD Team if we can be helpful or supportive in any way.  

 

 
 

 

 

25

https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001Y2OTWOUEzvlopBD_F8J-lAmFxZ-gp8zNxOHAvgen1HCkepNq3N_rVIhIKXnPeI7lDMU3fwaEXg2pXN4uuk3jrn-BocEGfIIS8q5oHzV1S-JX47C-OX6PXqHsrYQp5AEplVLe-gePEheb4vKjTQQy4fjDO7gSXCHkx0_-g-sljziEhAXD6hH2-9YvdNf4t0iB&c=krwUvopNmEH7mOTuxo_PCMbbM0rm6K-eQCsna8LLuO10gxdS9yBHWQ==&ch=3i_BhlXPbd9NdQ8mpL-PbfSJKOesXcJQ2dBRetLBJFAU2KXi9yUXLQ==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001Y2OTWOUEzvlopBD_F8J-lAmFxZ-gp8zNxOHAvgen1HCkepNq3N_rVIhIKXnPeI7lFtdP9dm1reVYEi_vQGCJyofEssbFCkIBHHqU4WjOOcnOt_WTX7TUZnjAucVlUJUVfpMRu_IG9wK7ClHDy2ueXTqMBk5rpUafb6c5yr7lCbg=&c=krwUvopNmEH7mOTuxo_PCMbbM0rm6K-eQCsna8LLuO10gxdS9yBHWQ==&ch=3i_BhlXPbd9NdQ8mpL-PbfSJKOesXcJQ2dBRetLBJFAU2KXi9yUXLQ==
mailto:sarahb@strategies360.com
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001Y2OTWOUEzvlopBD_F8J-lAmFxZ-gp8zNxOHAvgen1HCkepNq3N_rVKT_OSiXYZjvVvZ8f9JGP9q2vaYPJwY6CNzB5Cg-n6CP4gF0ukM4j7oaRYmOvXqdRbRWvj-1cZ-de8bqUQsqhRfaZoZZexCKy5Otgz_DHCsV-DIpuEZE05gR42CQtjuj_j2Fl8XAf3OvlE0LuJu8Dnz1vRA-qRMADrKXG7gDQPdVOcR1A0x-DkI=&c=krwUvopNmEH7mOTuxo_PCMbbM0rm6K-eQCsna8LLuO10gxdS9yBHWQ==&ch=3i_BhlXPbd9NdQ8mpL-PbfSJKOesXcJQ2dBRetLBJFAU2KXi9yUXLQ==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001Y2OTWOUEzvlopBD_F8J-lAmFxZ-gp8zNxOHAvgen1HCkepNq3N_rVIhIKXnPeI7luJvLfVPx2pMGV4kftcuOMW3L1ItFPTqEO4_Le3mjWON8R-X9_VrS9e7xvT_gSQlcPryNdOFraUqN29O23nUOEJQRHD00pzT325x6s_tlZSQ=&c=krwUvopNmEH7mOTuxo_PCMbbM0rm6K-eQCsna8LLuO10gxdS9yBHWQ==&ch=3i_BhlXPbd9NdQ8mpL-PbfSJKOesXcJQ2dBRetLBJFAU2KXi9yUXLQ==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001Y2OTWOUEzvlopBD_F8J-lAmFxZ-gp8zNxOHAvgen1HCkepNq3N_rVKGX1vhNbkjFCt7iBgGBrHzhvvRggK4jFsO3ArWXnx8CAUGPh47GSfCSOXk0zzuxbjX3hBJ4sQlO3IMWqVxG4L5abWGuU5lPu0dxr4Kc_0aUV8knsT770d2OoZKAbgyrmWTdCMJEU5U6&c=krwUvopNmEH7mOTuxo_PCMbbM0rm6K-eQCsna8LLuO10gxdS9yBHWQ==&ch=3i_BhlXPbd9NdQ8mpL-PbfSJKOesXcJQ2dBRetLBJFAU2KXi9yUXLQ==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001Y2OTWOUEzvlopBD_F8J-lAmFxZ-gp8zNxOHAvgen1HCkepNq3N_rVGr4V4dD-orW7sqAmH1j6kZj6_DCtB2KX8pusJABdoZxLJlaCCRXQ2edRQILFCxeZTDlxxqV099ULSLBdyNOFCyZYIlVtSrMbxjdcpfo3225whCV55D2wGQ7OlP_NrJDgrD-v5i2XCBd7E85CZPtqbmVW4Kras-zJYYcg8MZ8oOoobba4Dg2FDuk__b4nVIndA==&c=krwUvopNmEH7mOTuxo_PCMbbM0rm6K-eQCsna8LLuO10gxdS9yBHWQ==&ch=3i_BhlXPbd9NdQ8mpL-PbfSJKOesXcJQ2dBRetLBJFAU2KXi9yUXLQ==
mailto:info@achd.org
mailto:info@achd.org
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001Y2OTWOUEzvlopBD_F8J-lAmFxZ-gp8zNxOHAvgen1HCkepNq3N_rVFJHm-4TJb01Br2gBuovrektFc0alfbDLwsoO9MWowzfcSIY-hD21VmcTNmvPxtnKhqW8Wo6a1_a_BzPjueQoyc=&c=krwUvopNmEH7mOTuxo_PCMbbM0rm6K-eQCsna8LLuO10gxdS9yBHWQ==&ch=3i_BhlXPbd9NdQ8mpL-PbfSJKOesXcJQ2dBRetLBJFAU2KXi9yUXLQ==


  

The Governor has until October 14, 2023 to sign or veto bills that have made it to 
his desk. Though he has already signed and vetoed a number of bills, hundreds 
remain to be acted upon in the next nine days. For updates on bill actions you can 
visit Governor Newsom’s website. Note that bill results are posted in batches 
unless noticed in a larger press release.  
 
Sarah Bridge will provide a supplement to the October ACHD Advocate as 
soon as the deadline passes, updating members on priority issues. In the 
meantime, if you have questions for Sarah, please do not hesitate to contact her 
directly.  

 

Appointment of Laphonza Butler: 
 
Following the death of Senator Diane Feinstein, Governor Newsom struggled to 
find a replacement for her Senate seat, given its short-term nature and the desire 
to find a “caretaker” for the Senate seat. Honoring his previous commitments, 
Governor Newsom appointed Laphonza Butler, who was sworn in on Tuesday. 
This choice will have significant impacts on the already crowded Senate race. 
Polling data from an October 1st poll shows most voters supported Governor 
Newsom’s appointment of Butler. The polling data includes additional insights as 
well.  

 

ACHD Partners with CSDA on Special District Tour: 
 
In the final week of September, ACHD embarked on a tour of special districts 
hosted by the California Special Districts Association. The tour aimed to educate 
legislative staff from critical legislative offices and committees on the important 
role special districts play in the community. This year’s tour featured El Camino 
Healthcare District, with a tour of their newly renovated neonatal intensive care 
unit. Pictures of the tour are featured below.  

 
 

  

  

26

https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001Y2OTWOUEzvlopBD_F8J-lAmFxZ-gp8zNxOHAvgen1HCkepNq3N_rVIhIKXnPeI7lorslDiD_7bQ81hgObCYre2k6Bb-ffTaXv8nu73OU3xwsQCF4pvWpVoYzskrA1BpBzzm0X4sl8PmhKwofZRTDQ2gjV7dinB8T&c=krwUvopNmEH7mOTuxo_PCMbbM0rm6K-eQCsna8LLuO10gxdS9yBHWQ==&ch=3i_BhlXPbd9NdQ8mpL-PbfSJKOesXcJQ2dBRetLBJFAU2KXi9yUXLQ==
mailto:sarahb@strategies360.com
mailto:sarahb@strategies360.com
mailto:sarahb@strategies360.com
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001Y2OTWOUEzvlopBD_F8J-lAmFxZ-gp8zNxOHAvgen1HCkepNq3N_rVIhIKXnPeI7lrSWdhMSmPQ1SV7Gw1lVlcmvpu-wPOeRNJBrjSJNjlUw2cOXvcTupFH0SEPs5ND4iLVybzs5ALxhYeXIpnKjfJe2beWMl9iEWWWgaaatmFnuTmrBRXE1mh9ZaIi0bFS7ulHVfp7p0QnnynMnlWuT36rbmJxTjX-e3gT3qIAwawDANM3ysZ0FavqW6rG4os897&c=krwUvopNmEH7mOTuxo_PCMbbM0rm6K-eQCsna8LLuO10gxdS9yBHWQ==&ch=3i_BhlXPbd9NdQ8mpL-PbfSJKOesXcJQ2dBRetLBJFAU2KXi9yUXLQ==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001Y2OTWOUEzvlopBD_F8J-lAmFxZ-gp8zNxOHAvgen1HCkepNq3N_rVIhIKXnPeI7lfacYbq8AZQpcgH4p5VkGvcOU-gidNjg4Nq92aTKKJIOHGhYfyHqb2vNtYa3F1TG8_xpC1QuTjiKr4v3Iu_i2EYOa9IBM54_zGXQKckbER1ntExByGx2GGXY85EiCMdNC7r2Jq904AX_nWHQCkGBnBM3BawKvS5S-hMx1kKIDvI33ijVEuR9ALXmVsGCr7K6E6CJ-OzC-qHZqVqK9GMLWbZnEa_fVDhIX&c=krwUvopNmEH7mOTuxo_PCMbbM0rm6K-eQCsna8LLuO10gxdS9yBHWQ==&ch=3i_BhlXPbd9NdQ8mpL-PbfSJKOesXcJQ2dBRetLBJFAU2KXi9yUXLQ==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001Y2OTWOUEzvlopBD_F8J-lAmFxZ-gp8zNxOHAvgen1HCkepNq3N_rVIhIKXnPeI7l_Mpc6uqOzNE4mb8lyV81j42UJITuD1mUQEJgx7ygqsC44hh9MP01Crkm3HHVQrnzj9NBfIpwgEzDD4YcqQXxrw==&c=krwUvopNmEH7mOTuxo_PCMbbM0rm6K-eQCsna8LLuO10gxdS9yBHWQ==&ch=3i_BhlXPbd9NdQ8mpL-PbfSJKOesXcJQ2dBRetLBJFAU2KXi9yUXLQ==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001Y2OTWOUEzvlopBD_F8J-lAmFxZ-gp8zNxOHAvgen1HCkepNq3N_rVIhIKXnPeI7l8tRQrQXap6BE8QOlOXaMBNVbbNClzgsIE2olYxBddxozqoqMpOuCPCGymKqr6aosqb93VaEGIsC2ihOO65IcYiXhz22hHpo9atS2ll_y1EixaFT7_rzgjw==&c=krwUvopNmEH7mOTuxo_PCMbbM0rm6K-eQCsna8LLuO10gxdS9yBHWQ==&ch=3i_BhlXPbd9NdQ8mpL-PbfSJKOesXcJQ2dBRetLBJFAU2KXi9yUXLQ==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001Y2OTWOUEzvlopBD_F8J-lAmFxZ-gp8zNxOHAvgen1HCkepNq3N_rVIhIKXnPeI7l8tRQrQXap6BE8QOlOXaMBNVbbNClzgsIE2olYxBddxozqoqMpOuCPCGymKqr6aosqb93VaEGIsC2ihOO65IcYiXhz22hHpo9atS2ll_y1EixaFT7_rzgjw==&c=krwUvopNmEH7mOTuxo_PCMbbM0rm6K-eQCsna8LLuO10gxdS9yBHWQ==&ch=3i_BhlXPbd9NdQ8mpL-PbfSJKOesXcJQ2dBRetLBJFAU2KXi9yUXLQ==


 

 

  

 

 

  

  

Visit LeadingAge Website to Register for their Webinar 

  

 

 

 

  

The Association of California Healthcare Districts (ACHD) represents Healthcare Districts throughout the 
state's urban, suburban and rural areas. California is home to 76 Healthcare Districts that play a profound 
role in responding to the specialized health needs of local communities by providing access to essential 

health services to tens of millions of Californians while also having direct accountability to the communities 
that Districts serve. In many areas, Healthcare Districts are the sole source of health, medical and well-being 

services in their communities. 

27

https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001Y2OTWOUEzvlopBD_F8J-lAmFxZ-gp8zNxOHAvgen1HCkepNq3N_rVIhIKXnPeI7l0oIJMCsw50gPZUdsIe4nIJhP23-270emPavmgshk9GK1BE1pT-TeI6cWQEqTYwKSDkjG6obw6vjEbNgnmOIcFTKgAQDdpsEhY9FFuYGG8WpzLELUidakVFPx3su3oTLRQ1eVx69ia8Q=&c=krwUvopNmEH7mOTuxo_PCMbbM0rm6K-eQCsna8LLuO10gxdS9yBHWQ==&ch=3i_BhlXPbd9NdQ8mpL-PbfSJKOesXcJQ2dBRetLBJFAU2KXi9yUXLQ==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001Y2OTWOUEzvlopBD_F8J-lAmFxZ-gp8zNxOHAvgen1HCkepNq3N_rVIhIKXnPeI7l0oIJMCsw50gPZUdsIe4nIJhP23-270emPavmgshk9GK1BE1pT-TeI6cWQEqTYwKSDkjG6obw6vjEbNgnmOIcFTKgAQDdpsEhY9FFuYGG8WpzLELUidakVFPx3su3oTLRQ1eVx69ia8Q=&c=krwUvopNmEH7mOTuxo_PCMbbM0rm6K-eQCsna8LLuO10gxdS9yBHWQ==&ch=3i_BhlXPbd9NdQ8mpL-PbfSJKOesXcJQ2dBRetLBJFAU2KXi9yUXLQ==


 
Learn more at www.achd.org.  

 

 

 

  

Association of California Healthcare Districts  
www.achd.org 

 

 

 

     

 

   

   

ACHD | 1127 11th Street, Suite 905, Sacramento, CA 95814  

Unsubscribe pstout@mthcd.org  

Update Profile | Constant Contact Data Notice  

Sent by info@achd.org powered by  
 

 
Try email marketing for free today!  

 

 

 

28

https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001Y2OTWOUEzvlopBD_F8J-lAmFxZ-gp8zNxOHAvgen1HCkepNq3N_rVFJHm-4TJb01Br2gBuovrektFc0alfbDLwsoO9MWowzfcSIY-hD21VmcTNmvPxtnKhqW8Wo6a1_a_BzPjueQoyc=&c=krwUvopNmEH7mOTuxo_PCMbbM0rm6K-eQCsna8LLuO10gxdS9yBHWQ==&ch=3i_BhlXPbd9NdQ8mpL-PbfSJKOesXcJQ2dBRetLBJFAU2KXi9yUXLQ==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001Y2OTWOUEzvlopBD_F8J-lAmFxZ-gp8zNxOHAvgen1HCkepNq3N_rVFJHm-4TJb01Br2gBuovrektFc0alfbDLwsoO9MWowzfcSIY-hD21VmcTNmvPxtnKhqW8Wo6a1_a_BzPjueQoyc=&c=krwUvopNmEH7mOTuxo_PCMbbM0rm6K-eQCsna8LLuO10gxdS9yBHWQ==&ch=3i_BhlXPbd9NdQ8mpL-PbfSJKOesXcJQ2dBRetLBJFAU2KXi9yUXLQ==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001Y2OTWOUEzvlopBD_F8J-lAmFxZ-gp8zNxOHAvgen1HCkepNq3N_rVHzx9hswNZe_XLi6vO8ipnMQ9x-0Mu-maADg036XKyJFFdo8YDHOL7ZLpXTtkGvsJ1G4IE6L-p9cep0lqaxo8MyDnI2jsAylX5VSU4qelnz_-darEVMBT4kCCN0zKru6vw==&c=krwUvopNmEH7mOTuxo_PCMbbM0rm6K-eQCsna8LLuO10gxdS9yBHWQ==&ch=3i_BhlXPbd9NdQ8mpL-PbfSJKOesXcJQ2dBRetLBJFAU2KXi9yUXLQ==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001Y2OTWOUEzvlopBD_F8J-lAmFxZ-gp8zNxOHAvgen1HCkepNq3N_rVH84bBKncmcgCK8nFydNtNJyZJJrX9r3oFqw5Jn6K2A9kqCNi2cN8YnywRPZd_nisfPs1-3c0hqKx_CblCaU1dKPnWfh9czzTw==&c=krwUvopNmEH7mOTuxo_PCMbbM0rm6K-eQCsna8LLuO10gxdS9yBHWQ==&ch=3i_BhlXPbd9NdQ8mpL-PbfSJKOesXcJQ2dBRetLBJFAU2KXi9yUXLQ==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001Y2OTWOUEzvlopBD_F8J-lAmFxZ-gp8zNxOHAvgen1HCkepNq3N_rVIVZfT-ZaFwCulAYiA0GFq9Q6YNRThpU4cTSmOcsYLJ9Z27UhgEDrmzABvJGq3EpjM0LuHPp6pdo2B4xd-l1y0l9kuSEyp7a3U8TqRIHR2dx_ExJUjqNQnXlgcVA0YBQh1RD8uIX1ahyIIya9YYmakrfjK3EeIKCgnZFaL9DIZXDKFhZ2s-5vr8=&c=krwUvopNmEH7mOTuxo_PCMbbM0rm6K-eQCsna8LLuO10gxdS9yBHWQ==&ch=3i_BhlXPbd9NdQ8mpL-PbfSJKOesXcJQ2dBRetLBJFAU2KXi9yUXLQ==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001Y2OTWOUEzvlopBD_F8J-lAmFxZ-gp8zNxOHAvgen1HCkepNq3N_rVBByig51O710OaDapkV2V-Hc2KHZPRb4Ua9vGcyEVzd7nWsBmzFjAWrUDkmZzXESxSIEQbE7LC1XKfi0zycRVQF5COHIc0lYIEMDidOe_UrJTDpFW7FIhRSmCzzKPPkkWvaHLWQtjFsd&c=krwUvopNmEH7mOTuxo_PCMbbM0rm6K-eQCsna8LLuO10gxdS9yBHWQ==&ch=3i_BhlXPbd9NdQ8mpL-PbfSJKOesXcJQ2dBRetLBJFAU2KXi9yUXLQ==
https://visitor.constantcontact.com/do?p=un&m=001IrZzxiXhpdPEo_1bcbNgkQ%3D&ch=0e09c804-ee2d-11ea-81b5-d4ae52a82222&ca=2f98bd95-5b5b-4253-9e91-4db501f59255
https://visitor.constantcontact.com/do?p=oo&m=001IrZzxiXhpdPEo_1bcbNgkQ%3D&ch=0e09c804-ee2d-11ea-81b5-d4ae52a82222&ca=2f98bd95-5b5b-4253-9e91-4db501f59255
https://www.constantcontact.com/legal/customer-contact-data-notice
mailto:info@achd.org
http://www.constantcontact.com/index.jsp?cc=nge&rmc=VF21_3GE&nav=2f98bd95-5b5b-4253-9e91-4db501f59255
http://www.constantcontact.com/index.jsp?cc=nge&rmc=VF21_3GE&nav=2f98bd95-5b5b-4253-9e91-4db501f59255


 

  

ACHD Advocate 
Follow Up 

October 2023 
 

 

 

  
 

  

In this follow up: 
• End of Session Legislative Outcomes 

 

  

As promised, ACHD is following up with a second installment 
of the ACHD October Advocate in order to provide you with 
the final results of high-priority legislation following the 
Governor’s October 14th deadline to act on bills that made it to 
his desk. Below, Sarah Bridge, Sr. Director at Strategies 360, 
provides a summary of those outcomes, as well as an 
additional document detailing the fate of all bills seeking 
Governor Newsome’s signature. 
 
Be sure to save the date for our New Laws in 2024 Webinar, scheduled for 
Monday, December 4th at 11:00 AM, to hear from Sarah about what healthcare 
districts need to know moving ahead in 2024. 

 

 

 

  

Governor Newsom’s bill signing deadline closed at midnight on October 14, 2023. 
Strategies 360, ACHD’s lobbying firm, has put together an end-of-session report, 
available here, that gives a broad overview of the political landscape in California. 
Below, are updates on high-priority bills for healthcare districts. Additionally, 
ACHD will host a New Laws in 2024 webinar in December. This is an 
opportunity for your district to learn more about bills that will take effect in the 
coming year and what to expect politically in the next year of the legislative 
session. 
 

29

mailto:sarab@strategies360.com
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001QJV5-AEI9FoifTtglyAaj0_wbL4hYfhnPB1cBY7-snTBFZhoV_KBVYvD6jKPtT1w5Nc_jvtPmmVv76zWRwGGz3PNFvzZU1RX7bPHYFZM34SYnNlWVfd7tGbSaMEqeMhbxVjkGs1bNvFLUxpZNFWQwxvz9zOH3s60B2VilG4Lde6_uG2UnlZW7S1WDuESv0CrluGWlMaM4jd5zh0EeF79iif8KKsOLR9m&c=oeH6DRzp6nqKM4GzwnK0_WXyULKQBOcs_lsaT65_aBy8408riVrCqw==&ch=E20stuJtO0kxWFiwBgWtsmsBoYppq-hXr8vByb1MDQVsd70OhAkSZw==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001QJV5-AEI9FoifTtglyAaj0_wbL4hYfhnPB1cBY7-snTBFZhoV_KBVed444F07NeQDUCS34yuPUvSFvtnmIFhDZBVhmOzvUSbS2F-PQoaWlic-WwBg4XXf3AKhVa_A7zazv1Erc1HuKQ=&c=oeH6DRzp6nqKM4GzwnK0_WXyULKQBOcs_lsaT65_aBy8408riVrCqw==&ch=E20stuJtO0kxWFiwBgWtsmsBoYppq-hXr8vByb1MDQVsd70OhAkSZw==


ACHD actively positioned on 35 bills, while also monitoring and engaging 
informally on over 240 bills. ACHD sponsored SB 784 (Becker), which would 
allow all district hospitals to employ physicians directly. ACHD was also the lead 
opposition or support on nearly ten measures. This is a remarkable increase 
in the Association's visibility in the Capitol. We look forward to January when the 
legislature returns and we can pick up our work on several high-priority bills that 
were stalled or stopped this year. The upcoming legislative calendar can be found 
here. 
 
 
High Priority Bills Signed by the Governor 
 
ACA 1 (Aguiar-Curry): Local government financing: affordable housing and public 
infrastructure – ACHD Position: Support 
ACA 1 finally reached the Governor’s office and received a signature. The 
constitutional amendment would create a new voter approval mechanism with a 
vote threshold of 55% for approval of local general obligation bonds and special 
taxes related to certain affordable housing and infrastructure projects. The 
measure will now go to the voters for approval on the November 2024 ballot. 
 
AB 40 (Rodriguez): Emergency medical services – ACHD Position: Neutral  
The controversial AB 40, which seeks to address ambulance patient offload 
times, was signed into law. The final version reflects several rounds of 
amendments, however, it still establishes a statewide 30-minute standard for 
patient offload times. 
 
AB 242 (Wood): Critical Access Hospitals Physician Employment – ACHD 
Position: Support  
AB 242 makes permanent the pilot program that allowed California’s critical 
access hospitals to directly employ physicians. Without the bill, the program 
would have sunset (expired) in 2024. ACHD members were lead testimony in 
support of this bill. 
 
AB 557 (Hart) Open meetings: local agencies: teleconferences. – ACHD Position: 
Support  
AB 557 eliminates the sunset (expiration date) on the emergency remote meeting 
procedures and adjusts the resolution timeframe to allow public agencies 45 days 
between approvals for remote participation. 
 
AB 918 (Garcia) Health care district: County of Imperial – ACHD Position: 
Concerns 
AB 918 establishes a county-wide district in the Imperial Valley. In doing so, it 
dissolves both the Pioneers Memorial Health Care District and the Heffernan 

30

https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001QJV5-AEI9FoifTtglyAaj0_wbL4hYfhnPB1cBY7-snTBFZhoV_KBVYvD6jKPtT1wLoeYFc2Y0W9vYejSVjwTDQQAQXgh8cmfamSDGkC-3z9SXXlxCUCJMgWejpDnvYUdbaAyfzn8MNKLxFTDjsd-BUyLgeZSWPzg2EYofr-ofPVk-WuSemI21ThlqF67HIshcTKl5okAjibyUwWJqgYyAc-97cl2NhUAyORXzsXkyFXuVbg1GfgG0Q==&c=oeH6DRzp6nqKM4GzwnK0_WXyULKQBOcs_lsaT65_aBy8408riVrCqw==&ch=E20stuJtO0kxWFiwBgWtsmsBoYppq-hXr8vByb1MDQVsd70OhAkSZw==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001QJV5-AEI9FoifTtglyAaj0_wbL4hYfhnPB1cBY7-snTBFZhoV_KBVYvD6jKPtT1wLoeYFc2Y0W9vYejSVjwTDQQAQXgh8cmfamSDGkC-3z9SXXlxCUCJMgWejpDnvYUdbaAyfzn8MNKLxFTDjsd-BUyLgeZSWPzg2EYofr-ofPVk-WuSemI21ThlqF67HIshcTKl5okAjibyUwWJqgYyAc-97cl2NhUAyORXzsXkyFXuVbg1GfgG0Q==&c=oeH6DRzp6nqKM4GzwnK0_WXyULKQBOcs_lsaT65_aBy8408riVrCqw==&ch=E20stuJtO0kxWFiwBgWtsmsBoYppq-hXr8vByb1MDQVsd70OhAkSZw==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001QJV5-AEI9FoifTtglyAaj0_wbL4hYfhnPB1cBY7-snTBFZhoV_KBVd_sUbIWd6EnaZfuy9TrbTtErXg6cncy95bUIwVPRsLV9dzuDabFCnyCjYwztbiQHiB2bktSY3kxHZFDSc_pLWwBJ2eb4X0Dy9cEtn8AlAWzauwlLk-utPmIYbTpGdveVOZ_DHDPNQfd3RjNHqOymuGUpiVF4Ll70p2ezdzcBFIHxLDVVNkajEM=&c=oeH6DRzp6nqKM4GzwnK0_WXyULKQBOcs_lsaT65_aBy8408riVrCqw==&ch=E20stuJtO0kxWFiwBgWtsmsBoYppq-hXr8vByb1MDQVsd70OhAkSZw==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001QJV5-AEI9FoifTtglyAaj0_wbL4hYfhnPB1cBY7-snTBFZhoV_KBVd_sUbIWd6EnaZfuy9TrbTtErXg6cncy95bUIwVPRsLV9dzuDabFCnyCjYwztbiQHiB2bktSY3kxHZFDSc_pLWwBJ2eb4X0Dy9cEtn8AlAWzauwlLk-utPmIYbTpGdveVOZ_DHDPNQfd3RjNHqOymuGUpiVF4Ll70p2ezdzcBFIHxLDVVNkajEM=&c=oeH6DRzp6nqKM4GzwnK0_WXyULKQBOcs_lsaT65_aBy8408riVrCqw==&ch=E20stuJtO0kxWFiwBgWtsmsBoYppq-hXr8vByb1MDQVsd70OhAkSZw==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001QJV5-AEI9FoifTtglyAaj0_wbL4hYfhnPB1cBY7-snTBFZhoV_KBVd_sUbIWd6EnA2CaI03QM4nl8T88gC1Euu4fl0zpQgO_O1K7_v3mGvTHzlH7KdL6pIFo8nEXsJLQvXHR-Y2uIZnE6B53iJPB4Ot7qcHIzon-zP3oUeACYuU0q-kx8TuP_66N0CoIzudXHLttq1ZxAh2yZVtOKiIRp28vhuPct8oM3BiLehMhg8U=&c=oeH6DRzp6nqKM4GzwnK0_WXyULKQBOcs_lsaT65_aBy8408riVrCqw==&ch=E20stuJtO0kxWFiwBgWtsmsBoYppq-hXr8vByb1MDQVsd70OhAkSZw==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001QJV5-AEI9FoifTtglyAaj0_wbL4hYfhnPB1cBY7-snTBFZhoV_KBVT6WUL0tYg0uhIs_7_aooJ6KPgkumpJG01ZZfCXIWknxU64X_uq-qk59bBjttgkk5aPhCgmjtkXVBpvfVNwhQxTLzWqvBsbUltwNmakeIJDDFxRApgrT_PjKsUMPjCZtpfxSLPcXMoj0pNVPtNx6ECDPNXDOiZwuZJTjRgpbGcGuU1ulm2PNfHw=&c=oeH6DRzp6nqKM4GzwnK0_WXyULKQBOcs_lsaT65_aBy8408riVrCqw==&ch=E20stuJtO0kxWFiwBgWtsmsBoYppq-hXr8vByb1MDQVsd70OhAkSZw==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001QJV5-AEI9FoifTtglyAaj0_wbL4hYfhnPB1cBY7-snTBFZhoV_KBVZECZ6XUzBtN5gOQCAWu01BPIAAxoQ2CHGhqQLyea0Zv0mjy4VAMLICdYCV-fB5F6a2DE-lsw8d4J4UddxOn5gBfQe2Snr-n3nKiXdMRt6G2R83BnqeV9uS1fHjC9X8iu-eZxQcM1B6CPKDt7ier0ccHJc6LuLJesIlMBQ8hdzgLFbYKUBsDLSI=&c=oeH6DRzp6nqKM4GzwnK0_WXyULKQBOcs_lsaT65_aBy8408riVrCqw==&ch=E20stuJtO0kxWFiwBgWtsmsBoYppq-hXr8vByb1MDQVsd70OhAkSZw==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001QJV5-AEI9FoifTtglyAaj0_wbL4hYfhnPB1cBY7-snTBFZhoV_KBVQ66g58J3b3BZuidqVQjAAHVDyQxusNw9zMEkaXmncryZIwzDlnWZGgq2BJhK6wKGSt8Mn9e-m97v2meZSV9WW2ZXf08Mnk_DdI2BuGCOWpfOsjYOn60lLToFRZdwbyBUWU1FEachiobjB4xyoXiuFYo-iooKCCxuHUoDtL9aQ0CLBYYcmo1_Fg=&c=oeH6DRzp6nqKM4GzwnK0_WXyULKQBOcs_lsaT65_aBy8408riVrCqw==&ch=E20stuJtO0kxWFiwBgWtsmsBoYppq-hXr8vByb1MDQVsd70OhAkSZw==


Memorial Healthcare District. The bill has an urgency clause, so it will take effect 
immediately. 
 
AB 1484 (Zbur): Temporary public employees – ACHD Position: Neutral  
AB 1484 requires public employers to join temporary employees in any relevant 
collective bargaining units. Amendments, successfully negotiated by ACHD, 
ensure that this does not extend to staffing agency employees so long as PERB 
has not made any determination on the issue. 
 
SB 525 (Durazo): Minimum wages: health care workers – ACHD Original 
Position: Oppose, then neutral after amendments 
In the final days of the signing period, the Governor signed SB 525, which creates 
a statewide healthcare worker minimum wage. The bill, in its final version, is the 
result of stakeholder negotiations led by the hospital association and sponsors of 
the bill, including conversations with the Administration. These negotiations were 
helpful to some of our members, and therefore, once a deal was struck ACHD 
moved to a neutral position. 
 
The Administration struggled with signing the measure as it has significant state 
costs. The Governor's signature means we will see a “clean-up”, early-action bill 
in January to ensure the impact to the state’s general fund remains covered. We 
expect this conversation to occur between stakeholders, the Department of 
Finance, and high-ranking members of the Newsom Administration. While the 
final version provides some predictability and stability with regard to healthcare 
worker minimum wage moving ahead, ACHD remains concerned about a lack of 
clarity for our non-hospital healthcare district members and looks forward to 
working with stakeholders and others on improved clarity. 
 
The minimum wage is broken into three categories by entity type. Those 
categories are outlined below. 
 

Tier one: 
Covered employers with 10,000 or more full time employees, Dialysis 
Clinics, and any County with a population over 5 million. 
•      June 1, 2024: $23 per hour 
•      June 1, 2025: $24 per hour 
•      June 1, 2026: $25 per hour 
 

Tier two: 
Primarily rural health and community clinics as specified in the bill. 
•      June 1, 2024 - May 31, 2026: $21 per hour 
•      June 1, 2026: $22 per hour 
•      June 1, 2027: Adjusts by 3.5% until $25 
 

31

https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001QJV5-AEI9FoifTtglyAaj0_wbL4hYfhnPB1cBY7-snTBFZhoV_KBVR785zsBeue4glwGMp0rYmZeo5tDYZCIkMxgBVZbyppNwgxjgBxbzemdot6wKoZFRXdcPEeqyCoSG9Dfot1WwIcqhGKI6UxKUZVk78ffVW6isgACAU6oUCTqr0WBSrlxLA1YOQTitwY6q9VOocxQy0U8Rm5TVrnC8XzHi_r-6lDrHVjoKBL7B0M=&c=oeH6DRzp6nqKM4GzwnK0_WXyULKQBOcs_lsaT65_aBy8408riVrCqw==&ch=E20stuJtO0kxWFiwBgWtsmsBoYppq-hXr8vByb1MDQVsd70OhAkSZw==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001QJV5-AEI9FoifTtglyAaj0_wbL4hYfhnPB1cBY7-snTBFZhoV_KBVU_FtKHRgvZxCqFxWnGWMP1eIREivcklKBRrRk4sz90ZZLdYHflRkrwFqnnKADM13uVcNYsTyjlN_DMe-UpwO81IcwUCguPYB3Jy-Cvvb_6z85rDMV-P3PJb8G46wc1_lGMggYdVSDrUc6hNucGBvSarmp3X8JPfbuAMJyXrF4aLFetqOsV3T5M=&c=oeH6DRzp6nqKM4GzwnK0_WXyULKQBOcs_lsaT65_aBy8408riVrCqw==&ch=E20stuJtO0kxWFiwBgWtsmsBoYppq-hXr8vByb1MDQVsd70OhAkSZw==


Tier three: 
Rural hospitals and providers with a high government payer mix (at least 
90% for a system/ 75% for an acute hospital), or a county with a population 
of less than 250,000. 
•      June 1, 2024 - May 31, 2033, $18 per hour, with 3.5% adjuster 
annually. 

 
Other important considerations: 

• Applies to contracts, contractors, and subcontractors of a covered 
employer. Must directly or indirectly have control over wages, hours 
or working conditions. 

• Exempt employee's salary shall be no less than 150% of the health 
care worker minimum wage or 200% of the applicable minimum 
wage, whichever is greater. 

• Once $25 is reached, adjustments shall be made annually by 3.5% or 
CPI-W whichever is lower. 

 
SB 770(Weiner): Health care: unified health care financing – ACHD Position: 
Watch 
SB 770 (Wiener) which directs the California Health and Human Services agency 
by June 1, 2025, to have researched and developed a waiver framework 
with the federal government with the objective of a comprehensive medical 
coverage system, reminiscent of a single-payer framework. The bill advances the 
concept of federal financing as a potential option to fund a universal care delivery 
system. 
 
Vetoed Bills: 
 
SB 799 (Portantino): Unemployment Insurance – ACHD Position: Oppose 
In the first rounds of signatures and vetoes, the Governor vetoed SB 799, which 
would make employees striking for more than two weeks eligible for 
unemployment insurance. The bill was sponsored by the Labor Federation and 
was their number one priority. We will likely see a re-introduction of this legislation 
next session. 

 

  
 

 

 

The Association of California Healthcare Districts (ACHD) represents Healthcare Districts throughout the 
state's urban, suburban and rural areas. California is home to 76 Healthcare Districts that play a profound 
role in responding to the specialized health needs of local communities by providing access to essential 

health services to tens of millions of Californians while also having direct accountability to the communities 
that Districts serve. In many areas, Healthcare Districts are the sole source of health, medical and well-being 

services in their communities. 
 

Learn more at www.achd.org.  
 

32

https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001QJV5-AEI9FoifTtglyAaj0_wbL4hYfhnPB1cBY7-snTBFZhoV_KBVYvD6jKPtT1wY5OvdlFWZENo9nBznsUmarYTHyj3z8AIm3CWg4JR923mibOyjmnIKlB6BklFhYz3DLYmDVWSQQQJBOtcDsxIYRCgUWuXuQtYeCBTlkmHUjG3vY-B4UrZmp9woeaE-KAgsliDzt2NFLUDCbLWRd2bsabUrwnlmnJOVK3IVolfIh8=&c=oeH6DRzp6nqKM4GzwnK0_WXyULKQBOcs_lsaT65_aBy8408riVrCqw==&ch=E20stuJtO0kxWFiwBgWtsmsBoYppq-hXr8vByb1MDQVsd70OhAkSZw==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001QJV5-AEI9FoifTtglyAaj0_wbL4hYfhnPB1cBY7-snTBFZhoV_KBVYvD6jKPtT1whXLqzSk8qaBXGEWkBmg6WGrXPIIUsOkRdlEDlkYFSf7fLlsD1RpRsts5B8vJiC3L3JAxprHrv9zY_sibB9keGqdPKcmH1CJS8AR8x56Bv4IlWzFyy2q6s-Pn7_avKKuqL0JGv0nDv8a0E2jtUI55ZnbEt52KQAZQWFtkbbKbgF0=&c=oeH6DRzp6nqKM4GzwnK0_WXyULKQBOcs_lsaT65_aBy8408riVrCqw==&ch=E20stuJtO0kxWFiwBgWtsmsBoYppq-hXr8vByb1MDQVsd70OhAkSZw==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001QJV5-AEI9FoifTtglyAaj0_wbL4hYfhnPB1cBY7-snTBFZhoV_KBVed444F07NeQDUCS34yuPUvSFvtnmIFhDZBVhmOzvUSbS2F-PQoaWlic-WwBg4XXf3AKhVa_A7zazv1Erc1HuKQ=&c=oeH6DRzp6nqKM4GzwnK0_WXyULKQBOcs_lsaT65_aBy8408riVrCqw==&ch=E20stuJtO0kxWFiwBgWtsmsBoYppq-hXr8vByb1MDQVsd70OhAkSZw==


The ACHD Board of Directors is seeking nominations from member healthcare 
district Trustees or CEOs to fill vacant positions on the ACHD Board.

Serving on the ACHD Board is a valuable opportunity for our members to: 
• Contribute to the growth and success of ACHD.
• Interact and collaborate with other members who share a common

interest.
• Broaden your network of professional connections.

Apply to serve on the ACHD Board by submitting a resume or statement of 
qualifications to ACHD by October 31st. The Governance Committee will review 
and recommend candidates to be approved by the full ACHD Board in December.

Please note that the criteria for serving on the Board are as follows:
• No member district may be represented on the Board by more than

one voting board member at the same time.
• The nominee's healthcare district is either currently a “Certified

Healthcare District” or commits to becoming certified within the first
three years on the Board.

• The district board of directors and/or the district CEO must support
the nomination in writing at the time of submission.

Individual board members serve three-year terms, up to two terms, and their 
appointment becomes effective upon approval by the ACHD Board.

If you are interested in serving, please submit your resume or statement of 
qualifications and a letter of support from your district Board to ACHD by October 
31st. 

If you have any questions, please contact ACHD.

The Association of California Healthcare Districts (ACHD) represents Healthcare Districts throughout the 
state's urban, suburban and rural areas. California is home to 76 Healthcare Districts that play a profound 

33

https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001ap9Lf1wv-dXU9h_oC35z0zObsk-IPZHbA9_kXPCN7pdkxhj4Joi0rcjxF62BTJuW6qWFSIH-kxjisNHVzf96dIzMN_xiFREbY-c8_EuzHiCwn4S1B7_WdWi-nxxkwujOs7jcDyVEF365y9sFu2l-YnhoxG9IFW33fsLEVyec1xMQZefRD-78LbysbLOCICwmS_lEHi_jbbErJ7jEJGVNjCUoYuIknZsY_pE34FhVEpPmo5LltSZkwQ==&c=gRokq0HLtkIm7IOqb6aUTrAq1DrZUmwO5Il3OajtPAC_XFgduMwb9Q==&ch=Yxbw8OIOUybHzS-D2RHZoVqtyWeKTLyktwksyb0CeaFxbwYEK2VLbg==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001ap9Lf1wv-dXU9h_oC35z0zObsk-IPZHbA9_kXPCN7pdkxhj4Joi0rcjxF62BTJuW6qWFSIH-kxjisNHVzf96dIzMN_xiFREbY-c8_EuzHiCwn4S1B7_WdWi-nxxkwujOs7jcDyVEF365y9sFu2l-YnhoxG9IFW33fsLEVyec1xMQZefRD-78LbysbLOCICwmS_lEHi_jbbErJ7jEJGVNjCUoYuIknZsY_pE34FhVEpPmo5LltSZkwQ==&c=gRokq0HLtkIm7IOqb6aUTrAq1DrZUmwO5Il3OajtPAC_XFgduMwb9Q==&ch=Yxbw8OIOUybHzS-D2RHZoVqtyWeKTLyktwksyb0CeaFxbwYEK2VLbg==
mailto:info@achd.org
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001ap9Lf1wv-dXU9h_oC35z0zObsk-IPZHbA9_kXPCN7pdkxhj4Joi0rRb-B8NZ55Hq7NVO6MHHwQ-Zf1Osx5fHCW_APWfuHn2yaiOQkHXEgQ4FKfgtdwfnZouaNCmsuctMUoQX6Yczfoj4yQvZTq3cUrKZhY3cQ8BMod-rkm4EV5Y=&c=gRokq0HLtkIm7IOqb6aUTrAq1DrZUmwO5Il3OajtPAC_XFgduMwb9Q==&ch=Yxbw8OIOUybHzS-D2RHZoVqtyWeKTLyktwksyb0CeaFxbwYEK2VLbg==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001ap9Lf1wv-dXU9h_oC35z0zObsk-IPZHbA9_kXPCN7pdkxhj4Joi0rWv_q3lyNwq66DPfaqELpz6ch-cchmHHxt_2jeCbDVy4Sg3Nsjg2647fUGJsDMEOZPFwjfrOctnM8jdNcCIJy9xHfNBpdDNwrsD052mJaYSkyqhBb5-0DQVjEinkeDNoWscp0aW8PjlS&c=gRokq0HLtkIm7IOqb6aUTrAq1DrZUmwO5Il3OajtPAC_XFgduMwb9Q==&ch=Yxbw8OIOUybHzS-D2RHZoVqtyWeKTLyktwksyb0CeaFxbwYEK2VLbg==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001ap9Lf1wv-dXU9h_oC35z0zObsk-IPZHbA9_kXPCN7pdkxhj4Joi0rWv_q3lyNwq66DPfaqELpz6ch-cchmHHxt_2jeCbDVy4Sg3Nsjg2647fUGJsDMEOZPFwjfrOctnM8jdNcCIJy9xHfNBpdDNwrsD052mJaYSkyqhBb5-0DQVjEinkeDNoWscp0aW8PjlS&c=gRokq0HLtkIm7IOqb6aUTrAq1DrZUmwO5Il3OajtPAC_XFgduMwb9Q==&ch=Yxbw8OIOUybHzS-D2RHZoVqtyWeKTLyktwksyb0CeaFxbwYEK2VLbg==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001ap9Lf1wv-dXU9h_oC35z0zObsk-IPZHbA9_kXPCN7pdkxhj4Joi0rcjxF62BTJuW6qWFSIH-kxjisNHVzf96dIzMN_xiFREbY-c8_EuzHiCwn4S1B7_WdWi-nxxkwujOs7jcDyVEF365y9sFu2l-YnhoxG9IFW33fsLEVyec1xMQZefRD-78LbysbLOCICwmS_lEHi_jbbErJ7jEJGVNjCUoYuIknZsY_pE34FhVEpPmo5LltSZkwQ==&c=gRokq0HLtkIm7IOqb6aUTrAq1DrZUmwO5Il3OajtPAC_XFgduMwb9Q==&ch=Yxbw8OIOUybHzS-D2RHZoVqtyWeKTLyktwksyb0CeaFxbwYEK2VLbg==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001ap9Lf1wv-dXU9h_oC35z0zObsk-IPZHbA9_kXPCN7pdkxhj4Joi0rcjxF62BTJuW6qWFSIH-kxjisNHVzf96dIzMN_xiFREbY-c8_EuzHiCwn4S1B7_WdWi-nxxkwujOs7jcDyVEF365y9sFu2l-YnhoxG9IFW33fsLEVyec1xMQZefRD-78LbysbLOCICwmS_lEHi_jbbErJ7jEJGVNjCUoYuIknZsY_pE34FhVEpPmo5LltSZkwQ==&c=gRokq0HLtkIm7IOqb6aUTrAq1DrZUmwO5Il3OajtPAC_XFgduMwb9Q==&ch=Yxbw8OIOUybHzS-D2RHZoVqtyWeKTLyktwksyb0CeaFxbwYEK2VLbg==
mailto:info@achd.org
mailto:info@achd.org
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001ap9Lf1wv-dXU9h_oC35z0zObsk-IPZHbA9_kXPCN7pdkxhj4Joi0rcZZjD3xs9WbCJKfpEB2D_cg2Zqkz3el9ZbqwiYkghuCdaxgNhsfqsHBbzoSBXAKhp3agN0NkCQ57MZNuh-qJCKitg5kAUclgRrhc-92y0Ggb27tI7S1HGMp5t-VgRiQJG38VXXtfILB&c=gRokq0HLtkIm7IOqb6aUTrAq1DrZUmwO5Il3OajtPAC_XFgduMwb9Q==&ch=Yxbw8OIOUybHzS-D2RHZoVqtyWeKTLyktwksyb0CeaFxbwYEK2VLbg==


role in responding to the specialized health needs of local communities by providing access to essential 
health services to tens of millions of Californians while also having direct accountability to the communities 

that Districts serve. In many areas, Healthcare Districts are the sole source of health, medical and well-being 
services in their communities. 

Learn more at www.achd.org. 

Association of California Healthcare Districts 
www.achd.org 

34

https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001ap9Lf1wv-dXU9h_oC35z0zObsk-IPZHbA9_kXPCN7pdkxhj4Joi0ravHwzaU0rWjAPge-KWwjJxB8yC5URmv9DfNPRzfL3bpq3L467Oby9zFYIs0EUAf-0quzVXKiRsLgrVQKddBtcg=&c=gRokq0HLtkIm7IOqb6aUTrAq1DrZUmwO5Il3OajtPAC_XFgduMwb9Q==&ch=Yxbw8OIOUybHzS-D2RHZoVqtyWeKTLyktwksyb0CeaFxbwYEK2VLbg==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001ap9Lf1wv-dXU9h_oC35z0zObsk-IPZHbA9_kXPCN7pdkxhj4Joi0ravHwzaU0rWjAPge-KWwjJxB8yC5URmv9DfNPRzfL3bpq3L467Oby9zFYIs0EUAf-0quzVXKiRsLgrVQKddBtcg=&c=gRokq0HLtkIm7IOqb6aUTrAq1DrZUmwO5Il3OajtPAC_XFgduMwb9Q==&ch=Yxbw8OIOUybHzS-D2RHZoVqtyWeKTLyktwksyb0CeaFxbwYEK2VLbg==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001ap9Lf1wv-dXU9h_oC35z0zObsk-IPZHbA9_kXPCN7pdkxhj4Joi0rXCFs1jeXicqS7dA1ObGZWEu3PA_SyiYjdB4L8RbyoSwFbZtZJeeYtbEhR57cNvaPenoBu7eAiZJiNfz-o0QWWOkVdBFkQBsT5RqlE0zXhmnrJZsJT9KXHAGP6styOflgQ==&c=gRokq0HLtkIm7IOqb6aUTrAq1DrZUmwO5Il3OajtPAC_XFgduMwb9Q==&ch=Yxbw8OIOUybHzS-D2RHZoVqtyWeKTLyktwksyb0CeaFxbwYEK2VLbg==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001ap9Lf1wv-dXU9h_oC35z0zObsk-IPZHbA9_kXPCN7pdkxhj4Joi0rbOL6FOfiTpFp2om5fOKO0KPlpumlA119dN_FOk0qUPoSdVERvu6XAd2bEa99qUbZYIXUhMcfsRfhDGqRfNZ2O6MsJtTVq2-Ow==&c=gRokq0HLtkIm7IOqb6aUTrAq1DrZUmwO5Il3OajtPAC_XFgduMwb9Q==&ch=Yxbw8OIOUybHzS-D2RHZoVqtyWeKTLyktwksyb0CeaFxbwYEK2VLbg==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001ap9Lf1wv-dXU9h_oC35z0zObsk-IPZHbA9_kXPCN7pdkxhj4Joi0rXMALMns8mSBDxpPvpHV3qiEpPqFUhnGT8_pFiW72e5X7HMi-4jBgH9oaox9h4LS5iwTJxI4F3zKWn0xmvTDaBPViPyu2jd4zmiICjG0J8ZbVCvxbmd0SrcwfOeEwd1VAPIIzWYwS5tRvNlpTir8cxqAG6bDd3ohGcWfKL6N7N-HDn-OgIp1K8Y=&c=gRokq0HLtkIm7IOqb6aUTrAq1DrZUmwO5Il3OajtPAC_XFgduMwb9Q==&ch=Yxbw8OIOUybHzS-D2RHZoVqtyWeKTLyktwksyb0CeaFxbwYEK2VLbg==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001ap9Lf1wv-dXU9h_oC35z0zObsk-IPZHbA9_kXPCN7pdkxhj4Joi0rZQIhXk29nu5X9U0seER81Ij3Ju2ueGJ1uv2u3GylWXh2s0Vic_ulyKdHoxjS98ypKwJE6Rn_3vkxE6Ws-_k1GqEcAJlPXtQJQSW1W20xqIHDRsAbuJpivuw3RQZz707T6kCwgtKhJlj&c=gRokq0HLtkIm7IOqb6aUTrAq1DrZUmwO5Il3OajtPAC_XFgduMwb9Q==&ch=Yxbw8OIOUybHzS-D2RHZoVqtyWeKTLyktwksyb0CeaFxbwYEK2VLbg==


35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



MTHCD 2023-2025 Strategic Matrix updated 10-25-2023

Projected Start

Behavioral Health (BH)

VSHWC BH Team established, expanding Hired new LCSW

BH Grants $150,000

BH VSHWC Construction Awarded!!
architect contract 

signed

Children's Advocacy Ctr new management Presentation 11-2023

CC Mental Health Advisory Bd Attending monthly Presented CHNA

CC Mental Health Services Act
Applying For CDBG 

funding app review

Combined Education SUD conference Oct Feb 24, SUD workshop

MTMC Collaboration Pending Oct-23

Community Outreach Not started

Chronic Disease Mgt

VSHWC established

Diabetes Education exploring on-line

Discussing with 

endocrinologist

Hepatitis Clinic established busy

Hepatitis C screening started

Started, linked to 

annual exam

Health Fair Diabetes Screening MACT fair completed MTMC completed

Pulmonary Rehab Program MTMC

Med Staff 

presentation done

Cardiac Rehab Program MTMC      done

Wellness Center relationship not started

Defibrillator (AED) stations
Mtg w Fire Chiefs  

reviewing applications

10 AED's purchased 

and distributed

Access to Care

VSHWC established/ fully open

Dental VA Services pending VA problematic

Senior Center Kiosks not started

Dental Care

VSHWC 100% staffed/open

Let's All Smile On Hold reviewing

Oral Health Coalition re-established

VSHWC Expansion awarded

Veterans Dental Program Contracting started contracting failed

Requires funding

50



Subject: Energy Efficient Lighting Upgrade Project
Date: 5/15/2023

84.8

481,493       

0.150$         

Annual Lighting Energy Expense Savings 72,224$       

Annual A/C Energy Expense Savings (heat load) 14,942$       

Annual Lamp Replacement Savings 13,003$       

Total Annual Savings 100,169$     

Total Number of Fixtures 1,758           

Warranty on all Materials (10 years) and Labor (1 year)

Total Project Cost (materials, labor, disposal) 236,660$     

Plus:  State and Local Taxes 5,486$         

Total Project cost (including sales tax) 242,146$     

-$             

Net Project Cost 242,146$     

2.4               Payback in Years

Earth Savers Energy Services, Inc. 5255 E. Williams Circle, Tucson, Arizona 85711, (909)315-5777, www.earthsavers.com

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

DH-322B Mark Twain Med. Center 

Total kW Demand Reduction

Annual kWh Savings 

Average Electricity Rate ($$/kWh)

Less:  Utility Company Rebate (paid upon completion)

-1000000

0

1000000

2000000

3000000

4000000

5000000

6000000

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25

Years

Cumulative 25 -Year Cash Flow

51



Page 2 of 30 Project -- Book1 Earth Savers 

Line

# Building Room Action Exist  
Quan

New 
Quan New Control 

New 
Contrl 
Quan

1 Mark Twain Start @ Front Main 
Enterance

2 Mark Twain Entry Retrofit --  CFL Plug-in - 2 lamp 26Ww/EIKO LED Downlight Kit 8", Dim, (12-
16-22W), 120-277V 4 4

3 Mark Twain Diagnostic Imaging

4 Mark Twain Registration Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 2 2

5 Mark Twain Bone Density

6 Mark Twain Exam Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp A/B 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 
4500 lm 2 2

7 Mark Twain Office Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp A/B 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 
4500 lm 2 2

8 Mark Twain Common Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp A/B 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 
4500 lm 2 2

9 Mark Twain Out Bone Density

10 Mark Twain Nuclear Med. Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 6 6

11 Mark Twain Hot Lab Retrofit --  T8 - 3 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 1 1

12 Mark Twain Lab Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 1 1

13 Mark Twain Dark Room Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp A/B 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 
4500 lm 4 4

14 Mark Twain Work Room Retrofit --  T8 - 3 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 1 1

15 Mark Twain CT Scan Retrofit --  CFL Plug-in - 2 lamp 26Ww/EIKO LED Downlight Kit 6", Dim, (8-12-
16W), 120-277V 1 1

16 Mark Twain CT Scan Retrofit --  CFL Plug-in - 2 lamp 26Ww/EIKO LED Downlight Kit 8", Dim, (12-
16-22W), 120-277V 3 3

17 Mark Twain CT Scan Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 1x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 6 6

18 Mark Twain Control Area Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 1 1

19 Mark Twain Pass Double Door
20 Mark Twain Dressing Room Retrofit --  CFL Plug-in - 2 lamp 13Ww/EIKO LED A19, E26, 8W 1 1 SWX-121-WH (Wall Switch Sensor, Dual Tech) 1
21 Mark Twain Restroom Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 1 1 SWX-121-WH (Wall Switch Sensor, Dual Tech) 1

22 Mark Twain Radiology 1 Retrofit --  CFL Plug-in - 2 lamp 26Ww/EIKO LED Downlight Kit 8", Dim, (12-
16-22W), 120-277V 6 6

23 Mark Twain Radiology 1 Retrofit -- T8 - 3 lamp FB31w/LED 2x2 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 22W, 4000K, 2750 
lm 3 3

24 Mark Twain Radiology 2 Retrofit -- T8 - 3 lamp FB31w/LED 2x2 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 22W, 4000K, 2750 
lm 3 3

25 Mark Twain Radiology 2 Retrofit --  CFL Plug-in - 2 lamp 26Ww/EIKO LED Downlight Kit 8", Dim, (12-
16-22W), 120-277V 5 5

26 Mark Twain Radiology 2 Retrofit --  T8 - 1 lamp 32Ww/1 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 1 1
27 Mark Twain Restroom Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 17Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 2' tube 1 1
28 Mark Twain Dressing Room Retrofit --  CFL Plug-in - 2 lamp 13Ww/EIKO LED A19, E26, 8W 1 1

29 Mark Twain Restroom Retrofit -- T8 - 2 lamp FB31w/LED 2x2 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 22W, 4000K, 2750 
lm 1 1

30 Mark Twain Pass Door
31 Mark Twain Pass Double Door

32 Mark Twain View Room Retrofit -- T8 - 2 lamp FB31w/LED 2x2 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 22W, 4000K, 2750 
lm 1 1

33 Mark Twain View Room Retrofit --  T8 - 3 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 1 1

34 Mark Twain Mammo Graphy Retrofit -- T8 - 3 lamp FB31w/LED 2x2 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 22W, 4000K, 2750 
lm 6 6

35 Mark Twain Main Common Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 9 9

36 Mark Twain Main Common Retrofit --  CFL Plug-in - 2 lamp 26Ww/EIKO LED Downlight Kit 8", Dim, (12-
16-22W), 120-277V 1 1

37 Mark Twain Out Radiology

38 Mark Twain Gift Shop Retrofit -- T8 - 3 lamp FB31w/LED 2x2 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 22W, 4000K, 2750 
lm 4 4

39 Mark Twain Gift Shop - Office Retrofit --  T8 - 3 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 2 2

40 Mark Twain Ultrasound Retrofit --  T8 - 3 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 4 4

41 Mark Twain Through Double Door
42 Mark Twain Pass Double Door
43 Mark Twain Pass Double Door

44 Mark Twain Main Hallway Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 5 5

45 Mark Twain Out Double Door

46 Mark Twain Radiology Office Retrofit --  T8 - 3 lamp A/B 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 
4500 lm 2 2

47 Mark Twain Through Double Door

48 Mark Twain Office Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 2 2

49 Mark Twain Chapel Retrofit --  CFL Plug-in - 2 lamp 26Ww/EIKO LED Downlight Kit 8", Dim, (12-
16-22W), 120-277V 10 10

50 Mark Twain Chapel Retrofit --  T12 - 1 lamp 40Ww/1 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 2 2
51 Mark Twain Elevator Retrofit -- 22W & 32W Circlinew/FMAGE12 -120-16W-8CCT5-120DT-SL 1 1 Pic. 1
52 Mark Twain Elevator Retrofit -- 22W & 32W Circlinew/FMAGE12 -120-16W-8CCT5-120DT-SL 1 1 Pic. 1
53 Mark Twain Men's Restroom Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 1 1 SWX-121-WH (Wall Switch Sensor, Dual Tech) 1
54 Mark Twain Women's Restroom Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 1 1 SWX-121-WH (Wall Switch Sensor, Dual Tech) 1
55 Mark Twain Through Double Door

56 Mark Twain Stairs Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 4 4

57 Mark Twain Janitors Retrofit --  CFL Plug-in - 2 lamp 13Ww/EIKO LED A19, E26, 8W 1 1 SWX-121-WH (Wall Switch Sensor, Dual Tech) 1

58 Mark Twain Server Room Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 1 1

EXHIBIT A -- Scope of Work
Location Lighting Fixtures Controls

Picture

52



Page 3 of 30 Project -- Book1 Earth Savers 

Line

# Building Room Action Exist  
Quan

New 
Quan New Control 

New 
Contrl 
Quan

EXHIBIT A -- Scope of Work
Location Lighting Fixtures Controls

Picture

59 Mark Twain Server Room Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 1x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 1 1

60 Mark Twain Tele/Comm Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 1 1

61 Mark Twain Elevator Lobby Retrofit --  CFL Plug-in - 2 lamp 26Ww/EIKO LED Downlight Kit 8", Dim, (12-
16-22W), 120-277V 2 2

62 Mark Twain Elevator Equipment Retrofit --  T8 - 3 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 1 1

63 Mark Twain Soiled Utility Room Retrofit --  T8 - 3 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 1 1

64 Mark Twain Endoscopy Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 3 3

65 Mark Twain Equipment Room Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 1 1

66 Mark Twain Pass Double Door
67 Mark Twain Outpatient Surgery
68 Mark Twain Bed 1 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 2 2

69 Mark Twain Bed 1 Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 1 1

70 Mark Twain Bed 3 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 2 2

71 Mark Twain Bed 3 Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 1 1

72 Mark Twain Bed 5 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 2 2

73 Mark Twain Bed 5 Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 1 1

74 Mark Twain Bed 6 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 2 2

75 Mark Twain Bed 6 Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 1 1

76 Mark Twain Bed 4 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 2 2

77 Mark Twain Bed 4 Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 1 1

78 Mark Twain Bed 2 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 2 2

79 Mark Twain Bed 2 Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 1 1

80 Mark Twain Clean Utility Retrofit -- T8 - 3 lamp FB31w/LED 2x2 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 22W, 4000K, 2750 
lm 2 2

81 Mark Twain Pass Double Door
82 Mark Twain Bed 1 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 2 2

83 Mark Twain Bed 1 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 1 1

84 Mark Twain Bed 2 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 2 2

85 Mark Twain Bed 2 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 1 1

86 Mark Twain Bed 3 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 2 2

87 Mark Twain Bed 3 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 1 1

88 Mark Twain Bed 4 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 2 2

89 Mark Twain Bed 4 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 1 1

90 Mark Twain Pass Double Door

91 Mark Twain Nurse Station Retrofit -- T8 - 3 lamp FB31w/LED 2x2 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 22W, 4000K, 2750 
lm 4 4

92 Mark Twain Restroom Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 1 1
93 Mark Twain Restroom Retrofit --  A-lamp - 60Ww/EIKO LED Downlight Kit, 6", Dim, 12W 1 1
94 Mark Twain Restroom Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 17Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 2' tube 1 1
95 Mark Twain Main Common Retrofit --  CFL Plug-in - 2 lamp 13Ww/EIKO LED A19, E26, 8W 1 1

96 Mark Twain Main Common Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 11 11

97 Mark Twain Out
98 Mark Twain Pass Double Door

99 Mark Twain Through Double Door / 
Surgery

100 Mark Twain Pass Double Door
101 Mark Twain Pass Double Door
102 Mark Twain Enviromental Services Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 17Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 2' tube 1 1 SWX-121-WH (Wall Switch Sensor, Dual Tech) 1
103 Mark Twain Storage Room Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 2 2 SWX-121-WH (Wall Switch Sensor, Dual Tech) 1
104 Mark Twain Pass Double Door

105 Mark Twain M-Locker Room Retrofit --  T8 - 3 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 2 2

106 Mark Twain M-Locker Room Retrofit --  U12 - 2 lamp 40Ww/LED 2x2 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 22W, 4000K, 
2750 lm 2 2

107 Mark Twain Restroom Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 1 1 SWX-121-WH (Wall Switch Sensor, Dual Tech) 1
108 Mark Twain Restroom Retrofit --  A-lamp - 60Ww/EIKO LED Downlight Kit, 6", Dim, 12W 1 1

109 Mark Twain W-Locker Room Retrofit --  T8 - 3 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 2 2

110 Mark Twain W-Locker Room Retrofit --  U12 - 2 lamp 40Ww/LED 2x2 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 22W, 4000K, 
2750 lm 2 2

111 Mark Twain Restroom Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 1 1
112 Mark Twain Restroom Retrofit --  A-lamp - 60Ww/EIKO LED Downlight Kit, 6", Dim, 12W 1 1

113 Mark Twain Break Room Retrofit --  T8 - 3 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 2 2

114 Mark Twain Hall Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 3 3

115 Mark Twain Office Retrofit --  T8 - 3 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 1 1

116 Mark Twain Office Retrofit --  T8 - 3 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 2 2

117 Mark Twain Office Retrofit --  T8 - 1 lamp 17Ww/1 ea. Bypass LED T8 2' tube 1 1
118 Mark Twain Pass Door

119 Mark Twain OR #1 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 1x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 12 12

120 Mark Twain Sub Station Retrofit --  T8 - 3 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 2 2

53



Page 4 of 30 Project -- Book1 Earth Savers 

Line

# Building Room Action Exist  
Quan

New 
Quan New Control 

New 
Contrl 
Quan

EXHIBIT A -- Scope of Work
Location Lighting Fixtures Controls

Picture

121 Mark Twain OR #2 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 1x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 11 11

122 Mark Twain Pathology Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 1 1

123 Mark Twain Supply Room Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 2 2

124 Mark Twain Supplies Retrofit --  T8 - 3 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 1 1

125 Mark Twain Storage Room Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp A/B 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 
4500 lm 2 2

126 Mark Twain Sterile Storage Retrofit --  T8 - 3 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 3 3

127 Mark Twain Central Sterile Retrofit -- T8 - 3 lamp FB31w/LED 2x2 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 22W, 4000K, 2750 
lm 10 10

128 Mark Twain Central Sterile Retrofit --  T8 - 3 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 2 2

129 Mark Twain Closet Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 1 1

130 Mark Twain Main Common Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 15 15

131 Mark Twain Out Surgery

132 Mark Twain Decontamination Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 2 2

133 Mark Twain Storage Room Retrofit --  T8 - 3 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 1 1

134 Mark Twain Pass Door
135 Mark Twain Elevator Retrofit -- 22W & 32W Circlinew/FMAGE12 -120-16W-8CCT5-120DT-SL 1 1 Pic. 1
136 Mark Twain Pass Door

137 Mark Twain Lobby Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 1 1

138 Mark Twain Main Hallway Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 10 10

139 Mark Twain Out Double Door

140 Mark Twain Dietitian Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 1 1

141 Mark Twain Main Hallway No Action -- LED Fixturew/No Work 4

142 Mark Twain Main Hallway Retrofit --  CFL Plug-in - 2 lamp 26Ww/EIKO LED Downlight Kit 8", Dim, (12-
16-22W), 120-277V 10 10

143 Mark Twain Out Double Door

144 Mark Twain Dinning Retrofit --  CFL Plug-in - 2 lamp 26Ww/EIKO LED Downlight Kit 8", Dim, (12-
16-22W), 120-277V 20 20

145 Mark Twain Dinning No Action -- LED Fixturew/No Work 6

146 Mark Twain Serving Area Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 3 3

147 Mark Twain Serving Area Retrofit --  A-lamp - 60Ww/EIKO LED Downlight Kit, 6", Dim, 12W 5 5
148 Mark Twain Kitchen Area
149 Mark Twain Cooler Retrofit --  T12 - 1 lamp 6' F72w/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 3' tube 2 2
150 Mark Twain Cooler Retrofit --  CFL Screw-in - 20Ww/EIKO LED A19, E26, 8W 2 2 Pic. 7
151 Mark Twain Freezer Retrofit --  CFL Screw-in - 20Ww/EIKO LED A19, E26, 8W 2 2 Pic. 7
152 Mark Twain Pass Door
153 Mark Twain Pass Door

154 Mark Twain Break Room Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 1 1

155 Mark Twain Restroom Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 1 1 SWX-121-WH (Wall Switch Sensor, Dual Tech) 1
156 Mark Twain Janitors Room Retrofit --  CFL Plug-in - 2 lamp 13Ww/EIKO LED A19, E26, 8W 1 1 SWX-121-WH (Wall Switch Sensor, Dual Tech) 1

157 Mark Twain Storage Room Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 2 2

158 Mark Twain Storage Room Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 1 1

159 Mark Twain Office Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 1 1

160 Mark Twain Floor Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 3 3
161 Mark Twain Floor Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 13 13
162 Mark Twain Floor Retrofit --  A-lamp - 60Ww/EIKO LED A19, E26, 8W 4 4
163 Mark Twain Out Kitchen
164 Mark Twain Out Dinning

165 Mark Twain Work Room Retrofit -- T8 - 3 lamp FB31w/LED 2x2 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 22W, 4000K, 2750 
lm 3 3

166 Mark Twain Office Retrofit --  T8 - 3 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 2 2

167 Mark Twain Registration Area / 
Reception

Retrofit -- T8 - 3 lamp FB31w/LED 2x2 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 22W, 4000K, 2750 
lm 3 3

168 Mark Twain Registration Area / 
Reception

Retrofit --  CFL Plug-in - 2 lamp 26Ww/EIKO LED Downlight Kit 8", Dim, (12-
16-22W), 120-277V 3 3

169 Mark Twain Main Lobby / Common Retrofit --  CFL Plug-in - 2 lamp 26Ww/EIKO LED Downlight Kit 8", Dim, (12-
16-22W), 120-277V 23 23

170 Mark Twain Main Lobby / Common No Action -- LED Fixturew/No Work 12 Pic. 2

171 Mark Twain Over to Emergacy 
Room

172 Mark Twain Entry Retrofit --  CFL Plug-in - 2 lamp 26Ww/EIKO LED Downlight Kit 8", Dim, (12-
16-22W), 120-277V 4 4

173 Mark Twain Lobby Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 8 8

174 Mark Twain Restroom Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 1 1 SWX-121-WH (Wall Switch Sensor, Dual Tech) 1

175 Mark Twain Lobby Retrofit --  U12 - 2 lamp 40Ww/LED 2x2 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 22W, 4000K, 
2750 lm 1 1

176 Mark Twain Triage Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 1 1

177 Mark Twain Into ER

178 Mark Twain Patient Room 1 Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 1 1

179 Mark Twain Patient Room 2 Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 1 1

180 Mark Twain Patient Room 3 Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 1 1

54



Page 5 of 30 Project -- Book1 Earth Savers 

Line

# Building Room Action Exist  
Quan

New 
Quan New Control 

New 
Contrl 
Quan

EXHIBIT A -- Scope of Work
Location Lighting Fixtures Controls

Picture

181 Mark Twain Patient Room 4 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 17Ww/LED 2x2 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 22W, 4000K, 2750 
lm 4 4

182 Mark Twain Patient Room 5 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 17Ww/LED 2x2 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 22W, 4000K, 2750 
lm 4 4

183 Mark Twain Restroom Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 1 1 SWX-121-WH (Wall Switch Sensor, Dual Tech) 1
184 Mark Twain Restroom Retrofit --  A-lamp - 60Ww/EIKO LED Downlight Kit, 6", Dim, 12W 1 1

185 Mark Twain Exit Entry Retrofit --  CFL Plug-in - 2 lamp 26Ww/EIKO LED Downlight Kit 6", Dim, (8-12-
16W), 120-277V 4 4

186 Mark Twain Closet Retrofit --  CFL Plug-in - 2 lamp 13Ww/EIKO LED A19, E26, 8W 1 1

187 Mark Twain Patient Room 6&7 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 1x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 4 4

188 Mark Twain Patient Room 6&7 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 17Ww/LED 2x2 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 22W, 4000K, 2750 
lm 4 4

189 Mark Twain Patient Room 8 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 1x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 1 1

190 Mark Twain Work Room Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 17Ww/LED 2x2 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 22W, 4000K, 2750 
lm 1 1

191 Mark Twain Break Room Retrofit --  T8 - 3 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 2 2

192 Mark Twain Break Room Retrofit --  CFL Plug-in - 2 lamp 26Ww/EIKO LED Downlight Kit 8", Dim, (12-
16-22W), 120-277V 1 1

193 Mark Twain Restroom Retrofit --  A-lamp - 60Ww/EIKO LED Downlight Kit, 6", Dim, 12W 1 1 SWX-121-WH (Wall Switch Sensor, Dual Tech) 1
194 Mark Twain Restroom Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 17Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 2' tube 1 1

195 Mark Twain Storage Room Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 1 1

196 Mark Twain Sleep Room Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 1 1

197 Mark Twain Pass Double Door

198 Mark Twain Soiled Utility Room Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 2 2

199 Mark Twain Reception Retrofit --  T8 - 3 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 2 2

200 Mark Twain Reception Retrofit --  CFL Plug-in - 2 lamp 26Ww/EIKO LED Downlight Kit 8", Dim, (12-
16-22W), 120-277V 2 2

201 Mark Twain Main Floor Retrofit --  CFL Plug-in - 2 lamp 26Ww/EIKO LED Downlight Kit 8", Dim, (12-
16-22W), 120-277V 5 5

202 Mark Twain Main Floor Retrofit --  T8 - 3 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 12 12

203 Mark Twain Out ER

204 Mark Twain Through Passed Door 
In Lobby

205 Mark Twain Pass Door
206 Mark Twain Pass Double Door
207 Mark Twain Pass Door
208 Mark Twain Pass Door
209 Mark Twain Pass Door
210 Mark Twain Pass Door

211 Mark Twain ER Manager Office Retrofit --  T8 - 3 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 1 1

212 Mark Twain Pass Door
213 Mark Twain Mechanical Room Retrofit --  CFL Plug-in - 2 lamp 13Ww/EIKO LED A19, E26, 8W 1 1
214 Mark Twain Pass Double Door
215 Mark Twain Soiled Utility Room Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 2 2 SWX-121-WH (Wall Switch Sensor, Dual Tech) 1
216 Mark Twain Electrical Room Retrofit --  CFL Plug-in - 2 lamp 13Ww/EIKO LED A19, E26, 8W 1 1
217 Mark Twain Pass Double Door
218 Mark Twain Trash Retrofit --  CFL Plug-in - 2 lamp 13Ww/EIKO LED A19, E26, 8W 1 1
219 Mark Twain Enviromental Services Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 1 1 SWX-121-WH (Wall Switch Sensor, Dual Tech) 1
220 Mark Twain Pass Double Door

221 Mark Twain Main Hallway Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 12 12

222 Mark Twain 2nd Floor
223 Mark Twain Start @ Main Elevators
224 Mark Twain Men's Restroom Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 1 1
225 Mark Twain Women's Restroom Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 1 1
226 Mark Twain Through Double Door
227 Mark Twain Lounge Retrofit --  A-lamp - 60Ww/EIKO LED A19, E26, 8W 4 4
228 Mark Twain Lounge Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 17Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 2' tube 1 1
229 Mark Twain Restroom Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 17Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 2' tube 1 1 SWX-121-WH (Wall Switch Sensor, Dual Tech) 1
230 Mark Twain Restroom Retrofit --  A-lamp - 60Ww/EIKO LED A19, E26, 8W 1 1
231 Mark Twain Edward Gonzales Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 2 2 SWX-121-WH (Wall Switch Sensor, Dual Tech) 1
232 Mark Twain Restroom Retrofit --  T12 - 2 lamp 20Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 2' tube 1 1 SWX-121-WH (Wall Switch Sensor, Dual Tech) 1

233 Mark Twain Ultrasound Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 3 3 Pic. 3

234 Mark Twain Ultrasound Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp 17Ww/LED 2x2 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 22W, 4000K, 2750 
lm 2 2 Pic. 3

235 Mark Twain Restroom Retrofit --  T12 - 1 lamp 30Ww/1 ea. Bypass LED T8 3' tube 1 1 SWX-121-WH (Wall Switch Sensor, Dual Tech) 1

236 Mark Twain Office M-304 Retrofit --  T12 - 2 lamp 40Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 
3000 lm 2 2 Pic. 3

237 Mark Twain Office M-304 Retrofit --  T12 - 4 lamp 20Ww/LED 2x2 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 22W, 4000K, 
2750 lm 2 2 Pic. 3

238 Mark Twain Restroom Retrofit --  T12 - 2 lamp 20Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 2' tube 1 1 SWX-121-WH (Wall Switch Sensor, Dual Tech) 1

239 Mark Twain Office M-302 Retrofit --  T12 - 2 lamp 40Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 
3000 lm 2 2 Pic. 3

240 Mark Twain Office M-302 Retrofit --  T12 - 4 lamp 20Ww/LED 2x2 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 22W, 4000K, 
2750 lm 2 2 Pic. 3

241 Mark Twain Office M-302 Retrofit --  T12 - 2 lamp 40Ww/LED 1x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 
3000 lm 4 4

242 Mark Twain Restroom Retrofit --  T12 - 2 lamp 20Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 2' tube 1 1 SWX-121-WH (Wall Switch Sensor, Dual Tech) 1
243 Mark Twain Through Double Door

244 Mark Twain Office Retrofit --  T12 - 2 lamp 40Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 
3000 lm 2 2 Pic. 3

245 Mark Twain Office Retrofit --  T12 - 4 lamp 20Ww/LED 2x2 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 22W, 4000K, 
2750 lm 2 2 Pic. 3

246 Mark Twain Restroom Retrofit --  T12 - 2 lamp 20Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 2' tube 1 1 SWX-121-WH (Wall Switch Sensor, Dual Tech) 1

55



Page 6 of 30 Project -- Book1 Earth Savers 

Line

# Building Room Action Exist  
Quan

New 
Quan New Control 

New 
Contrl 
Quan

EXHIBIT A -- Scope of Work
Location Lighting Fixtures Controls

Picture

247 Mark Twain I.T. Retrofit --  T12 - 2 lamp 40Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 
3000 lm 2 2 Pic. 3

248 Mark Twain I.T. Retrofit --  T12 - 4 lamp 20Ww/LED 2x2 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 22W, 4000K, 
2750 lm 2 2 Pic. 3

249 Mark Twain I.T. Retrofit --  T12 - 2 lamp 20Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 2' tube 1 1 SWX-121-WH (Wall Switch Sensor, Dual Tech) 1
250 Mark Twain Closet Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp 32Ww/4 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 1 1 SWX-121-WH (Wall Switch Sensor, Dual Tech) 1
251 Mark Twain Office Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp 32Ww/4 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 1 1
252 Mark Twain HR & Education

253 Mark Twain Office Retrofit --  T8 - 3 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 3 3

254 Mark Twain Office Retrofit --  T8 - 3 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 3 3

255 Mark Twain Common Retrofit --  T8 - 3 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 3 3

256 Mark Twain Common Retrofit --  T8 - 1 lamp 17Ww/1 ea. Bypass LED T8 2' tube 3 3
257 Mark Twain Out H.R. & Education
258 Mark Twain Closet Retrofit --  T12 - 2 lamp 40Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 1 1 SWX-121-WH (Wall Switch Sensor, Dual Tech) 1
259 Mark Twain Closet Retrofit --  A-lamp - 60Ww/EIKO LED Downlight Kit, 6", Dim, 12W 1 1
260 Mark Twain Clean Linen Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 2 2

261 Mark Twain Clean Linen Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 1 1

262 Mark Twain Clean Linen Retrofit --  T12 - 2 lamp 40Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 
3000 lm 1 1

263 Mark Twain Soiled Linen Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 1 1

264 Mark Twain Soiled Linen Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 2 2

265 Mark Twain Nursing Admin. Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 2 2

266 Mark Twain Restroom Retrofit --  A-lamp - 60Ww/EIKO LED A19, E26, 8W 2 2 SWX-121-WH (Wall Switch Sensor, Dual Tech) 1

267 Mark Twain Chief Medical Office Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 2 2

268 Mark Twain Chief Medical Office Retrofit --  T5 - 1 lamp 14W, 2'w/1 ea. Bypass LED T5 2' HE 2 2 Pic. 5
269 Mark Twain Restroom Retrofit --  CFL Plug-in - 2 lamp 13Ww/EIKO LED A19, E26, 8W 1 1 SWX-121-WH (Wall Switch Sensor, Dual Tech) 1
270 Mark Twain Restroom Retrofit --  A-lamp - 60Ww/EIKO LED A19, E26, 8W 1 1

271 Mark Twain Pharmacy Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 2 2

272 Mark Twain Through Door
273 Mark Twain Women's Restroom Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 3 3
274 Mark Twain Heart Center
275 Mark Twain Stress Test No Action -- LED Fixturew/No Work 2
276 Mark Twain Echo No Action -- LED Fixturew/No Work 2

277 Mark Twain Office Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 2 2

278 Mark Twain Exam 1 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 2 2

279 Mark Twain Exam 2 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 2 2

280 Mark Twain Exam 3 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 2 2

281 Mark Twain Work Station Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 2 2

282 Mark Twain Restroom Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 1 1 SWX-121-WH (Wall Switch Sensor, Dual Tech) 1
283 Mark Twain Common / Rest No Action -- LED Fixturew/No Work 30
284 Mark Twain Out Heart Center
285 Mark Twain Material Mngt. No Action -- LED Fixturew/No Work 4
286 Mark Twain Material Mngt. Retrofit --  T12 - 2 lamp 40Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 38 38
287 Mark Twain Soiled Utility Room No Action -- LED Fixturew/No Work 1 Existing Sensor
288 Mark Twain Physical Therapy No Action -- LED Fixturew/No Work 30
289 Mark Twain Men's Restroom Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 3 3
290 Mark Twain Through Doorway
291 Mark Twain Closet Retrofit --  A-lamp - 60Ww/EIKO LED A19, E26, 8W 1 1 SWX-121-WH (Wall Switch Sensor, Dual Tech) 1
292 Mark Twain Administration
293 Mark Twain Office Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp 32Ww/4 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 4 4 SWX-121-WH (Wall Switch Sensor, Dual Tech) 1

294 Mark Twain Office Retrofit --  T8 - 3 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 6 6

295 Mark Twain Board Room Retrofit --  T8 - 6 lamp 32Ww/6 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 6 6 SWX-121-WH (Wall Switch Sensor, Dual Tech) 1

296 Mark Twain Hall Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 1 1

297 Mark Twain Restroom Retrofit --  A-lamp - 60Ww/EIKO LED A19, E26, 8W 2 2 SWX-121-WH (Wall Switch Sensor, Dual Tech) 1
298 Mark Twain Common Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp 32Ww/4 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 6 6

299 Mark Twain Common Retrofit --  U8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x2 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 22W, 4000K, 2750 
lm 1 1

300 Mark Twain Medical Foundation
301 Mark Twain Office Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp 32Ww/4 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 2 2
302 Mark Twain Office Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp 32Ww/4 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 3 3
303 Mark Twain Storage Room Retrofit --  T12 - 2 lamp 40Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 1 1 SWX-121-WH (Wall Switch Sensor, Dual Tech) 1
304 Mark Twain Copy Room Retrofit --  T8 - 1 lamp 32Ww/1 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 1 1 SWX-121-WH (Wall Switch Sensor, Dual Tech) 1
305 Mark Twain Out
306 Mark Twain Pass Door
307 Mark Twain Copy Room Retrofit --  T12 - 2 lamp 40Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 3 3 Existing Sensor
308 Mark Twain Storage Room Retrofit --  R30 - 75Ww/EIKO LED A19, E26, 8W 2 2
309 Mark Twain Storage Room Retrofit --  T12 - 4 lamp 40Ww/4 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 2 2
310 Mark Twain Storage Room Retrofit -- 22W & 32W Circlinew/FMAGE12 -120-16W-8CCT5-120DT-SL 1 1 Pic. 1
311 Mark Twain Classroom 4 Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp 32Ww/4 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 8 8 Existing Sensor

312 Mark Twain Classroom 1 Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp A/B 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 
4500 lm 6 6

313 Mark Twain Classroom 2 Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp A/B 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 
4500 lm 10 10

314 Mark Twain Classroom 3 Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp A/B 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 
4500 lm 6 6

315 Mark Twain Classroom 3 Retrofit --  R30 - 75Ww/EIKO LED Downlight Kit, 6", Dim, 12W 6 6

316 Mark Twain Storage Room Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 1 1

56



Page 7 of 30 Project -- Book1 Earth Savers 

Line

# Building Room Action Exist  
Quan

New 
Quan New Control 

New 
Contrl 
Quan

EXHIBIT A -- Scope of Work
Location Lighting Fixtures Controls

Picture

317 Mark Twain Women's Restroom Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 1x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 1 1

318 Mark Twain Men's Restroom Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 1x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 1 1

319 Mark Twain Main Room Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 3 3

320 Mark Twain Server Room Retrofit --  T12 - 4 lamp 40Ww/4 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 2 2
321 Mark Twain Scheuding

322 Mark Twain Closet Retrofit --  T12 - 4 lamp 20Ww/LED 2x2 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 22W, 4000K, 
2750 lm 1 1

323 Mark Twain Closet Retrofit --  U12 - 2 lamp 40Ww/LED 2x2 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 22W, 4000K, 
2750 lm 1 1

324 Mark Twain Office Retrofit --  T12 - 4 lamp 40Ww/4 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 4 4

325 Mark Twain Common Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 2 2

326 Mark Twain Common Retrofit --  T12 - 4 lamp 40Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 
4500 lm 1 1

327 Mark Twain Common Retrofit --  T8 - 1 lamp 17Ww/1 ea. Bypass LED T8 2' tube 2 2
328 Mark Twain Out
329 Mark Twain Office Retrofit --  T12 - 4 lamp 40Ww/4 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 1 1 SWX-121-WH (Wall Switch Sensor, Dual Tech) 1
330 Mark Twain Pass Door
331 Mark Twain Clinical Information Retrofit --  T12 - 4 lamp 40Ww/4 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 1 1 SWX-121-WH (Wall Switch Sensor, Dual Tech) 1

332 Mark Twain X-Ray Retrofit --  U12 - 2 lamp 40Ww/LED 2x2 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 22W, 4000K, 
2750 lm 6 6

333 Mark Twain X-Ray Retrofit --  A-lamp - 100Ww/EIKO LED Downlight Kit, 6", Dim, 12W 5 5

334 Mark Twain Restroom Retrofit --  U12 - 2 lamp 40Ww/LED 2x2 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 22W, 4000K, 
2750 lm 1 1

335 Mark Twain Storage Room Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 1 1 SWX-121-WH (Wall Switch Sensor, Dual Tech) 1
336 Mark Twain Closet Retrofit --  T12 - 4 lamp 40Ww/4 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 1 1
337 Mark Twain Main Hallway Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 6 6
338 Mark Twain Main Hallway Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 8 8

339 Mark Twain Back Through Doorway

340 Mark Twain Occupational Therapy Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 2 2

341 Mark Twain Closet Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 1 1 SWX-121-WH (Wall Switch Sensor, Dual Tech) 1
342 Mark Twain Through Door
343 Mark Twain Room Retrofit --  T12 - 4 lamp 40Ww/4 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 2 2 SWX-121-WH (Wall Switch Sensor, Dual Tech) 1

344 Mark Twain Room Retrofit --  T8 - 3 lamp A/B 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 
4500 lm 2 2

345 Mark Twain Common Retrofit --  T8 - 3 lamp A/B 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 
4500 lm 5 5

346 Mark Twain Out Door
347 Mark Twain Laboratory

348 Mark Twain Blood Draw 1 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 1 1

349 Mark Twain Blood Draw 2 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 1 1

350 Mark Twain Restroom Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 1 1 SWX-121-WH (Wall Switch Sensor, Dual Tech) 1

351 Mark Twain Lab - Work Room Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp A/B 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 
4500 lm 4 4

352 Mark Twain Exit Entry Retrofit --  T8 - 3 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 1 1

353 Mark Twain Sleep Room Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 1 1

354 Mark Twain Restroom Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 1 1 SWX-121-WH (Wall Switch Sensor, Dual Tech) 1

355 Mark Twain Break Room Retrofit --  T8 - 3 lamp A/B 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 
4500 lm 2 2

356 Mark Twain Office Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 2 2

357 Mark Twain Storage Room Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 1 1

358 Mark Twain Work Room Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 1 1

359 Mark Twain Registrration Retrofit --  T8 - 3 lamp A/B 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 
4500 lm 3 3

360 Mark Twain Main Common Retrofit --  U8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x2 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 22W, 4000K, 2750 
lm 10 10

361 Mark Twain Main Common Retrofit --  T8 - 3 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 22 22

362 Mark Twain Out Laboratory
363 Mark Twain Medical Records Retrofit --  CFL Screw-in - 11Ww/EIKO LED A19, E26, 8W 2 2

364 Mark Twain Reception Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 1 1

365 Mark Twain Office Retrofit --  T8 - 3 lamp A/B 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 
4500 lm 1 1

366 Mark Twain Pass Door
367 Mark Twain Pass Door

368 Mark Twain Office Retrofit --  T8 - 3 lamp A/B 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 
4500 lm 2 2

369 Mark Twain Office Retrofit --  T8 - 3 lamp A/B 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 
4500 lm 2 2

370 Mark Twain Office Retrofit --  T8 - 3 lamp A/B 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 
4500 lm 2 2

371 Mark Twain Common Retrofit --  U8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x2 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 22W, 4000K, 2750 
lm 3 3

372 Mark Twain Common Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 20 20

373 Mark Twain Out Medical Records

374 Mark Twain Main Hall / Common / 
Lobby

Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 28 28

375 Mark Twain Main Hall / Common / 
Lobby

Retrofit --  U8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x2 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 22W, 4000K, 2750 
lm 1 1

57



Page 8 of 30 Project -- Book1 Earth Savers 

Line

# Building Room Action Exist  
Quan

New 
Quan New Control 

New 
Contrl 
Quan

EXHIBIT A -- Scope of Work
Location Lighting Fixtures Controls

Picture

376 Mark Twain Main Hall / Common / 
Lobby

Retrofit --  CFL Plug-in - 2 lamp 26Ww/EIKO LED Downlight Kit 8", Dim, (12-
16-22W), 120-277V 1 1

377 Mark Twain Main Hall / Common / 
Lobby Retrofit --  A-lamp - 40Ww/EIKO LED A19, E26, 8W 2 2 Pic. 2

378 Mark Twain Back Out Door

379 Mark Twain Panel Closet Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 1x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 1 1

380 Mark Twain Wound Care Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 2 2

381 Mark Twain Wound Care Retrofit --  R30 - 75Ww/EIKO LED A19, E26, 8W 4 4

382 Mark Twain Marketing & Business Retrofit --  T12 - 4 lamp A/B 40Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 
4500 lm 2 2

383 Mark Twain Restroom Retrofit --  A-lamp - 60Ww/EIKO LED A19, E26, 8W 2 2

384 Mark Twain Executive Coord. Retrofit --  T8 - 3 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 1 1

385 Mark Twain Executive Coord. Retrofit --  A-lamp - 60Ww/EIKO LED A19, E26, 8W 2 2 SWX-121-WH (Wall Switch Sensor, Dual Tech) 1

386 Mark Twain Social Services Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 2 2

387 Mark Twain Office M-308 Retrofit --  T12 - 4 lamp 20Ww/LED 2x2 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 22W, 4000K, 
2750 lm 1 1

388 Mark Twain Restroom Retrofit --  T12 - 4 lamp 40Ww/4 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 1 1 SWX-121-WH (Wall Switch Sensor, Dual Tech) 1
389 Mark Twain Restroom Retrofit --  A-lamp - 60Ww/EIKO LED A19, E26, 8W 1 1 SWX-121-WH (Wall Switch Sensor, Dual Tech) 1
390 Mark Twain Janitors Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 1 1 SWX-121-WH (Wall Switch Sensor, Dual Tech) 1
391 Mark Twain Clean Utility Retrofit --  T12 - 2 lamp 40Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 1 1 SWX-121-WH (Wall Switch Sensor, Dual Tech) 1
392 Mark Twain Enviromental Services Retrofit --  A-lamp - 100Ww/EIKO LED A19, E26, 8W 1 1 SWX-121-WH (Wall Switch Sensor, Dual Tech) 1

393 Mark Twain Break Room Retrofit --  T12 - 4 lamp 40Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 
4500 lm 1 1

394 Mark Twain Office Retrofit --  T12 - 4 lamp 40Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 
4500 lm 2 2

395 Mark Twain Main Hallway Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp 32Ww/4 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 6 6

396 Mark Twain Main Hallway Retrofit --  T12 - 4 lamp A/B 40Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 
4500 lm 2 2

397 Mark Twain Main Hallway Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 1 1

398 Mark Twain Main Hallway Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 2 2

399 Mark Twain Back Through Double 
Door

400 Mark Twain Office M-303 Retrofit --  A-lamp - 60Ww/EIKO LED A19, E26, 8W 4 4
401 Mark Twain Restroom Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 17Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 2' tube 1 1
402 Mark Twain Restroom Retrofit --  A-lamp - 60Ww/EIKO LED A19, E26, 8W 1 1

403 Mark Twain Office M-305 Retrofit --  T12 - 2 lamp 40Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 
3000 lm 2 2 Pic. 3

404 Mark Twain Office M-305 Retrofit --  T12 - 4 lamp 20Ww/LED 2x2 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 22W, 4000K, 
2750 lm 2 2 Pic. 3

405 Mark Twain Restroom Retrofit --  T12 - 2 lamp 20Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 2' tube 1 1 SWX-121-WH (Wall Switch Sensor, Dual Tech) 1

406 Mark Twain BioMedical Retrofit --  T12 - 2 lamp 40Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 
3000 lm 2 2 Pic. 3

407 Mark Twain BioMedical Retrofit --  T12 - 3 lamp 20Ww/LED 2x2 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 22W, 4000K, 
2750 lm 2 2 Pic. 3

408 Mark Twain BioMedical - Restroom Retrofit --  T12 - 2 lamp 20Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 2' tube 1 1 SWX-121-WH (Wall Switch Sensor, Dual Tech) 1

409 Mark Twain Office Retrofit --  T12 - 2 lamp 40Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 
3000 lm 2 2

410 Mark Twain Office Retrofit --  T12 - 4 lamp 20Ww/LED 2x2 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 22W, 4000K, 
2750 lm 2 2

411 Mark Twain Office - Restroom Retrofit --  T12 - 2 lamp 20Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 2' tube 1 1 SWX-121-WH (Wall Switch Sensor, Dual Tech) 1
412 Mark Twain Main Hallway Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp 32Ww/4 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 4 4

413 Mark Twain Main Hallway Retrofit --  T8 - 3 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 6 6

414 Mark Twain Back Out Double Door

415 Mark Twain Elevator Lobby Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 1 1

416 Mark Twain Receiving Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 3 3
417 Mark Twain Janitors Retrofit --  CFL Screw-in - 20Ww/EIKO LED A19, E26, 8W 1 1 SWX-121-WH (Wall Switch Sensor, Dual Tech) 1
418 Mark Twain Server Room Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 1 1
419 Mark Twain Pharmacy

420 Mark Twain Lab Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 1x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 2 2

421 Mark Twain Lab Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 1x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 2 2

422 Mark Twain Common Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 6 6

423 Mark Twain Out Pharmacy
424 Mark Twain Through Double Door
425 Mark Twain Through Door
426 Mark Twain Storage Room Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 1 1 SWX-121-WH (Wall Switch Sensor, Dual Tech) 1
427 Mark Twain Janitors Retrofit --  CFL Plug-in - 2 lamp 13Ww/EIKO LED A19, E26, 8W 1 1 SWX-121-WH (Wall Switch Sensor, Dual Tech) 1
428 Mark Twain Patient Room 116 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 2 2

429 Mark Twain Patient Room 116 Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp A/B 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 
4500 lm 4 4

430 Mark Twain Patient Room 116 Retrofit --  CFL Screw-in - 20Ww/EIKO LED A19, E26, 8W 1 1
431 Mark Twain Patient Room 116 Retrofit --  CFL Screw-in - 20Ww/EIKO LED A19, E26, 8W 1 1
432 Mark Twain Patient Room 116 Retrofit --  A-lamp - 60Ww/EIKO LED Downlight Kit, 6", Dim, 12W 1 1
433 Mark Twain Patient Room 116 Retrofit --  CFL Screw-in - 20Ww/EIKO LED A19, E26, 8W 1 1

434 Mark Twain Patient Room 116 Retrofit --  CFL Plug-in - 1 lamp 13Ww/1 ea. EIKO LED5W2P/G23/840DM-
G7B 1 1

435 Mark Twain Sart Room Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 2 2

436 Mark Twain Sart Room Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp A/B 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 
4500 lm 2 2

437 Mark Twain Sart Room Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 17Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 2' tube 1 1
438 Mark Twain Restroom Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 1 1 SWX-121-WH (Wall Switch Sensor, Dual Tech) 1
439 Mark Twain Patient Room 215 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 2 2

440 Mark Twain Patient Room 215 Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp A/B 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 
4500 lm 4 4

58



Page 9 of 30 Project -- Book1 Earth Savers 

Line

# Building Room Action Exist  
Quan

New 
Quan New Control 

New 
Contrl 
Quan

EXHIBIT A -- Scope of Work
Location Lighting Fixtures Controls

Picture

441 Mark Twain Patient Room 215 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 17Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 2' tube 1 1

442 Mark Twain Patient Room 215 Retrofit --  CFL Plug-in - 1 lamp 13Ww/1 ea. EIKO LED5W2P/G23/840DM-
G7B 1 1

443 Mark Twain Patient Room 215 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 17Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 2' tube 1 1
444 Mark Twain Patient Room 215 Retrofit --  A-lamp - 60Ww/EIKO LED Downlight Kit, 6", Dim, 12W 1 1
445 Mark Twain Patient Room 214 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 2 2

446 Mark Twain Patient Room 214 Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp A/B 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 
4500 lm 4 4

447 Mark Twain Patient Room 214 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 17Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 2' tube 1 1

448 Mark Twain Patient Room 214 Retrofit --  CFL Plug-in - 1 lamp 13Ww/1 ea. EIKO LED5W2P/G23/840DM-
G7B 1 1

449 Mark Twain Patient Room 214 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 17Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 2' tube 1 1
450 Mark Twain Patient Room 214 Retrofit --  A-lamp - 60Ww/EIKO LED Downlight Kit, 6", Dim, 12W 1 1
451 Mark Twain Patient Room 213 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 2 2

452 Mark Twain Patient Room 213 Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp A/B 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 
4500 lm 4 4

453 Mark Twain Patient Room 213 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 17Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 2' tube 1 1

454 Mark Twain Patient Room 213 Retrofit --  CFL Plug-in - 1 lamp 13Ww/1 ea. EIKO LED5W2P/G23/840DM-
G7B 1 1

455 Mark Twain Patient Room 213 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 17Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 2' tube 1 1
456 Mark Twain Patient Room 213 Retrofit --  A-lamp - 60Ww/EIKO LED Downlight Kit, 6", Dim, 12W 1 1
457 Mark Twain Closet Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 1 1 SWX-121-WH (Wall Switch Sensor, Dual Tech) 1

458 Mark Twain Care Coord. Office Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 1 1

459 Mark Twain Care Coord. Office Retrofit --  T8 - 3 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 3 3

460 Mark Twain Pass Double Door

461 Mark Twain Clean Utility Room Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 1 1

462 Mark Twain Soiled Utility Room Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 1 1

463 Mark Twain Main Common Retrofit --  CFL Plug-in - 2 lamp 26Ww/EIKO LED Downlight Kit 8", Dim, (12-
16-22W), 120-277V 6 6

464 Mark Twain Main Common Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 10 10

465 Mark Twain Back Out Door
466 Mark Twain Pass Double Door

467 Mark Twain Waiting Room Retrofit --  T8 - 3 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 2 2

468 Mark Twain Ante Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 17Ww/LED 2x2 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 22W, 4000K, 2750 
lm 1 1

469 Mark Twain Patient Room 201 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 2 2

470 Mark Twain Patient Room 201 Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 1 1

471 Mark Twain Patient Room 201 Retrofit --  CFL Plug-in - 1 lamp 13Ww/1 ea. EIKO LED5W2P/G23/840DM-
G7B 1 1

472 Mark Twain Patient Room 201 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 17Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 2' tube 1 1
473 Mark Twain Patient Room 201 Retrofit --  A-lamp - 60Ww/EIKO LED Downlight Kit, 6", Dim, 12W 1 1
474 Mark Twain Patient Room 202 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 2 2

475 Mark Twain Patient Room 202 Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 1 1

476 Mark Twain Patient Room 202 Retrofit --  CFL Plug-in - 1 lamp 13Ww/1 ea. EIKO LED5W2P/G23/840DM-
G7B 1 1

477 Mark Twain Patient Room 202 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 17Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 2' tube 1 1
478 Mark Twain Patient Room 202 Retrofit --  A-lamp - 60Ww/EIKO LED Downlight Kit, 6", Dim, 12W 1 1
479 Mark Twain Patient Room 203 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 2 2

480 Mark Twain Patient Room 203 Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 1 1

481 Mark Twain Patient Room 203 Retrofit --  CFL Plug-in - 1 lamp 13Ww/1 ea. EIKO LED5W2P/G23/840DM-
G7B 1 1

482 Mark Twain Patient Room 203 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 17Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 2' tube 1 1
483 Mark Twain Patient Room 203 Retrofit --  A-lamp - 60Ww/EIKO LED Downlight Kit, 6", Dim, 12W 1 1
484 Mark Twain Patient Room 204 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 2 2

485 Mark Twain Patient Room 204 Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 1 1

486 Mark Twain Patient Room 204 Retrofit --  CFL Plug-in - 1 lamp 13Ww/1 ea. EIKO LED5W2P/G23/840DM-
G7B 1 1

487 Mark Twain Patient Room 204 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 17Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 2' tube 1 1
488 Mark Twain Patient Room 204 Retrofit --  A-lamp - 60Ww/EIKO LED Downlight Kit, 6", Dim, 12W 1 1
489 Mark Twain Patient Room 204 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 2 2

490 Mark Twain Patient Room 204 Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 1 1

491 Mark Twain Patient Room 204 Retrofit --  CFL Plug-in - 1 lamp 13Ww/1 ea. EIKO LED5W2P/G23/840DM-
G7B 1 1

492 Mark Twain Patient Room 204 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 17Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 2' tube 1 1
493 Mark Twain Patient Room 204 Retrofit --  A-lamp - 60Ww/EIKO LED Downlight Kit, 6", Dim, 12W 1 1
494 Mark Twain Patient Room 205 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 2 2

495 Mark Twain Patient Room 205 Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 1 1

496 Mark Twain Patient Room 205 Retrofit --  CFL Plug-in - 1 lamp 13Ww/1 ea. EIKO LED5W2P/G23/840DM-
G7B 1 1

497 Mark Twain Patient Room 205 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 17Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 2' tube 1 1
498 Mark Twain Patient Room 205 Retrofit --  A-lamp - 60Ww/EIKO LED Downlight Kit, 6", Dim, 12W 1 1
499 Mark Twain Patient Room 206 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 2 2

500 Mark Twain Patient Room 206 Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 1 1

501 Mark Twain Patient Room 206 Retrofit --  CFL Plug-in - 1 lamp 13Ww/1 ea. EIKO LED5W2P/G23/840DM-
G7B 1 1

502 Mark Twain Patient Room 206 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 17Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 2' tube 1 1
503 Mark Twain Patient Room 206 Retrofit --  A-lamp - 60Ww/EIKO LED Downlight Kit, 6", Dim, 12W 1 1

504 Mark Twain Waiting Room Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 2 2

505 Mark Twain I.C.U.
506 Mark Twain Lockers Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 1 1 Existing Sensor

59



Page 10 of 30 Project -- Book1 Earth Savers 

Line

# Building Room Action Exist  
Quan

New 
Quan New Control 

New 
Contrl 
Quan

EXHIBIT A -- Scope of Work
Location Lighting Fixtures Controls

Picture

507 Mark Twain Restroom Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 17Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 2' tube 1 1 SWX-121-WH (Wall Switch Sensor, Dual Tech) 1

508 Mark Twain Ante Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 1 1

509 Mark Twain Bed 1 Retrofit --  T8 - 3 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 1 1

510 Mark Twain Bed 1 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 17Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 2' tube 1 1

511 Mark Twain Bed 2 Retrofit --  T8 - 3 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 1 1

512 Mark Twain Bed 2 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 17Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 2' tube 1 1

513 Mark Twain Bed 3 Retrofit --  T8 - 3 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 1 1

514 Mark Twain Bed 3 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 17Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 2' tube 1 1

515 Mark Twain Bed 4 Retrofit --  T8 - 3 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 1 1

516 Mark Twain Bed 4 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 17Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 2' tube 1 1

517 Mark Twain Bed 5 Retrofit --  T8 - 3 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 1 1

518 Mark Twain Bed 5 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 17Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 2' tube 1 1

519 Mark Twain Bed 6 Retrofit --  T8 - 3 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 1 1

520 Mark Twain Bed 6 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 17Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 2' tube 1 1

521 Mark Twain Bed 7 Retrofit --  T8 - 3 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 1 1

522 Mark Twain Bed 7 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 17Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 2' tube 1 1

523 Mark Twain Bed 8 Retrofit --  T8 - 3 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 1 1

524 Mark Twain Bed 8 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 17Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 2' tube 1 1
525 Mark Twain Pass Double Door
526 Mark Twain Storage Room Retrofit --  CFL Plug-in - 2 lamp 13Ww/EIKO LED A19, E26, 8W 1 1 SWX-121-WH (Wall Switch Sensor, Dual Tech) 1

527 Mark Twain Soiled Utility Room Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 1 1

528 Mark Twain Break Room Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 2 2

529 Mark Twain Main Common Retrofit --  T8 - 3 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 18 18

530 Mark Twain Main Common Retrofit --  CFL Plug-in - 2 lamp 26Ww/EIKO LED Downlight Kit 8", Dim, (12-
16-22W), 120-277V 2 2

531 Mark Twain Out I.C.U.
532 Mark Twain Panel Closet Retrofit --  CFL Plug-in - 2 lamp 13Ww/EIKO LED A19, E26, 8W 1 1
533 Mark Twain Enviromental Services Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 1 1 SWX-121-WH (Wall Switch Sensor, Dual Tech) 1
534 Mark Twain Pass Double Door
535 Mark Twain Equipment Storage Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 4 4

536 Mark Twain Equipment Storage Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 2 2

537 Mark Twain Restroom Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 17Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 2' tube 1 1 SWX-121-WH (Wall Switch Sensor, Dual Tech) 1
538 Mark Twain Restroom Retrofit --  A-lamp - 60Ww/EIKO LED Downlight Kit, 6", Dim, 12W 1 1
539 Mark Twain Patient Room 211 A/B Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 4 4

540 Mark Twain Patient Room 211 A/B Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 2 2

541 Mark Twain Patient Room 211 A/B Retrofit --  CFL Plug-in - 1 lamp 13Ww/1 ea. EIKO LED5W2P/G23/840DM-
G7B 1 1

542 Mark Twain Patient Room 211 A/B Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 17Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 2' tube 1 1
543 Mark Twain Patient Room 211 A/B Retrofit --  A-lamp - 60Ww/EIKO LED Downlight Kit, 6", Dim, 12W 1 1
544 Mark Twain Patient Room 210 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 4 4

545 Mark Twain Patient Room 210 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 2 2

546 Mark Twain Patient Room 210 Retrofit --  CFL Plug-in - 1 lamp 13Ww/1 ea. EIKO LED5W2P/G23/840DM-
G7B 1 1

547 Mark Twain Patient Room 210 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 17Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 2' tube 1 1
548 Mark Twain Patient Room 210 Retrofit --  A-lamp - 60Ww/EIKO LED Downlight Kit, 6", Dim, 12W 1 1
549 Mark Twain Patient Room 209 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 4 4

550 Mark Twain Patient Room 209 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 2 2

551 Mark Twain Patient Room 209 Retrofit --  CFL Plug-in - 1 lamp 13Ww/1 ea. EIKO LED5W2P/G23/840DM-
G7B 1 1

552 Mark Twain Patient Room 209 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 17Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 2' tube 1 1
553 Mark Twain Patient Room 209 Retrofit --  A-lamp - 60Ww/EIKO LED Downlight Kit, 6", Dim, 12W 1 1
554 Mark Twain Pass Double Door

555 Mark Twain Clean Utility Room Retrofit --  T8 - 3 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 4 4

556 Mark Twain Closet Retrofit --  CFL Plug-in - 2 lamp 13Ww/EIKO LED A19, E26, 8W 1 1

557 Mark Twain Storage Room Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 2 2

558 Mark Twain Office Retrofit --  T8 - 3 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 1 1

559 Mark Twain Lounge / Locker Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 2 2

560 Mark Twain Restroom Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 25Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 3' tube 1 1 SWX-121-WH (Wall Switch Sensor, Dual Tech) 1
561 Mark Twain Pass Door
562 Mark Twain Storage Room Retrofit --  CFL Plug-in - 2 lamp 13Ww/EIKO LED A19, E26, 8W 1 1 SWX-121-WH (Wall Switch Sensor, Dual Tech) 1
563 Mark Twain Pass Door

564 Mark Twain Medication Room Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 2 2

565 Mark Twain Dictation Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 2 2

566 Mark Twain Office Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 2 2

567 Mark Twain Pantry Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 2 2

568 Mark Twain Pass Double Door
569 Mark Twain Patient Room 208 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 4 4

570 Mark Twain Patient Room 208 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 2 2

60



Page 11 of 30 Project -- Book1 Earth Savers 

Line

# Building Room Action Exist  
Quan

New 
Quan New Control 

New 
Contrl 
Quan

EXHIBIT A -- Scope of Work
Location Lighting Fixtures Controls

Picture

571 Mark Twain Patient Room 208 Retrofit --  CFL Plug-in - 1 lamp 13Ww/1 ea. EIKO LED5W2P/G23/840DM-
G7B 1 1

572 Mark Twain Patient Room 208 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 17Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 2' tube 1 1
573 Mark Twain Patient Room 208 Retrofit --  A-lamp - 60Ww/EIKO LED Downlight Kit, 6", Dim, 12W 1 1
574 Mark Twain Patient Room 207 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 4 4

575 Mark Twain Patient Room 207 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 2 2

576 Mark Twain Patient Room 207 Retrofit --  CFL Plug-in - 1 lamp 13Ww/1 ea. EIKO LED5W2P/G23/840DM-
G7B 1 1

577 Mark Twain Patient Room 207 Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 17Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 2' tube 1 1
578 Mark Twain Patient Room 207 Retrofit --  A-lamp - 60Ww/EIKO LED Downlight Kit, 6", Dim, 12W 1 1

579 Mark Twain Main Hall / Common   Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 33 33

580 Mark Twain Main Hall / Common Retrofit --  CFL Plug-in - 2 lamp 26Ww/EIKO LED Downlight Kit 8", Dim, (12-
16-22W), 120-277V 12 12

581 Mark Twain Out Double Door

582 Mark Twain Main Hall / Common Retrofit --  CFL Plug-in - 2 lamp 26Ww/EIKO LED Downlight Kit 8", Dim, (12-
16-22W), 120-277V 5 5

583 Mark Twain Main Hall / Common Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 8 8

584 Mark Twain Exterior Rooms
585 Mark Twain Electrical Room Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp 32Ww/4 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 1 1

586 Mark Twain Electrical Room Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 59Ww/4 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube & 8ft. Conversion 
Kit 2 2

587 Mark Twain Electrical Room Retrofit --  T12 - 2 lamp 60Ww/4 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube & 8ft. Conversion 
Kit 5 5

588 Mark Twain Electrical Room Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 1 1
589 Mark Twain Electrical Room Retrofit --  T12 - 2 lamp 40Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 2 2
590 Mark Twain Generator Room Retrofit --  T12 - 2 lamp 40Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 2 2
591 Mark Twain Generator Room Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 2 2

592 Mark Twain Generator Room Retrofit --  T12 - 2 lamp 60Ww/4 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube & 8ft. Conversion 
Kit 1 1

593 Mark Twain Electrical Room Retrofit --  T12 - 2 lamp 60Ww/4 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube & 8ft. Conversion 
Kit 2 2

594 Mark Twain Accounting / EVS / 
Plant Eng. Building

595 Mark Twain Accounting Dept.
596 Mark Twain Break Room Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 2 2 SWX-121-WH (Wall Switch Sensor, Dual Tech) 1

597 Mark Twain Office Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 2 2

598 Mark Twain Office Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 2 2

599 Mark Twain Office Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 2 2

600 Mark Twain Office Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 2 2

601 Mark Twain Hall Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 4 4

602 Mark Twain Out Accounting
603 Mark Twain Storage Room Retrofit --  T12 - 4 lamp 40Ww/4 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 8 8
604 Mark Twain Storage Room Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp 32Ww/4 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 8 8
605 Mark Twain EVS Dept.
606 Mark Twain Break Room Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp 32Ww/4 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 2 2 SWX-121-WH (Wall Switch Sensor, Dual Tech) 1
607 Mark Twain Office Retrofit --  T8 - 3 lamp 32Ww/3 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 1 1 SWX-121-WH (Wall Switch Sensor, Dual Tech) 1
608 Mark Twain Office Retrofit --  T8 - 3 lamp 32Ww/3 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 2 2 SWX-121-WH (Wall Switch Sensor, Dual Tech) 1
609 Mark Twain Laundry Retrofit --  T8 - 3 lamp 32Ww/3 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 2 2 SWX-121-WH (Wall Switch Sensor, Dual Tech) 1
610 Mark Twain Common Retrofit --  T8 - 3 lamp 32Ww/3 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 4 4
611 Mark Twain Out EVS
612 Mark Twain Maintance Dept
613 Mark Twain Office Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 1 1 SWX-121-WH (Wall Switch Sensor, Dual Tech) 1
614 Mark Twain Shop Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 9 9
615 Mark Twain Shop Retrofit --  CFL Screw-in - 20Ww/EIKO LED A19, E26, 8W 1 1
616 Mark Twain Ext. Generator Room Retrofit --  A-lamp - 100Ww/EIKO LED A19, E26, 8W 5 5
617 Mark Twain Ext Bio Hazard Room Retrofit --  T12 - 4 lamp 40Ww/4 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 1 1
618 Mark Twain Ext Bio Hazard Room Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp 32Ww/4 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 1 1
619 Mark Twain Foundation Building
620 Mark Twain Enter Side of Building

621 Mark Twain Lobby Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 1x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 8 8

622 Mark Twain Lobby Retrofit --  Incand - 2 lamp 20Ww/EXRG EL M6 1 1 Pic. 6

623 Mark Twain Office Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 1x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 3 3

624 Mark Twain Office Retrofit --  T8 - 1 lamp 25Ww/1 ea. Bypass LED T8 3' tube 1 1

625 Mark Twain Storage Room Retrofit --  T12 - 4 lamp 40Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 
4500 lm 2 2

626 Mark Twain Through Door

627 Mark Twain Meeting Room Retrofit --  T12 - 2 lamp 40Ww/LED 1x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 
3000 lm 99 99

628 Mark Twain Office Retrofit --  T12 - 4 lamp 40Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 
4500 lm 2 2

629 Mark Twain Office Retrofit --  T12 - 4 lamp 40Ww/4 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 4 4

630 Mark Twain Room Retrofit --  T12 - 2 lamp 40Ww/LED 1x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 
3000 lm 2 2

631 Mark Twain Storage Room Retrofit --  T12 - 2 lamp 40Ww/LED 1x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 
3000 lm 3 3

632 Mark Twain Restroom Retrofit --  A-lamp - 60Ww/EIKO LED A19, E26, 8W 2 2 SWX-121-WH (Wall Switch Sensor, Dual Tech) 1

633 Mark Twain Hall Retrofit --  T12 - 2 lamp 40Ww/LED 1x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 
3000 lm 3 3

634 Mark Twain Hall Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 1 1
635 Mark Twain Ext. Closet Retrofit --  A-lamp - 100Ww/EIKO LED A19, E26, 8W 1 1
636 Mark Twain MRI Building
637 Mark Twain Mechanical Room Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 2 2 Existing Sensor
638 Mark Twain Zone 1 Common Retrofit --  R30 - 75Ww/EIKO LED Downlight Kit, 6", Dim, 12W 5 5
639 Mark Twain Dressing Retrofit --  R30 - 75Ww/EIKO LED Downlight Kit, 6", Dim, 12W 1 1 Existing Sensor
640 Mark Twain MRI  Retrofit --  CFL Screw-in - 20Ww/EIKO LED A19, E26, 8W 4 4

61



Page 12 of 30 Project -- Book1 Earth Savers 

Line

# Building Room Action Exist  
Quan

New 
Quan New Control 

New 
Contrl 
Quan

EXHIBIT A -- Scope of Work
Location Lighting Fixtures Controls

Picture

641 Mark Twain MRI Retrofit --  CFL Plug-in - 2 lamp 26Ww/EIKO LED Downlight Kit 8", Dim, (12-
16-22W), 120-277V 3 3

642 Mark Twain Throughout Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 23W, 4000K, 3000 
lm 25 25

643 Mark Twain Throughout Retrofit --  T8 - 3 lamp 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 4500 
lm 25 25

644 Mark Twain Throughout Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp A/B 32Ww/LED 2x4 Troffer Retrofit Kit, 36W, 4000K, 
4500 lm 50 50

645 Mark Twain Throughout Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 25 25
646 Mark Twain Throughout Retrofit --  T8 - 2 lamp 32Ww/2 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 25 25
647 Mark Twain Throughout Retrofit --  T8 - 4 lamp 32Ww/4 ea. Bypass LED T8 4' tube 25 25

648 Mark Twain Throughout Retrofit --  CFL Plug-in - 2 lamp 26Ww/EIKO LED Downlight Kit 8", Dim, (12-
16-22W), 120-277V 25 25

62



Pa
ge

 1
3 

of
 3

0
Pr

oj
ec

t -
- B

oo
k1

Ea
rth

 S
av

er
s 

Li
ne

Ac
tio

n
A/

C

#
B

ui
ld

in
g

Lo
ca

tio
n

Hr
s

D
ay

s
Ne

w
 

C
on

trl
 

Sa
ve

 (%
)

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

W
at

t/F
ix

t.
Fi

xt
. 

Q
ua

n
To

ta
l k

W
 A

nn
. k

W
h 

An
n.

 E
le

ct
. 

Ex
p.

W
at

t/F
ix

t.
Fi

xt
. 

Q
ua

n
To

ta
l k

W
An

n.
 k

W
h

An
n.

 E
le

ct
. 

Ex
p.

To
ta

l 
kW

An
n.

 k
W

h
An

n.
 E

le
ct

. 
Ex

p.

An
nu

al
 

A/
C

 
Sa

vi
ng

s

1
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
St

ar
t @

 F
ro

nt
 

M
ai

n 
En

te
ra

nc
e

   
   

   
   

-  
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
  -

   

2
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
En

try
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  C
FL

 P
lu

g-
in

 - 
2 

la
m

p 
26

W
w

/E
IK

O
 L

ED
 

D
ow

nl
ig

ht
 K

it 
8"

, D
im

, (
12

-1
6-

22
W

), 
12

0-
27

7V
52

4
   

   
   

0.
21

 
   

   
   

   
  1

,8
17

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  2
73

 
12

4
   

   
 0

.0
5 

   
   

   
   

   
41

9 
 $

   
   

   
   

 6
3 

0.
2

13
98

$2
10

 $
   

   
   

 4
3 

3
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
D

ia
gn

os
tic

 
Im

ag
in

g
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

4
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
R

eg
is

tra
tio

n
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
23

W
, 4

00
0K

, 3
00

0 
lm

59
2

   
   

   
0.

12
 

   
   

   
   

  1
,0

31
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  1

55
 

23
2

   
   

 0
.0

5 
   

   
   

   
   

40
2 

 $
   

   
   

   
 6

0 
0.

1
62

9
$9

4
 $

   
   

   
 2

0 

5
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
Bo

ne
 D

en
si

ty
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

6
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
Ex

am
6

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 4
 la

m
p 

A/
B 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r 
R

et
ro

fit
 K

it,
 3

6W
, 4

00
0K

, 4
50

0 
lm

11
6

2
   

   
   

0.
23

 
   

   
   

   
   

  5
07

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 7

6 
36

2
   

   
 0

.0
7 

   
   

   
   

   
15

7 
 $

   
   

   
   

 2
4 

0.
2

34
9

$5
2

 $
   

   
   

 1
1 

7
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
O

ffi
ce

8
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 4

 la
m

p 
A/

B 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r 

R
et

ro
fit

 K
it,

 3
6W

, 4
00

0K
, 4

50
0 

lm
11

6
2

   
   

   
0.

23
 

   
   

   
   

   
  6

76
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  1

01
 

36
2

   
   

 0
.0

7 
   

   
   

   
   

21
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
 3

1 
0.

2
46

6
$7

0
 $

   
   

   
 1

4 

8
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
C

om
m

on
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 4
 la

m
p 

A/
B 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r 
R

et
ro

fit
 K

it,
 3

6W
, 4

00
0K

, 4
50

0 
lm

11
6

2
   

   
   

0.
23

 
   

   
   

   
  2

,0
27

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  3
04

 
36

2
   

   
 0

.0
7 

   
   

   
   

   
62

9 
 $

   
   

   
   

 9
4 

0.
2

13
98

$2
10

 $
   

   
   

 4
3 

9
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
O

ut
 B

on
e 

D
en

si
ty

   
   

   
   

-  
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
  -

   

10
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
N

uc
le

ar
 M

ed
.

16
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

23
W

, 4
00

0K
, 3

00
0 

lm
59

6
   

   
   

0.
35

 
   

   
   

   
  2

,0
62

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  3
09

 
23

6
   

   
 0

.1
4 

   
   

   
   

   
80

4 
 $

   
   

   
  1

21
 

0.
2

12
58

$1
89

 $
   

   
   

 3
9 

11
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
H

ot
 L

ab
8

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 3
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
36

W
, 4

00
0K

, 4
50

0 
lm

85
1

   
   

   
0.

09
 

   
   

   
   

   
  2

48
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 3
7 

36
1

   
   

 0
.0

4 
   

   
   

   
   

10
5 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

6 
0.

0
14

3
$2

1
 $

   
   

   
   

4 

12
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
La

b
12

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
23

W
, 4

00
0K

, 3
00

0 
lm

59
1

   
   

   
0.

06
 

   
   

   
   

   
  2

58
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 3
9 

23
1

   
   

 0
.0

2 
   

   
   

   
   

10
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

5 
0.

0
15

7
$2

4
 $

   
   

   
   

5 

13
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
D

ar
k 

R
oo

m
16

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 4
 la

m
p 

A/
B 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r 
R

et
ro

fit
 K

it,
 3

6W
, 4

00
0K

, 4
50

0 
lm

11
6

4
   

   
   

0.
46

 
   

   
   

   
  2

,7
02

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  4
05

 
36

4
   

   
 0

.1
4 

   
   

   
   

   
83

9 
 $

   
   

   
  1

26
 

0.
3

18
64

$2
80

 $
   

   
   

 5
8 

14
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
W

or
k 

R
oo

m
12

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 3
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
36

W
, 4

00
0K

, 4
50

0 
lm

85
1

   
   

   
0.

09
 

   
   

   
   

   
  3

71
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 5
6 

36
1

   
   

 0
.0

4 
   

   
   

   
   

15
7 

 $
   

   
   

   
 2

4 
0.

0
21

4
$3

2
 $

   
   

   
   

7 

15
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
C

T 
Sc

an
16

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  C
FL

 P
lu

g-
in

 - 
2 

la
m

p 
26

W
w

/E
IK

O
 L

ED
 

D
ow

nl
ig

ht
 K

it 
6"

, D
im

, (
8-

12
-1

6W
), 

12
0-

27
7V

52
1

   
   

   
0.

05
 

   
   

   
   

   
  3

03
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 4
5 

8
1

   
   

 0
.0

1 
   

   
   

   
   

  4
7 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

7 
0.

0
25

6
$3

8
 $

   
   

   
   

8 

16
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
C

T 
Sc

an
16

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  C
FL

 P
lu

g-
in

 - 
2 

la
m

p 
26

W
w

/E
IK

O
 L

ED
 

D
ow

nl
ig

ht
 K

it 
8"

, D
im

, (
12

-1
6-

22
W

), 
12

0-
27

7V
52

3
   

   
   

0.
16

 
   

   
   

   
   

  9
09

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  1
36

 
12

3
   

   
 0

.0
4 

   
   

   
   

   
21

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

 3
1 

0.
1

69
9

$1
05

 $
   

   
   

 2
2 

17
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
C

T 
Sc

an
16

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 1

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
23

W
, 4

00
0K

, 3
00

0 
lm

59
6

   
   

   
0.

35
 

   
   

   
   

  2
,0

62
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  3

09
 

23
6

   
   

 0
.1

4 
   

   
   

   
   

80
4 

 $
   

   
   

  1
21

 
0.

2
12

58
$1

89
 $

   
   

   
 3

9 

18
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
C

on
tro

l A
re

a
12

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
23

W
, 4

00
0K

, 3
00

0 
lm

59
1

   
   

   
0.

06
 

   
   

   
   

   
  2

58
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 3
9 

23
1

   
   

 0
.0

2 
   

   
   

   
   

10
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

5 
0.

0
15

7
$2

4
 $

   
   

   
   

5 

19
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
Pa

ss
 D

ou
bl

e 
D

oo
r

   
   

   
   

-  
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
  -

   

20
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
D

re
ss

in
g 

R
oo

m
12

7
30

%
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  C
FL

 P
lu

g-
in

 - 
2 

la
m

p 
13

W
w

/E
IK

O
 L

ED
 A

19
, 

E2
6,

 8
W

26
1

   
   

   
0.

03
 

   
   

   
   

   
  1

14
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 1
7 

8
1

   
   

 0
.0

1 
   

   
   

   
   

  2
4 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

4 
0.

0
89

$1
3

 $
   

   
   

   
3 

21
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
R

es
tro

om
24

7
30

%
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/2

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

4'
 

tu
be

59
1

   
   

   
0.

06
 

   
   

   
   

   
  5

15
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 7
7 

21
1

   
   

 0
.0

2 
   

   
   

   
   

12
8 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

9 
0.

0
38

7
$5

8
 $

   
   

   
 1

2 

22
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
R

ad
io

lo
gy

 1
16

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  C
FL

 P
lu

g-
in

 - 
2 

la
m

p 
26

W
w

/E
IK

O
 L

ED
 

D
ow

nl
ig

ht
 K

it 
8"

, D
im

, (
12

-1
6-

22
W

), 
12

0-
27

7V
52

6
   

   
   

0.
31

 
   

   
   

   
  1

,8
17

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  2
73

 
12

6
   

   
 0

.0
7 

   
   

   
   

   
41

9 
 $

   
   

   
   

 6
3 

0.
2

13
98

$2
10

 $
   

   
   

 4
3 

23
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
R

ad
io

lo
gy

 1
16

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

 T
8 

- 3
 la

m
p 

FB
31

w
/L

ED
 2

x2
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
22

W
, 4

00
0K

, 2
75

0 
lm

93
3

   
   

   
0.

28
 

   
   

   
   

  1
,6

25
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  2

44
 

22
3

   
   

 0
.0

7 
   

   
   

   
   

38
4 

 $
   

   
   

   
 5

8 
0.

2
12

41
$1

86
 $

   
   

   
 3

8 

24
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
R

ad
io

lo
gy

 2
16

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

 T
8 

- 3
 la

m
p 

FB
31

w
/L

ED
 2

x2
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
22

W
, 4

00
0K

, 2
75

0 
lm

93
3

   
   

   
0.

28
 

   
   

   
   

  1
,6

25
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  2

44
 

22
3

   
   

 0
.0

7 
   

   
   

   
   

38
4 

 $
   

   
   

   
 5

8 
0.

2
12

41
$1

86
 $

   
   

   
 3

8 

25
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
R

ad
io

lo
gy

 2
16

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  C
FL

 P
lu

g-
in

 - 
2 

la
m

p 
26

W
w

/E
IK

O
 L

ED
 

D
ow

nl
ig

ht
 K

it 
8"

, D
im

, (
12

-1
6-

22
W

), 
12

0-
27

7V
52

5
   

   
   

0.
26

 
   

   
   

   
  1

,5
14

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  2
27

 
12

5
   

   
 0

.0
6 

   
   

   
   

   
34

9 
 $

   
   

   
   

 5
2 

0.
2

11
65

$1
75

 $
   

   
   

 3
6 

26
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
R

ad
io

lo
gy

 2
16

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 1
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/1

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

4'
 

tu
be

33
1

   
   

   
0.

03
 

   
   

   
   

   
  1

92
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 2
9 

10
.5

1
   

   
 0

.0
1 

   
   

   
   

   
  6

1 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
9 

0.
0

13
1

$2
0

 $
   

   
   

   
4 

27
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
R

es
tro

om
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

17
W

w
/2

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

2'
 

tu
be

31
1

   
   

   
0.

03
 

   
   

   
   

   
  2

71
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 4
1 

18
1

   
   

 0
.0

2 
   

   
   

   
   

15
7 

 $
   

   
   

   
 2

4 
0.

0
11

4
$1

7
 $

   
   

   
   

4 

28
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
D

re
ss

in
g 

R
oo

m
12

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  C
FL

 P
lu

g-
in

 - 
2 

la
m

p 
13

W
w

/E
IK

O
 L

ED
 A

19
, 

E2
6,

 8
W

26
1

   
   

   
0.

03
 

   
   

   
   

   
  1

14
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 1
7 

8
1

   
   

 0
.0

1 
   

   
   

   
   

  3
5 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

5 
0.

0
79

$1
2

 $
   

   
   

   
2 

29
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
R

es
tro

om
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

 T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

FB
31

w
/L

ED
 2

x2
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
22

W
, 4

00
0K

, 2
75

0 
lm

62
1

   
   

   
0.

06
 

   
   

   
   

   
  5

42
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 8
1 

22
1

   
   

 0
.0

2 
   

   
   

   
   

19
2 

 $
   

   
   

   
 2

9 
0.

0
34

9
$5

2
 $

   
   

   
 1

1 

30
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
Pa

ss
 D

oo
r

   
   

   
   

-  
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
  -

   
31

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
ss

 D
ou

bl
e 

D
oo

r
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

32
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
Vi

ew
 R

oo
m

12
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
 T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
FB

31
w

/L
ED

 2
x2

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

22
W

, 4
00

0K
, 2

75
0 

lm
62

1
   

   
   

0.
06

 
   

   
   

   
   

  2
71

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 4

1 
22

1
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
  9

6 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

0.
0

17
5

$2
6

 $
   

   
   

   
5 

33
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
Vi

ew
 R

oo
m

12
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 3

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

36
W

, 4
00

0K
, 4

50
0 

lm
85

1
   

   
   

0.
09

 
   

   
   

   
   

  3
71

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 5

6 
36

1
   

   
 0

.0
4 

   
   

   
   

   
15

7 
 $

   
   

   
   

 2
4 

0.
0

21
4

$3
2

 $
   

   
   

   
7 

34
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
M

am
m

o 
G

ra
ph

y
16

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

 T
8 

- 3
 la

m
p 

FB
31

w
/L

ED
 2

x2
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
22

W
, 4

00
0K

, 2
75

0 
lm

93
6

   
   

   
0.

56
 

   
   

   
   

  3
,2

50
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  4

87
 

22
6

   
   

 0
.1

3 
   

   
   

   
   

76
9 

 $
   

   
   

  1
15

 
0.

4
24

81
$3

72
 $

   
   

   
 7

7 

35
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
M

ai
n 

C
om

m
on

24
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

23
W

, 4
00

0K
, 3

00
0 

lm
59

9
   

   
   

0.
53

 
   

   
   

   
  4

,6
39

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  6
96

 
23

9
   

   
 0

.2
1 

   
   

   
   

1,
80

8 
 $

   
   

   
  2

71
 

0.
3

28
30

$4
25

 $
   

   
   

 8
8 

36
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
M

ai
n 

C
om

m
on

24
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  C

FL
 P

lu
g-

in
 - 

2 
la

m
p 

26
W

w
/E

IK
O

 L
ED

 
D

ow
nl

ig
ht

 K
it 

8"
, D

im
, (

12
-1

6-
22

W
), 

12
0-

27
7V

52
1

   
   

   
0.

05
 

   
   

   
   

   
  4

54
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 6
8 

12
1

   
   

 0
.0

1 
   

   
   

   
   

10
5 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

6 
0.

0
34

9
$5

2
 $

   
   

   
 1

1 

En
er

gy
 S

av
in

gs
 A

na
ly

si
s

Lo
ca

tio
n

O
pe

ra
tio

n
Ex

is
tin

g
Ne

w
Li

gh
tin

g 
En

er
gy

 S
av

in
gs

63



Pa
ge

 1
4 

of
 3

0
Pr

oj
ec

t -
- B

oo
k1

Ea
rth

 S
av

er
s 

Li
ne

Ac
tio

n
A/

C

#
B

ui
ld

in
g

Lo
ca

tio
n

Hr
s

D
ay

s
Ne

w
 

C
on

trl
 

Sa
ve

 (%
)

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

W
at

t/F
ix

t.
Fi

xt
. 

Q
ua

n
To

ta
l k

W
 A

nn
. k

W
h 

An
n.

 E
le

ct
. 

Ex
p.

W
at

t/F
ix

t.
Fi

xt
. 

Q
ua

n
To

ta
l k

W
An

n.
 k

W
h

An
n.

 E
le

ct
. 

Ex
p.

To
ta

l 
kW

An
n.

 k
W

h
An

n.
 E

le
ct

. 
Ex

p.

An
nu

al
 

A/
C

 
Sa

vi
ng

s

En
er

gy
 S

av
in

gs
 A

na
ly

si
s

Lo
ca

tio
n

O
pe

ra
tio

n
Ex

is
tin

g
Ne

w
Li

gh
tin

g 
En

er
gy

 S
av

in
gs

37
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
O

ut
 R

ad
io

lo
gy

   
   

   
   

-  
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
  -

   

38
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
G

ift
 S

ho
p

8
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
 T

8 
- 3

 la
m

p 
FB

31
w

/L
ED

 2
x2

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

22
W

, 4
00

0K
, 2

75
0 

lm
93

4
   

   
   

0.
37

 
   

   
   

   
  1

,0
83

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  1
62

 
22

4
   

   
 0

.0
9 

   
   

   
   

   
25

6 
 $

   
   

   
   

 3
8 

0.
3

82
7

$1
24

 $
   

   
   

 2
6 

39
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
G

ift
 S

ho
p 

- O
ffi

ce
8

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 3
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
36

W
, 4

00
0K

, 4
50

0 
lm

85
2

   
   

   
0.

17
 

   
   

   
   

   
  4

95
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 7
4 

36
2

   
   

 0
.0

7 
   

   
   

   
   

21
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
 3

1 
0.

1
28

5
$4

3
 $

   
   

   
   

9 

40
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
U

ltr
as

ou
nd

12
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 3

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

36
W

, 4
00

0K
, 4

50
0 

lm
85

4
   

   
   

0.
34

 
   

   
   

   
  1

,4
85

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  2
23

 
36

4
   

   
 0

.1
4 

   
   

   
   

   
62

9 
 $

   
   

   
   

 9
4 

0.
2

85
6

$1
28

 $
   

   
   

 2
7 

41
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
Th

ro
ug

h 
D

ou
bl

e 
D

oo
r

   
   

   
   

-  
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
  -

   

42
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
Pa

ss
 D

ou
bl

e 
D

oo
r

   
   

   
   

-  
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
  -

   
43

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
ss

 D
ou

bl
e 

D
oo

r
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

44
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
M

ai
n 

H
al

lw
ay

24
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

23
W

, 4
00

0K
, 3

00
0 

lm
59

5
   

   
   

0.
30

 
   

   
   

   
  2

,5
77

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  3
87

 
23

5
   

   
 0

.1
2 

   
   

   
   

1,
00

5 
 $

   
   

   
  1

51
 

0.
2

15
72

$2
36

 $
   

   
   

 4
9 

45
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
O

ut
 D

ou
bl

e 
D

oo
r

   
   

   
   

-  
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
  -

   

46
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
R

ad
io

lo
gy

 O
ffi

ce
8

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 3
 la

m
p 

A/
B 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r 
R

et
ro

fit
 K

it,
 3

6W
, 4

00
0K

, 4
50

0 
lm

92
2

   
   

   
0.

18
 

   
   

   
   

   
  5

36
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 8
0 

36
2

   
   

 0
.0

7 
   

   
   

   
   

21
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
 3

1 
0.

1
32

6
$4

9
 $

   
   

   
 1

0 

47
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
Th

ro
ug

h 
D

ou
bl

e 
D

oo
r

   
   

   
   

-  
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
  -

   

48
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
O

ffi
ce

8
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

23
W

, 4
00

0K
, 3

00
0 

lm
59

2
   

   
   

0.
12

 
   

   
   

   
   

  3
44

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 5

2 
23

2
   

   
 0

.0
5 

   
   

   
   

   
13

4 
 $

   
   

   
   

 2
0 

0.
1

21
0

$3
1

 $
   

   
   

   
7 

49
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
C

ha
pe

l
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  C
FL

 P
lu

g-
in

 - 
2 

la
m

p 
26

W
w

/E
IK

O
 L

ED
 

D
ow

nl
ig

ht
 K

it 
8"

, D
im

, (
12

-1
6-

22
W

), 
12

0-
27

7V
52

10
   

   
   

0.
52

 
   

   
   

   
  4

,5
43

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  6
81

 
12

10
   

   
 0

.1
2 

   
   

   
   

1,
04

8 
 $

   
   

   
  1

57
 

0.
4

34
94

$5
24

 $
   

   
  1

08
 

50
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
C

ha
pe

l
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
12

 - 
1 

la
m

p 
40

W
w

/1
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
4'

 
tu

be
47

2
   

   
   

0.
09

 
   

   
   

   
   

  8
21

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  1
23

 
10

.5
2

   
   

 0
.0

2 
   

   
   

   
   

18
3 

 $
   

   
   

   
 2

8 
0.

1
63

8
$9

6
 $

   
   

   
 2

0 

51
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
El

ev
at

or
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

 2
2W

 &
 3

2W
 C

irc
lin

ew
/F

M
AG

E1
2 

-1
20

-1
6W

-
8C

C
T5

-1
20

D
T-

SL
54

1
   

   
   

0.
05

 
   

   
   

   
   

  4
72

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 7

1 
16

1
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
14

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

 2
1 

0.
0

33
2

$5
0

 $
   

   
   

 1
0 

52
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
El

ev
at

or
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

 2
2W

 &
 3

2W
 C

irc
lin

ew
/F

M
AG

E1
2 

-1
20

-1
6W

-
8C

C
T5

-1
20

D
T-

SL
54

1
   

   
   

0.
05

 
   

   
   

   
   

  4
72

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 7

1 
16

1
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
14

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

 2
1 

0.
0

33
2

$5
0

 $
   

   
   

 1
0 

53
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
M

en
's

 R
es

tro
om

24
7

30
%

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
4'

 
tu

be
59

1
   

   
   

0.
06

 
   

   
   

   
   

  5
15

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 7

7 
21

1
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
12

8 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
9 

0.
0

38
7

$5
8

 $
   

   
   

 1
2 

54
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
W

om
en

's
 

R
es

tro
om

24
7

30
%

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
4'

 
tu

be
59

1
   

   
   

0.
06

 
   

   
   

   
   

  5
15

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 7

7 
21

1
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
12

8 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
9 

0.
0

38
7

$5
8

 $
   

   
   

 1
2 

55
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
Th

ro
ug

h 
D

ou
bl

e 
D

oo
r

   
   

   
   

-  
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
  -

   

56
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
St

ai
rs

24
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 4

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

36
W

, 4
00

0K
, 4

50
0 

lm
11

4
4

   
   

   
0.

46
 

   
   

   
   

  3
,9

84
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  5

98
 

36
4

   
   

 0
.1

4 
   

   
   

   
1,

25
8 

 $
   

   
   

  1
89

 
0.

3
27

26
$4

09
 $

   
   

   
 8

5 

57
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
Ja

ni
to

rs
6

7
30

%
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  C
FL

 P
lu

g-
in

 - 
2 

la
m

p 
13

W
w

/E
IK

O
 L

ED
 A

19
, 

E2
6,

 8
W

26
1

   
   

   
0.

03
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 5
7 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
9 

8
1

   
   

 0
.0

1 
   

   
   

   
   

  1
2 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

2 
0.

0
45

$7
 $

   
   

   
   

1 

58
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
Se

rv
er

 R
oo

m
6

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
23

W
, 4

00
0K

, 3
00

0 
lm

59
1

   
   

   
0.

06
 

   
   

   
   

   
  1

29
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 1
9 

23
1

   
   

 0
.0

2 
   

   
   

   
   

  5
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

8 
0.

0
79

$1
2

 $
   

   
   

   
2 

59
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
Se

rv
er

 R
oo

m
6

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 1

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
23

W
, 4

00
0K

, 3
00

0 
lm

59
1

   
   

   
0.

06
 

   
   

   
   

   
  1

29
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 1
9 

23
1

   
   

 0
.0

2 
   

   
   

   
   

  5
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

8 
0.

0
79

$1
2

 $
   

   
   

   
2 

60
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
Te

le
/C

om
m

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

23
W

, 4
00

0K
, 3

00
0 

lm
59

1
   

   
   

0.
06

 
   

   
   

   
   

  1
29

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 1

9 
23

1
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
  5

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
8 

0.
0

79
$1

2
 $

   
   

   
   

2 

61
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
El

ev
at

or
 L

ob
by

24
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  C

FL
 P

lu
g-

in
 - 

2 
la

m
p 

26
W

w
/E

IK
O

 L
ED

 
D

ow
nl

ig
ht

 K
it 

8"
, D

im
, (

12
-1

6-
22

W
), 

12
0-

27
7V

52
2

   
   

   
0.

10
 

   
   

   
   

   
  9

09
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  1

36
 

12
2

   
   

 0
.0

2 
   

   
   

   
   

21
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
 3

1 
0.

1
69

9
$1

05
 $

   
   

   
 2

2 

62
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
El

ev
at

or
 

Eq
ui

pm
en

t
8

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 3
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
36

W
, 4

00
0K

, 4
50

0 
lm

85
1

   
   

   
0.

09
 

   
   

   
   

   
  2

48
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 3
7 

36
1

   
   

 0
.0

4 
   

   
   

   
   

10
5 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

6 
0.

0
14

3
$2

1
 $

   
   

   
   

4 

63
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
So

ile
d 

U
til

ity
 

R
oo

m
8

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 3
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
36

W
, 4

00
0K

, 4
50

0 
lm

85
1

   
   

   
0.

09
 

   
   

   
   

   
  2

48
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 3
7 

36
1

   
   

 0
.0

4 
   

   
   

   
   

10
5 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

6 
0.

0
14

3
$2

1
 $

   
   

   
   

4 

64
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
En

do
sc

op
y

16
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 4

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

36
W

, 4
00

0K
, 4

50
0 

lm
11

4
3

   
   

   
0.

34
 

   
   

   
   

  1
,9

92
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  2

99
 

36
3

   
   

 0
.1

1 
   

   
   

   
   

62
9 

 $
   

   
   

   
 9

4 
0.

2
13

63
$2

04
 $

   
   

   
 4

2 

65
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
Eq

ui
pm

en
t R

oo
m

8
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

23
W

, 4
00

0K
, 3

00
0 

lm
59

1
   

   
   

0.
06

 
   

   
   

   
   

  1
72

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 2

6 
23

1
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
  6

7 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
0 

0.
0

10
5

$1
6

 $
   

   
   

   
3 

66
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
Pa

ss
 D

ou
bl

e 
D

oo
r

   
   

   
   

-  
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
  -

   

67
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
O

ut
pa

tie
nt

 
Su

rg
er

y
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

68
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
Be

d 
1

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
4'

 
tu

be
59

2
   

   
   

0.
12

 
   

   
   

   
   

  2
58

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 3

9 
21

2
   

   
 0

.0
4 

   
   

   
   

   
  9

2 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

0.
1

16
6

$2
5

 $
   

   
   

   
5 

69
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
Be

d 
1

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 4

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

36
W

, 4
00

0K
, 4

50
0 

lm
11

4
1

   
   

   
0.

11
 

   
   

   
   

   
  2

49
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 3
7 

36
1

   
   

 0
.0

4 
   

   
   

   
   

  7
9 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

2 
0.

1
17

0
$2

6
 $

   
   

   
   

5 

70
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
Be

d 
3

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
4'

 
tu

be
59

2
   

   
   

0.
12

 
   

   
   

   
   

  2
58

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 3

9 
21

2
   

   
 0

.0
4 

   
   

   
   

   
  9

2 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

0.
1

16
6

$2
5

 $
   

   
   

   
5 

71
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
Be

d 
3

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 4

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

36
W

, 4
00

0K
, 4

50
0 

lm
11

4
1

   
   

   
0.

11
 

   
   

   
   

   
  2

49
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 3
7 

36
1

   
   

 0
.0

4 
   

   
   

   
   

  7
9 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

2 
0.

1
17

0
$2

6
 $

   
   

   
   

5 

72
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
Be

d 
5

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
4'

 
tu

be
59

2
   

   
   

0.
12

 
   

   
   

   
   

  2
58

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 3

9 
21

2
   

   
 0

.0
4 

   
   

   
   

   
  9

2 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

0.
1

16
6

$2
5

 $
   

   
   

   
5 

64



Pa
ge

 1
5 

of
 3

0
Pr

oj
ec

t -
- B

oo
k1

Ea
rth

 S
av

er
s 

Li
ne

Ac
tio

n
A/

C

#
B

ui
ld

in
g

Lo
ca

tio
n

Hr
s

D
ay

s
Ne

w
 

C
on

trl
 

Sa
ve

 (%
)

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

W
at

t/F
ix

t.
Fi

xt
. 

Q
ua

n
To

ta
l k

W
 A

nn
. k

W
h 

An
n.

 E
le

ct
. 

Ex
p.

W
at

t/F
ix

t.
Fi

xt
. 

Q
ua

n
To

ta
l k

W
An

n.
 k

W
h

An
n.

 E
le

ct
. 

Ex
p.

To
ta

l 
kW

An
n.

 k
W

h
An

n.
 E

le
ct

. 
Ex

p.

An
nu

al
 

A/
C

 
Sa

vi
ng

s

En
er

gy
 S

av
in

gs
 A

na
ly

si
s

Lo
ca

tio
n

O
pe

ra
tio

n
Ex

is
tin

g
Ne

w
Li

gh
tin

g 
En

er
gy

 S
av

in
gs

73
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
Be

d 
5

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 4

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

36
W

, 4
00

0K
, 4

50
0 

lm
11

4
1

   
   

   
0.

11
 

   
   

   
   

   
  2

49
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 3
7 

36
1

   
   

 0
.0

4 
   

   
   

   
   

  7
9 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

2 
0.

1
17

0
$2

6
 $

   
   

   
   

5 

74
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
Be

d 
6

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
4'

 
tu

be
59

2
   

   
   

0.
12

 
   

   
   

   
   

  2
58

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 3

9 
21

2
   

   
 0

.0
4 

   
   

   
   

   
  9

2 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

0.
1

16
6

$2
5

 $
   

   
   

   
5 

75
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
Be

d 
6

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 4

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

36
W

, 4
00

0K
, 4

50
0 

lm
11

4
1

   
   

   
0.

11
 

   
   

   
   

   
  2

49
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 3
7 

36
1

   
   

 0
.0

4 
   

   
   

   
   

  7
9 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

2 
0.

1
17

0
$2

6
 $

   
   

   
   

5 

76
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
Be

d 
4

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
4'

 
tu

be
59

2
   

   
   

0.
12

 
   

   
   

   
   

  2
58

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 3

9 
21

2
   

   
 0

.0
4 

   
   

   
   

   
  9

2 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

0.
1

16
6

$2
5

 $
   

   
   

   
5 

77
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
Be

d 
4

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 4

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

36
W

, 4
00

0K
, 4

50
0 

lm
11

4
1

   
   

   
0.

11
 

   
   

   
   

   
  2

49
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 3
7 

36
1

   
   

 0
.0

4 
   

   
   

   
   

  7
9 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

2 
0.

1
17

0
$2

6
 $

   
   

   
   

5 

78
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
Be

d 
2

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
4'

 
tu

be
59

2
   

   
   

0.
12

 
   

   
   

   
   

  2
58

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 3

9 
21

2
   

   
 0

.0
4 

   
   

   
   

   
  9

2 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

0.
1

16
6

$2
5

 $
   

   
   

   
5 

79
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
Be

d 
2

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 4

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

36
W

, 4
00

0K
, 4

50
0 

lm
11

4
1

   
   

   
0.

11
 

   
   

   
   

   
  2

49
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 3
7 

36
1

   
   

 0
.0

4 
   

   
   

   
   

  7
9 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

2 
0.

1
17

0
$2

6
 $

   
   

   
   

5 

80
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
C

le
an

 U
til

ity
8

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

 T
8 

- 3
 la

m
p 

FB
31

w
/L

ED
 2

x2
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
22

W
, 4

00
0K

, 2
75

0 
lm

93
2

   
   

   
0.

19
 

   
   

   
   

   
  5

42
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 8
1 

22
2

   
   

 0
.0

4 
   

   
   

   
   

12
8 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

9 
0.

1
41

4
$6

2
 $

   
   

   
 1

3 

81
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
Pa

ss
 D

ou
bl

e 
D

oo
r

   
   

   
   

-  
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
  -

   

82
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
Be

d 
1

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
4'

 
tu

be
59

2
   

   
   

0.
12

 
   

   
   

   
   

  2
58

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 3

9 
21

2
   

   
 0

.0
4 

   
   

   
   

   
  9

2 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

0.
1

16
6

$2
5

 $
   

   
   

   
5 

83
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
Be

d 
1

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

23
W

, 4
00

0K
, 3

00
0 

lm
59

1
   

   
   

0.
06

 
   

   
   

   
   

  1
29

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 1

9 
23

1
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
  5

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
8 

0.
0

79
$1

2
 $

   
   

   
   

2 

84
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
Be

d 
2

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
4'

 
tu

be
59

2
   

   
   

0.
12

 
   

   
   

   
   

  2
58

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 3

9 
21

2
   

   
 0

.0
4 

   
   

   
   

   
  9

2 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

0.
1

16
6

$2
5

 $
   

   
   

   
5 

85
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
Be

d 
2

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

23
W

, 4
00

0K
, 3

00
0 

lm
59

1
   

   
   

0.
06

 
   

   
   

   
   

  1
29

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 1

9 
23

1
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
  5

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
8 

0.
0

79
$1

2
 $

   
   

   
   

2 

86
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
Be

d 
3

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
4'

 
tu

be
59

2
   

   
   

0.
12

 
   

   
   

   
   

  2
58

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 3

9 
21

2
   

   
 0

.0
4 

   
   

   
   

   
  9

2 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

0.
1

16
6

$2
5

 $
   

   
   

   
5 

87
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
Be

d 
3

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

23
W

, 4
00

0K
, 3

00
0 

lm
59

1
   

   
   

0.
06

 
   

   
   

   
   

  1
29

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 1

9 
23

1
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
  5

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
8 

0.
0

79
$1

2
 $

   
   

   
   

2 

88
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
Be

d 
4

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
4'

 
tu

be
59

2
   

   
   

0.
12

 
   

   
   

   
   

  2
58

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 3

9 
21

2
   

   
 0

.0
4 

   
   

   
   

   
  9

2 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

0.
1

16
6

$2
5

 $
   

   
   

   
5 

89
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
Be

d 
4

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

23
W

, 4
00

0K
, 3

00
0 

lm
59

1
   

   
   

0.
06

 
   

   
   

   
   

  1
29

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 1

9 
23

1
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
  5

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
8 

0.
0

79
$1

2
 $

   
   

   
   

2 

90
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
Pa

ss
 D

ou
bl

e 
D

oo
r

   
   

   
   

-  
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
  -

   

91
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
N

ur
se

 S
ta

tio
n

24
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
 T

8 
- 3

 la
m

p 
FB

31
w

/L
ED

 2
x2

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

22
W

, 4
00

0K
, 2

75
0 

lm
93

4
   

   
   

0.
37

 
   

   
   

   
  3

,2
50

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  4
87

 
22

4
   

   
 0

.0
9 

   
   

   
   

   
76

9 
 $

   
   

   
  1

15
 

0.
3

24
81

$3
72

 $
   

   
   

 7
7 

92
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
R

es
tro

om
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/2

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

4'
 

tu
be

59
1

   
   

   
0.

06
 

   
   

   
   

   
  5

15
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 7
7 

21
1

   
   

 0
.0

2 
   

   
   

   
   

18
3 

 $
   

   
   

   
 2

8 
0.

0
33

2
$5

0
 $

   
   

   
 1

0 

93
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
R

es
tro

om
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  A
-la

m
p 

- 6
0W

w
/E

IK
O

 L
ED

 D
ow

nl
ig

ht
 K

it,
 6

", 
D

im
, 1

2W
60

1
   

   
   

0.
06

 
   

   
   

   
   

  5
24

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 7

9 
12

1
   

   
 0

.0
1 

   
   

   
   

   
10

5 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
6 

0.
0

41
9

$6
3

 $
   

   
   

 1
3 

94
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
R

es
tro

om
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

17
W

w
/2

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

2'
 

tu
be

31
1

   
   

   
0.

03
 

   
   

   
   

   
  2

71
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 4
1 

18
1

   
   

 0
.0

2 
   

   
   

   
   

15
7 

 $
   

   
   

   
 2

4 
0.

0
11

4
$1

7
 $

   
   

   
   

4 

95
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
M

ai
n 

C
om

m
on

24
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  C

FL
 P

lu
g-

in
 - 

2 
la

m
p 

13
W

w
/E

IK
O

 L
ED

 A
19

, 
E2

6,
 8

W
26

1
   

   
   

0.
03

 
   

   
   

   
   

  2
27

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 3

4 
8

1
   

   
 0

.0
1 

   
   

   
   

   
  7

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
0 

0.
0

15
7

$2
4

 $
   

   
   

   
5 

96
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
M

ai
n 

C
om

m
on

24
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 4

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

36
W

, 4
00

0K
, 4

50
0 

lm
11

4
11

   
   

   
1.

25
 

   
   

   
   

10
,9

55
 

 $
   

   
   

  1
,6

43
 

36
11

   
   

 0
.4

0 
   

   
   

   
3,

45
9 

 $
   

   
   

  5
19

 
0.

9
74

95
$1

,1
24

 $
   

   
  2

33
 

97
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
O

ut
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

98
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
Pa

ss
 D

ou
bl

e 
D

oo
r

   
   

   
   

-  
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
  -

   

99
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
Th

ro
ug

h 
D

ou
bl

e 
D

oo
r /

 S
ur

ge
ry

   
   

   
   

-  
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
  -

   

10
0

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
ss

 D
ou

bl
e 

D
oo

r
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

10
1

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
ss

 D
ou

bl
e 

D
oo

r
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

10
2

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

En
vi

ro
m

en
ta

l 
Se

rv
ic

es
12

7
30

%
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

17
W

w
/2

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

2'
 

tu
be

31
1

   
   

   
0.

03
 

   
   

   
   

   
  1

35
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 2
0 

18
1

   
   

 0
.0

2 
   

   
   

   
   

  5
5 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

8 
0.

0
80

$1
2

 $
   

   
   

   
2 

10
3

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

St
or

ag
e 

R
oo

m
6

7
30

%
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/2

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

4'
 

tu
be

59
2

   
   

   
0.

12
 

   
   

   
   

   
  2

58
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 3
9 

21
2

   
   

 0
.0

4 
   

   
   

   
   

  6
4 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

0 
0.

1
19

4
$2

9
 $

   
   

   
   

6 

10
4

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
ss

 D
ou

bl
e 

D
oo

r
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

10
5

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

M
-L

oc
ke

r R
oo

m
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 3
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
36

W
, 4

00
0K

, 4
50

0 
lm

85
2

   
   

   
0.

17
 

   
   

   
   

  1
,4

85
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  2

23
 

36
2

   
   

 0
.0

7 
   

   
   

   
   

62
9 

 $
   

   
   

   
 9

4 
0.

1
85

6
$1

28
 $

   
   

   
 2

7 

10
6

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

M
-L

oc
ke

r R
oo

m
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  U
12

 - 
2 

la
m

p 
40

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x2

 T
ro

ffe
r 

R
et

ro
fit

 K
it,

 2
2W

, 4
00

0K
, 2

75
0 

lm
86

2
   

   
   

0.
17

 
   

   
   

   
  1

,5
03

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  2
25

 
22

2
   

   
 0

.0
4 

   
   

   
   

   
38

4 
 $

   
   

   
   

 5
8 

0.
1

11
18

$1
68

 $
   

   
   

 3
5 

10
7

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

R
es

tro
om

24
7

30
%

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
4'

 
tu

be
59

1
   

   
   

0.
06

 
   

   
   

   
   

  5
15

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 7

7 
21

1
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
12

8 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
9 

0.
0

38
7

$5
8

 $
   

   
   

 1
2 

10
8

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

R
es

tro
om

24
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  A

-la
m

p 
- 6

0W
w

/E
IK

O
 L

ED
 D

ow
nl

ig
ht

 K
it,

 6
", 

D
im

, 1
2W

60
1

   
   

   
0.

06
 

   
   

   
   

   
  5

24
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 7
9 

12
1

   
   

 0
.0

1 
   

   
   

   
   

10
5 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

6 
0.

0
41

9
$6

3
 $

   
   

   
 1

3 

10
9

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

W
-L

oc
ke

r R
oo

m
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 3
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
36

W
, 4

00
0K

, 4
50

0 
lm

85
2

   
   

   
0.

17
 

   
   

   
   

  1
,4

85
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  2

23
 

36
2

   
   

 0
.0

7 
   

   
   

   
   

62
9 

 $
   

   
   

   
 9

4 
0.

1
85

6
$1

28
 $

   
   

   
 2

7 

65



Pa
ge

 1
6 

of
 3

0
Pr

oj
ec

t -
- B

oo
k1

Ea
rth

 S
av

er
s 

Li
ne

Ac
tio

n
A/

C

#
B

ui
ld

in
g

Lo
ca

tio
n

Hr
s

D
ay

s
Ne

w
 

C
on

trl
 

Sa
ve

 (%
)

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

W
at

t/F
ix

t.
Fi

xt
. 

Q
ua

n
To

ta
l k

W
 A

nn
. k

W
h 

An
n.

 E
le

ct
. 

Ex
p.

W
at

t/F
ix

t.
Fi

xt
. 

Q
ua

n
To

ta
l k

W
An

n.
 k

W
h

An
n.

 E
le

ct
. 

Ex
p.

To
ta

l 
kW

An
n.

 k
W

h
An

n.
 E

le
ct

. 
Ex

p.

An
nu

al
 

A/
C

 
Sa

vi
ng

s

En
er

gy
 S

av
in

gs
 A

na
ly

si
s

Lo
ca

tio
n

O
pe

ra
tio

n
Ex

is
tin

g
Ne

w
Li

gh
tin

g 
En

er
gy

 S
av

in
gs

11
0

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

W
-L

oc
ke

r R
oo

m
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  U
12

 - 
2 

la
m

p 
40

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x2

 T
ro

ffe
r 

R
et

ro
fit

 K
it,

 2
2W

, 4
00

0K
, 2

75
0 

lm
86

2
   

   
   

0.
17

 
   

   
   

   
  1

,5
03

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  2
25

 
22

2
   

   
 0

.0
4 

   
   

   
   

   
38

4 
 $

   
   

   
   

 5
8 

0.
1

11
18

$1
68

 $
   

   
   

 3
5 

11
1

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

R
es

tro
om

24
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
4'

 
tu

be
59

1
   

   
   

0.
06

 
   

   
   

   
   

  5
15

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 7

7 
21

1
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
18

3 
 $

   
   

   
   

 2
8 

0.
0

33
2

$5
0

 $
   

   
   

 1
0 

11
2

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

R
es

tro
om

24
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  A

-la
m

p 
- 6

0W
w

/E
IK

O
 L

ED
 D

ow
nl

ig
ht

 K
it,

 6
", 

D
im

, 1
2W

60
1

   
   

   
0.

06
 

   
   

   
   

   
  5

24
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 7
9 

12
1

   
   

 0
.0

1 
   

   
   

   
   

10
5 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

6 
0.

0
41

9
$6

3
 $

   
   

   
 1

3 

11
3

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Br
ea

k 
R

oo
m

24
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 3

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

36
W

, 4
00

0K
, 4

50
0 

lm
85

2
   

   
   

0.
17

 
   

   
   

   
  1

,4
85

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  2
23

 
36

2
   

   
 0

.0
7 

   
   

   
   

   
62

9 
 $

   
   

   
   

 9
4 

0.
1

85
6

$1
28

 $
   

   
   

 2
7 

11
4

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

H
al

l
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
23

W
, 4

00
0K

, 3
00

0 
lm

59
3

   
   

   
0.

18
 

   
   

   
   

  1
,5

46
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  2

32
 

23
3

   
   

 0
.0

7 
   

   
   

   
   

60
3 

 $
   

   
   

   
 9

0 
0.

1
94

3
$1

42
 $

   
   

   
 2

9 

11
5

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

O
ffi

ce
8

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 3
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
36

W
, 4

00
0K

, 4
50

0 
lm

85
1

   
   

   
0.

09
 

   
   

   
   

   
  2

48
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 3
7 

36
1

   
   

 0
.0

4 
   

   
   

   
   

10
5 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

6 
0.

0
14

3
$2

1
 $

   
   

   
   

4 

11
6

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

O
ffi

ce
8

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 3
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
36

W
, 4

00
0K

, 4
50

0 
lm

85
2

   
   

   
0.

17
 

   
   

   
   

   
  4

95
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 7
4 

36
2

   
   

 0
.0

7 
   

   
   

   
   

21
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
 3

1 
0.

1
28

5
$4

3
 $

   
   

   
   

9 

11
7

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

O
ffi

ce
8

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 1
 la

m
p 

17
W

w
/1

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

2'
 

tu
be

17
1

   
   

   
0.

02
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 5
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
7 

9
1

   
   

 0
.0

1 
   

   
   

   
   

  2
6 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

4 
0.

0
23

$3
 $

   
   

   
   

1 

11
8

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
ss

 D
oo

r
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

11
9

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

O
R

 #
1

16
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 1
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

23
W

, 4
00

0K
, 3

00
0 

lm
59

12
   

   
   

0.
71

 
   

   
   

   
  4

,1
23

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  6
19

 
23

12
   

   
 0

.2
8 

   
   

   
   

1,
60

7 
 $

   
   

   
  2

41
 

0.
4

25
16

$3
77

 $
   

   
   

 7
8 

12
0

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Su
b 

St
at

io
n

12
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 3

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

36
W

, 4
00

0K
, 4

50
0 

lm
85

2
   

   
   

0.
17

 
   

   
   

   
   

  7
43

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  1
11

 
36

2
   

   
 0

.0
7 

   
   

   
   

   
31

4 
 $

   
   

   
   

 4
7 

0.
1

42
8

$6
4

 $
   

   
   

 1
3 

12
1

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

O
R

 #
2

16
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 1
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

23
W

, 4
00

0K
, 3

00
0 

lm
59

11
   

   
   

0.
65

 
   

   
   

   
  3

,7
80

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  5
67

 
23

11
   

   
 0

.2
5 

   
   

   
   

1,
47

3 
 $

   
   

   
  2

21
 

0.
4

23
06

$3
46

 $
   

   
   

 7
2 

12
2

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
th

ol
og

y
16

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 4
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
36

W
, 4

00
0K

, 4
50

0 
lm

11
4

1
   

   
   

0.
11

 
   

   
   

   
   

  6
64

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  1
00

 
36

1
   

   
 0

.0
4 

   
   

   
   

   
21

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

 3
1 

0.
1

45
4

$6
8

 $
   

   
   

 1
4 

12
3

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Su
pp

ly
 R

oo
m

8
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

23
W

, 4
00

0K
, 3

00
0 

lm
59

2
   

   
   

0.
12

 
   

   
   

   
   

  3
44

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 5

2 
23

2
   

   
 0

.0
5 

   
   

   
   

   
13

4 
 $

   
   

   
   

 2
0 

0.
1

21
0

$3
1

 $
   

   
   

   
7 

12
4

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Su
pp

lie
s

8
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 3

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

36
W

, 4
00

0K
, 4

50
0 

lm
85

1
   

   
   

0.
09

 
   

   
   

   
   

  2
48

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 3

7 
36

1
   

   
 0

.0
4 

   
   

   
   

   
10

5 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
6 

0.
0

14
3

$2
1

 $
   

   
   

   
4 

12
5

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

St
or

ag
e 

R
oo

m
6

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 4
 la

m
p 

A/
B 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r 
R

et
ro

fit
 K

it,
 3

6W
, 4

00
0K

, 4
50

0 
lm

11
6

2
   

   
   

0.
23

 
   

   
   

   
   

  5
07

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 7

6 
36

2
   

   
 0

.0
7 

   
   

   
   

   
15

7 
 $

   
   

   
   

 2
4 

0.
2

34
9

$5
2

 $
   

   
   

 1
1 

12
6

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

St
er

ile
 S

to
ra

ge
8

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 3
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
36

W
, 4

00
0K

, 4
50

0 
lm

85
3

   
   

   
0.

26
 

   
   

   
   

   
  7

43
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  1

11
 

36
3

   
   

 0
.1

1 
   

   
   

   
   

31
4 

 $
   

   
   

   
 4

7 
0.

1
42

8
$6

4
 $

   
   

   
 1

3 

12
7

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

C
en

tra
l S

te
ril

e
16

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

 T
8 

- 3
 la

m
p 

FB
31

w
/L

ED
 2

x2
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
22

W
, 4

00
0K

, 2
75

0 
lm

93
10

   
   

   
0.

93
 

   
   

   
   

  5
,4

16
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  8

12
 

22
10

   
   

 0
.2

2 
   

   
   

   
1,

28
1 

 $
   

   
   

  1
92

 
0.

7
41

35
$6

20
 $

   
   

  1
28

 

12
8

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

C
en

tra
l S

te
ril

e
16

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 3
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
36

W
, 4

00
0K

, 4
50

0 
lm

85
2

   
   

   
0.

17
 

   
   

   
   

   
  9

90
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  1

49
 

36
2

   
   

 0
.0

7 
   

   
   

   
   

41
9 

 $
   

   
   

   
 6

3 
0.

1
57

1
$8

6
 $

   
   

   
 1

8 

12
9

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

C
lo

se
t

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
4'

 
tu

be
59

1
   

   
   

0.
06

 
   

   
   

   
   

  1
29

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 1

9 
21

1
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
  4

6 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
7 

0.
0

83
$1

2
 $

   
   

   
   

3 

13
0

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

M
ai

n 
C

om
m

on
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
23

W
, 4

00
0K

, 3
00

0 
lm

59
15

   
   

   
0.

89
 

   
   

   
   

  7
,7

31
 

 $
   

   
   

  1
,1

60
 

23
15

   
   

 0
.3

5 
   

   
   

   
3,

01
4 

 $
   

   
   

  4
52

 
0.

5
47

17
$7

08
 $

   
   

  1
46

 

13
1

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

O
ut

 S
ur

ge
ry

   
   

   
   

-  
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
  -

   

13
2

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

D
ec

on
ta

m
in

at
io

n
16

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 4
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
36

W
, 4

00
0K

, 4
50

0 
lm

11
4

2
   

   
   

0.
23

 
   

   
   

   
  1

,3
28

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  1
99

 
36

2
   

   
 0

.0
7 

   
   

   
   

   
41

9 
 $

   
   

   
   

 6
3 

0.
2

90
9

$1
36

 $
   

   
   

 2
8 

13
3

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

St
or

ag
e 

R
oo

m
6

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 3
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
36

W
, 4

00
0K

, 4
50

0 
lm

85
1

   
   

   
0.

09
 

   
   

   
   

   
  1

86
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 2
8 

36
1

   
   

 0
.0

4 
   

   
   

   
   

  7
9 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

2 
0.

0
10

7
$1

6
 $

   
   

   
   

3 

13
4

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
ss

 D
oo

r
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

13
5

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

El
ev

at
or

 
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

 2
2W

 &
 3

2W
 C

irc
lin

ew
/F

M
AG

E1
2 

-1
20

-1
6W

-
8C

C
T5

-1
20

D
T-

SL
54

1
   

   
   

0.
05

 
   

   
   

   
   

  4
72

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 7

1 
16

1
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
14

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

 2
1 

0.
0

33
2

$5
0

 $
   

   
   

 1
0 

13
6

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
ss

 D
oo

r
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

13
7

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Lo
bb

y
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
23

W
, 4

00
0K

, 3
00

0 
lm

59
1

   
   

   
0.

06
 

   
   

   
   

   
  5

15
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 7
7 

23
1

   
   

 0
.0

2 
   

   
   

   
   

20
1 

 $
   

   
   

   
 3

0 
0.

0
31

4
$4

7
 $

   
   

   
 1

0 

13
8

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

M
ai

n 
H

al
lw

ay
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
23

W
, 4

00
0K

, 3
00

0 
lm

59
10

   
   

   
0.

59
 

   
   

   
   

  5
,1

54
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  7

73
 

23
10

   
   

 0
.2

3 
   

   
   

   
2,

00
9 

 $
   

   
   

  3
01

 
0.

4
31

45
$4

72
 $

   
   

   
 9

8 

13
9

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

O
ut

 D
ou

bl
e 

D
oo

r
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

14
0

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

D
ie

tit
ia

n
16

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 4
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
36

W
, 4

00
0K

, 4
50

0 
lm

11
4

1
   

   
   

0.
11

 
   

   
   

   
   

  6
64

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  1
00

 
36

1
   

   
 0

.0
4 

   
   

   
   

   
21

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

 3
1 

0.
1

45
4

$6
8

 $
   

   
   

 1
4 

14
1

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

M
ai

n 
H

al
lw

ay
24

7
N

o 
Ac

tio
n 

-- 
LE

D
 F

ix
tu

re
w

/N
o 

W
or

k
4

   
   

   
   

-  
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
  -

   

14
2

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

M
ai

n 
H

al
lw

ay
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  C
FL

 P
lu

g-
in

 - 
2 

la
m

p 
26

W
w

/E
IK

O
 L

ED
 

D
ow

nl
ig

ht
 K

it 
8"

, D
im

, (
12

-1
6-

22
W

), 
12

0-
27

7V
52

10
   

   
   

0.
52

 
   

   
   

   
  4

,5
43

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  6
81

 
12

10
   

   
 0

.1
2 

   
   

   
   

1,
04

8 
 $

   
   

   
  1

57
 

0.
4

34
94

$5
24

 $
   

   
  1

08
 

14
3

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

O
ut

 D
ou

bl
e 

D
oo

r
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

14
4

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

D
in

ni
ng

24
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  C

FL
 P

lu
g-

in
 - 

2 
la

m
p 

26
W

w
/E

IK
O

 L
ED

 
D

ow
nl

ig
ht

 K
it 

8"
, D

im
, (

12
-1

6-
22

W
), 

12
0-

27
7V

52
20

   
   

   
1.

04
 

   
   

   
   

  9
,0

85
 

 $
   

   
   

  1
,3

63
 

12
20

   
   

 0
.2

4 
   

   
   

   
2,

09
7 

 $
   

   
   

  3
14

 
0.

8
69

89
$1

,0
48

 $
   

   
  2

17
 

14
5

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

D
in

ni
ng

24
7

N
o 

Ac
tio

n 
-- 

LE
D

 F
ix

tu
re

w
/N

o 
W

or
k

6
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

14
6

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Se
rv

in
g 

Ar
ea

12
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 4

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

36
W

, 4
00

0K
, 4

50
0 

lm
11

4
3

   
   

   
0.

34
 

   
   

   
   

  1
,4

94
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  2

24
 

36
3

   
   

 0
.1

1 
   

   
   

   
   

47
2 

 $
   

   
   

   
 7

1 
0.

2
10

22
$1

53
 $

   
   

   
 3

2 

14
7

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Se
rv

in
g 

Ar
ea

12
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  A

-la
m

p 
- 6

0W
w

/E
IK

O
 L

ED
 D

ow
nl

ig
ht

 K
it,

 6
", 

D
im

, 1
2W

60
5

   
   

   
0.

30
 

   
   

   
   

  1
,3

10
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  1

97
 

12
5

   
   

 0
.0

6 
   

   
   

   
   

26
2 

 $
   

   
   

   
 3

9 
0.

2
10

48
$1

57
 $

   
   

   
 3

3 

66



Pa
ge

 1
7 

of
 3

0
Pr

oj
ec

t -
- B

oo
k1

Ea
rth

 S
av

er
s 

Li
ne

Ac
tio

n
A/

C

#
B

ui
ld

in
g

Lo
ca

tio
n

Hr
s

D
ay

s
Ne

w
 

C
on

trl
 

Sa
ve

 (%
)

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

W
at

t/F
ix

t.
Fi

xt
. 

Q
ua

n
To

ta
l k

W
 A

nn
. k

W
h 

An
n.

 E
le

ct
. 

Ex
p.

W
at

t/F
ix

t.
Fi

xt
. 

Q
ua

n
To

ta
l k

W
An

n.
 k

W
h

An
n.

 E
le

ct
. 

Ex
p.

To
ta

l 
kW

An
n.

 k
W

h
An

n.
 E

le
ct

. 
Ex

p.

An
nu

al
 

A/
C

 
Sa

vi
ng

s

En
er

gy
 S

av
in

gs
 A

na
ly

si
s

Lo
ca

tio
n

O
pe

ra
tio

n
Ex

is
tin

g
Ne

w
Li

gh
tin

g 
En

er
gy

 S
av

in
gs

14
8

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Ki
tc

he
n 

Ar
ea

   
   

   
   

-  
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
  -

   

14
9

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

C
oo

le
r

8
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

12
 - 

1 
la

m
p 

6'
 F

72
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
3'

 tu
be

72
2

   
   

   
0.

14
 

   
   

   
   

   
  4

19
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 6
3 

24
2

   
   

 0
.0

5 
   

   
   

   
   

14
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
 2

1 
0.

1
28

0
$4

2
 $

   
   

   
   

9 

15
0

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

C
oo

le
r

8
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  C

FL
 S

cr
ew

-in
 - 

20
W

w
/E

IK
O

 L
ED

 A
19

, E
26

, 
8W

20
2

   
   

   
0.

04
 

   
   

   
   

   
  1

16
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 1
7 

8
2

   
   

 0
.0

2 
   

   
   

   
   

  4
7 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

7 
0.

0
70

$1
0

 $
   

   
   

   
2 

15
1

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Fr
ee

ze
r

12
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  C

FL
 S

cr
ew

-in
 - 

20
W

w
/E

IK
O

 L
ED

 A
19

, E
26

, 
8W

20
2

   
   

   
0.

04
 

   
   

   
   

   
  1

75
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 2
6 

8
2

   
   

 0
.0

2 
   

   
   

   
   

  7
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

0 
0.

0
10

5
$1

6
 $

   
   

   
   

3 

15
2

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
ss

 D
oo

r
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

15
3

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
ss

 D
oo

r
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

15
4

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Br
ea

k 
R

oo
m

24
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

23
W

, 4
00

0K
, 3

00
0 

lm
59

1
   

   
   

0.
06

 
   

   
   

   
   

  5
15

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 7

7 
23

1
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
20

1 
 $

   
   

   
   

 3
0 

0.
0

31
4

$4
7

 $
   

   
   

 1
0 

15
5

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

R
es

tro
om

24
7

30
%

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
4'

 
tu

be
59

1
   

   
   

0.
06

 
   

   
   

   
   

  5
15

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 7

7 
21

1
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
12

8 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
9 

0.
0

38
7

$5
8

 $
   

   
   

 1
2 

15
6

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Ja
ni

to
rs

 R
oo

m
6

7
30

%
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  C
FL

 P
lu

g-
in

 - 
2 

la
m

p 
13

W
w

/E
IK

O
 L

ED
 A

19
, 

E2
6,

 8
W

26
1

   
   

   
0.

03
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 5
7 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
9 

8
1

   
   

 0
.0

1 
   

   
   

   
   

  1
2 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

2 
0.

0
45

$7
 $

   
   

   
   

1 

15
7

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

St
or

ag
e 

R
oo

m
6

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
23

W
, 4

00
0K

, 3
00

0 
lm

59
2

   
   

   
0.

12
 

   
   

   
   

   
  2

58
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 3
9 

23
2

   
   

 0
.0

5 
   

   
   

   
   

10
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

5 
0.

1
15

7
$2

4
 $

   
   

   
   

5 

15
8

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

St
or

ag
e 

R
oo

m
6

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
23

W
, 4

00
0K

, 3
00

0 
lm

59
1

   
   

   
0.

06
 

   
   

   
   

   
  1

29
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 1
9 

23
1

   
   

 0
.0

2 
   

   
   

   
   

  5
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

8 
0.

0
79

$1
2

 $
   

   
   

   
2 

15
9

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

O
ffi

ce
8

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 4
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
36

W
, 4

00
0K

, 4
50

0 
lm

11
4

1
   

   
   

0.
11

 
   

   
   

   
   

  3
32

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 5

0 
36

1
   

   
 0

.0
4 

   
   

   
   

   
10

5 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
6 

0.
1

22
7

$3
4

 $
   

   
   

   
7 

16
0

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Fl
oo

r
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/2

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

4'
 

tu
be

59
3

   
   

   
0.

18
 

   
   

   
   

  1
,5

46
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  2

32
 

21
3

   
   

 0
.0

6 
   

   
   

   
   

55
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
 8

3 
0.

1
99

6
$1

49
 $

   
   

   
 3

1 

16
1

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Fl
oo

r
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/2

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

4'
 

tu
be

59
13

   
   

   
0.

77
 

   
   

   
   

  6
,7

01
 

 $
   

   
   

  1
,0

05
 

21
13

   
   

 0
.2

7 
   

   
   

   
2,

38
5 

 $
   

   
   

  3
58

 
0.

5
43

16
$6

47
 $

   
   

  1
34

 

16
2

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Fl
oo

r
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  A
-la

m
p 

- 6
0W

w
/E

IK
O

 L
ED

 A
19

, E
26

, 8
W

60
4

   
   

   
0.

24
 

   
   

   
   

  2
,0

97
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  3

14
 

8
4

   
   

 0
.0

3 
   

   
   

   
   

28
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
 4

2 
0.

2
18

17
$2

73
 $

   
   

   
 5

6 
16

3
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
O

ut
 K

itc
he

n
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

16
4

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

O
ut

 D
in

ni
ng

   
   

   
   

-  
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
  -

   

16
5

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

W
or

k 
R

oo
m

12
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
 T

8 
- 3

 la
m

p 
FB

31
w

/L
ED

 2
x2

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

22
W

, 4
00

0K
, 2

75
0 

lm
93

3
   

   
   

0.
28

 
   

   
   

   
  1

,2
19

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  1
83

 
22

3
   

   
 0

.0
7 

   
   

   
   

   
28

8 
 $

   
   

   
   

 4
3 

0.
2

93
0

$1
40

 $
   

   
   

 2
9 

16
6

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

O
ffi

ce
8

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 3
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
36

W
, 4

00
0K

, 4
50

0 
lm

85
2

   
   

   
0.

17
 

   
   

   
   

   
  4

95
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 7
4 

36
2

   
   

 0
.0

7 
   

   
   

   
   

21
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
 3

1 
0.

1
28

5
$4

3
 $

   
   

   
   

9 

16
7

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

R
eg

is
tra

tio
n 

Ar
ea

 
/ R

ec
ep

tio
n

24
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
 T

8 
- 3

 la
m

p 
FB

31
w

/L
ED

 2
x2

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

22
W

, 4
00

0K
, 2

75
0 

lm
93

3
   

   
   

0.
28

 
   

   
   

   
  2

,4
37

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  3
66

 
22

3
   

   
 0

.0
7 

   
   

   
   

   
57

7 
 $

   
   

   
   

 8
6 

0.
2

18
61

$2
79

 $
   

   
   

 5
8 

16
8

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

R
eg

is
tra

tio
n 

Ar
ea

 
/ R

ec
ep

tio
n

24
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  C

FL
 P

lu
g-

in
 - 

2 
la

m
p 

26
W

w
/E

IK
O

 L
ED

 
D

ow
nl

ig
ht

 K
it 

8"
, D

im
, (

12
-1

6-
22

W
), 

12
0-

27
7V

52
3

   
   

   
0.

16
 

   
   

   
   

  1
,3

63
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  2

04
 

12
3

   
   

 0
.0

4 
   

   
   

   
   

31
4 

 $
   

   
   

   
 4

7 
0.

1
10

48
$1

57
 $

   
   

   
 3

3 

16
9

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

M
ai

n 
Lo

bb
y 

/ 
C

om
m

on
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  C
FL

 P
lu

g-
in

 - 
2 

la
m

p 
26

W
w

/E
IK

O
 L

ED
 

D
ow

nl
ig

ht
 K

it 
8"

, D
im

, (
12

-1
6-

22
W

), 
12

0-
27

7V
52

23
   

   
   

1.
20

 
   

   
   

   
10

,4
48

 
 $

   
   

   
  1

,5
67

 
12

23
   

   
 0

.2
8 

   
   

   
   

2,
41

1 
 $

   
   

   
  3

62
 

0.
9

80
37

$1
,2

06
 $

   
   

  2
49

 

17
0

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

M
ai

n 
Lo

bb
y 

/ 
C

om
m

on
24

7
N

o 
Ac

tio
n 

-- 
LE

D
 F

ix
tu

re
w

/N
o 

W
or

k
12

   
   

   
   

-  
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
  -

   

17
1

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

O
ve

r t
o 

Em
er

ga
cy

 
R

oo
m

   
   

   
   

-  
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
  -

   

17
2

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

En
try

24
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  C

FL
 P

lu
g-

in
 - 

2 
la

m
p 

26
W

w
/E

IK
O

 L
ED

 
D

ow
nl

ig
ht

 K
it 

8"
, D

im
, (

12
-1

6-
22

W
), 

12
0-

27
7V

52
4

   
   

   
0.

21
 

   
   

   
   

  1
,8

17
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  2

73
 

12
4

   
   

 0
.0

5 
   

   
   

   
   

41
9 

 $
   

   
   

   
 6

3 
0.

2
13

98
$2

10
 $

   
   

   
 4

3 

17
3

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Lo
bb

y
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
23

W
, 4

00
0K

, 3
00

0 
lm

59
8

   
   

   
0.

47
 

   
   

   
   

  4
,1

23
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  6

19
 

23
8

   
   

 0
.1

8 
   

   
   

   
1,

60
7 

 $
   

   
   

  2
41

 
0.

3
25

16
$3

77
 $

   
   

   
 7

8 

17
4

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

R
es

tro
om

24
7

30
%

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
4'

 
tu

be
59

1
   

   
   

0.
06

 
   

   
   

   
   

  5
15

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 7

7 
21

1
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
12

8 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
9 

0.
0

38
7

$5
8

 $
   

   
   

 1
2 

17
5

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Lo
bb

y
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  U
12

 - 
2 

la
m

p 
40

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x2

 T
ro

ffe
r 

R
et

ro
fit

 K
it,

 2
2W

, 4
00

0K
, 2

75
0 

lm
86

1
   

   
   

0.
09

 
   

   
   

   
   

  7
51

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  1
13

 
22

1
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
19

2 
 $

   
   

   
   

 2
9 

0.
1

55
9

$8
4

 $
   

   
   

 1
7 

17
6

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Tr
ia

ge
 

24
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 4

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

36
W

, 4
00

0K
, 4

50
0 

lm
11

4
1

   
   

   
0.

11
 

   
   

   
   

   
  9

96
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  1

49
 

36
1

   
   

 0
.0

4 
   

   
   

   
   

31
4 

 $
   

   
   

   
 4

7 
0.

1
68

1
$1

02
 $

   
   

   
 2

1 

17
7

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

In
to

 E
R

   
   

   
   

-  
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
  -

   

17
8

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 1
6

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 4
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
36

W
, 4

00
0K

, 4
50

0 
lm

11
4

1
   

   
   

0.
11

 
   

   
   

   
   

  2
49

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 3

7 
36

1
   

   
 0

.0
4 

   
   

   
   

   
  7

9 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
2 

0.
1

17
0

$2
6

 $
   

   
   

   
5 

17
9

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
6

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 4
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
36

W
, 4

00
0K

, 4
50

0 
lm

11
4

1
   

   
   

0.
11

 
   

   
   

   
   

  2
49

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 3

7 
36

1
   

   
 0

.0
4 

   
   

   
   

   
  7

9 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
2 

0.
1

17
0

$2
6

 $
   

   
   

   
5 

18
0

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 3
6

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 4
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
36

W
, 4

00
0K

, 4
50

0 
lm

11
4

1
   

   
   

0.
11

 
   

   
   

   
   

  2
49

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 3

7 
36

1
   

   
 0

.0
4 

   
   

   
   

   
  7

9 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
2 

0.
1

17
0

$2
6

 $
   

   
   

   
5 

18
1

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 4
6

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

17
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x2
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
22

W
, 4

00
0K

, 2
75

0 
lm

31
4

   
   

   
0.

12
 

   
   

   
   

   
  2

71
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 4
1 

22
4

   
   

 0
.0

9 
   

   
   

   
   

19
2 

 $
   

   
   

   
 2

9 
0.

0
79

$1
2

 $
   

   
   

   
2 

18
2

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 5
6

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

17
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x2
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
22

W
, 4

00
0K

, 2
75

0 
lm

31
4

   
   

   
0.

12
 

   
   

   
   

   
  2

71
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 4
1 

22
4

   
   

 0
.0

9 
   

   
   

   
   

19
2 

 $
   

   
   

   
 2

9 
0.

0
79

$1
2

 $
   

   
   

   
2 

18
3

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

R
es

tro
om

24
7

30
%

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
4'

 
tu

be
59

1
   

   
   

0.
06

 
   

   
   

   
   

  5
15

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 7

7 
21

1
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
12

8 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
9 

0.
0

38
7

$5
8

 $
   

   
   

 1
2 

18
4

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

R
es

tro
om

24
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  A

-la
m

p 
- 6

0W
w

/E
IK

O
 L

ED
 D

ow
nl

ig
ht

 K
it,

 6
", 

D
im

, 1
2W

60
1

   
   

   
0.

06
 

   
   

   
   

   
  5

24
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 7
9 

12
1

   
   

 0
.0

1 
   

   
   

   
   

10
5 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

6 
0.

0
41

9
$6

3
 $

   
   

   
 1

3 

67



Pa
ge

 1
8 

of
 3

0
Pr

oj
ec

t -
- B

oo
k1

Ea
rth

 S
av

er
s 

Li
ne

Ac
tio

n
A/

C

#
B

ui
ld

in
g

Lo
ca

tio
n

Hr
s

D
ay

s
Ne

w
 

C
on

trl
 

Sa
ve

 (%
)

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

W
at

t/F
ix

t.
Fi

xt
. 

Q
ua

n
To

ta
l k

W
 A

nn
. k

W
h 

An
n.

 E
le

ct
. 

Ex
p.

W
at

t/F
ix

t.
Fi

xt
. 

Q
ua

n
To

ta
l k

W
An

n.
 k

W
h

An
n.

 E
le

ct
. 

Ex
p.

To
ta

l 
kW

An
n.

 k
W

h
An

n.
 E

le
ct

. 
Ex

p.

An
nu

al
 

A/
C

 
Sa

vi
ng

s

En
er

gy
 S

av
in

gs
 A

na
ly

si
s

Lo
ca

tio
n

O
pe

ra
tio

n
Ex

is
tin

g
Ne

w
Li

gh
tin

g 
En

er
gy

 S
av

in
gs

18
5

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Ex
it 

En
try

24
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  C

FL
 P

lu
g-

in
 - 

2 
la

m
p 

26
W

w
/E

IK
O

 L
ED

 
D

ow
nl

ig
ht

 K
it 

6"
, D

im
, (

8-
12

-1
6W

), 
12

0-
27

7V
52

4
   

   
   

0.
21

 
   

   
   

   
  1

,8
17

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  2
73

 
8

4
   

   
 0

.0
3 

   
   

   
   

   
28

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

 4
2 

0.
2

15
38

$2
31

 $
   

   
   

 4
8 

18
6

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

C
lo

se
t

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  C

FL
 P

lu
g-

in
 - 

2 
la

m
p 

13
W

w
/E

IK
O

 L
ED

 A
19

, 
E2

6,
 8

W
26

1
   

   
   

0.
03

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 5

7 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

9 
8

1
   

   
 0

.0
1 

   
   

   
   

   
  1

7 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
3 

0.
0

39
$6

 $
   

   
   

   
1 

18
7

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 6
&7

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 1
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

23
W

, 4
00

0K
, 3

00
0 

lm
59

4
   

   
   

0.
24

 
   

   
   

   
   

  5
15

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 7

7 
23

4
   

   
 0

.0
9 

   
   

   
   

   
20

1 
 $

   
   

   
   

 3
0 

0.
1

31
4

$4
7

 $
   

   
   

 1
0 

18
8

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 6
&7

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
17

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x2

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

22
W

, 4
00

0K
, 2

75
0 

lm
31

4
   

   
   

0.
12

 
   

   
   

   
   

  2
71

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 4

1 
22

4
   

   
 0

.0
9 

   
   

   
   

   
19

2 
 $

   
   

   
   

 2
9 

0.
0

79
$1

2
 $

   
   

   
   

2 

18
9

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 8
6

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 1

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
23

W
, 4

00
0K

, 3
00

0 
lm

59
1

   
   

   
0.

06
 

   
   

   
   

   
  1

29
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 1
9 

23
1

   
   

 0
.0

2 
   

   
   

   
   

  5
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

8 
0.

0
79

$1
2

 $
   

   
   

   
2 

19
0

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

W
or

k 
R

oo
m

12
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
17

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x2

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

22
W

, 4
00

0K
, 2

75
0 

lm
31

1
   

   
   

0.
03

 
   

   
   

   
   

  1
35

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 2

0 
22

1
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
  9

6 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

0.
0

39
$6

 $
   

   
   

   
1 

19
1

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Br
ea

k 
R

oo
m

24
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 3

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

36
W

, 4
00

0K
, 4

50
0 

lm
85

2
   

   
   

0.
17

 
   

   
   

   
  1

,4
85

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  2
23

 
36

2
   

   
 0

.0
7 

   
   

   
   

   
62

9 
 $

   
   

   
   

 9
4 

0.
1

85
6

$1
28

 $
   

   
   

 2
7 

19
2

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Br
ea

k 
R

oo
m

24
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  C

FL
 P

lu
g-

in
 - 

2 
la

m
p 

26
W

w
/E

IK
O

 L
ED

 
D

ow
nl

ig
ht

 K
it 

8"
, D

im
, (

12
-1

6-
22

W
), 

12
0-

27
7V

52
1

   
   

   
0.

05
 

   
   

   
   

   
  4

54
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 6
8 

12
1

   
   

 0
.0

1 
   

   
   

   
   

10
5 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

6 
0.

0
34

9
$5

2
 $

   
   

   
 1

1 

19
3

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

R
es

tro
om

24
7

30
%

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  A

-la
m

p 
- 6

0W
w

/E
IK

O
 L

ED
 D

ow
nl

ig
ht

 K
it,

 6
", 

D
im

, 1
2W

60
1

   
   

   
0.

06
 

   
   

   
   

   
  5

24
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 7
9 

12
1

   
   

 0
.0

1 
   

   
   

   
   

  7
3 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

1 
0.

0
45

1
$6

8
 $

   
   

   
 1

4 

19
4

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

R
es

tro
om

24
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
17

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
2'

 
tu

be
31

1
   

   
   

0.
03

 
   

   
   

   
   

  2
71

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 4

1 
18

1
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
15

7 
 $

   
   

   
   

 2
4 

0.
0

11
4

$1
7

 $
   

   
   

   
4 

19
5

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

St
or

ag
e 

R
oo

m
6

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
23

W
, 4

00
0K

, 3
00

0 
lm

59
1

   
   

   
0.

06
 

   
   

   
   

   
  1

29
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 1
9 

23
1

   
   

 0
.0

2 
   

   
   

   
   

  5
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

8 
0.

0
79

$1
2

 $
   

   
   

   
2 

19
6

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Sl
ee

p 
R

oo
m

12
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

23
W

, 4
00

0K
, 3

00
0 

lm
59

1
   

   
   

0.
06

 
   

   
   

   
   

  2
58

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 3

9 
23

1
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
10

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
5 

0.
0

15
7

$2
4

 $
   

   
   

   
5 

19
7

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
ss

 D
ou

bl
e 

D
oo

r
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

19
8

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

So
ile

d 
U

til
ity

 
R

oo
m

8
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 4

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

36
W

, 4
00

0K
, 4

50
0 

lm
11

4
2

   
   

   
0.

23
 

   
   

   
   

   
  6

64
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  1

00
 

36
2

   
   

 0
.0

7 
   

   
   

   
   

21
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
 3

1 
0.

2
45

4
$6

8
 $

   
   

   
 1

4 

19
9

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

R
ec

ep
tio

n
12

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 3
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
36

W
, 4

00
0K

, 4
50

0 
lm

85
2

   
   

   
0.

17
 

   
   

   
   

   
  7

43
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  1

11
 

36
2

   
   

 0
.0

7 
   

   
   

   
   

31
4 

 $
   

   
   

   
 4

7 
0.

1
42

8
$6

4
 $

   
   

   
 1

3 

20
0

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

R
ec

ep
tio

n
12

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  C
FL

 P
lu

g-
in

 - 
2 

la
m

p 
26

W
w

/E
IK

O
 L

ED
 

D
ow

nl
ig

ht
 K

it 
8"

, D
im

, (
12

-1
6-

22
W

), 
12

0-
27

7V
52

2
   

   
   

0.
10

 
   

   
   

   
   

  4
54

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 6

8 
12

2
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
10

5 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
6 

0.
1

34
9

$5
2

 $
   

   
   

 1
1 

20
1

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

M
ai

n 
Fl

oo
r

24
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  C

FL
 P

lu
g-

in
 - 

2 
la

m
p 

26
W

w
/E

IK
O

 L
ED

 
D

ow
nl

ig
ht

 K
it 

8"
, D

im
, (

12
-1

6-
22

W
), 

12
0-

27
7V

52
5

   
   

   
0.

26
 

   
   

   
   

  2
,2

71
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  3

41
 

12
5

   
   

 0
.0

6 
   

   
   

   
   

52
4 

 $
   

   
   

   
 7

9 
0.

2
17

47
$2

62
 $

   
   

   
 5

4 

20
2

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

M
ai

n 
Fl

oo
r

24
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 3

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

36
W

, 4
00

0K
, 4

50
0 

lm
85

12
   

   
   

1.
02

 
   

   
   

   
  8

,9
11

 
 $

   
   

   
  1

,3
37

 
36

12
   

   
 0

.4
3 

   
   

   
   

3,
77

4 
 $

   
   

   
  5

66
 

0.
6

51
37

$7
71

 $
   

   
  1

59
 

20
3

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

O
ut

 E
R

   
   

   
   

-  
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
  -

   

20
4

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Th
ro

ug
h 

Pa
ss

ed
 

D
oo

r I
n 

Lo
bb

y
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

20
5

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
ss

 D
oo

r
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

20
6

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
ss

 D
ou

bl
e 

D
oo

r
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

20
7

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
ss

 D
oo

r
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

20
8

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
ss

 D
oo

r
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

20
9

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
ss

 D
oo

r
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

21
0

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
ss

 D
oo

r
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

21
1

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

ER
 M

an
ag

er
 

O
ffi

ce
8

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 3
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
36

W
, 4

00
0K

, 4
50

0 
lm

85
1

   
   

   
0.

09
 

   
   

   
   

   
  2

48
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 3
7 

36
1

   
   

 0
.0

4 
   

   
   

   
   

10
5 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

6 
0.

0
14

3
$2

1
 $

   
   

   
   

4 

21
2

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
ss

 D
oo

r
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

21
3

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

M
ec

ha
ni

ca
l R

oo
m

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  C

FL
 P

lu
g-

in
 - 

2 
la

m
p 

13
W

w
/E

IK
O

 L
ED

 A
19

, 
E2

6,
 8

W
26

1
   

   
   

0.
03

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 5

7 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

9 
8

1
   

   
 0

.0
1 

   
   

   
   

   
  1

7 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
3 

0.
0

39
$6

 $
   

   
   

   
1 

21
4

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
ss

 D
ou

bl
e 

D
oo

r
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

21
5

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

So
ile

d 
U

til
ity

 
R

oo
m

8
7

30
%

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
4'

 
tu

be
59

2
   

   
   

0.
12

 
   

   
   

   
   

  3
44

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 5

2 
21

2
   

   
 0

.0
4 

   
   

   
   

   
  8

6 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
3 

0.
1

25
8

$3
9

 $
   

   
   

   
8 

21
6

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

El
ec

tri
ca

l R
oo

m
8

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  C
FL

 P
lu

g-
in

 - 
2 

la
m

p 
13

W
w

/E
IK

O
 L

ED
 A

19
, 

E2
6,

 8
W

26
1

   
   

   
0.

03
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 7
6 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 1
1 

8
1

   
   

 0
.0

1 
   

   
   

   
   

  2
3 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

3 
0.

0
52

$8
 $

   
   

   
   

2 

21
7

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
ss

 D
ou

bl
e 

D
oo

r
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

21
8

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Tr
as

h
8

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  C
FL

 P
lu

g-
in

 - 
2 

la
m

p 
13

W
w

/E
IK

O
 L

ED
 A

19
, 

E2
6,

 8
W

26
1

   
   

   
0.

03
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 7
6 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 1
1 

8
1

   
   

 0
.0

1 
   

   
   

   
   

  2
3 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

3 
0.

0
52

$8
 $

   
   

   
   

2 

21
9

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

En
vi

ro
m

en
ta

l 
Se

rv
ic

es
12

7
30

%
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/2

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

4'
 

tu
be

59
1

   
   

   
0.

06
 

   
   

   
   

   
  2

58
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 3
9 

21
1

   
   

 0
.0

2 
   

   
   

   
   

  6
4 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

0 
0.

0
19

4
$2

9
 $

   
   

   
   

6 

22
0

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
ss

 D
ou

bl
e 

D
oo

r
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

22
1

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

M
ai

n 
H

al
lw

ay
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
23

W
, 4

00
0K

, 3
00

0 
lm

59
12

   
   

   
0.

71
 

   
   

   
   

  6
,1

85
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  9

28
 

23
12

   
   

 0
.2

8 
   

   
   

   
2,

41
1 

 $
   

   
   

  3
62

 
0.

4
37

74
$5

66
 $

   
   

  1
17

 

22
2

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

2n
d 

Fl
oo

r
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

22
3

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

St
ar

t @
 M

ai
n 

El
ev

at
or

s
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

22
4

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

M
en

's
 R

es
tro

om
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/2

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

4'
 

tu
be

59
1

   
   

   
0.

06
 

   
   

   
   

   
  5

15
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 7
7 

21
1

   
   

 0
.0

2 
   

   
   

   
   

18
3 

 $
   

   
   

   
 2

8 
0.

0
33

2
$5

0
 $

   
   

   
 1

0 

68



Pa
ge

 1
9 

of
 3

0
Pr

oj
ec

t -
- B

oo
k1

Ea
rth

 S
av

er
s 

Li
ne

Ac
tio

n
A/

C

#
B

ui
ld

in
g

Lo
ca

tio
n

Hr
s

D
ay

s
Ne

w
 

C
on

trl
 

Sa
ve

 (%
)

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

W
at

t/F
ix

t.
Fi

xt
. 

Q
ua

n
To

ta
l k

W
 A

nn
. k

W
h 

An
n.

 E
le

ct
. 

Ex
p.

W
at

t/F
ix

t.
Fi

xt
. 

Q
ua

n
To

ta
l k

W
An

n.
 k

W
h

An
n.

 E
le

ct
. 

Ex
p.

To
ta

l 
kW

An
n.

 k
W

h
An

n.
 E

le
ct

. 
Ex

p.

An
nu

al
 

A/
C

 
Sa

vi
ng

s

En
er

gy
 S

av
in

gs
 A

na
ly

si
s

Lo
ca

tio
n

O
pe

ra
tio

n
Ex

is
tin

g
Ne

w
Li

gh
tin

g 
En

er
gy

 S
av

in
gs

22
5

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

W
om

en
's

 
R

es
tro

om
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/2

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

4'
 

tu
be

59
1

   
   

   
0.

06
 

   
   

   
   

   
  5

15
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 7
7 

21
1

   
   

 0
.0

2 
   

   
   

   
   

18
3 

 $
   

   
   

   
 2

8 
0.

0
33

2
$5

0
 $

   
   

   
 1

0 

22
6

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Th
ro

ug
h 

D
ou

bl
e 

D
oo

r
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

22
7

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Lo
un

ge
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  A
-la

m
p 

- 6
0W

w
/E

IK
O

 L
ED

 A
19

, E
26

, 8
W

60
4

   
   

   
0.

24
 

   
   

   
   

  2
,0

97
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  3

14
 

8
4

   
   

 0
.0

3 
   

   
   

   
   

28
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
 4

2 
0.

2
18

17
$2

73
 $

   
   

   
 5

6 

22
8

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Lo
un

ge
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

17
W

w
/2

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

2'
 

tu
be

31
1

   
   

   
0.

03
 

   
   

   
   

   
  2

71
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 4
1 

18
1

   
   

 0
.0

2 
   

   
   

   
   

15
7 

 $
   

   
   

   
 2

4 
0.

0
11

4
$1

7
 $

   
   

   
   

4 

22
9

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

R
es

tro
om

24
7

30
%

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
17

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
2'

 
tu

be
31

1
   

   
   

0.
03

 
   

   
   

   
   

  2
71

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 4

1 
18

1
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
11

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
7 

0.
0

16
1

$2
4

 $
   

   
   

   
5 

23
0

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

R
es

tro
om

24
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  A

-la
m

p 
- 6

0W
w

/E
IK

O
 L

ED
 A

19
, E

26
, 8

W
60

1
   

   
   

0.
06

 
   

   
   

   
   

  5
24

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 7

9 
8

1
   

   
 0

.0
1 

   
   

   
   

   
  7

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
0 

0.
1

45
4

$6
8

 $
   

   
   

 1
4 

23
1

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Ed
w

ar
d 

G
on

za
le

s
8

7
30

%
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/2

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

4'
 

tu
be

59
2

   
   

   
0.

12
 

   
   

   
   

   
  3

44
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 5
2 

21
2

   
   

 0
.0

4 
   

   
   

   
   

  8
6 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

3 
0.

1
25

8
$3

9
 $

   
   

   
   

8 

23
2

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

R
es

tro
om

24
7

30
%

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

12
 - 

2 
la

m
p 

20
W

w
/2

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

2'
 

tu
be

50
1

   
   

   
0.

05
 

   
   

   
   

   
  4

37
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 6
6 

18
1

   
   

 0
.0

2 
   

   
   

   
   

11
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

7 
0.

0
32

7
$4

9
 $

   
   

   
 1

0 

23
3

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

U
ltr

as
ou

nd
12

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
23

W
, 4

00
0K

, 3
00

0 
lm

59
3

   
   

   
0.

18
 

   
   

   
   

   
  7

73
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  1

16
 

23
3

   
   

 0
.0

7 
   

   
   

   
   

30
1 

 $
   

   
   

   
 4

5 
0.

1
47

2
$7

1
 $

   
   

   
 1

5 

23
4

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

U
ltr

as
ou

nd
12

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 4
 la

m
p 

17
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x2
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
22

W
, 4

00
0K

, 2
75

0 
lm

63
2

   
   

   
0.

13
 

   
   

   
   

   
  5

50
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 8
3 

22
2

   
   

 0
.0

4 
   

   
   

   
   

19
2 

 $
   

   
   

   
 2

9 
0.

1
35

8
$5

4
 $

   
   

   
 1

1 

23
5

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

R
es

tro
om

24
7

30
%

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

12
 - 

1 
la

m
p 

30
W

w
/1

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

3'
 

tu
be

46
1

   
   

   
0.

05
 

   
   

   
   

   
  4

02
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 6
0 

12
1

   
   

 0
.0

1 
   

   
   

   
   

  7
3 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

1 
0.

0
32

8
$4

9
 $

   
   

   
 1

0 

23
6

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

O
ffi

ce
 M

-3
04

8
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

12
 - 

2 
la

m
p 

40
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
23

W
, 4

00
0K

, 3
00

0 
lm

84
2

   
   

   
0.

17
 

   
   

   
   

   
  4

89
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 7
3 

23
2

   
   

 0
.0

5 
   

   
   

   
   

13
4 

 $
   

   
   

   
 2

0 
0.

1
35

5
$5

3
 $

   
   

   
 1

1 

23
7

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

O
ffi

ce
 M

-3
04

8
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

12
 - 

4 
la

m
p 

20
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x2
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
22

W
, 4

00
0K

, 2
75

0 
lm

91
2

   
   

   
0.

18
 

   
   

   
   

   
  5

30
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 7
9 

22
2

   
   

 0
.0

4 
   

   
   

   
   

12
8 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

9 
0.

1
40

2
$6

0
 $

   
   

   
 1

2 

23
8

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

R
es

tro
om

24
7

30
%

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

12
 - 

2 
la

m
p 

20
W

w
/2

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

2'
 

tu
be

50
1

   
   

   
0.

05
 

   
   

   
   

   
  4

37
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 6
6 

18
1

   
   

 0
.0

2 
   

   
   

   
   

11
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

7 
0.

0
32

7
$4

9
 $

   
   

   
 1

0 

23
9

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

O
ffi

ce
 M

-3
02

8
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

12
 - 

2 
la

m
p 

40
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
23

W
, 4

00
0K

, 3
00

0 
lm

84
2

   
   

   
0.

17
 

   
   

   
   

   
  4

89
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 7
3 

23
2

   
   

 0
.0

5 
   

   
   

   
   

13
4 

 $
   

   
   

   
 2

0 
0.

1
35

5
$5

3
 $

   
   

   
 1

1 

24
0

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

O
ffi

ce
 M

-3
02

8
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

12
 - 

4 
la

m
p 

20
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x2
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
22

W
, 4

00
0K

, 2
75

0 
lm

91
2

   
   

   
0.

18
 

   
   

   
   

   
  5

30
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 7
9 

22
2

   
   

 0
.0

4 
   

   
   

   
   

12
8 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

9 
0.

1
40

2
$6

0
 $

   
   

   
 1

2 

24
1

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

O
ffi

ce
 M

-3
02

8
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

12
 - 

2 
la

m
p 

40
W

w
/L

ED
 1

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
23

W
, 4

00
0K

, 3
00

0 
lm

84
4

   
   

   
0.

34
 

   
   

   
   

   
  9

78
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  1

47
 

23
4

   
   

 0
.0

9 
   

   
   

   
   

26
8 

 $
   

   
   

   
 4

0 
0.

2
71

1
$1

07
 $

   
   

   
 2

2 

24
2

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

R
es

tro
om

24
7

30
%

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

12
 - 

2 
la

m
p 

20
W

w
/2

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

2'
 

tu
be

50
1

   
   

   
0.

05
 

   
   

   
   

   
  4

37
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 6
6 

18
1

   
   

 0
.0

2 
   

   
   

   
   

11
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

7 
0.

0
32

7
$4

9
 $

   
   

   
 1

0 

24
3

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Th
ro

ug
h 

D
ou

bl
e 

D
oo

r
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

24
4

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

O
ffi

ce
8

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
12

 - 
2 

la
m

p 
40

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

23
W

, 4
00

0K
, 3

00
0 

lm
84

2
   

   
   

0.
17

 
   

   
   

   
   

  4
89

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 7

3 
23

2
   

   
 0

.0
5 

   
   

   
   

   
13

4 
 $

   
   

   
   

 2
0 

0.
1

35
5

$5
3

 $
   

   
   

 1
1 

24
5

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

O
ffi

ce
8

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
12

 - 
4 

la
m

p 
20

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x2

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

22
W

, 4
00

0K
, 2

75
0 

lm
91

2
   

   
   

0.
18

 
   

   
   

   
   

  5
30

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 7

9 
22

2
   

   
 0

.0
4 

   
   

   
   

   
12

8 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
9 

0.
1

40
2

$6
0

 $
   

   
   

 1
2 

24
6

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

R
es

tro
om

24
7

30
%

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

12
 - 

2 
la

m
p 

20
W

w
/2

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

2'
 

tu
be

50
1

   
   

   
0.

05
 

   
   

   
   

   
  4

37
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 6
6 

18
1

   
   

 0
.0

2 
   

   
   

   
   

11
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

7 
0.

0
32

7
$4

9
 $

   
   

   
 1

0 

24
7

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

I.T
.

12
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

12
 - 

2 
la

m
p 

40
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
23

W
, 4

00
0K

, 3
00

0 
lm

84
2

   
   

   
0.

17
 

   
   

   
   

   
  7

34
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  1

10
 

23
2

   
   

 0
.0

5 
   

   
   

   
   

20
1 

 $
   

   
   

   
 3

0 
0.

1
53

3
$8

0
 $

   
   

   
 1

7 

24
8

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

I.T
.

12
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

12
 - 

4 
la

m
p 

20
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x2
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
22

W
, 4

00
0K

, 2
75

0 
lm

91
2

   
   

   
0.

18
 

   
   

   
   

   
  7

95
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  1

19
 

22
2

   
   

 0
.0

4 
   

   
   

   
   

19
2 

 $
   

   
   

   
 2

9 
0.

1
60

3
$9

0
 $

   
   

   
 1

9 

24
9

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

I.T
.

12
7

30
%

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

12
 - 

2 
la

m
p 

20
W

w
/2

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

2'
 

tu
be

50
1

   
   

   
0.

05
 

   
   

   
   

   
  2

18
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 3
3 

18
1

   
   

 0
.0

2 
   

   
   

   
   

  5
5 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

8 
0.

0
16

3
$2

5
 $

   
   

   
   

5 

25
0

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

C
lo

se
t

6
7

30
%

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 4

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/4
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
4'

 
tu

be
11

4
1

   
   

   
0.

11
 

   
   

   
   

   
  2

49
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 3
7 

42
1

   
   

 0
.0

4 
   

   
   

   
   

  6
4 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

0 
0.

1
18

5
$2

8
 $

   
   

   
   

6 

25
1

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

O
ffi

ce
8

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 4
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/4

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

4'
 

tu
be

11
4

1
   

   
   

0.
11

 
   

   
   

   
   

  3
32

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 5

0 
42

1
   

   
 0

.0
4 

   
   

   
   

   
12

2 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
8 

0.
1

21
0

$3
1

 $
   

   
   

   
7 

25
2

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

H
R

 &
 E

du
ca

tio
n

   
   

   
   

-  
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
  -

   

25
3

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

O
ffi

ce
8

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 3
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
36

W
, 4

00
0K

, 4
50

0 
lm

85
3

   
   

   
0.

26
 

   
   

   
   

   
  7

43
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  1

11
 

36
3

   
   

 0
.1

1 
   

   
   

   
   

31
4 

 $
   

   
   

   
 4

7 
0.

1
42

8
$6

4
 $

   
   

   
 1

3 

25
4

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

O
ffi

ce
8

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 3
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
36

W
, 4

00
0K

, 4
50

0 
lm

85
3

   
   

   
0.

26
 

   
   

   
   

   
  7

43
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  1

11
 

36
3

   
   

 0
.1

1 
   

   
   

   
   

31
4 

 $
   

   
   

   
 4

7 
0.

1
42

8
$6

4
 $

   
   

   
 1

3 

25
5

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

C
om

m
on

24
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 3

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

36
W

, 4
00

0K
, 4

50
0 

lm
85

3
   

   
   

0.
26

 
   

   
   

   
  2

,2
28

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  3
34

 
36

3
   

   
 0

.1
1 

   
   

   
   

   
94

3 
 $

   
   

   
  1

42
 

0.
1

12
84

$1
93

 $
   

   
   

 4
0 

25
6

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

C
om

m
on

24
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 1

 la
m

p 
17

W
w

/1
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
2'

 
tu

be
17

3
   

   
   

0.
05

 
   

   
   

   
   

  4
46

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 6

7 
9

3
   

   
 0

.0
3 

   
   

   
   

   
23

6 
 $

   
   

   
   

 3
5 

0.
0

21
0

$3
1

 $
   

   
   

   
7 

25
7

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

O
ut

 H
.R

. &
 

Ed
uc

at
io

n
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

25
8

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

C
lo

se
t

6
7

30
%

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

12
 - 

2 
la

m
p 

40
W

w
/2

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

4'
 

tu
be

84
1

   
   

   
0.

08
 

   
   

   
   

   
  1

83
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 2
8 

21
1

   
   

 0
.0

2 
   

   
   

   
   

  3
2 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

5 
0.

1
15

1
$2

3
 $

   
   

   
   

5 

25
9

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

C
lo

se
t

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  A

-la
m

p 
- 6

0W
w

/E
IK

O
 L

ED
 D

ow
nl

ig
ht

 K
it,

 6
", 

D
im

, 1
2W

60
1

   
   

   
0.

06
 

   
   

   
   

   
  1

31
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 2
0 

12
1

   
   

 0
.0

1 
   

   
   

   
   

  2
6 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

4 
0.

0
10

5
$1

6
 $

   
   

   
   

3 

69



Pa
ge

 2
0 

of
 3

0
Pr

oj
ec

t -
- B

oo
k1

Ea
rth

 S
av

er
s 

Li
ne

Ac
tio

n
A/

C

#
B

ui
ld

in
g

Lo
ca

tio
n

Hr
s

D
ay

s
Ne

w
 

C
on

trl
 

Sa
ve

 (%
)

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

W
at

t/F
ix

t.
Fi

xt
. 

Q
ua

n
To

ta
l k

W
 A

nn
. k

W
h 

An
n.

 E
le

ct
. 

Ex
p.

W
at

t/F
ix

t.
Fi

xt
. 

Q
ua

n
To

ta
l k

W
An

n.
 k

W
h

An
n.

 E
le

ct
. 

Ex
p.

To
ta

l 
kW

An
n.

 k
W

h
An

n.
 E

le
ct

. 
Ex

p.

An
nu

al
 

A/
C

 
Sa

vi
ng

s

En
er

gy
 S

av
in

gs
 A

na
ly

si
s

Lo
ca

tio
n

O
pe

ra
tio

n
Ex

is
tin

g
Ne

w
Li

gh
tin

g 
En

er
gy

 S
av

in
gs

26
0

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

C
le

an
 L

in
en

8
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
4'

 
tu

be
59

2
   

   
   

0.
12

 
   

   
   

   
   

  3
44

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 5

2 
21

2
   

   
 0

.0
4 

   
   

   
   

   
12

2 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
8 

0.
1

22
1

$3
3

 $
   

   
   

   
7 

26
1

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

C
le

an
 L

in
en

8
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 4

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

36
W

, 4
00

0K
, 4

50
0 

lm
11

4
1

   
   

   
0.

11
 

   
   

   
   

   
  3

32
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 5
0 

36
1

   
   

 0
.0

4 
   

   
   

   
   

10
5 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

6 
0.

1
22

7
$3

4
 $

   
   

   
   

7 

26
2

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

C
le

an
 L

in
en

8
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

12
 - 

2 
la

m
p 

40
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
23

W
, 4

00
0K

, 3
00

0 
lm

84
1

   
   

   
0.

08
 

   
   

   
   

   
  2

45
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 3
7 

23
1

   
   

 0
.0

2 
   

   
   

   
   

  6
7 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

0 
0.

1
17

8
$2

7
 $

   
   

   
   

6 

26
3

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

So
ile

d 
Li

ne
n

8
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 4

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

36
W

, 4
00

0K
, 4

50
0 

lm
11

4
1

   
   

   
0.

11
 

   
   

   
   

   
  3

32
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 5
0 

36
1

   
   

 0
.0

4 
   

   
   

   
   

10
5 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

6 
0.

1
22

7
$3

4
 $

   
   

   
   

7 

26
4

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

So
ile

d 
Li

ne
n

8
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

23
W

, 4
00

0K
, 3

00
0 

lm
59

2
   

   
   

0.
12

 
   

   
   

   
   

  3
44

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 5

2 
23

2
   

   
 0

.0
5 

   
   

   
   

   
13

4 
 $

   
   

   
   

 2
0 

0.
1

21
0

$3
1

 $
   

   
   

   
7 

26
5

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

N
ur

si
ng

 A
dm

in
.

24
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 4

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

36
W

, 4
00

0K
, 4

50
0 

lm
11

4
2

   
   

   
0.

23
 

   
   

   
   

  1
,9

92
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  2

99
 

36
2

   
   

 0
.0

7 
   

   
   

   
   

62
9 

 $
   

   
   

   
 9

4 
0.

2
13

63
$2

04
 $

   
   

   
 4

2 

26
6

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

R
es

tro
om

24
7

30
%

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  A

-la
m

p 
- 6

0W
w

/E
IK

O
 L

ED
 A

19
, E

26
, 8

W
60

2
   

   
   

0.
12

 
   

   
   

   
  1

,0
48

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  1
57

 
8

2
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
  9

8 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
5 

0.
1

95
0

$1
43

 $
   

   
   

 2
9 

26
7

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

C
hi

ef
 M

ed
ic

al
 

O
ffi

ce
8

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 4
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
36

W
, 4

00
0K

, 4
50

0 
lm

11
4

2
   

   
   

0.
23

 
   

   
   

   
   

  6
64

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  1
00

 
36

2
   

   
 0

.0
7 

   
   

   
   

   
21

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

 3
1 

0.
2

45
4

$6
8

 $
   

   
   

 1
4 

26
8

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

C
hi

ef
 M

ed
ic

al
 

O
ffi

ce
8

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
5 

- 1
 la

m
p 

14
W

, 2
'w

/1
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

5 
2'

 H
E

14
2

   
   

   
0.

03
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 8
2 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 1
2 

18
2

   
   

 0
.0

4 
   

   
   

   
   

10
5 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

6 
0.

0
-2

3
-$

3
 $

   
   

   
  (

1)

26
9

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

R
es

tro
om

24
7

30
%

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  C

FL
 P

lu
g-

in
 - 

2 
la

m
p 

13
W

w
/E

IK
O

 L
ED

 A
19

, 
E2

6,
 8

W
26

1
   

   
   

0.
03

 
   

   
   

   
   

  2
27

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 3

4 
8

1
   

   
 0

.0
1 

   
   

   
   

   
  4

9 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
7 

0.
0

17
8

$2
7

 $
   

   
   

   
6 

27
0

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

R
es

tro
om

24
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  A

-la
m

p 
- 6

0W
w

/E
IK

O
 L

ED
 A

19
, E

26
, 8

W
60

1
   

   
   

0.
06

 
   

   
   

   
   

  5
24

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 7

9 
8

1
   

   
 0

.0
1 

   
   

   
   

   
  7

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
0 

0.
1

45
4

$6
8

 $
   

   
   

 1
4 

27
1

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Ph
ar

m
ac

y
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 4
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
36

W
, 4

00
0K

, 4
50

0 
lm

11
4

2
   

   
   

0.
23

 
   

   
   

   
  1

,9
92

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  2
99

 
36

2
   

   
 0

.0
7 

   
   

   
   

   
62

9 
 $

   
   

   
   

 9
4 

0.
2

13
63

$2
04

 $
   

   
   

 4
2 

27
2

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Th
ro

ug
h 

D
oo

r
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

27
3

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

W
om

en
's

 
R

es
tro

om
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/2

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

4'
 

tu
be

59
3

   
   

   
0.

18
 

   
   

   
   

  1
,5

46
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  2

32
 

21
3

   
   

 0
.0

6 
   

   
   

   
   

55
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
 8

3 
0.

1
99

6
$1

49
 $

   
   

   
 3

1 

27
4

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

H
ea

rt 
C

en
te

r
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

27
5

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

St
re

ss
 T

es
t

12
7

N
o 

Ac
tio

n 
-- 

LE
D

 F
ix

tu
re

w
/N

o 
W

or
k

2
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

27
6

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Ec
ho

16
7

N
o 

Ac
tio

n 
-- 

LE
D

 F
ix

tu
re

w
/N

o 
W

or
k

2
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

27
7

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

O
ffi

ce
8

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
23

W
, 4

00
0K

, 3
00

0 
lm

59
2

   
   

   
0.

12
 

   
   

   
   

   
  3

44
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 5
2 

23
2

   
   

 0
.0

5 
   

   
   

   
   

13
4 

 $
   

   
   

   
 2

0 
0.

1
21

0
$3

1
 $

   
   

   
   

7 

27
8

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Ex
am

 1
6

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
23

W
, 4

00
0K

, 3
00

0 
lm

59
2

   
   

   
0.

12
 

   
   

   
   

   
  2

58
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 3
9 

23
2

   
   

 0
.0

5 
   

   
   

   
   

10
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

5 
0.

1
15

7
$2

4
 $

   
   

   
   

5 

27
9

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Ex
am

 2
6

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
23

W
, 4

00
0K

, 3
00

0 
lm

59
2

   
   

   
0.

12
 

   
   

   
   

   
  2

58
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 3
9 

23
2

   
   

 0
.0

5 
   

   
   

   
   

10
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

5 
0.

1
15

7
$2

4
 $

   
   

   
   

5 

28
0

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Ex
am

 3
6

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
23

W
, 4

00
0K

, 3
00

0 
lm

59
2

   
   

   
0.

12
 

   
   

   
   

   
  2

58
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 3
9 

23
2

   
   

 0
.0

5 
   

   
   

   
   

10
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

5 
0.

1
15

7
$2

4
 $

   
   

   
   

5 

28
1

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

W
or

k 
St

at
io

n
12

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
23

W
, 4

00
0K

, 3
00

0 
lm

59
2

   
   

   
0.

12
 

   
   

   
   

   
  5

15
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 7
7 

23
2

   
   

 0
.0

5 
   

   
   

   
   

20
1 

 $
   

   
   

   
 3

0 
0.

1
31

4
$4

7
 $

   
   

   
 1

0 

28
2

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

R
es

tro
om

24
7

30
%

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
4'

 
tu

be
59

1
   

   
   

0.
06

 
   

   
   

   
   

  5
15

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 7

7 
21

1
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
12

8 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
9 

0.
0

38
7

$5
8

 $
   

   
   

 1
2 

28
3

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

C
om

m
on

 / 
R

es
t

24
7

N
o 

Ac
tio

n 
-- 

LE
D

 F
ix

tu
re

w
/N

o 
W

or
k

30
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

28
4

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

O
ut

 H
ea

rt 
C

en
te

r
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

28
5

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

M
at

er
ia

l M
ng

t.
12

7
N

o 
Ac

tio
n 

-- 
LE

D
 F

ix
tu

re
w

/N
o 

W
or

k
4

   
   

   
   

-  
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
  -

   

28
6

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

M
at

er
ia

l M
ng

t.
12

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
12

 - 
2 

la
m

p 
40

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
4'

 
tu

be
84

38
   

   
   

3.
19

 
   

   
   

   
13

,9
43

 
 $

   
   

   
  2

,0
91

 
21

38
   

   
 0

.8
0 

   
   

   
   

3,
48

6 
 $

   
   

   
  5

23
 

2.
4

10
45

7
$1

,5
69

 $
   

   
  3

25
 

28
7

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

So
ile

d 
U

til
ity

 
R

oo
m

8
7

N
o 

Ac
tio

n 
-- 

LE
D

 F
ix

tu
re

w
/N

o 
W

or
k

1
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

28
8

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Ph
ys

ic
al

 T
he

ra
py

16
7

N
o 

Ac
tio

n 
-- 

LE
D

 F
ix

tu
re

w
/N

o 
W

or
k

30
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

28
9

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

M
en

's
 R

es
tro

om
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/2

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

4'
 

tu
be

59
3

   
   

   
0.

18
 

   
   

   
   

  1
,5

46
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  2

32
 

21
3

   
   

 0
.0

6 
   

   
   

   
   

55
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
 8

3 
0.

1
99

6
$1

49
 $

   
   

   
 3

1 

29
0

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Th
ro

ug
h 

D
oo

rw
ay

   
   

   
   

-  
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
  -

   
29

1
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
C

lo
se

t
6

7
30

%
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  A
-la

m
p 

- 6
0W

w
/E

IK
O

 L
ED

 A
19

, E
26

, 8
W

60
1

   
   

   
0.

06
 

   
   

   
   

   
  1

31
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 2
0 

8
1

   
   

 0
.0

1 
   

   
   

   
   

  1
2 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

2 
0.

1
11

9
$1

8
 $

   
   

   
   

4 
29

2
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
Ad

m
in

is
tra

tio
n

   
   

   
   

-  
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
  -

   

29
3

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

O
ffi

ce
8

7
30

%
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 4
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/4

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

4'
 

tu
be

11
4

4
   

   
   

0.
46

 
   

   
   

   
  1

,3
28

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  1
99

 
42

4
   

   
 0

.1
7 

   
   

   
   

   
34

2 
 $

   
   

   
   

 5
1 

0.
3

98
5

$1
48

 $
   

   
   

 3
1 

29
4

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

O
ffi

ce
8

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 3
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
36

W
, 4

00
0K

, 4
50

0 
lm

85
6

   
   

   
0.

51
 

   
   

   
   

  1
,4

85
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  2

23
 

36
6

   
   

 0
.2

2 
   

   
   

   
   

62
9 

 $
   

   
   

   
 9

4 
0.

3
85

6
$1

28
 $

   
   

   
 2

7 

29
5

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Bo
ar

d 
R

oo
m

12
7

30
%

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 6

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/6
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
4'

 
tu

be
17

2.
5

6
   

   
   

1.
04

 
   

   
   

   
  4

,5
21

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  6
78

 
63

6
   

   
 0

.3
8 

   
   

   
   

1,
15

6 
 $

   
   

   
  1

73
 

0.
7

33
65

$5
05

 $
   

   
  1

04
 

29
6

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

H
al

l
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 4
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
36

W
, 4

00
0K

, 4
50

0 
lm

11
4

1
   

   
   

0.
11

 
   

   
   

   
   

  9
96

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  1
49

 
36

1
   

   
 0

.0
4 

   
   

   
   

   
31

4 
 $

   
   

   
   

 4
7 

0.
1

68
1

$1
02

 $
   

   
   

 2
1 

29
7

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

R
es

tro
om

24
7

30
%

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  A

-la
m

p 
- 6

0W
w

/E
IK

O
 L

ED
 A

19
, E

26
, 8

W
60

2
   

   
   

0.
12

 
   

   
   

   
  1

,0
48

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  1
57

 
8

2
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
  9

8 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
5 

0.
1

95
0

$1
43

 $
   

   
   

 2
9 

29
8

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

C
om

m
on

24
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 4

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/4
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
4'

 
tu

be
11

4
6

   
   

   
0.

68
 

   
   

   
   

  5
,9

75
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  8

96
 

42
6

   
   

 0
.2

5 
   

   
   

   
2,

20
1 

 $
   

   
   

  3
30

 
0.

4
37

74
$5

66
 $

   
   

  1
17

 

29
9

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

C
om

m
on

24
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  U

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x2

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

22
W

, 4
00

0K
, 2

75
0 

lm
59

1
   

   
   

0.
06

 
   

   
   

   
   

  5
15

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 7

7 
22

1
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
19

2 
 $

   
   

   
   

 2
9 

0.
0

32
3

$4
8

 $
   

   
   

 1
0 

30
0

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

M
ed

ic
al

 
Fo

un
da

tio
n

   
   

   
   

-  
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
  -

   

70



Pa
ge

 2
1 

of
 3

0
Pr

oj
ec

t -
- B

oo
k1

Ea
rth

 S
av

er
s 

Li
ne

Ac
tio

n
A/

C

#
B

ui
ld

in
g

Lo
ca

tio
n

Hr
s

D
ay

s
Ne

w
 

C
on

trl
 

Sa
ve

 (%
)

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

W
at

t/F
ix

t.
Fi

xt
. 

Q
ua

n
To

ta
l k

W
 A

nn
. k

W
h 

An
n.

 E
le

ct
. 

Ex
p.

W
at

t/F
ix

t.
Fi

xt
. 

Q
ua

n
To

ta
l k

W
An

n.
 k

W
h

An
n.

 E
le

ct
. 

Ex
p.

To
ta

l 
kW

An
n.

 k
W

h
An

n.
 E

le
ct

. 
Ex

p.

An
nu

al
 

A/
C

 
Sa

vi
ng

s

En
er

gy
 S

av
in

gs
 A

na
ly

si
s

Lo
ca

tio
n

O
pe

ra
tio

n
Ex

is
tin

g
Ne

w
Li

gh
tin

g 
En

er
gy

 S
av

in
gs

30
1

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

O
ffi

ce
8

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 4
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/4

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

4'
 

tu
be

11
4

2
   

   
   

0.
23

 
   

   
   

   
   

  6
64

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  1
00

 
42

2
   

   
 0

.0
8 

   
   

   
   

   
24

5 
 $

   
   

   
   

 3
7 

0.
1

41
9

$6
3

 $
   

   
   

 1
3 

30
2

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

O
ffi

ce
8

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 4
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/4

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

4'
 

tu
be

11
4

3
   

   
   

0.
34

 
   

   
   

   
   

  9
96

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  1
49

 
42

3
   

   
 0

.1
3 

   
   

   
   

   
36

7 
 $

   
   

   
   

 5
5 

0.
2

62
9

$9
4

 $
   

   
   

 2
0 

30
3

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

St
or

ag
e 

R
oo

m
6

7
30

%
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
12

 - 
2 

la
m

p 
40

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
4'

 
tu

be
84

1
   

   
   

0.
08

 
   

   
   

   
   

  1
83

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 2

8 
21

1
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
  3

2 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
5 

0.
1

15
1

$2
3

 $
   

   
   

   
5 

30
4

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

C
op

y 
R

oo
m

8
7

30
%

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 1

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/1
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
4'

 
tu

be
33

1
   

   
   

0.
03

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 9

6 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 1

4 
10

.5
1

   
   

 0
.0

1 
   

   
   

   
   

  2
1 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

3 
0.

0
75

$1
1

 $
   

   
   

   
2 

30
5

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

O
ut

   
   

   
   

-  
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
  -

   
30

6
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
Pa

ss
 D

oo
r

   
   

   
   

-  
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
  -

   

30
7

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

C
op

y 
R

oo
m

8
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

12
 - 

2 
la

m
p 

40
W

w
/2

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

4'
 

tu
be

84
3

   
   

   
0.

25
 

   
   

   
   

   
  7

34
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  1

10
 

21
3

   
   

 0
.0

6 
   

   
   

   
   

18
3 

 $
   

   
   

   
 2

8 
0.

2
55

0
$8

3
 $

   
   

   
 1

7 

30
8

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

St
or

ag
e 

R
oo

m
6

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  R
30

 - 
75

W
w

/E
IK

O
 L

ED
 A

19
, E

26
, 8

W
75

2
   

   
   

0.
15

 
   

   
   

   
   

  3
28

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 4

9 
8

2
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
  3

5 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
5 

0.
1

29
3

$4
4

 $
   

   
   

   
9 

30
9

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

St
or

ag
e 

R
oo

m
6

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
12

 - 
4 

la
m

p 
40

W
w

/4
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
4'

 
tu

be
16

8
2

   
   

   
0.

34
 

   
   

   
   

   
  7

34
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  1

10
 

42
2

   
   

 0
.0

8 
   

   
   

   
   

18
3 

 $
   

   
   

   
 2

8 
0.

3
55

0
$8

3
 $

   
   

   
 1

7 

31
0

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

St
or

ag
e 

R
oo

m
6

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

 2
2W

 &
 3

2W
 C

irc
lin

ew
/F

M
AG

E1
2 

-1
20

-1
6W

-
8C

C
T5

-1
20

D
T-

SL
54

1
   

   
   

0.
05

 
   

   
   

   
   

  1
18

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 1

8 
16

1
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
  3

5 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
5 

0.
0

83
$1

2
 $

   
   

   
   

3 

31
1

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

C
la

ss
ro

om
 4

8
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 4

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/4
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
4'

 
tu

be
11

4
8

   
   

   
0.

91
 

   
   

   
   

  2
,6

56
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  3

98
 

42
8

   
   

 0
.3

4 
   

   
   

   
   

97
8 

 $
   

   
   

  1
47

 
0.

6
16

77
$2

52
 $

   
   

   
 5

2 

31
2

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

C
la

ss
ro

om
 1

8
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 4

 la
m

p 
A/

B 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r 

R
et

ro
fit

 K
it,

 3
6W

, 4
00

0K
, 4

50
0 

lm
11

6
6

   
   

   
0.

70
 

   
   

   
   

  2
,0

27
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  3

04
 

36
6

   
   

 0
.2

2 
   

   
   

   
   

62
9 

 $
   

   
   

   
 9

4 
0.

5
13

98
$2

10
 $

   
   

   
 4

3 

31
3

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

C
la

ss
ro

om
 2

8
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 4

 la
m

p 
A/

B 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r 

R
et

ro
fit

 K
it,

 3
6W

, 4
00

0K
, 4

50
0 

lm
11

6
10

   
   

   
1.

16
 

   
   

   
   

  3
,3

78
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  5

07
 

36
10

   
   

 0
.3

6 
   

   
   

   
1,

04
8 

 $
   

   
   

  1
57

 
0.

8
23

30
$3

49
 $

   
   

   
 7

2 

31
4

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

C
la

ss
ro

om
 3

8
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 4

 la
m

p 
A/

B 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r 

R
et

ro
fit

 K
it,

 3
6W

, 4
00

0K
, 4

50
0 

lm
11

6
6

   
   

   
0.

70
 

   
   

   
   

  2
,0

27
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  3

04
 

36
6

   
   

 0
.2

2 
   

   
   

   
   

62
9 

 $
   

   
   

   
 9

4 
0.

5
13

98
$2

10
 $

   
   

   
 4

3 

31
5

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

C
la

ss
ro

om
 3

8
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  R

30
 - 

75
W

w
/E

IK
O

 L
ED

 D
ow

nl
ig

ht
 K

it,
 6

", 
D

im
, 1

2W
75

6
   

   
   

0.
45

 
   

   
   

   
  1

,3
10

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  1
97

 
12

6
   

   
 0

.0
7 

   
   

   
   

   
21

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

 3
1 

0.
4

11
01

$1
65

 $
   

   
   

 3
4 

31
6

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

St
or

ag
e 

R
oo

m
6

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 4
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
36

W
, 4

00
0K

, 4
50

0 
lm

11
4

1
   

   
   

0.
11

 
   

   
   

   
   

  2
49

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 3

7 
36

1
   

   
 0

.0
4 

   
   

   
   

   
  7

9 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
2 

0.
1

17
0

$2
6

 $
   

   
   

   
5 

31
7

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

W
om

en
's

 
R

es
tro

om
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 1

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
23

W
, 4

00
0K

, 3
00

0 
lm

59
1

   
   

   
0.

06
 

   
   

   
   

   
  5

15
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 7
7 

23
1

   
   

 0
.0

2 
   

   
   

   
   

20
1 

 $
   

   
   

   
 3

0 
0.

0
31

4
$4

7
 $

   
   

   
 1

0 

31
8

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

M
en

's
 R

es
tro

om
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 1

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
23

W
, 4

00
0K

, 3
00

0 
lm

59
1

   
   

   
0.

06
 

   
   

   
   

   
  5

15
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 7
7 

23
1

   
   

 0
.0

2 
   

   
   

   
   

20
1 

 $
   

   
   

   
 3

0 
0.

0
31

4
$4

7
 $

   
   

   
 1

0 

31
9

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

M
ai

n 
R

oo
m

24
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

23
W

, 4
00

0K
, 3

00
0 

lm
59

3
   

   
   

0.
18

 
   

   
   

   
  1

,5
46

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  2
32

 
23

3
   

   
 0

.0
7 

   
   

   
   

   
60

3 
 $

   
   

   
   

 9
0 

0.
1

94
3

$1
42

 $
   

   
   

 2
9 

32
0

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Se
rv

er
 R

oo
m

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

12
 - 

4 
la

m
p 

40
W

w
/4

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

4'
 

tu
be

16
8

2
   

   
   

0.
34

 
   

   
   

   
   

  7
34

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  1
10

 
42

2
   

   
 0

.0
8 

   
   

   
   

   
18

3 
 $

   
   

   
   

 2
8 

0.
3

55
0

$8
3

 $
   

   
   

 1
7 

32
1

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Sc
he

ud
in

g
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

32
2

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

C
lo

se
t

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

12
 - 

4 
la

m
p 

20
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x2
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
22

W
, 4

00
0K

, 2
75

0 
lm

91
1

   
   

   
0.

09
 

   
   

   
   

   
  1

99
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 3
0 

22
1

   
   

 0
.0

2 
   

   
   

   
   

  4
8 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

7 
0.

1
15

1
$2

3
 $

   
   

   
   

5 

32
3

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

C
lo

se
t

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  U

12
 - 

2 
la

m
p 

40
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x2
 T

ro
ffe

r 
R

et
ro

fit
 K

it,
 2

2W
, 4

00
0K

, 2
75

0 
lm

86
1

   
   

   
0.

09
 

   
   

   
   

   
  1

88
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 2
8 

22
1

   
   

 0
.0

2 
   

   
   

   
   

  4
8 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

7 
0.

1
14

0
$2

1
 $

   
   

   
   

4 

32
4

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

O
ffi

ce
8

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
12

 - 
4 

la
m

p 
40

W
w

/4
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
4'

 
tu

be
16

8
4

   
   

   
0.

67
 

   
   

   
   

  1
,9

57
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  2

94
 

42
4

   
   

 0
.1

7 
   

   
   

   
   

48
9 

 $
   

   
   

   
 7

3 
0.

5
14

68
$2

20
 $

   
   

   
 4

6 

32
5

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

C
om

m
on

24
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 4

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

36
W

, 4
00

0K
, 4

50
0 

lm
11

4
2

   
   

   
0.

23
 

   
   

   
   

  1
,9

92
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  2

99
 

36
2

   
   

 0
.0

7 
   

   
   

   
   

62
9 

 $
   

   
   

   
 9

4 
0.

2
13

63
$2

04
 $

   
   

   
 4

2 

32
6

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

C
om

m
on

24
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

12
 - 

4 
la

m
p 

40
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
36

W
, 4

00
0K

, 4
50

0 
lm

16
8

1
   

   
   

0.
17

 
   

   
   

   
  1

,4
68

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  2
20

 
36

1
   

   
 0

.0
4 

   
   

   
   

   
31

4 
 $

   
   

   
   

 4
7 

0.
1

11
53

$1
73

 $
   

   
   

 3
6 

32
7

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

C
om

m
on

24
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 1

 la
m

p 
17

W
w

/1
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
2'

 
tu

be
17

2
   

   
   

0.
03

 
   

   
   

   
   

  2
97

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 4

5 
9

2
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
15

7 
 $

   
   

   
   

 2
4 

0.
0

14
0

$2
1

 $
   

   
   

   
4 

32
8

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

O
ut

   
   

   
   

-  
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
  -

   

32
9

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

O
ffi

ce
8

7
30

%
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
12

 - 
4 

la
m

p 
40

W
w

/4
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
4'

 
tu

be
16

8
1

   
   

   
0.

17
 

   
   

   
   

   
  4

89
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 7
3 

42
1

   
   

 0
.0

4 
   

   
   

   
   

  8
6 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

3 
0.

1
40

4
$6

1
 $

   
   

   
 1

3 

33
0

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
ss

 D
oo

r
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

33
1

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

C
lin

ic
al

 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n
8

7
30

%
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
12

 - 
4 

la
m

p 
40

W
w

/4
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
4'

 
tu

be
16

8
1

   
   

   
0.

17
 

   
   

   
   

   
  4

89
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 7
3 

42
1

   
   

 0
.0

4 
   

   
   

   
   

  8
6 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

3 
0.

1
40

4
$6

1
 $

   
   

   
 1

3 

33
2

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

X-
R

ay
12

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  U
12

 - 
2 

la
m

p 
40

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x2

 T
ro

ffe
r 

R
et

ro
fit

 K
it,

 2
2W

, 4
00

0K
, 2

75
0 

lm
86

6
   

   
   

0.
52

 
   

   
   

   
  2

,2
54

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  3
38

 
22

6
   

   
 0

.1
3 

   
   

   
   

   
57

7 
 $

   
   

   
   

 8
6 

0.
4

16
77

$2
52

 $
   

   
   

 5
2 

33
3

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

X-
R

ay
12

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  A
-la

m
p 

- 1
00

W
w

/E
IK

O
 L

ED
 D

ow
nl

ig
ht

 K
it,

 
6"

, D
im

, 1
2W

10
0

5
   

   
   

0.
50

 
   

   
   

   
  2

,1
84

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  3
28

 
12

5
   

   
 0

.0
6 

   
   

   
   

   
26

2 
 $

   
   

   
   

 3
9 

0.
4

19
22

$2
88

 $
   

   
   

 6
0 

33
4

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

R
es

tro
om

24
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  U

12
 - 

2 
la

m
p 

40
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x2
 T

ro
ffe

r 
R

et
ro

fit
 K

it,
 2

2W
, 4

00
0K

, 2
75

0 
lm

86
1

   
   

   
0.

09
 

   
   

   
   

   
  7

51
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  1

13
 

22
1

   
   

 0
.0

2 
   

   
   

   
   

19
2 

 $
   

   
   

   
 2

9 
0.

1
55

9
$8

4
 $

   
   

   
 1

7 

33
5

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

St
or

ag
e 

R
oo

m
6

7
30

%
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/2

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

4'
 

tu
be

59
1

   
   

   
0.

06
 

   
   

   
   

   
  1

29
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 1
9 

21
1

   
   

 0
.0

2 
   

   
   

   
   

  3
2 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

5 
0.

0
97

$1
5

 $
   

   
   

   
3 

33
6

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

C
lo

se
t

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

12
 - 

4 
la

m
p 

40
W

w
/4

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

4'
 

tu
be

16
8

1
   

   
   

0.
17

 
   

   
   

   
   

  3
67

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 5

5 
42

1
   

   
 0

.0
4 

   
   

   
   

   
  9

2 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

0.
1

27
5

$4
1

 $
   

   
   

   
9 

33
7

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

M
ai

n 
H

al
lw

ay
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/2

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

4'
 

tu
be

59
6

   
   

   
0.

35
 

   
   

   
   

  3
,0

93
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  4

64
 

21
6

   
   

 0
.1

3 
   

   
   

   
1,

10
1 

 $
   

   
   

  1
65

 
0.

2
19

92
$2

99
 $

   
   

   
 6

2 

71



Pa
ge

 2
2 

of
 3

0
Pr

oj
ec

t -
- B

oo
k1

Ea
rth

 S
av

er
s 

Li
ne

Ac
tio

n
A/

C

#
B

ui
ld

in
g

Lo
ca

tio
n

Hr
s

D
ay

s
Ne

w
 

C
on

trl
 

Sa
ve

 (%
)

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

W
at

t/F
ix

t.
Fi

xt
. 

Q
ua

n
To

ta
l k

W
 A

nn
. k

W
h 

An
n.

 E
le

ct
. 

Ex
p.

W
at

t/F
ix

t.
Fi

xt
. 

Q
ua

n
To

ta
l k

W
An

n.
 k

W
h

An
n.

 E
le

ct
. 

Ex
p.

To
ta

l 
kW

An
n.

 k
W

h
An

n.
 E

le
ct

. 
Ex

p.

An
nu

al
 

A/
C

 
Sa

vi
ng

s

En
er

gy
 S

av
in

gs
 A

na
ly

si
s

Lo
ca

tio
n

O
pe

ra
tio

n
Ex

is
tin

g
Ne

w
Li

gh
tin

g 
En

er
gy

 S
av

in
gs

33
8

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

M
ai

n 
H

al
lw

ay
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/2

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

4'
 

tu
be

59
8

   
   

   
0.

47
 

   
   

   
   

  4
,1

23
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  6

19
 

21
8

   
   

 0
.1

7 
   

   
   

   
1,

46
8 

 $
   

   
   

  2
20

 
0.

3
26

56
$3

98
 $

   
   

   
 8

2 

33
9

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Ba
ck

 T
hr

ou
gh

 
D

oo
rw

ay
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

34
0

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

O
cc

up
at

io
na

l 
Th

er
ap

y
12

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 4
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
36

W
, 4

00
0K

, 4
50

0 
lm

11
4

2
   

   
   

0.
23

 
   

   
   

   
   

  9
96

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  1
49

 
36

2
   

   
 0

.0
7 

   
   

   
   

   
31

4 
 $

   
   

   
   

 4
7 

0.
2

68
1

$1
02

 $
   

   
   

 2
1 

34
1

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

C
lo

se
t

6
7

30
%

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
4'

 
tu

be
59

1
   

   
   

0.
06

 
   

   
   

   
   

  1
29

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 1

9 
21

1
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
  3

2 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
5 

0.
0

97
$1

5
 $

   
   

   
   

3 

34
2

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Th
ro

ug
h 

D
oo

r
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

34
3

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

R
oo

m
8

7
30

%
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
12

 - 
4 

la
m

p 
40

W
w

/4
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
4'

 
tu

be
16

8
2

   
   

   
0.

34
 

   
   

   
   

   
  9

78
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  1

47
 

42
2

   
   

 0
.0

8 
   

   
   

   
   

17
1 

 $
   

   
   

   
 2

6 
0.

3
80

7
$1

21
 $

   
   

   
 2

5 

34
4

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

R
oo

m
8

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 3
 la

m
p 

A/
B 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r 
R

et
ro

fit
 K

it,
 3

6W
, 4

00
0K

, 4
50

0 
lm

92
2

   
   

   
0.

18
 

   
   

   
   

   
  5

36
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 8
0 

36
2

   
   

 0
.0

7 
   

   
   

   
   

21
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
 3

1 
0.

1
32

6
$4

9
 $

   
   

   
 1

0 

34
5

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

C
om

m
on

24
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 3

 la
m

p 
A/

B 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r 

R
et

ro
fit

 K
it,

 3
6W

, 4
00

0K
, 4

50
0 

lm
92

5
   

   
   

0.
46

 
   

   
   

   
  4

,0
19

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  6
03

 
36

5
   

   
 0

.1
8 

   
   

   
   

1,
57

2 
 $

   
   

   
  2

36
 

0.
3

24
46

$3
67

 $
   

   
   

 7
6 

34
6

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

O
ut

 D
oo

r
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

34
7

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

La
bo

ra
to

ry
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

34
8

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Bl
oo

d 
D

ra
w

 1
12

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
23

W
, 4

00
0K

, 3
00

0 
lm

59
1

   
   

   
0.

06
 

   
   

   
   

   
  2

58
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 3
9 

23
1

   
   

 0
.0

2 
   

   
   

   
   

10
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

5 
0.

0
15

7
$2

4
 $

   
   

   
   

5 

34
9

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Bl
oo

d 
D

ra
w

 2
12

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
23

W
, 4

00
0K

, 3
00

0 
lm

59
1

   
   

   
0.

06
 

   
   

   
   

   
  2

58
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 3
9 

23
1

   
   

 0
.0

2 
   

   
   

   
   

10
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

5 
0.

0
15

7
$2

4
 $

   
   

   
   

5 

35
0

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

R
es

tro
om

24
7

30
%

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
4'

 
tu

be
59

1
   

   
   

0.
06

 
   

   
   

   
   

  5
15

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 7

7 
21

1
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
12

8 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
9 

0.
0

38
7

$5
8

 $
   

   
   

 1
2 

35
1

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

La
b 

- W
or

k 
R

oo
m

12
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 4

 la
m

p 
A/

B 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r 

R
et

ro
fit

 K
it,

 3
6W

, 4
00

0K
, 4

50
0 

lm
11

6
4

   
   

   
0.

46
 

   
   

   
   

  2
,0

27
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  3

04
 

36
4

   
   

 0
.1

4 
   

   
   

   
   

62
9 

 $
   

   
   

   
 9

4 
0.

3
13

98
$2

10
 $

   
   

   
 4

3 

35
2

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Ex
it 

En
try

24
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 3

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

36
W

, 4
00

0K
, 4

50
0 

lm
85

1
   

   
   

0.
09

 
   

   
   

   
   

  7
43

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  1
11

 
36

1
   

   
 0

.0
4 

   
   

   
   

   
31

4 
 $

   
   

   
   

 4
7 

0.
0

42
8

$6
4

 $
   

   
   

 1
3 

35
3

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Sl
ee

p 
R

oo
m

12
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

23
W

, 4
00

0K
, 3

00
0 

lm
59

1
   

   
   

0.
06

 
   

   
   

   
   

  2
58

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 3

9 
23

1
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
10

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
5 

0.
0

15
7

$2
4

 $
   

   
   

   
5 

35
4

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

R
es

tro
om

24
7

30
%

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
4'

 
tu

be
59

1
   

   
   

0.
06

 
   

   
   

   
   

  5
15

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 7

7 
21

1
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
12

8 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
9 

0.
0

38
7

$5
8

 $
   

   
   

 1
2 

35
5

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Br
ea

k 
R

oo
m

24
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 3

 la
m

p 
A/

B 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r 

R
et

ro
fit

 K
it,

 3
6W

, 4
00

0K
, 4

50
0 

lm
92

2
   

   
   

0.
18

 
   

   
   

   
  1

,6
07

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  2
41

 
36

2
   

   
 0

.0
7 

   
   

   
   

   
62

9 
 $

   
   

   
   

 9
4 

0.
1

97
8

$1
47

 $
   

   
   

 3
0 

35
6

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

O
ffi

ce
8

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
23

W
, 4

00
0K

, 3
00

0 
lm

59
2

   
   

   
0.

12
 

   
   

   
   

   
  3

44
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 5
2 

23
2

   
   

 0
.0

5 
   

   
   

   
   

13
4 

 $
   

   
   

   
 2

0 
0.

1
21

0
$3

1
 $

   
   

   
   

7 

35
7

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

St
or

ag
e 

R
oo

m
6

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
23

W
, 4

00
0K

, 3
00

0 
lm

59
1

   
   

   
0.

06
 

   
   

   
   

   
  1

29
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 1
9 

23
1

   
   

 0
.0

2 
   

   
   

   
   

  5
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

8 
0.

0
79

$1
2

 $
   

   
   

   
2 

35
8

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

W
or

k 
R

oo
m

12
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

23
W

, 4
00

0K
, 3

00
0 

lm
59

1
   

   
   

0.
06

 
   

   
   

   
   

  2
58

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 3

9 
23

1
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
10

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
5 

0.
0

15
7

$2
4

 $
   

   
   

   
5 

35
9

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

R
eg

is
trr

at
io

n
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 3
 la

m
p 

A/
B 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r 
R

et
ro

fit
 K

it,
 3

6W
, 4

00
0K

, 4
50

0 
lm

92
3

   
   

   
0.

28
 

   
   

   
   

  2
,4

11
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  3

62
 

36
3

   
   

 0
.1

1 
   

   
   

   
   

94
3 

 $
   

   
   

  1
42

 
0.

2
14

68
$2

20
 $

   
   

   
 4

6 

36
0

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

M
ai

n 
C

om
m

on
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  U
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x2
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
22

W
, 4

00
0K

, 2
75

0 
lm

59
10

   
   

   
0.

59
 

   
   

   
   

  5
,1

54
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  7

73
 

22
10

   
   

 0
.2

2 
   

   
   

   
1,

92
2 

 $
   

   
   

  2
88

 
0.

4
32

32
$4

85
 $

   
   

  1
00

 

36
1

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

M
ai

n 
C

om
m

on
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 3
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
36

W
, 4

00
0K

, 4
50

0 
lm

85
22

   
   

   
1.

87
 

   
   

   
   

16
,3

36
 

 $
   

   
   

  2
,4

50
 

36
22

   
   

 0
.7

9 
   

   
   

   
6,

91
9 

 $
   

   
  1

,0
38

 
1.

1
94

17
$1

,4
13

 $
   

   
  2

92
 

36
2

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

O
ut

 L
ab

or
at

or
y

   
   

   
   

-  
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
  -

   

36
3

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

M
ed

ic
al

 R
ec

or
ds

12
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  C

FL
 S

cr
ew

-in
 - 

11
W

w
/E

IK
O

 L
ED

 A
19

, E
26

, 
8W

11
2

   
   

   
0.

02
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 9
6 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

8
2

   
   

 0
.0

2 
   

   
   

   
   

  7
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

0 
0.

0
26

$4
 $

   
   

   
   

1 

36
4

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

R
ec

ep
tio

n
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
23

W
, 4

00
0K

, 3
00

0 
lm

59
1

   
   

   
0.

06
 

   
   

   
   

   
  5

15
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 7
7 

23
1

   
   

 0
.0

2 
   

   
   

   
   

20
1 

 $
   

   
   

   
 3

0 
0.

0
31

4
$4

7
 $

   
   

   
 1

0 

36
5

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

O
ffi

ce
8

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 3
 la

m
p 

A/
B 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r 
R

et
ro

fit
 K

it,
 3

6W
, 4

00
0K

, 4
50

0 
lm

92
1

   
   

   
0.

09
 

   
   

   
   

   
  2

68
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 4
0 

36
1

   
   

 0
.0

4 
   

   
   

   
   

10
5 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

6 
0.

1
16

3
$2

4
 $

   
   

   
   

5 

36
6

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
ss

 D
oo

r
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

36
7

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
ss

 D
oo

r
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

36
8

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

O
ffi

ce
8

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 3
 la

m
p 

A/
B 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r 
R

et
ro

fit
 K

it,
 3

6W
, 4

00
0K

, 4
50

0 
lm

92
2

   
   

   
0.

18
 

   
   

   
   

   
  5

36
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 8
0 

36
2

   
   

 0
.0

7 
   

   
   

   
   

21
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
 3

1 
0.

1
32

6
$4

9
 $

   
   

   
 1

0 

36
9

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

O
ffi

ce
8

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 3
 la

m
p 

A/
B 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r 
R

et
ro

fit
 K

it,
 3

6W
, 4

00
0K

, 4
50

0 
lm

92
2

   
   

   
0.

18
 

   
   

   
   

   
  5

36
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 8
0 

36
2

   
   

 0
.0

7 
   

   
   

   
   

21
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
 3

1 
0.

1
32

6
$4

9
 $

   
   

   
 1

0 

37
0

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

O
ffi

ce
8

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 3
 la

m
p 

A/
B 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r 
R

et
ro

fit
 K

it,
 3

6W
, 4

00
0K

, 4
50

0 
lm

92
2

   
   

   
0.

18
 

   
   

   
   

   
  5

36
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 8
0 

36
2

   
   

 0
.0

7 
   

   
   

   
   

21
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
 3

1 
0.

1
32

6
$4

9
 $

   
   

   
 1

0 

37
1

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

C
om

m
on

24
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  U

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x2

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

22
W

, 4
00

0K
, 2

75
0 

lm
59

3
   

   
   

0.
18

 
   

   
   

   
  1

,5
46

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  2
32

 
22

3
   

   
 0

.0
7 

   
   

   
   

   
57

7 
 $

   
   

   
   

 8
6 

0.
1

97
0

$1
45

 $
   

   
   

 3
0 

37
2

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

C
om

m
on

24
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

23
W

, 4
00

0K
, 3

00
0 

lm
59

20
   

   
   

1.
18

 
   

   
   

   
10

,3
08

 
 $

   
   

   
  1

,5
46

 
23

20
   

   
 0

.4
6 

   
   

   
   

4,
01

9 
 $

   
   

   
  6

03
 

0.
7

62
90

$9
43

 $
   

   
  1

95
 

37
3

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

O
ut

 M
ed

ic
al

 
R

ec
or

ds
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

37
4

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

M
ai

n 
H

al
l /

 
C

om
m

on
 / 

Lo
bb

y
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
23

W
, 4

00
0K

, 3
00

0 
lm

59
28

   
   

   
1.

65
 

   
   

   
   

14
,4

32
 

 $
   

   
   

  2
,1

65
 

23
28

   
   

 0
.6

4 
   

   
   

   
5,

62
6 

 $
   

   
   

  8
44

 
1.

0
88

06
$1

,3
21

 $
   

   
  2

73
 

72



Pa
ge

 2
3 

of
 3

0
Pr

oj
ec

t -
- B

oo
k1

Ea
rth

 S
av

er
s 

Li
ne

Ac
tio

n
A/

C

#
B

ui
ld

in
g

Lo
ca

tio
n

Hr
s

D
ay

s
Ne

w
 

C
on

trl
 

Sa
ve

 (%
)

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

W
at

t/F
ix

t.
Fi

xt
. 

Q
ua

n
To

ta
l k

W
 A

nn
. k

W
h 

An
n.

 E
le

ct
. 

Ex
p.

W
at

t/F
ix

t.
Fi

xt
. 

Q
ua

n
To

ta
l k

W
An

n.
 k

W
h

An
n.

 E
le

ct
. 

Ex
p.

To
ta

l 
kW

An
n.

 k
W

h
An

n.
 E

le
ct

. 
Ex

p.

An
nu

al
 

A/
C

 
Sa

vi
ng

s

En
er

gy
 S

av
in

gs
 A

na
ly

si
s

Lo
ca

tio
n

O
pe

ra
tio

n
Ex

is
tin

g
Ne

w
Li

gh
tin

g 
En

er
gy

 S
av

in
gs

37
5

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

M
ai

n 
H

al
l /

 
C

om
m

on
 / 

Lo
bb

y
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  U
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x2
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
22

W
, 4

00
0K

, 2
75

0 
lm

59
1

   
   

   
0.

06
 

   
   

   
   

   
  5

15
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 7
7 

22
1

   
   

 0
.0

2 
   

   
   

   
   

19
2 

 $
   

   
   

   
 2

9 
0.

0
32

3
$4

8
 $

   
   

   
 1

0 

37
6

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

M
ai

n 
H

al
l /

 
C

om
m

on
 / 

Lo
bb

y
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  C
FL

 P
lu

g-
in

 - 
2 

la
m

p 
26

W
w

/E
IK

O
 L

ED
 

D
ow

nl
ig

ht
 K

it 
8"

, D
im

, (
12

-1
6-

22
W

), 
12

0-
27

7V
52

1
   

   
   

0.
05

 
   

   
   

   
   

  4
54

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 6

8 
12

1
   

   
 0

.0
1 

   
   

   
   

   
10

5 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
6 

0.
0

34
9

$5
2

 $
   

   
   

 1
1 

37
7

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

M
ai

n 
H

al
l /

 
C

om
m

on
 / 

Lo
bb

y
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  A
-la

m
p 

- 4
0W

w
/E

IK
O

 L
ED

 A
19

, E
26

, 8
W

40
2

   
   

   
0.

08
 

   
   

   
   

   
  6

99
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  1

05
 

8
2

   
   

 0
.0

2 
   

   
   

   
   

14
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
 2

1 
0.

1
55

9
$8

4
 $

   
   

   
 1

7 

37
8

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Ba
ck

 O
ut

 D
oo

r
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

37
9

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
ne

l C
lo

se
t

4
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 1
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

23
W

, 4
00

0K
, 3

00
0 

lm
59

1
   

   
   

0.
06

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 8

6 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 1

3 
23

1
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
  3

3 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
5 

0.
0

52
$8

 $
   

   
   

   
2 

38
0

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

W
ou

nd
 C

ar
e

8
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

23
W

, 4
00

0K
, 3

00
0 

lm
59

2
   

   
   

0.
12

 
   

   
   

   
   

  3
44

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 5

2 
23

2
   

   
 0

.0
5 

   
   

   
   

   
13

4 
 $

   
   

   
   

 2
0 

0.
1

21
0

$3
1

 $
   

   
   

   
7 

38
1

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

W
ou

nd
 C

ar
e

8
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  R

30
 - 

75
W

w
/E

IK
O

 L
ED

 A
19

, E
26

, 8
W

75
4

   
   

   
0.

30
 

   
   

   
   

   
  8

74
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  1

31
 

8
4

   
   

 0
.0

3 
   

   
   

   
   

  9
3 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

4 
0.

3
78

0
$1

17
 $

   
   

   
 2

4 

38
2

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

M
ar

ke
tin

g 
& 

Bu
si

ne
ss

8
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

12
 - 

4 
la

m
p 

A/
B 

40
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r 
R

et
ro

fit
 K

it,
 3

6W
, 4

00
0K

, 4
50

0 
lm

16
8

2
   

   
   

0.
34

 
   

   
   

   
   

  9
78

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  1
47

 
36

2
   

   
 0

.0
7 

   
   

   
   

   
21

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

 3
1 

0.
3

76
9

$1
15

 $
   

   
   

 2
4 

38
3

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

R
es

tro
om

24
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  A

-la
m

p 
- 6

0W
w

/E
IK

O
 L

ED
 A

19
, E

26
, 8

W
60

2
   

   
   

0.
12

 
   

   
   

   
  1

,0
48

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  1
57

 
8

2
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
14

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

 2
1 

0.
1

90
9

$1
36

 $
   

   
   

 2
8 

38
4

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
C

oo
rd

.
8

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 3
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
36

W
, 4

00
0K

, 4
50

0 
lm

85
1

   
   

   
0.

09
 

   
   

   
   

   
  2

48
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 3
7 

36
1

   
   

 0
.0

4 
   

   
   

   
   

10
5 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

6 
0.

0
14

3
$2

1
 $

   
   

   
   

4 

38
5

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
C

oo
rd

.
8

7
30

%
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  A
-la

m
p 

- 6
0W

w
/E

IK
O

 L
ED

 A
19

, E
26

, 8
W

60
2

   
   

   
0.

12
 

   
   

   
   

   
  3

49
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 5
2 

8
2

   
   

 0
.0

2 
   

   
   

   
   

  3
3 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

5 
0.

1
31

7
$4

8
 $

   
   

   
 1

0 

38
6

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

So
ci

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s

8
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 4

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

36
W

, 4
00

0K
, 4

50
0 

lm
11

4
2

   
   

   
0.

23
 

   
   

   
   

   
  6

64
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  1

00
 

36
2

   
   

 0
.0

7 
   

   
   

   
   

21
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
 3

1 
0.

2
45

4
$6

8
 $

   
   

   
 1

4 

38
7

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

O
ffi

ce
 M

-3
08

8
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

12
 - 

4 
la

m
p 

20
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x2
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
22

W
, 4

00
0K

, 2
75

0 
lm

91
1

   
   

   
0.

09
 

   
   

   
   

   
  2

65
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 4
0 

22
1

   
   

 0
.0

2 
   

   
   

   
   

  6
4 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

0 
0.

1
20

1
$3

0
 $

   
   

   
   

6 

38
8

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

R
es

tro
om

24
7

30
%

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

12
 - 

4 
la

m
p 

40
W

w
/4

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

4'
 

tu
be

16
8

1
   

   
   

0.
17

 
   

   
   

   
  1

,4
68

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  2
20

 
42

1
   

   
 0

.0
4 

   
   

   
   

   
25

7 
 $

   
   

   
   

 3
9 

0.
1

12
11

$1
82

 $
   

   
   

 3
8 

38
9

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

R
es

tro
om

24
7

30
%

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  A

-la
m

p 
- 6

0W
w

/E
IK

O
 L

ED
 A

19
, E

26
, 8

W
60

1
   

   
   

0.
06

 
   

   
   

   
   

  5
24

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 7

9 
8

1
   

   
 0

.0
1 

   
   

   
   

   
  4

9 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
7 

0.
1

47
5

$7
1

 $
   

   
   

 1
5 

39
0

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Ja
ni

to
rs

6
7

30
%

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
4'

 
tu

be
59

1
   

   
   

0.
06

 
   

   
   

   
   

  1
29

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 1

9 
21

1
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
  3

2 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
5 

0.
0

97
$1

5
 $

   
   

   
   

3 

39
1

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

C
le

an
 U

til
ity

8
7

30
%

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

12
 - 

2 
la

m
p 

40
W

w
/2

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

4'
 

tu
be

84
1

   
   

   
0.

08
 

   
   

   
   

   
  2

45
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 3
7 

21
1

   
   

 0
.0

2 
   

   
   

   
   

  4
3 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

6 
0.

1
20

2
$3

0
 $

   
   

   
   

6 

39
2

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

En
vi

ro
m

en
ta

l 
Se

rv
ic

es
12

7
30

%
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  A
-la

m
p 

- 1
00

W
w

/E
IK

O
 L

ED
 A

19
, E

26
, 8

W
10

0
1

   
   

   
0.

10
 

   
   

   
   

   
  4

37
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 6
6 

8
1

   
   

 0
.0

1 
   

   
   

   
   

  2
4 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

4 
0.

1
41

2
$6

2
 $

   
   

   
 1

3 

39
3

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Br
ea

k 
R

oo
m

24
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

12
 - 

4 
la

m
p 

40
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
36

W
, 4

00
0K

, 4
50

0 
lm

16
8

1
   

   
   

0.
17

 
   

   
   

   
  1

,4
68

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  2
20

 
36

1
   

   
 0

.0
4 

   
   

   
   

   
31

4 
 $

   
   

   
   

 4
7 

0.
1

11
53

$1
73

 $
   

   
   

 3
6 

39
4

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

O
ffi

ce
8

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
12

 - 
4 

la
m

p 
40

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

36
W

, 4
00

0K
, 4

50
0 

lm
16

8
2

   
   

   
0.

34
 

   
   

   
   

   
  9

78
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  1

47
 

36
2

   
   

 0
.0

7 
   

   
   

   
   

21
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
 3

1 
0.

3
76

9
$1

15
 $

   
   

   
 2

4 

39
5

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

M
ai

n 
H

al
lw

ay
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 4
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/4

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

4'
 

tu
be

11
4

6
   

   
   

0.
68

 
   

   
   

   
  5

,9
75

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  8
96

 
42

6
   

   
 0

.2
5 

   
   

   
   

2,
20

1 
 $

   
   

   
  3

30
 

0.
4

37
74

$5
66

 $
   

   
  1

17
 

39
6

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

M
ai

n 
H

al
lw

ay
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
12

 - 
4 

la
m

p 
A/

B 
40

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r 

R
et

ro
fit

 K
it,

 3
6W

, 4
00

0K
, 4

50
0 

lm
16

8
2

   
   

   
0.

34
 

   
   

   
   

  2
,9

35
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  4

40
 

36
2

   
   

 0
.0

7 
   

   
   

   
   

62
9 

 $
   

   
   

   
 9

4 
0.

3
23

06
$3

46
 $

   
   

   
 7

2 

39
7

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

M
ai

n 
H

al
lw

ay
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 4
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
36

W
, 4

00
0K

, 4
50

0 
lm

11
4

1
   

   
   

0.
11

 
   

   
   

   
   

  9
96

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  1
49

 
36

1
   

   
 0

.0
4 

   
   

   
   

   
31

4 
 $

   
   

   
   

 4
7 

0.
1

68
1

$1
02

 $
   

   
   

 2
1 

39
8

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

M
ai

n 
H

al
lw

ay
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 4
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
36

W
, 4

00
0K

, 4
50

0 
lm

11
4

2
   

   
   

0.
23

 
   

   
   

   
  1

,9
92

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  2
99

 
36

2
   

   
 0

.0
7 

   
   

   
   

   
62

9 
 $

   
   

   
   

 9
4 

0.
2

13
63

$2
04

 $
   

   
   

 4
2 

39
9

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Ba
ck

 T
hr

ou
gh

 
D

ou
bl

e 
D

oo
r

   
   

   
   

-  
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
  -

   

40
0

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

O
ffi

ce
 M

-3
03

8
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  A

-la
m

p 
- 6

0W
w

/E
IK

O
 L

ED
 A

19
, E

26
, 8

W
60

4
   

   
   

0.
24

 
   

   
   

   
   

  6
99

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  1
05

 
8

4
   

   
 0

.0
3 

   
   

   
   

   
  9

3 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

0.
2

60
6

$9
1

 $
   

   
   

 1
9 

40
1

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

R
es

tro
om

24
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
17

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
2'

 
tu

be
31

1
   

   
   

0.
03

 
   

   
   

   
   

  2
71

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 4

1 
18

1
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
15

7 
 $

   
   

   
   

 2
4 

0.
0

11
4

$1
7

 $
   

   
   

   
4 

40
2

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

R
es

tro
om

24
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  A

-la
m

p 
- 6

0W
w

/E
IK

O
 L

ED
 A

19
, E

26
, 8

W
60

1
   

   
   

0.
06

 
   

   
   

   
   

  5
24

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 7

9 
8

1
   

   
 0

.0
1 

   
   

   
   

   
  7

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
0 

0.
1

45
4

$6
8

 $
   

   
   

 1
4 

40
3

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

O
ffi

ce
 M

-3
05

8
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

12
 - 

2 
la

m
p 

40
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
23

W
, 4

00
0K

, 3
00

0 
lm

84
2

   
   

   
0.

17
 

   
   

   
   

   
  4

89
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 7
3 

23
2

   
   

 0
.0

5 
   

   
   

   
   

13
4 

 $
   

   
   

   
 2

0 
0.

1
35

5
$5

3
 $

   
   

   
 1

1 

40
4

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

O
ffi

ce
 M

-3
05

8
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

12
 - 

4 
la

m
p 

20
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x2
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
22

W
, 4

00
0K

, 2
75

0 
lm

91
2

   
   

   
0.

18
 

   
   

   
   

   
  5

30
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 7
9 

22
2

   
   

 0
.0

4 
   

   
   

   
   

12
8 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

9 
0.

1
40

2
$6

0
 $

   
   

   
 1

2 

40
5

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

R
es

tro
om

24
7

30
%

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

12
 - 

2 
la

m
p 

20
W

w
/2

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

2'
 

tu
be

50
1

   
   

   
0.

05
 

   
   

   
   

   
  4

37
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 6
6 

18
1

   
   

 0
.0

2 
   

   
   

   
   

11
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

7 
0.

0
32

7
$4

9
 $

   
   

   
 1

0 

40
6

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Bi
oM

ed
ic

al
12

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
12

 - 
2 

la
m

p 
40

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

23
W

, 4
00

0K
, 3

00
0 

lm
84

2
   

   
   

0.
17

 
   

   
   

   
   

  7
34

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  1
10

 
23

2
   

   
 0

.0
5 

   
   

   
   

   
20

1 
 $

   
   

   
   

 3
0 

0.
1

53
3

$8
0

 $
   

   
   

 1
7 

40
7

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Bi
oM

ed
ic

al
12

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
12

 - 
3 

la
m

p 
20

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x2

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

22
W

, 4
00

0K
, 2

75
0 

lm
64

2
   

   
   

0.
13

 
   

   
   

   
   

  5
59

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 8

4 
22

2
   

   
 0

.0
4 

   
   

   
   

   
19

2 
 $

   
   

   
   

 2
9 

0.
1

36
7

$5
5

 $
   

   
   

 1
1 

40
8

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Bi
oM

ed
ic

al
 - 

R
es

tro
om

12
7

30
%

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

12
 - 

2 
la

m
p 

20
W

w
/2

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

2'
 

tu
be

50
1

   
   

   
0.

05
 

   
   

   
   

   
  2

18
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 3
3 

18
1

   
   

 0
.0

2 
   

   
   

   
   

  5
5 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

8 
0.

0
16

3
$2

5
 $

   
   

   
   

5 

40
9

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

O
ffi

ce
8

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
12

 - 
2 

la
m

p 
40

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

23
W

, 4
00

0K
, 3

00
0 

lm
84

2
   

   
   

0.
17

 
   

   
   

   
   

  4
89

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 7

3 
23

2
   

   
 0

.0
5 

   
   

   
   

   
13

4 
 $

   
   

   
   

 2
0 

0.
1

35
5

$5
3

 $
   

   
   

 1
1 

41
0

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

O
ffi

ce
8

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
12

 - 
4 

la
m

p 
20

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x2

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

22
W

, 4
00

0K
, 2

75
0 

lm
91

2
   

   
   

0.
18

 
   

   
   

   
   

  5
30

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 7

9 
22

2
   

   
 0

.0
4 

   
   

   
   

   
12

8 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
9 

0.
1

40
2

$6
0

 $
   

   
   

 1
2 

41
1

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

O
ffi

ce
 - 

R
es

tro
om

8
7

30
%

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

12
 - 

2 
la

m
p 

20
W

w
/2

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

2'
 

tu
be

50
1

   
   

   
0.

05
 

   
   

   
   

   
  1

46
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 2
2 

18
1

   
   

 0
.0

2 
   

   
   

   
   

  3
7 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

6 
0.

0
10

9
$1

6
 $

   
   

   
   

3 

73



Pa
ge

 2
4 

of
 3

0
Pr

oj
ec

t -
- B

oo
k1

Ea
rth

 S
av

er
s 

Li
ne

Ac
tio

n
A/

C

#
B

ui
ld

in
g

Lo
ca

tio
n

Hr
s

D
ay

s
Ne

w
 

C
on

trl
 

Sa
ve

 (%
)

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

W
at

t/F
ix

t.
Fi

xt
. 

Q
ua

n
To

ta
l k

W
 A

nn
. k

W
h 

An
n.

 E
le

ct
. 

Ex
p.

W
at

t/F
ix

t.
Fi

xt
. 

Q
ua

n
To

ta
l k

W
An

n.
 k

W
h

An
n.

 E
le

ct
. 

Ex
p.

To
ta

l 
kW

An
n.

 k
W

h
An

n.
 E

le
ct

. 
Ex

p.

An
nu

al
 

A/
C

 
Sa

vi
ng

s

En
er

gy
 S

av
in

gs
 A

na
ly

si
s

Lo
ca

tio
n

O
pe

ra
tio

n
Ex

is
tin

g
Ne

w
Li

gh
tin

g 
En

er
gy

 S
av

in
gs

41
2

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

M
ai

n 
H

al
lw

ay
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 4
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/4

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

4'
 

tu
be

11
4

4
   

   
   

0.
46

 
   

   
   

   
  3

,9
84

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  5
98

 
42

4
   

   
 0

.1
7 

   
   

   
   

1,
46

8 
 $

   
   

   
  2

20
 

0.
3

25
16

$3
77

 $
   

   
   

 7
8 

41
3

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

M
ai

n 
H

al
lw

ay
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 3
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
36

W
, 4

00
0K

, 4
50

0 
lm

85
6

   
   

   
0.

51
 

   
   

   
   

  4
,4

55
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  6

68
 

36
6

   
   

 0
.2

2 
   

   
   

   
1,

88
7 

 $
   

   
   

  2
83

 
0.

3
25

68
$3

85
 $

   
   

   
 8

0 

41
4

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Ba
ck

 O
ut

 D
ou

bl
e 

D
oo

r
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

41
5

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

El
ev

at
or

 L
ob

by
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
23

W
, 4

00
0K

, 3
00

0 
lm

59
1

   
   

   
0.

06
 

   
   

   
   

   
  5

15
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 7
7 

23
1

   
   

 0
.0

2 
   

   
   

   
   

20
1 

 $
   

   
   

   
 3

0 
0.

0
31

4
$4

7
 $

   
   

   
 1

0 

41
6

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

R
ec

ei
vi

ng
12

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/2

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

4'
 

tu
be

59
3

   
   

   
0.

18
 

   
   

   
   

   
  7

73
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  1

16
 

21
3

   
   

 0
.0

6 
   

   
   

   
   

27
5 

 $
   

   
   

   
 4

1 
0.

1
49

8
$7

5
 $

   
   

   
 1

5 

41
7

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Ja
ni

to
rs

6
7

30
%

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  C

FL
 S

cr
ew

-in
 - 

20
W

w
/E

IK
O

 L
ED

 A
19

, E
26

, 
8W

20
1

   
   

   
0.

02
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 4
4 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
7 

8
1

   
   

 0
.0

1 
   

   
   

   
   

  1
2 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

2 
0.

0
31

$5
 $

   
   

   
   

1 

41
8

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Se
rv

er
 R

oo
m

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
4'

 
tu

be
59

1
   

   
   

0.
06

 
   

   
   

   
   

  1
29

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 1

9 
21

1
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
  4

6 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
7 

0.
0

83
$1

2
 $

   
   

   
   

3 

41
9

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Ph
ar

m
ac

y
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

42
0

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

La
b

12
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 1
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

23
W

, 4
00

0K
, 3

00
0 

lm
59

2
   

   
   

0.
12

 
   

   
   

   
   

  5
15

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 7

7 
23

2
   

   
 0

.0
5 

   
   

   
   

   
20

1 
 $

   
   

   
   

 3
0 

0.
1

31
4

$4
7

 $
   

   
   

 1
0 

42
1

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

La
b

12
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 1
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

23
W

, 4
00

0K
, 3

00
0 

lm
59

2
   

   
   

0.
12

 
   

   
   

   
   

  5
15

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 7

7 
23

2
   

   
 0

.0
5 

   
   

   
   

   
20

1 
 $

   
   

   
   

 3
0 

0.
1

31
4

$4
7

 $
   

   
   

 1
0 

42
2

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

C
om

m
on

24
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 4

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

36
W

, 4
00

0K
, 4

50
0 

lm
11

4
6

   
   

   
0.

68
 

   
   

   
   

  5
,9

75
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  8

96
 

36
6

   
   

 0
.2

2 
   

   
   

   
1,

88
7 

 $
   

   
   

  2
83

 
0.

5
40

88
$6

13
 $

   
   

  1
27

 

42
3

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

O
ut

 P
ha

rm
ac

y
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

42
4

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Th
ro

ug
h 

D
ou

bl
e 

D
oo

r
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

42
5

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Th
ro

ug
h 

D
oo

r
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

42
6

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

St
or

ag
e 

R
oo

m
6

7
30

%
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/2

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

4'
 

tu
be

59
1

   
   

   
0.

06
 

   
   

   
   

   
  1

29
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 1
9 

21
1

   
   

 0
.0

2 
   

   
   

   
   

  3
2 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

5 
0.

0
97

$1
5

 $
   

   
   

   
3 

42
7

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Ja
ni

to
rs

6
7

30
%

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  C

FL
 P

lu
g-

in
 - 

2 
la

m
p 

13
W

w
/E

IK
O

 L
ED

 A
19

, 
E2

6,
 8

W
26

1
   

   
   

0.
03

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 5

7 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

9 
8

1
   

   
 0

.0
1 

   
   

   
   

   
  1

2 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
2 

0.
0

45
$7

 $
   

   
   

   
1 

42
8

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 1
16

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
4'

 
tu

be
59

2
   

   
   

0.
12

 
   

   
   

   
   

  2
58

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 3

9 
21

2
   

   
 0

.0
4 

   
   

   
   

   
  9

2 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

0.
1

16
6

$2
5

 $
   

   
   

   
5 

42
9

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 1
16

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 4

 la
m

p 
A/

B 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r 

R
et

ro
fit

 K
it,

 3
6W

, 4
00

0K
, 4

50
0 

lm
11

6
4

   
   

   
0.

46
 

   
   

   
   

  1
,0

13
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  1

52
 

36
4

   
   

 0
.1

4 
   

   
   

   
   

31
4 

 $
   

   
   

   
 4

7 
0.

3
69

9
$1

05
 $

   
   

   
 2

2 

43
0

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 1
16

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  C

FL
 S

cr
ew

-in
 - 

20
W

w
/E

IK
O

 L
ED

 A
19

, E
26

, 
8W

20
1

   
   

   
0.

02
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 4
4 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
7 

8
1

   
   

 0
.0

1 
   

   
   

   
   

  1
7 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

3 
0.

0
26

$4
 $

   
   

   
   

1 

43
1

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 1
16

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  C

FL
 S

cr
ew

-in
 - 

20
W

w
/E

IK
O

 L
ED

 A
19

, E
26

, 
8W

20
1

   
   

   
0.

02
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 4
4 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
7 

8
1

   
   

 0
.0

1 
   

   
   

   
   

  1
7 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

3 
0.

0
26

$4
 $

   
   

   
   

1 

43
2

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 1
16

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  A

-la
m

p 
- 6

0W
w

/E
IK

O
 L

ED
 D

ow
nl

ig
ht

 K
it,

 6
", 

D
im

, 1
2W

60
1

   
   

   
0.

06
 

   
   

   
   

   
  1

31
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 2
0 

12
1

   
   

 0
.0

1 
   

   
   

   
   

  2
6 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

4 
0.

0
10

5
$1

6
 $

   
   

   
   

3 

43
3

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 1
16

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  C

FL
 S

cr
ew

-in
 - 

20
W

w
/E

IK
O

 L
ED

 A
19

, E
26

, 
8W

20
1

   
   

   
0.

02
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 4
4 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
7 

8
1

   
   

 0
.0

1 
   

   
   

   
   

  1
7 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

3 
0.

0
26

$4
 $

   
   

   
   

1 

43
4

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 1
16

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  C

FL
 P

lu
g-

in
 - 

1 
la

m
p 

13
W

w
/1

 e
a.

 E
IK

O
 

LE
D

5W
2P

/G
23

/8
40

D
M

-G
7B

13
1

   
   

   
0.

01
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 2
8 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
4 

5
1

   
   

 0
.0

1 
   

   
   

   
   

  1
1 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

2 
0.

0
17

$3
 $

   
   

   
   

1 

43
5

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Sa
rt 

R
oo

m
6

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/2

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

4'
 

tu
be

59
2

   
   

   
0.

12
 

   
   

   
   

   
  2

58
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 3
9 

21
2

   
   

 0
.0

4 
   

   
   

   
   

  9
2 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

4 
0.

1
16

6
$2

5
 $

   
   

   
   

5 

43
6

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Sa
rt 

R
oo

m
6

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 4
 la

m
p 

A/
B 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r 
R

et
ro

fit
 K

it,
 3

6W
, 4

00
0K

, 4
50

0 
lm

11
6

2
   

   
   

0.
23

 
   

   
   

   
   

  5
07

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 7

6 
36

2
   

   
 0

.0
7 

   
   

   
   

   
15

7 
 $

   
   

   
   

 2
4 

0.
2

34
9

$5
2

 $
   

   
   

 1
1 

43
7

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Sa
rt 

R
oo

m
6

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

17
W

w
/2

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

2'
 

tu
be

31
1

   
   

   
0.

03
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 6
8 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 1
0 

18
1

   
   

 0
.0

2 
   

   
   

   
   

  3
9 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

6 
0.

0
28

$4
 $

   
   

   
   

1 

43
8

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

R
es

tro
om

24
7

30
%

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
4'

 
tu

be
59

1
   

   
   

0.
06

 
   

   
   

   
   

  5
15

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 7

7 
21

1
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
12

8 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
9 

0.
0

38
7

$5
8

 $
   

   
   

 1
2 

43
9

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
15

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
4'

 
tu

be
59

2
   

   
   

0.
12

 
   

   
   

   
   

  2
58

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 3

9 
21

2
   

   
 0

.0
4 

   
   

   
   

   
  9

2 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

0.
1

16
6

$2
5

 $
   

   
   

   
5 

44
0

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
15

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 4

 la
m

p 
A/

B 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r 

R
et

ro
fit

 K
it,

 3
6W

, 4
00

0K
, 4

50
0 

lm
11

6
4

   
   

   
0.

46
 

   
   

   
   

  1
,0

13
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  1

52
 

36
4

   
   

 0
.1

4 
   

   
   

   
   

31
4 

 $
   

   
   

   
 4

7 
0.

3
69

9
$1

05
 $

   
   

   
 2

2 

44
1

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
15

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
17

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
2'

 
tu

be
31

1
   

   
   

0.
03

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 6

8 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 1

0 
18

1
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
  3

9 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
6 

0.
0

28
$4

 $
   

   
   

   
1 

44
2

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
15

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  C

FL
 P

lu
g-

in
 - 

1 
la

m
p 

13
W

w
/1

 e
a.

 E
IK

O
 

LE
D

5W
2P

/G
23

/8
40

D
M

-G
7B

13
1

   
   

   
0.

01
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 2
8 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
4 

5
1

   
   

 0
.0

1 
   

   
   

   
   

  1
1 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

2 
0.

0
17

$3
 $

   
   

   
   

1 

44
3

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
15

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
17

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
2'

 
tu

be
31

1
   

   
   

0.
03

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 6

8 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 1

0 
18

1
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
  3

9 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
6 

0.
0

28
$4

 $
   

   
   

   
1 

44
4

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
15

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  A

-la
m

p 
- 6

0W
w

/E
IK

O
 L

ED
 D

ow
nl

ig
ht

 K
it,

 6
", 

D
im

, 1
2W

60
1

   
   

   
0.

06
 

   
   

   
   

   
  1

31
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 2
0 

12
1

   
   

 0
.0

1 
   

   
   

   
   

  2
6 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

4 
0.

0
10

5
$1

6
 $

   
   

   
   

3 

44
5

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
14

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
4'

 
tu

be
59

2
   

   
   

0.
12

 
   

   
   

   
   

  2
58

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 3

9 
21

2
   

   
 0

.0
4 

   
   

   
   

   
  9

2 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

0.
1

16
6

$2
5

 $
   

   
   

   
5 

44
6

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
14

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 4

 la
m

p 
A/

B 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r 

R
et

ro
fit

 K
it,

 3
6W

, 4
00

0K
, 4

50
0 

lm
11

6
4

   
   

   
0.

46
 

   
   

   
   

  1
,0

13
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  1

52
 

36
4

   
   

 0
.1

4 
   

   
   

   
   

31
4 

 $
   

   
   

   
 4

7 
0.

3
69

9
$1

05
 $

   
   

   
 2

2 

74



Pa
ge

 2
5 

of
 3

0
Pr

oj
ec

t -
- B

oo
k1

Ea
rth

 S
av

er
s 

Li
ne

Ac
tio

n
A/

C

#
B

ui
ld

in
g

Lo
ca

tio
n

Hr
s

D
ay

s
Ne

w
 

C
on

trl
 

Sa
ve

 (%
)

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

W
at

t/F
ix

t.
Fi

xt
. 

Q
ua

n
To

ta
l k

W
 A

nn
. k

W
h 

An
n.

 E
le

ct
. 

Ex
p.

W
at

t/F
ix

t.
Fi

xt
. 

Q
ua

n
To

ta
l k

W
An

n.
 k

W
h

An
n.

 E
le

ct
. 

Ex
p.

To
ta

l 
kW

An
n.

 k
W

h
An

n.
 E

le
ct

. 
Ex

p.

An
nu

al
 

A/
C

 
Sa

vi
ng

s

En
er

gy
 S

av
in

gs
 A

na
ly

si
s

Lo
ca

tio
n

O
pe

ra
tio

n
Ex

is
tin

g
Ne

w
Li

gh
tin

g 
En

er
gy

 S
av

in
gs

44
7

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
14

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
17

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
2'

 
tu

be
31

1
   

   
   

0.
03

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 6

8 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 1

0 
18

1
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
  3

9 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
6 

0.
0

28
$4

 $
   

   
   

   
1 

44
8

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
14

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  C

FL
 P

lu
g-

in
 - 

1 
la

m
p 

13
W

w
/1

 e
a.

 E
IK

O
 

LE
D

5W
2P

/G
23

/8
40

D
M

-G
7B

13
1

   
   

   
0.

01
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 2
8 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
4 

5
1

   
   

 0
.0

1 
   

   
   

   
   

  1
1 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

2 
0.

0
17

$3
 $

   
   

   
   

1 

44
9

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
14

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
17

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
2'

 
tu

be
31

1
   

   
   

0.
03

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 6

8 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 1

0 
18

1
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
  3

9 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
6 

0.
0

28
$4

 $
   

   
   

   
1 

45
0

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
14

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  A

-la
m

p 
- 6

0W
w

/E
IK

O
 L

ED
 D

ow
nl

ig
ht

 K
it,

 6
", 

D
im

, 1
2W

60
1

   
   

   
0.

06
 

   
   

   
   

   
  1

31
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 2
0 

12
1

   
   

 0
.0

1 
   

   
   

   
   

  2
6 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

4 
0.

0
10

5
$1

6
 $

   
   

   
   

3 

45
1

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
13

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
4'

 
tu

be
59

2
   

   
   

0.
12

 
   

   
   

   
   

  2
58

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 3

9 
21

2
   

   
 0

.0
4 

   
   

   
   

   
  9

2 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

0.
1

16
6

$2
5

 $
   

   
   

   
5 

45
2

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
13

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 4

 la
m

p 
A/

B 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r 

R
et

ro
fit

 K
it,

 3
6W

, 4
00

0K
, 4

50
0 

lm
11

6
4

   
   

   
0.

46
 

   
   

   
   

  1
,0

13
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  1

52
 

36
4

   
   

 0
.1

4 
   

   
   

   
   

31
4 

 $
   

   
   

   
 4

7 
0.

3
69

9
$1

05
 $

   
   

   
 2

2 

45
3

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
13

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
17

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
2'

 
tu

be
31

1
   

   
   

0.
03

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 6

8 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 1

0 
18

1
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
  3

9 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
6 

0.
0

28
$4

 $
   

   
   

   
1 

45
4

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
13

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  C

FL
 P

lu
g-

in
 - 

1 
la

m
p 

13
W

w
/1

 e
a.

 E
IK

O
 

LE
D

5W
2P

/G
23

/8
40

D
M

-G
7B

13
1

   
   

   
0.

01
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 2
8 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
4 

5
1

   
   

 0
.0

1 
   

   
   

   
   

  1
1 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

2 
0.

0
17

$3
 $

   
   

   
   

1 

45
5

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
13

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
17

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
2'

 
tu

be
31

1
   

   
   

0.
03

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 6

8 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 1

0 
18

1
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
  3

9 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
6 

0.
0

28
$4

 $
   

   
   

   
1 

45
6

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
13

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  A

-la
m

p 
- 6

0W
w

/E
IK

O
 L

ED
 D

ow
nl

ig
ht

 K
it,

 6
", 

D
im

, 1
2W

60
1

   
   

   
0.

06
 

   
   

   
   

   
  1

31
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 2
0 

12
1

   
   

 0
.0

1 
   

   
   

   
   

  2
6 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

4 
0.

0
10

5
$1

6
 $

   
   

   
   

3 

45
7

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

C
lo

se
t

6
7

30
%

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
4'

 
tu

be
59

1
   

   
   

0.
06

 
   

   
   

   
   

  1
29

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 1

9 
21

1
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
  3

2 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
5 

0.
0

97
$1

5
 $

   
   

   
   

3 

45
8

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

C
ar

e 
C

oo
rd

. 
O

ffi
ce

8
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

23
W

, 4
00

0K
, 3

00
0 

lm
59

1
   

   
   

0.
06

 
   

   
   

   
   

  1
72

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 2

6 
23

1
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
  6

7 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
0 

0.
0

10
5

$1
6

 $
   

   
   

   
3 

45
9

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

C
ar

e 
C

oo
rd

. 
O

ffi
ce

8
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 3

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

36
W

, 4
00

0K
, 4

50
0 

lm
85

3
   

   
   

0.
26

 
   

   
   

   
   

  7
43

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  1
11

 
36

3
   

   
 0

.1
1 

   
   

   
   

   
31

4 
 $

   
   

   
   

 4
7 

0.
1

42
8

$6
4

 $
   

   
   

 1
3 

46
0

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
ss

 D
ou

bl
e 

D
oo

r
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

46
1

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

C
le

an
 U

til
ity

 
R

oo
m

8
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 4

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

36
W

, 4
00

0K
, 4

50
0 

lm
11

4
1

   
   

   
0.

11
 

   
   

   
   

   
  3

32
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 5
0 

36
1

   
   

 0
.0

4 
   

   
   

   
   

10
5 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

6 
0.

1
22

7
$3

4
 $

   
   

   
   

7 

46
2

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

So
ile

d 
U

til
ity

 
R

oo
m

8
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 4

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

36
W

, 4
00

0K
, 4

50
0 

lm
11

4
1

   
   

   
0.

11
 

   
   

   
   

   
  3

32
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 5
0 

36
1

   
   

 0
.0

4 
   

   
   

   
   

10
5 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

6 
0.

1
22

7
$3

4
 $

   
   

   
   

7 

46
3

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

M
ai

n 
C

om
m

on
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  C
FL

 P
lu

g-
in

 - 
2 

la
m

p 
26

W
w

/E
IK

O
 L

ED
 

D
ow

nl
ig

ht
 K

it 
8"

, D
im

, (
12

-1
6-

22
W

), 
12

0-
27

7V
52

6
   

   
   

0.
31

 
   

   
   

   
  2

,7
26

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  4
09

 
12

6
   

   
 0

.0
7 

   
   

   
   

   
62

9 
 $

   
   

   
   

 9
4 

0.
2

20
97

$3
14

 $
   

   
   

 6
5 

46
4

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

M
ai

n 
C

om
m

on
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
23

W
, 4

00
0K

, 3
00

0 
lm

59
10

   
   

   
0.

59
 

   
   

   
   

  5
,1

54
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  7

73
 

23
10

   
   

 0
.2

3 
   

   
   

   
2,

00
9 

 $
   

   
   

  3
01

 
0.

4
31

45
$4

72
 $

   
   

   
 9

8 

46
5

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Ba
ck

 O
ut

 D
oo

r
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

46
6

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
ss

 D
ou

bl
e 

D
oo

r
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

46
7

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

W
ai

tin
g 

R
oo

m
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 3
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
36

W
, 4

00
0K

, 4
50

0 
lm

85
2

   
   

   
0.

17
 

   
   

   
   

  1
,4

85
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  2

23
 

36
2

   
   

 0
.0

7 
   

   
   

   
   

62
9 

 $
   

   
   

   
 9

4 
0.

1
85

6
$1

28
 $

   
   

   
 2

7 

46
8

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

An
te

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
17

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x2

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

22
W

, 4
00

0K
, 2

75
0 

lm
31

1
   

   
   

0.
03

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 6

8 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 1

0 
22

1
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
  4

8 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
7 

0.
0

20
$3

 $
   

   
   

   
1 

46
9

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
01

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
4'

 
tu

be
59

2
   

   
   

0.
12

 
   

   
   

   
   

  2
58

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 3

9 
21

2
   

   
 0

.0
4 

   
   

   
   

   
  9

2 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

0.
1

16
6

$2
5

 $
   

   
   

   
5 

47
0

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
01

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 4

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

36
W

, 4
00

0K
, 4

50
0 

lm
11

4
1

   
   

   
0.

11
 

   
   

   
   

   
  2

49
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 3
7 

36
1

   
   

 0
.0

4 
   

   
   

   
   

  7
9 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

2 
0.

1
17

0
$2

6
 $

   
   

   
   

5 

47
1

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
01

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  C

FL
 P

lu
g-

in
 - 

1 
la

m
p 

13
W

w
/1

 e
a.

 E
IK

O
 

LE
D

5W
2P

/G
23

/8
40

D
M

-G
7B

13
1

   
   

   
0.

01
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 2
8 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
4 

5
1

   
   

 0
.0

1 
   

   
   

   
   

  1
1 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

2 
0.

0
17

$3
 $

   
   

   
   

1 

47
2

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
01

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
17

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
2'

 
tu

be
31

1
   

   
   

0.
03

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 6

8 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 1

0 
18

1
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
  3

9 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
6 

0.
0

28
$4

 $
   

   
   

   
1 

47
3

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
01

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  A

-la
m

p 
- 6

0W
w

/E
IK

O
 L

ED
 D

ow
nl

ig
ht

 K
it,

 6
", 

D
im

, 1
2W

60
1

   
   

   
0.

06
 

   
   

   
   

   
  1

31
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 2
0 

12
1

   
   

 0
.0

1 
   

   
   

   
   

  2
6 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

4 
0.

0
10

5
$1

6
 $

   
   

   
   

3 

47
4

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
02

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
4'

 
tu

be
59

2
   

   
   

0.
12

 
   

   
   

   
   

  2
58

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 3

9 
21

2
   

   
 0

.0
4 

   
   

   
   

   
  9

2 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

0.
1

16
6

$2
5

 $
   

   
   

   
5 

47
5

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
02

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 4

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

36
W

, 4
00

0K
, 4

50
0 

lm
11

4
1

   
   

   
0.

11
 

   
   

   
   

   
  2

49
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 3
7 

36
1

   
   

 0
.0

4 
   

   
   

   
   

  7
9 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

2 
0.

1
17

0
$2

6
 $

   
   

   
   

5 

47
6

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
02

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  C

FL
 P

lu
g-

in
 - 

1 
la

m
p 

13
W

w
/1

 e
a.

 E
IK

O
 

LE
D

5W
2P

/G
23

/8
40

D
M

-G
7B

13
1

   
   

   
0.

01
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 2
8 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
4 

5
1

   
   

 0
.0

1 
   

   
   

   
   

  1
1 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

2 
0.

0
17

$3
 $

   
   

   
   

1 

47
7

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
02

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
17

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
2'

 
tu

be
31

1
   

   
   

0.
03

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 6

8 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 1

0 
18

1
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
  3

9 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
6 

0.
0

28
$4

 $
   

   
   

   
1 

47
8

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
02

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  A

-la
m

p 
- 6

0W
w

/E
IK

O
 L

ED
 D

ow
nl

ig
ht

 K
it,

 6
", 

D
im

, 1
2W

60
1

   
   

   
0.

06
 

   
   

   
   

   
  1

31
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 2
0 

12
1

   
   

 0
.0

1 
   

   
   

   
   

  2
6 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

4 
0.

0
10

5
$1

6
 $

   
   

   
   

3 

47
9

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
03

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
4'

 
tu

be
59

2
   

   
   

0.
12

 
   

   
   

   
   

  2
58

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 3

9 
21

2
   

   
 0

.0
4 

   
   

   
   

   
  9

2 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

0.
1

16
6

$2
5

 $
   

   
   

   
5 

48
0

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
03

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 4

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

36
W

, 4
00

0K
, 4

50
0 

lm
11

4
1

   
   

   
0.

11
 

   
   

   
   

   
  2

49
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 3
7 

36
1

   
   

 0
.0

4 
   

   
   

   
   

  7
9 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

2 
0.

1
17

0
$2

6
 $

   
   

   
   

5 

48
1

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
03

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  C

FL
 P

lu
g-

in
 - 

1 
la

m
p 

13
W

w
/1

 e
a.

 E
IK

O
 

LE
D

5W
2P

/G
23

/8
40

D
M

-G
7B

13
1

   
   

   
0.

01
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 2
8 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
4 

5
1

   
   

 0
.0

1 
   

   
   

   
   

  1
1 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

2 
0.

0
17

$3
 $

   
   

   
   

1 

75



Pa
ge

 2
6 

of
 3

0
Pr

oj
ec

t -
- B

oo
k1

Ea
rth

 S
av

er
s 

Li
ne

Ac
tio

n
A/

C

#
B

ui
ld

in
g

Lo
ca

tio
n

Hr
s

D
ay

s
Ne

w
 

C
on

trl
 

Sa
ve

 (%
)

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

W
at

t/F
ix

t.
Fi

xt
. 

Q
ua

n
To

ta
l k

W
 A

nn
. k

W
h 

An
n.

 E
le

ct
. 

Ex
p.

W
at

t/F
ix

t.
Fi

xt
. 

Q
ua

n
To

ta
l k

W
An

n.
 k

W
h

An
n.

 E
le

ct
. 

Ex
p.

To
ta

l 
kW

An
n.

 k
W

h
An

n.
 E

le
ct

. 
Ex

p.

An
nu

al
 

A/
C

 
Sa

vi
ng

s

En
er

gy
 S

av
in

gs
 A

na
ly

si
s

Lo
ca

tio
n

O
pe

ra
tio

n
Ex

is
tin

g
Ne

w
Li

gh
tin

g 
En

er
gy

 S
av

in
gs

48
2

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
03

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
17

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
2'

 
tu

be
31

1
   

   
   

0.
03

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 6

8 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 1

0 
18

1
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
  3

9 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
6 

0.
0

28
$4

 $
   

   
   

   
1 

48
3

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
03

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  A

-la
m

p 
- 6

0W
w

/E
IK

O
 L

ED
 D

ow
nl

ig
ht

 K
it,

 6
", 

D
im

, 1
2W

60
1

   
   

   
0.

06
 

   
   

   
   

   
  1

31
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 2
0 

12
1

   
   

 0
.0

1 
   

   
   

   
   

  2
6 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

4 
0.

0
10

5
$1

6
 $

   
   

   
   

3 

48
4

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
04

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
4'

 
tu

be
59

2
   

   
   

0.
12

 
   

   
   

   
   

  2
58

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 3

9 
21

2
   

   
 0

.0
4 

   
   

   
   

   
  9

2 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

0.
1

16
6

$2
5

 $
   

   
   

   
5 

48
5

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
04

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 4

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

36
W

, 4
00

0K
, 4

50
0 

lm
11

4
1

   
   

   
0.

11
 

   
   

   
   

   
  2

49
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 3
7 

36
1

   
   

 0
.0

4 
   

   
   

   
   

  7
9 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

2 
0.

1
17

0
$2

6
 $

   
   

   
   

5 

48
6

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
04

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  C

FL
 P

lu
g-

in
 - 

1 
la

m
p 

13
W

w
/1

 e
a.

 E
IK

O
 

LE
D

5W
2P

/G
23

/8
40

D
M

-G
7B

13
1

   
   

   
0.

01
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 2
8 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
4 

5
1

   
   

 0
.0

1 
   

   
   

   
   

  1
1 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

2 
0.

0
17

$3
 $

   
   

   
   

1 

48
7

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
04

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
17

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
2'

 
tu

be
31

1
   

   
   

0.
03

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 6

8 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 1

0 
18

1
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
  3

9 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
6 

0.
0

28
$4

 $
   

   
   

   
1 

48
8

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
04

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  A

-la
m

p 
- 6

0W
w

/E
IK

O
 L

ED
 D

ow
nl

ig
ht

 K
it,

 6
", 

D
im

, 1
2W

60
1

   
   

   
0.

06
 

   
   

   
   

   
  1

31
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 2
0 

12
1

   
   

 0
.0

1 
   

   
   

   
   

  2
6 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

4 
0.

0
10

5
$1

6
 $

   
   

   
   

3 

48
9

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
04

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
4'

 
tu

be
59

2
   

   
   

0.
12

 
   

   
   

   
   

  2
58

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 3

9 
21

2
   

   
 0

.0
4 

   
   

   
   

   
  9

2 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

0.
1

16
6

$2
5

 $
   

   
   

   
5 

49
0

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
04

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 4

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

36
W

, 4
00

0K
, 4

50
0 

lm
11

4
1

   
   

   
0.

11
 

   
   

   
   

   
  2

49
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 3
7 

36
1

   
   

 0
.0

4 
   

   
   

   
   

  7
9 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

2 
0.

1
17

0
$2

6
 $

   
   

   
   

5 

49
1

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
04

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  C

FL
 P

lu
g-

in
 - 

1 
la

m
p 

13
W

w
/1

 e
a.

 E
IK

O
 

LE
D

5W
2P

/G
23

/8
40

D
M

-G
7B

13
1

   
   

   
0.

01
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 2
8 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
4 

5
1

   
   

 0
.0

1 
   

   
   

   
   

  1
1 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

2 
0.

0
17

$3
 $

   
   

   
   

1 

49
2

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
04

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
17

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
2'

 
tu

be
31

1
   

   
   

0.
03

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 6

8 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 1

0 
18

1
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
  3

9 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
6 

0.
0

28
$4

 $
   

   
   

   
1 

49
3

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
04

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  A

-la
m

p 
- 6

0W
w

/E
IK

O
 L

ED
 D

ow
nl

ig
ht

 K
it,

 6
", 

D
im

, 1
2W

60
1

   
   

   
0.

06
 

   
   

   
   

   
  1

31
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 2
0 

12
1

   
   

 0
.0

1 
   

   
   

   
   

  2
6 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

4 
0.

0
10

5
$1

6
 $

   
   

   
   

3 

49
4

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
05

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
4'

 
tu

be
59

2
   

   
   

0.
12

 
   

   
   

   
   

  2
58

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 3

9 
21

2
   

   
 0

.0
4 

   
   

   
   

   
  9

2 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

0.
1

16
6

$2
5

 $
   

   
   

   
5 

49
5

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
05

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 4

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

36
W

, 4
00

0K
, 4

50
0 

lm
11

4
1

   
   

   
0.

11
 

   
   

   
   

   
  2

49
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 3
7 

36
1

   
   

 0
.0

4 
   

   
   

   
   

  7
9 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

2 
0.

1
17

0
$2

6
 $

   
   

   
   

5 

49
6

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
05

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  C

FL
 P

lu
g-

in
 - 

1 
la

m
p 

13
W

w
/1

 e
a.

 E
IK

O
 

LE
D

5W
2P

/G
23

/8
40

D
M

-G
7B

13
1

   
   

   
0.

01
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 2
8 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
4 

5
1

   
   

 0
.0

1 
   

   
   

   
   

  1
1 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

2 
0.

0
17

$3
 $

   
   

   
   

1 

49
7

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
05

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
17

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
2'

 
tu

be
31

1
   

   
   

0.
03

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 6

8 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 1

0 
18

1
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
  3

9 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
6 

0.
0

28
$4

 $
   

   
   

   
1 

49
8

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
05

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  A

-la
m

p 
- 6

0W
w

/E
IK

O
 L

ED
 D

ow
nl

ig
ht

 K
it,

 6
", 

D
im

, 1
2W

60
1

   
   

   
0.

06
 

   
   

   
   

   
  1

31
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 2
0 

12
1

   
   

 0
.0

1 
   

   
   

   
   

  2
6 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

4 
0.

0
10

5
$1

6
 $

   
   

   
   

3 

49
9

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
06

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
4'

 
tu

be
59

2
   

   
   

0.
12

 
   

   
   

   
   

  2
58

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 3

9 
21

2
   

   
 0

.0
4 

   
   

   
   

   
  9

2 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

0.
1

16
6

$2
5

 $
   

   
   

   
5 

50
0

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
06

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 4

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

36
W

, 4
00

0K
, 4

50
0 

lm
11

4
1

   
   

   
0.

11
 

   
   

   
   

   
  2

49
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 3
7 

36
1

   
   

 0
.0

4 
   

   
   

   
   

  7
9 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

2 
0.

1
17

0
$2

6
 $

   
   

   
   

5 

50
1

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
06

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  C

FL
 P

lu
g-

in
 - 

1 
la

m
p 

13
W

w
/1

 e
a.

 E
IK

O
 

LE
D

5W
2P

/G
23

/8
40

D
M

-G
7B

13
1

   
   

   
0.

01
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 2
8 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
4 

5
1

   
   

 0
.0

1 
   

   
   

   
   

  1
1 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

2 
0.

0
17

$3
 $

   
   

   
   

1 

50
2

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
06

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
17

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
2'

 
tu

be
31

1
   

   
   

0.
03

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 6

8 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 1

0 
18

1
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
  3

9 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
6 

0.
0

28
$4

 $
   

   
   

   
1 

50
3

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
06

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  A

-la
m

p 
- 6

0W
w

/E
IK

O
 L

ED
 D

ow
nl

ig
ht

 K
it,

 6
", 

D
im

, 1
2W

60
1

   
   

   
0.

06
 

   
   

   
   

   
  1

31
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 2
0 

12
1

   
   

 0
.0

1 
   

   
   

   
   

  2
6 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

4 
0.

0
10

5
$1

6
 $

   
   

   
   

3 

50
4

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

W
ai

tin
g 

R
oo

m
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
23

W
, 4

00
0K

, 3
00

0 
lm

59
2

   
   

   
0.

12
 

   
   

   
   

  1
,0

31
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  1

55
 

23
2

   
   

 0
.0

5 
   

   
   

   
   

40
2 

 $
   

   
   

   
 6

0 
0.

1
62

9
$9

4
 $

   
   

   
 2

0 

50
5

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

I.C
.U

.
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

50
6

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Lo
ck

er
s

24
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
4'

 
tu

be
59

1
   

   
   

0.
06

 
   

   
   

   
   

  5
15

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 7

7 
21

1
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
18

3 
 $

   
   

   
   

 2
8 

0.
0

33
2

$5
0

 $
   

   
   

 1
0 

50
7

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

R
es

tro
om

24
7

30
%

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
17

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
2'

 
tu

be
31

1
   

   
   

0.
03

 
   

   
   

   
   

  2
71

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 4

1 
18

1
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
11

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
7 

0.
0

16
1

$2
4

 $
   

   
   

   
5 

50
8

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

An
te

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

23
W

, 4
00

0K
, 3

00
0 

lm
59

1
   

   
   

0.
06

 
   

   
   

   
   

  1
29

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 1

9 
23

1
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
  5

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
8 

0.
0

79
$1

2
 $

   
   

   
   

2 

50
9

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Be
d 

1
6

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 3
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
36

W
, 4

00
0K

, 4
50

0 
lm

85
1

   
   

   
0.

09
 

   
   

   
   

   
  1

86
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 2
8 

36
1

   
   

 0
.0

4 
   

   
   

   
   

  7
9 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

2 
0.

0
10

7
$1

6
 $

   
   

   
   

3 

51
0

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Be
d 

1
6

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

17
W

w
/2

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

2'
 

tu
be

31
1

   
   

   
0.

03
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 6
8 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 1
0 

18
1

   
   

 0
.0

2 
   

   
   

   
   

  3
9 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

6 
0.

0
28

$4
 $

   
   

   
   

1 

51
1

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Be
d 

2
6

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 3
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
36

W
, 4

00
0K

, 4
50

0 
lm

85
1

   
   

   
0.

09
 

   
   

   
   

   
  1

86
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 2
8 

36
1

   
   

 0
.0

4 
   

   
   

   
   

  7
9 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

2 
0.

0
10

7
$1

6
 $

   
   

   
   

3 

51
2

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Be
d 

2
6

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

17
W

w
/2

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

2'
 

tu
be

31
1

   
   

   
0.

03
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 6
8 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 1
0 

18
1

   
   

 0
.0

2 
   

   
   

   
   

  3
9 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

6 
0.

0
28

$4
 $

   
   

   
   

1 

51
3

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Be
d 

3
6

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 3
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
36

W
, 4

00
0K

, 4
50

0 
lm

85
1

   
   

   
0.

09
 

   
   

   
   

   
  1

86
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 2
8 

36
1

   
   

 0
.0

4 
   

   
   

   
   

  7
9 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

2 
0.

0
10

7
$1

6
 $

   
   

   
   

3 

51
4

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Be
d 

3
6

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

17
W

w
/2

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

2'
 

tu
be

31
1

   
   

   
0.

03
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 6
8 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 1
0 

18
1

   
   

 0
.0

2 
   

   
   

   
   

  3
9 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

6 
0.

0
28

$4
 $

   
   

   
   

1 

51
5

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Be
d 

4
6

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 3
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
36

W
, 4

00
0K

, 4
50

0 
lm

85
1

   
   

   
0.

09
 

   
   

   
   

   
  1

86
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 2
8 

36
1

   
   

 0
.0

4 
   

   
   

   
   

  7
9 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

2 
0.

0
10

7
$1

6
 $

   
   

   
   

3 

76



Pa
ge

 2
7 

of
 3

0
Pr

oj
ec

t -
- B

oo
k1

Ea
rth

 S
av

er
s 

Li
ne

Ac
tio

n
A/

C

#
B

ui
ld

in
g

Lo
ca

tio
n

Hr
s

D
ay

s
Ne

w
 

C
on

trl
 

Sa
ve

 (%
)

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

W
at

t/F
ix

t.
Fi

xt
. 

Q
ua

n
To

ta
l k

W
 A

nn
. k

W
h 

An
n.

 E
le

ct
. 

Ex
p.

W
at

t/F
ix

t.
Fi

xt
. 

Q
ua

n
To

ta
l k

W
An

n.
 k

W
h

An
n.

 E
le

ct
. 

Ex
p.

To
ta

l 
kW

An
n.

 k
W

h
An

n.
 E

le
ct

. 
Ex

p.

An
nu

al
 

A/
C

 
Sa

vi
ng

s

En
er

gy
 S

av
in

gs
 A

na
ly

si
s

Lo
ca

tio
n

O
pe

ra
tio

n
Ex

is
tin

g
Ne

w
Li

gh
tin

g 
En

er
gy

 S
av

in
gs

51
6

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Be
d 

4
6

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

17
W

w
/2

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

2'
 

tu
be

31
1

   
   

   
0.

03
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 6
8 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 1
0 

18
1

   
   

 0
.0

2 
   

   
   

   
   

  3
9 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

6 
0.

0
28

$4
 $

   
   

   
   

1 

51
7

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Be
d 

5
6

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 3
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
36

W
, 4

00
0K

, 4
50

0 
lm

85
1

   
   

   
0.

09
 

   
   

   
   

   
  1

86
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 2
8 

36
1

   
   

 0
.0

4 
   

   
   

   
   

  7
9 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

2 
0.

0
10

7
$1

6
 $

   
   

   
   

3 

51
8

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Be
d 

5
6

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

17
W

w
/2

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

2'
 

tu
be

31
1

   
   

   
0.

03
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 6
8 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 1
0 

18
1

   
   

 0
.0

2 
   

   
   

   
   

  3
9 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

6 
0.

0
28

$4
 $

   
   

   
   

1 

51
9

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Be
d 

6
6

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 3
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
36

W
, 4

00
0K

, 4
50

0 
lm

85
1

   
   

   
0.

09
 

   
   

   
   

   
  1

86
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 2
8 

36
1

   
   

 0
.0

4 
   

   
   

   
   

  7
9 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

2 
0.

0
10

7
$1

6
 $

   
   

   
   

3 

52
0

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Be
d 

6
6

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

17
W

w
/2

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

2'
 

tu
be

31
1

   
   

   
0.

03
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 6
8 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 1
0 

18
1

   
   

 0
.0

2 
   

   
   

   
   

  3
9 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

6 
0.

0
28

$4
 $

   
   

   
   

1 

52
1

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Be
d 

7
6

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 3
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
36

W
, 4

00
0K

, 4
50

0 
lm

85
1

   
   

   
0.

09
 

   
   

   
   

   
  1

86
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 2
8 

36
1

   
   

 0
.0

4 
   

   
   

   
   

  7
9 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

2 
0.

0
10

7
$1

6
 $

   
   

   
   

3 

52
2

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Be
d 

7
6

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

17
W

w
/2

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

2'
 

tu
be

31
1

   
   

   
0.

03
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 6
8 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 1
0 

18
1

   
   

 0
.0

2 
   

   
   

   
   

  3
9 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

6 
0.

0
28

$4
 $

   
   

   
   

1 

52
3

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Be
d 

8
6

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 3
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
36

W
, 4

00
0K

, 4
50

0 
lm

85
1

   
   

   
0.

09
 

   
   

   
   

   
  1

86
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 2
8 

36
1

   
   

 0
.0

4 
   

   
   

   
   

  7
9 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

2 
0.

0
10

7
$1

6
 $

   
   

   
   

3 

52
4

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Be
d 

8
6

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

17
W

w
/2

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

2'
 

tu
be

31
1

   
   

   
0.

03
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 6
8 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 1
0 

18
1

   
   

 0
.0

2 
   

   
   

   
   

  3
9 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

6 
0.

0
28

$4
 $

   
   

   
   

1 

52
5

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
ss

 D
ou

bl
e 

D
oo

r
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

52
6

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

St
or

ag
e 

R
oo

m
6

7
30

%
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  C
FL

 P
lu

g-
in

 - 
2 

la
m

p 
13

W
w

/E
IK

O
 L

ED
 A

19
, 

E2
6,

 8
W

26
1

   
   

   
0.

03
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 5
7 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
9 

8
1

   
   

 0
.0

1 
   

   
   

   
   

  1
2 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

2 
0.

0
45

$7
 $

   
   

   
   

1 

52
7

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

So
ile

d 
U

til
ity

 
R

oo
m

8
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 4

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

36
W

, 4
00

0K
, 4

50
0 

lm
11

4
1

   
   

   
0.

11
 

   
   

   
   

   
  3

32
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 5
0 

36
1

   
   

 0
.0

4 
   

   
   

   
   

10
5 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

6 
0.

1
22

7
$3

4
 $

   
   

   
   

7 

52
8

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Br
ea

k 
R

oo
m

24
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

23
W

, 4
00

0K
, 3

00
0 

lm
59

2
   

   
   

0.
12

 
   

   
   

   
  1

,0
31

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  1
55

 
23

2
   

   
 0

.0
5 

   
   

   
   

   
40

2 
 $

   
   

   
   

 6
0 

0.
1

62
9

$9
4

 $
   

   
   

 2
0 

52
9

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

M
ai

n 
C

om
m

on
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 3
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
36

W
, 4

00
0K

, 4
50

0 
lm

85
18

   
   

   
1.

53
 

   
   

   
   

13
,3

66
 

 $
   

   
   

  2
,0

05
 

36
18

   
   

 0
.6

5 
   

   
   

   
5,

66
1 

 $
   

   
   

  8
49

 
0.

9
77

05
$1

,1
56

 $
   

   
  2

39
 

53
0

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

M
ai

n 
C

om
m

on
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  C
FL

 P
lu

g-
in

 - 
2 

la
m

p 
26

W
w

/E
IK

O
 L

ED
 

D
ow

nl
ig

ht
 K

it 
8"

, D
im

, (
12

-1
6-

22
W

), 
12

0-
27

7V
52

2
   

   
   

0.
10

 
   

   
   

   
   

  9
09

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  1
36

 
12

2
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
21

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

 3
1 

0.
1

69
9

$1
05

 $
   

   
   

 2
2 

53
1

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

O
ut

 I.
C

.U
.

   
   

   
   

-  
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
  -

   

53
2

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
ne

l C
lo

se
t

4
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  C

FL
 P

lu
g-

in
 - 

2 
la

m
p 

13
W

w
/E

IK
O

 L
ED

 A
19

, 
E2

6,
 8

W
26

1
   

   
   

0.
03

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 3

8 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

6 
8

1
   

   
 0

.0
1 

   
   

   
   

   
  1

2 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
2 

0.
0

26
$4

 $
   

   
   

   
1 

53
3

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

En
vi

ro
m

en
ta

l 
Se

rv
ic

es
12

7
30

%
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/2

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

4'
 

tu
be

59
1

   
   

   
0.

06
 

   
   

   
   

   
  2

58
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 3
9 

21
1

   
   

 0
.0

2 
   

   
   

   
   

  6
4 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

0 
0.

0
19

4
$2

9
 $

   
   

   
   

6 

53
4

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
ss

 D
ou

bl
e 

D
oo

r
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

53
5

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Eq
ui

pm
en

t 
St

or
ag

e
8

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/2

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

4'
 

tu
be

59
4

   
   

   
0.

24
 

   
   

   
   

   
  6

87
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  1

03
 

21
4

   
   

 0
.0

8 
   

   
   

   
   

24
5 

 $
   

   
   

   
 3

7 
0.

2
44

3
$6

6
 $

   
   

   
 1

4 

53
6

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Eq
ui

pm
en

t 
St

or
ag

e
8

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
23

W
, 4

00
0K

, 3
00

0 
lm

59
2

   
   

   
0.

12
 

   
   

   
   

   
  3

44
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 5
2 

23
2

   
   

 0
.0

5 
   

   
   

   
   

13
4 

 $
   

   
   

   
 2

0 
0.

1
21

0
$3

1
 $

   
   

   
   

7 

53
7

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

R
es

tro
om

24
7

30
%

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
17

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
2'

 
tu

be
31

1
   

   
   

0.
03

 
   

   
   

   
   

  2
71

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 4

1 
18

1
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
11

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
7 

0.
0

16
1

$2
4

 $
   

   
   

   
5 

53
8

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

R
es

tro
om

24
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  A

-la
m

p 
- 6

0W
w

/E
IK

O
 L

ED
 D

ow
nl

ig
ht

 K
it,

 6
", 

D
im

, 1
2W

60
1

   
   

   
0.

06
 

   
   

   
   

   
  5

24
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 7
9 

12
1

   
   

 0
.0

1 
   

   
   

   
   

10
5 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

6 
0.

0
41

9
$6

3
 $

   
   

   
 1

3 

53
9

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
11

 
A/

B
6

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/2

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

4'
 

tu
be

59
4

   
   

   
0.

24
 

   
   

   
   

   
  5

15
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 7
7 

21
4

   
   

 0
.0

8 
   

   
   

   
   

18
3 

 $
   

   
   

   
 2

8 
0.

2
33

2
$5

0
 $

   
   

   
 1

0 

54
0

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
11

 
A/

B
6

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
23

W
, 4

00
0K

, 3
00

0 
lm

59
2

   
   

   
0.

12
 

   
   

   
   

   
  2

58
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 3
9 

23
2

   
   

 0
.0

5 
   

   
   

   
   

10
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

5 
0.

1
15

7
$2

4
 $

   
   

   
   

5 

54
1

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
11

 
A/

B
6

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  C
FL

 P
lu

g-
in

 - 
1 

la
m

p 
13

W
w

/1
 e

a.
 E

IK
O

 
LE

D
5W

2P
/G

23
/8

40
D

M
-G

7B
13

1
   

   
   

0.
01

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 2

8 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

4 
5

1
   

   
 0

.0
1 

   
   

   
   

   
  1

1 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
2 

0.
0

17
$3

 $
   

   
   

   
1 

54
2

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
11

 
A/

B
6

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

17
W

w
/2

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

2'
 

tu
be

31
1

   
   

   
0.

03
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 6
8 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 1
0 

18
1

   
   

 0
.0

2 
   

   
   

   
   

  3
9 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

6 
0.

0
28

$4
 $

   
   

   
   

1 

54
3

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
11

 
A/

B
6

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  A
-la

m
p 

- 6
0W

w
/E

IK
O

 L
ED

 D
ow

nl
ig

ht
 K

it,
 6

", 
D

im
, 1

2W
60

1
   

   
   

0.
06

 
   

   
   

   
   

  1
31

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 2

0 
12

1
   

   
 0

.0
1 

   
   

   
   

   
  2

6 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
4 

0.
0

10
5

$1
6

 $
   

   
   

   
3 

54
4

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
10

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
4'

 
tu

be
59

4
   

   
   

0.
24

 
   

   
   

   
   

  5
15

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 7

7 
21

4
   

   
 0

.0
8 

   
   

   
   

   
18

3 
 $

   
   

   
   

 2
8 

0.
2

33
2

$5
0

 $
   

   
   

 1
0 

54
5

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
10

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

23
W

, 4
00

0K
, 3

00
0 

lm
59

2
   

   
   

0.
12

 
   

   
   

   
   

  2
58

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 3

9 
23

2
   

   
 0

.0
5 

   
   

   
   

   
10

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
5 

0.
1

15
7

$2
4

 $
   

   
   

   
5 

54
6

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
10

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  C

FL
 P

lu
g-

in
 - 

1 
la

m
p 

13
W

w
/1

 e
a.

 E
IK

O
 

LE
D

5W
2P

/G
23

/8
40

D
M

-G
7B

13
1

   
   

   
0.

01
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 2
8 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
4 

5
1

   
   

 0
.0

1 
   

   
   

   
   

  1
1 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

2 
0.

0
17

$3
 $

   
   

   
   

1 

54
7

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
10

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
17

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
2'

 
tu

be
31

1
   

   
   

0.
03

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 6

8 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 1

0 
18

1
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
  3

9 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
6 

0.
0

28
$4

 $
   

   
   

   
1 

54
8

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
10

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  A

-la
m

p 
- 6

0W
w

/E
IK

O
 L

ED
 D

ow
nl

ig
ht

 K
it,

 6
", 

D
im

, 1
2W

60
1

   
   

   
0.

06
 

   
   

   
   

   
  1

31
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 2
0 

12
1

   
   

 0
.0

1 
   

   
   

   
   

  2
6 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

4 
0.

0
10

5
$1

6
 $

   
   

   
   

3 

54
9

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
09

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
4'

 
tu

be
59

4
   

   
   

0.
24

 
   

   
   

   
   

  5
15

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 7

7 
21

4
   

   
 0

.0
8 

   
   

   
   

   
18

3 
 $

   
   

   
   

 2
8 

0.
2

33
2

$5
0

 $
   

   
   

 1
0 

55
0

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
09

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

23
W

, 4
00

0K
, 3

00
0 

lm
59

2
   

   
   

0.
12

 
   

   
   

   
   

  2
58

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 3

9 
23

2
   

   
 0

.0
5 

   
   

   
   

   
10

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
5 

0.
1

15
7

$2
4

 $
   

   
   

   
5 

77



Pa
ge

 2
8 

of
 3

0
Pr

oj
ec

t -
- B

oo
k1

Ea
rth

 S
av

er
s 

Li
ne

Ac
tio

n
A/

C

#
B

ui
ld

in
g

Lo
ca

tio
n

Hr
s

D
ay

s
Ne

w
 

C
on

trl
 

Sa
ve

 (%
)

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

W
at

t/F
ix

t.
Fi

xt
. 

Q
ua

n
To

ta
l k

W
 A

nn
. k

W
h 

An
n.

 E
le

ct
. 

Ex
p.

W
at

t/F
ix

t.
Fi

xt
. 

Q
ua

n
To

ta
l k

W
An

n.
 k

W
h

An
n.

 E
le

ct
. 

Ex
p.

To
ta

l 
kW

An
n.

 k
W

h
An

n.
 E

le
ct

. 
Ex

p.

An
nu

al
 

A/
C

 
Sa

vi
ng

s

En
er

gy
 S

av
in

gs
 A

na
ly

si
s

Lo
ca

tio
n

O
pe

ra
tio

n
Ex

is
tin

g
Ne

w
Li

gh
tin

g 
En

er
gy

 S
av

in
gs

55
1

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
09

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  C

FL
 P

lu
g-

in
 - 

1 
la

m
p 

13
W

w
/1

 e
a.

 E
IK

O
 

LE
D

5W
2P

/G
23

/8
40

D
M

-G
7B

13
1

   
   

   
0.

01
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 2
8 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
4 

5
1

   
   

 0
.0

1 
   

   
   

   
   

  1
1 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

2 
0.

0
17

$3
 $

   
   

   
   

1 

55
2

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
09

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
17

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
2'

 
tu

be
31

1
   

   
   

0.
03

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 6

8 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 1

0 
18

1
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
  3

9 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
6 

0.
0

28
$4

 $
   

   
   

   
1 

55
3

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
09

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  A

-la
m

p 
- 6

0W
w

/E
IK

O
 L

ED
 D

ow
nl

ig
ht

 K
it,

 6
", 

D
im

, 1
2W

60
1

   
   

   
0.

06
 

   
   

   
   

   
  1

31
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 2
0 

12
1

   
   

 0
.0

1 
   

   
   

   
   

  2
6 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

4 
0.

0
10

5
$1

6
 $

   
   

   
   

3 

55
4

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
ss

 D
ou

bl
e 

D
oo

r
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

55
5

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

C
le

an
 U

til
ity

 
R

oo
m

8
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 3

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

36
W

, 4
00

0K
, 4

50
0 

lm
85

4
   

   
   

0.
34

 
   

   
   

   
   

  9
90

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  1
49

 
36

4
   

   
 0

.1
4 

   
   

   
   

   
41

9 
 $

   
   

   
   

 6
3 

0.
2

57
1

$8
6

 $
   

   
   

 1
8 

55
6

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

C
lo

se
t

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  C

FL
 P

lu
g-

in
 - 

2 
la

m
p 

13
W

w
/E

IK
O

 L
ED

 A
19

, 
E2

6,
 8

W
26

1
   

   
   

0.
03

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 5

7 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

9 
8

1
   

   
 0

.0
1 

   
   

   
   

   
  1

7 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
3 

0.
0

39
$6

 $
   

   
   

   
1 

55
7

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

St
or

ag
e 

R
oo

m
6

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
23

W
, 4

00
0K

, 3
00

0 
lm

59
2

   
   

   
0.

12
 

   
   

   
   

   
  2

58
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 3
9 

23
2

   
   

 0
.0

5 
   

   
   

   
   

10
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

5 
0.

1
15

7
$2

4
 $

   
   

   
   

5 

55
8

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

O
ffi

ce
8

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 3
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
36

W
, 4

00
0K

, 4
50

0 
lm

85
1

   
   

   
0.

09
 

   
   

   
   

   
  2

48
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 3
7 

36
1

   
   

 0
.0

4 
   

   
   

   
   

10
5 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

6 
0.

0
14

3
$2

1
 $

   
   

   
   

4 

55
9

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Lo
un

ge
 / 

Lo
ck

er
 

24
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 4

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

36
W

, 4
00

0K
, 4

50
0 

lm
11

4
2

   
   

   
0.

23
 

   
   

   
   

  1
,9

92
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  2

99
 

36
2

   
   

 0
.0

7 
   

   
   

   
   

62
9 

 $
   

   
   

   
 9

4 
0.

2
13

63
$2

04
 $

   
   

   
 4

2 

56
0

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

R
es

tro
om

24
7

30
%

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
25

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
3'

 
tu

be
46

1
   

   
   

0.
05

 
   

   
   

   
   

  4
02

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 6

0 
24

1
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
14

7 
 $

   
   

   
   

 2
2 

0.
0

25
5

$3
8

 $
   

   
   

   
8 

56
1

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
ss

 D
oo

r
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

56
2

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

St
or

ag
e 

R
oo

m
6

7
30

%
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  C
FL

 P
lu

g-
in

 - 
2 

la
m

p 
13

W
w

/E
IK

O
 L

ED
 A

19
, 

E2
6,

 8
W

26
1

   
   

   
0.

03
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 5
7 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
9 

8
1

   
   

 0
.0

1 
   

   
   

   
   

  1
2 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

2 
0.

0
45

$7
 $

   
   

   
   

1 

56
3

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
ss

 D
oo

r
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

56
4

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

M
ed

ic
at

io
n 

R
oo

m
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
23

W
, 4

00
0K

, 3
00

0 
lm

59
2

   
   

   
0.

12
 

   
   

   
   

  1
,0

31
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  1

55
 

23
2

   
   

 0
.0

5 
   

   
   

   
   

40
2 

 $
   

   
   

   
 6

0 
0.

1
62

9
$9

4
 $

   
   

   
 2

0 

56
5

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

D
ic

ta
tio

n
16

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
23

W
, 4

00
0K

, 3
00

0 
lm

59
2

   
   

   
0.

12
 

   
   

   
   

   
  6

87
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  1

03
 

23
2

   
   

 0
.0

5 
   

   
   

   
   

26
8 

 $
   

   
   

   
 4

0 
0.

1
41

9
$6

3
 $

   
   

   
 1

3 

56
6

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

O
ffi

ce
8

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
23

W
, 4

00
0K

, 3
00

0 
lm

59
2

   
   

   
0.

12
 

   
   

   
   

   
  3

44
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 5
2 

23
2

   
   

 0
.0

5 
   

   
   

   
   

13
4 

 $
   

   
   

   
 2

0 
0.

1
21

0
$3

1
 $

   
   

   
   

7 

56
7

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
nt

ry
12

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
23

W
, 4

00
0K

, 3
00

0 
lm

59
2

   
   

   
0.

12
 

   
   

   
   

   
  5

15
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 7
7 

23
2

   
   

 0
.0

5 
   

   
   

   
   

20
1 

 $
   

   
   

   
 3

0 
0.

1
31

4
$4

7
 $

   
   

   
 1

0 

56
8

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
ss

 D
ou

bl
e 

D
oo

r
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

56
9

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
08

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
4'

 
tu

be
59

4
   

   
   

0.
24

 
   

   
   

   
   

  5
15

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 7

7 
21

4
   

   
 0

.0
8 

   
   

   
   

   
18

3 
 $

   
   

   
   

 2
8 

0.
2

33
2

$5
0

 $
   

   
   

 1
0 

57
0

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
08

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

23
W

, 4
00

0K
, 3

00
0 

lm
59

2
   

   
   

0.
12

 
   

   
   

   
   

  2
58

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 3

9 
23

2
   

   
 0

.0
5 

   
   

   
   

   
10

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
5 

0.
1

15
7

$2
4

 $
   

   
   

   
5 

57
1

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
08

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  C

FL
 P

lu
g-

in
 - 

1 
la

m
p 

13
W

w
/1

 e
a.

 E
IK

O
 

LE
D

5W
2P

/G
23

/8
40

D
M

-G
7B

13
1

   
   

   
0.

01
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 2
8 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
4 

5
1

   
   

 0
.0

1 
   

   
   

   
   

  1
1 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

2 
0.

0
17

$3
 $

   
   

   
   

1 

57
2

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
08

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
17

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
2'

 
tu

be
31

1
   

   
   

0.
03

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 6

8 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 1

0 
18

1
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
  3

9 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
6 

0.
0

28
$4

 $
   

   
   

   
1 

57
3

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
08

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  A

-la
m

p 
- 6

0W
w

/E
IK

O
 L

ED
 D

ow
nl

ig
ht

 K
it,

 6
", 

D
im

, 1
2W

60
1

   
   

   
0.

06
 

   
   

   
   

   
  1

31
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 2
0 

12
1

   
   

 0
.0

1 
   

   
   

   
   

  2
6 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

4 
0.

0
10

5
$1

6
 $

   
   

   
   

3 

57
4

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
07

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
4'

 
tu

be
59

4
   

   
   

0.
24

 
   

   
   

   
   

  5
15

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 7

7 
21

4
   

   
 0

.0
8 

   
   

   
   

   
18

3 
 $

   
   

   
   

 2
8 

0.
2

33
2

$5
0

 $
   

   
   

 1
0 

57
5

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
07

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

23
W

, 4
00

0K
, 3

00
0 

lm
59

2
   

   
   

0.
12

 
   

   
   

   
   

  2
58

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 3

9 
23

2
   

   
 0

.0
5 

   
   

   
   

   
10

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
5 

0.
1

15
7

$2
4

 $
   

   
   

   
5 

57
6

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
07

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  C

FL
 P

lu
g-

in
 - 

1 
la

m
p 

13
W

w
/1

 e
a.

 E
IK

O
 

LE
D

5W
2P

/G
23

/8
40

D
M

-G
7B

13
1

   
   

   
0.

01
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 2
8 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
4 

5
1

   
   

 0
.0

1 
   

   
   

   
   

  1
1 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

2 
0.

0
17

$3
 $

   
   

   
   

1 

57
7

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
07

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
17

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
2'

 
tu

be
31

1
   

   
   

0.
03

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 6

8 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 1

0 
18

1
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
  3

9 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
6 

0.
0

28
$4

 $
   

   
   

   
1 

57
8

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Pa
tie

nt
 R

oo
m

 2
07

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  A

-la
m

p 
- 6

0W
w

/E
IK

O
 L

ED
 D

ow
nl

ig
ht

 K
it,

 6
", 

D
im

, 1
2W

60
1

   
   

   
0.

06
 

   
   

   
   

   
  1

31
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 2
0 

12
1

   
   

 0
.0

1 
   

   
   

   
   

  2
6 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

4 
0.

0
10

5
$1

6
 $

   
   

   
   

3 

57
9

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

M
ai

n 
H

al
l /

 
C

om
m

on
   

24
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

23
W

, 4
00

0K
, 3

00
0 

lm
59

33
   

   
   

1.
95

 
   

   
   

   
17

,0
09

 
 $

   
   

   
  2

,5
51

 
23

33
   

   
 0

.7
6 

   
   

   
   

6,
63

1 
 $

   
   

   
  9

95
 

1.
2

10
37

8
$1

,5
57

 $
   

   
  3

22
 

58
0

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

M
ai

n 
H

al
l /

 
C

om
m

on
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  C
FL

 P
lu

g-
in

 - 
2 

la
m

p 
26

W
w

/E
IK

O
 L

ED
 

D
ow

nl
ig

ht
 K

it 
8"

, D
im

, (
12

-1
6-

22
W

), 
12

0-
27

7V
52

12
   

   
   

0.
62

 
   

   
   

   
  5

,4
51

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  8
18

 
12

12
   

   
 0

.1
4 

   
   

   
   

1,
25

8 
 $

   
   

   
  1

89
 

0.
5

41
93

$6
29

 $
   

   
  1

30
 

58
1

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

O
ut

 D
ou

bl
e 

D
oo

r
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

58
2

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

M
ai

n 
H

al
l /

 
C

om
m

on
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  C
FL

 P
lu

g-
in

 - 
2 

la
m

p 
26

W
w

/E
IK

O
 L

ED
 

D
ow

nl
ig

ht
 K

it 
8"

, D
im

, (
12

-1
6-

22
W

), 
12

0-
27

7V
52

5
   

   
   

0.
26

 
   

   
   

   
  2

,2
71

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  3
41

 
12

5
   

   
 0

.0
6 

   
   

   
   

   
52

4 
 $

   
   

   
   

 7
9 

0.
2

17
47

$2
62

 $
   

   
   

 5
4 

58
3

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

M
ai

n 
H

al
l /

 
C

om
m

on
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
23

W
, 4

00
0K

, 3
00

0 
lm

59
8

   
   

   
0.

47
 

   
   

   
   

  4
,1

23
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  6

19
 

23
8

   
   

 0
.1

8 
   

   
   

   
1,

60
7 

 $
   

   
   

  2
41

 
0.

3
25

16
$3

77
 $

   
   

   
 7

8 

58
4

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Ex
te

rio
r R

oo
m

s
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

58
5

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

El
ec

tri
ca

l R
oo

m
8

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 4
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/4

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

4'
 

tu
be

11
4

1
   

   
   

0.
11

 
   

   
   

   
   

  3
32

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 5

0 
42

1
   

   
 0

.0
4 

   
   

   
   

   
12

2 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
8 

0.
1

21
0

$3
1

 $
   

   
   

   
7 

58
6

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

El
ec

tri
ca

l R
oo

m
8

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

59
W

w
/4

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

4'
 

tu
be

 &
 8

ft.
 C

on
ve

rs
io

n 
Ki

t
11

8
2

   
   

   
0.

24
 

   
   

   
   

   
  6

87
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  1

03
 

42
2

   
   

 0
.0

8 
   

   
   

   
   

24
5 

 $
   

   
   

   
 3

7 
0.

2
44

3
$6

6
 $

   
   

   
 1

4 

58
7

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

El
ec

tri
ca

l R
oo

m
8

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
12

 - 
2 

la
m

p 
60

W
w

/4
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
4'

 
tu

be
 &

 8
ft.

 C
on

ve
rs

io
n 

Ki
t

12
3

5
   

   
   

0.
62

 
   

   
   

   
  1

,7
91

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  2
69

 
42

5
   

   
 0

.2
1 

   
   

   
   

   
61

2 
 $

   
   

   
   

 9
2 

0.
4

11
79

$1
77

 $
   

   
   

 3
7 

78



Pa
ge

 2
9 

of
 3

0
Pr

oj
ec

t -
- B

oo
k1

Ea
rth

 S
av

er
s 

Li
ne

Ac
tio

n
A/

C

#
B

ui
ld

in
g

Lo
ca

tio
n

Hr
s

D
ay

s
Ne

w
 

C
on

trl
 

Sa
ve

 (%
)

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

W
at

t/F
ix

t.
Fi

xt
. 

Q
ua

n
To

ta
l k

W
 A

nn
. k

W
h 

An
n.

 E
le

ct
. 

Ex
p.

W
at

t/F
ix

t.
Fi

xt
. 

Q
ua

n
To

ta
l k

W
An

n.
 k

W
h

An
n.

 E
le

ct
. 

Ex
p.

To
ta

l 
kW

An
n.

 k
W

h
An

n.
 E

le
ct

. 
Ex

p.

An
nu

al
 

A/
C

 
Sa

vi
ng

s

En
er

gy
 S

av
in

gs
 A

na
ly

si
s

Lo
ca

tio
n

O
pe

ra
tio

n
Ex

is
tin

g
Ne

w
Li

gh
tin

g 
En

er
gy

 S
av

in
gs

58
8

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

El
ec

tri
ca

l R
oo

m
8

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/2

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

4'
 

tu
be

59
1

   
   

   
0.

06
 

   
   

   
   

   
  1

72
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 2
6 

21
1

   
   

 0
.0

2 
   

   
   

   
   

  6
1 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

9 
0.

0
11

1
$1

7
 $

   
   

   
   

3 

58
9

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

El
ec

tri
ca

l R
oo

m
8

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
12

 - 
2 

la
m

p 
40

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
4'

 
tu

be
84

2
   

   
   

0.
17

 
   

   
   

   
   

  4
89

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 7

3 
21

2
   

   
 0

.0
4 

   
   

   
   

   
12

2 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
8 

0.
1

36
7

$5
5

 $
   

   
   

 1
1 

59
0

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

G
en

er
at

or
 R

oo
m

8
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

12
 - 

2 
la

m
p 

40
W

w
/2

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

4'
 

tu
be

84
2

   
   

   
0.

17
 

   
   

   
   

   
  4

89
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 7
3 

21
2

   
   

 0
.0

4 
   

   
   

   
   

12
2 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

8 
0.

1
36

7
$5

5
 $

   
   

   
 1

1 

59
1

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

G
en

er
at

or
 R

oo
m

8
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
4'

 
tu

be
59

2
   

   
   

0.
12

 
   

   
   

   
   

  3
44

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 5

2 
21

2
   

   
 0

.0
4 

   
   

   
   

   
12

2 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
8 

0.
1

22
1

$3
3

 $
   

   
   

   
7 

59
2

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

G
en

er
at

or
 R

oo
m

8
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

12
 - 

2 
la

m
p 

60
W

w
/4

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

4'
 

tu
be

 &
 8

ft.
 C

on
ve

rs
io

n 
Ki

t
12

3
1

   
   

   
0.

12
 

   
   

   
   

   
  3

58
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 5
4 

42
1

   
   

 0
.0

4 
   

   
   

   
   

12
2 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

8 
0.

1
23

6
$3

5
 $

   
   

   
   

7 

59
3

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

El
ec

tri
ca

l R
oo

m
8

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
12

 - 
2 

la
m

p 
60

W
w

/4
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
4'

 
tu

be
 &

 8
ft.

 C
on

ve
rs

io
n 

Ki
t

12
3

2
   

   
   

0.
25

 
   

   
   

   
   

  7
16

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  1
07

 
42

2
   

   
 0

.0
8 

   
   

   
   

   
24

5 
 $

   
   

   
   

 3
7 

0.
2

47
2

$7
1

 $
   

   
   

 1
5 

59
4

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Ac
co

un
tin

g 
/ E

VS
 

/ P
la

nt
 E

ng
. 

Bu
ild

in
g

   
   

   
   

-  
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
  -

   

59
5

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Ac
co

un
tin

g 
D

ep
t.

   
   

   
   

-  
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
  -

   

59
6

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Br
ea

k 
R

oo
m

24
7

30
%

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
4'

 
tu

be
59

2
   

   
   

0.
12

 
   

   
   

   
  1

,0
31

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  1
55

 
21

2
   

   
 0

.0
4 

   
   

   
   

   
25

7 
 $

   
   

   
   

 3
9 

0.
1

77
4

$1
16

 $
   

   
   

 2
4 

59
7

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

O
ffi

ce
8

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 4
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
36

W
, 4

00
0K

, 4
50

0 
lm

11
4

2
   

   
   

0.
23

 
   

   
   

   
   

  6
64

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  1
00

 
36

2
   

   
 0

.0
7 

   
   

   
   

   
21

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

 3
1 

0.
2

45
4

$6
8

 $
   

   
   

 1
4 

59
8

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

O
ffi

ce
8

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 4
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
36

W
, 4

00
0K

, 4
50

0 
lm

11
4

2
   

   
   

0.
23

 
   

   
   

   
   

  6
64

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  1
00

 
36

2
   

   
 0

.0
7 

   
   

   
   

   
21

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

 3
1 

0.
2

45
4

$6
8

 $
   

   
   

 1
4 

59
9

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

O
ffi

ce
8

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 4
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
36

W
, 4

00
0K

, 4
50

0 
lm

11
4

2
   

   
   

0.
23

 
   

   
   

   
   

  6
64

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  1
00

 
36

2
   

   
 0

.0
7 

   
   

   
   

   
21

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

 3
1 

0.
2

45
4

$6
8

 $
   

   
   

 1
4 

60
0

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

O
ffi

ce
8

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 4
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
36

W
, 4

00
0K

, 4
50

0 
lm

11
4

2
   

   
   

0.
23

 
   

   
   

   
   

  6
64

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  1
00

 
36

2
   

   
 0

.0
7 

   
   

   
   

   
21

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

 3
1 

0.
2

45
4

$6
8

 $
   

   
   

 1
4 

60
1

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

H
al

l
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
23

W
, 4

00
0K

, 3
00

0 
lm

59
4

   
   

   
0.

24
 

   
   

   
   

  2
,0

62
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  3

09
 

23
4

   
   

 0
.0

9 
   

   
   

   
   

80
4 

 $
   

   
   

  1
21

 
0.

1
12

58
$1

89
 $

   
   

   
 3

9 

60
2

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

O
ut

 A
cc

ou
nt

in
g

   
   

   
   

-  
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
  -

   

60
3

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

St
or

ag
e 

R
oo

m
6

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
12

 - 
4 

la
m

p 
40

W
w

/4
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
4'

 
tu

be
16

8
8

   
   

   
1.

34
 

   
   

   
   

  2
,9

35
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  4

40
 

42
8

   
   

 0
.3

4 
   

   
   

   
   

73
4 

 $
   

   
   

  1
10

 
1.

0
22

01
$3

30
 $

   
   

   
 6

8 

60
4

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

St
or

ag
e 

R
oo

m
6

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 4
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/4

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

4'
 

tu
be

11
4

8
   

   
   

0.
91

 
   

   
   

   
  1

,9
92

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  2
99

 
42

8
   

   
 0

.3
4 

   
   

   
   

   
73

4 
 $

   
   

   
  1

10
 

0.
6

12
58

$1
89

 $
   

   
   

 3
9 

60
5

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

EV
S 

D
ep

t.
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

60
6

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Br
ea

k 
R

oo
m

24
7

30
%

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 4

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/4
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
4'

 
tu

be
11

4
2

   
   

   
0.

23
 

   
   

   
   

  1
,9

92
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  2

99
 

42
2

   
   

 0
.0

8 
   

   
   

   
   

51
4 

 $
   

   
   

   
 7

7 
0.

1
14

78
$2

22
 $

   
   

   
 4

6 

60
7

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

O
ffi

ce
8

7
30

%
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 3
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/3

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

4'
 

tu
be

85
1

   
   

   
0.

09
 

   
   

   
   

   
  2

48
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 3
7 

30
1

   
   

 0
.0

3 
   

   
   

   
   

  6
1 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

9 
0.

1
18

6
$2

8
 $

   
   

   
   

6 

60
8

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

O
ffi

ce
8

7
30

%
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 3
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/3

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

4'
 

tu
be

85
2

   
   

   
0.

17
 

   
   

   
   

   
  4

95
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 7
4 

30
2

   
   

 0
.0

6 
   

   
   

   
   

12
2 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

8 
0.

1
37

3
$5

6
 $

   
   

   
 1

2 

60
9

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

La
un

dr
y

16
7

30
%

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 3

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/3
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
4'

 
tu

be
85

2
   

   
   

0.
17

 
   

   
   

   
   

  9
90

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  1
49

 
30

2
   

   
 0

.0
6 

   
   

   
   

   
24

5 
 $

   
   

   
   

 3
7 

0.
1

74
5

$1
12

 $
   

   
   

 2
3 

61
0

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

C
om

m
on

 
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 3
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/3

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

4'
 

tu
be

85
4

   
   

   
0.

34
 

   
   

   
   

  2
,9

70
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  4

46
 

30
4

   
   

 0
.1

2 
   

   
   

   
1,

04
8 

 $
   

   
   

  1
57

 
0.

2
19

22
$2

88
 $

   
   

   
 6

0 

61
1

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

O
ut

 E
VS

   
   

   
   

-  
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
  -

   
61

2
M

ar
k 

Tw
ai

n
M

ai
nt

an
ce

 D
ep

t
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

61
3

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

O
ffi

ce
8

7
30

%
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/2

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

4'
 

tu
be

59
1

   
   

   
0.

06
 

   
   

   
   

   
  1

72
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 2
6 

21
1

   
   

 0
.0

2 
   

   
   

   
   

  4
3 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

6 
0.

0
12

9
$1

9
 $

   
   

   
   

4 

61
4

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Sh
op

16
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
4'

 
tu

be
59

9
   

   
   

0.
53

 
   

   
   

   
  3

,0
93

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  4
64

 
21

9
   

   
 0

.1
9 

   
   

   
   

1,
10

1 
 $

   
   

   
  1

65
 

0.
3

19
92

$2
99

 $
   

   
   

 6
2 

61
5

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Sh
op

16
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  C

FL
 S

cr
ew

-in
 - 

20
W

w
/E

IK
O

 L
ED

 A
19

, E
26

, 
8W

20
1

   
   

   
0.

02
 

   
   

   
   

   
  1

16
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 1
7 

8
1

   
   

 0
.0

1 
   

   
   

   
   

  4
7 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

7 
0.

0
70

$1
0

 $
   

   
   

   
2 

61
6

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Ex
t. 

G
en

er
at

or
 

R
oo

m
6

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  A
-la

m
p 

- 1
00

W
w

/E
IK

O
 L

ED
 A

19
, E

26
, 8

W
10

0
5

   
   

   
0.

50
 

   
   

   
   

  1
,0

92
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  1

64
 

8
5

   
   

 0
.0

4 
   

   
   

   
   

  8
7 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

3 
0.

5
10

05
$1

51
 $

   
   

   
 3

1 

61
7

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Ex
t B

io
 H

az
ar

d 
R

oo
m

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

12
 - 

4 
la

m
p 

40
W

w
/4

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

4'
 

tu
be

16
8

1
   

   
   

0.
17

 
   

   
   

   
   

  3
67

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 5

5 
42

1
   

   
 0

.0
4 

   
   

   
   

   
  9

2 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

0.
1

27
5

$4
1

 $
   

   
   

   
9 

61
8

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Ex
t B

io
 H

az
ar

d 
R

oo
m

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 4

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/4
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
4'

 
tu

be
11

4
1

   
   

   
0.

11
 

   
   

   
   

   
  2

49
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 3
7 

42
1

   
   

 0
.0

4 
   

   
   

   
   

  9
2 

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

4 
0.

1
15

7
$2

4
 $

   
   

   
   

5 

61
9

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Fo
un

da
tio

n 
Bu

ild
in

g
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

62
0

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

En
te

r S
id

e 
of

 
Bu

ild
in

g
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

62
1

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Lo
bb

y
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 1

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
23

W
, 4

00
0K

, 3
00

0 
lm

59
8

   
   

   
0.

47
 

   
   

   
   

  4
,1

23
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  6

19
 

23
8

   
   

 0
.1

8 
   

   
   

   
1,

60
7 

 $
   

   
   

  2
41

 
0.

3
25

16
$3

77
 $

   
   

   
 7

8 

62
2

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Lo
bb

y
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  I
nc

an
d 

- 2
 la

m
p 

20
W

w
/E

XR
G

 E
L 

M
6

40
1

   
   

   
0.

04
 

   
   

   
   

   
  3

49
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 5
2 

4
1

   
   

 0
.0

0 
   

   
   

   
   

  3
5 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

5 
0.

0
31

4
$4

7
 $

   
   

   
 1

0 

62
3

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

O
ffi

ce
8

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 1

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
23

W
, 4

00
0K

, 3
00

0 
lm

59
3

   
   

   
0.

18
 

   
   

   
   

   
  5

15
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 7
7 

23
3

   
   

 0
.0

7 
   

   
   

   
   

20
1 

 $
   

   
   

   
 3

0 
0.

1
31

4
$4

7
 $

   
   

   
 1

0 

79



Pa
ge

 3
0 

of
 3

0
Pr

oj
ec

t -
- B

oo
k1

Ea
rth

 S
av

er
s 

Li
ne

Ac
tio

n
A/

C

#
B

ui
ld

in
g

Lo
ca

tio
n

Hr
s

D
ay

s
Ne

w
 

C
on

trl
 

Sa
ve

 (%
)

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

W
at

t/F
ix

t.
Fi

xt
. 

Q
ua

n
To

ta
l k

W
 A

nn
. k

W
h 

An
n.

 E
le

ct
. 

Ex
p.

W
at

t/F
ix

t.
Fi

xt
. 

Q
ua

n
To

ta
l k

W
An

n.
 k

W
h

An
n.

 E
le

ct
. 

Ex
p.

To
ta

l 
kW

An
n.

 k
W

h
An

n.
 E

le
ct

. 
Ex

p.

An
nu

al
 

A/
C

 
Sa

vi
ng

s

En
er

gy
 S

av
in

gs
 A

na
ly

si
s

Lo
ca

tio
n

O
pe

ra
tio

n
Ex

is
tin

g
Ne

w
Li

gh
tin

g 
En

er
gy

 S
av

in
gs

62
4

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

O
ffi

ce
8

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 1
 la

m
p 

25
W

w
/1

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

3'
 

tu
be

24
1

   
   

   
0.

02
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 7
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 1
0 

12
1

   
   

 0
.0

1 
   

   
   

   
   

  3
5 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

5 
0.

0
35

$5
 $

   
   

   
   

1 

62
5

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

St
or

ag
e 

R
oo

m
6

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
12

 - 
4 

la
m

p 
40

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

36
W

, 4
00

0K
, 4

50
0 

lm
16

8
2

   
   

   
0.

34
 

   
   

   
   

   
  7

34
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  1

10
 

36
2

   
   

 0
.0

7 
   

   
   

   
   

15
7 

 $
   

   
   

   
 2

4 
0.

3
57

7
$8

6
 $

   
   

   
 1

8 

62
6

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Th
ro

ug
h 

D
oo

r
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

62
7

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

M
ee

tin
g 

R
oo

m
8

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
12

 - 
2 

la
m

p 
40

W
w

/L
ED

 1
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

23
W

, 4
00

0K
, 3

00
0 

lm
84

99
   

   
   

8.
32

 
   

   
   

   
24

,2
16

 
 $

   
   

   
  3

,6
32

 
23

99
   

   
 2

.2
8 

   
   

   
   

6,
63

1 
 $

   
   

   
  9

95
 

6.
0

17
58

6
$2

,6
38

 $
   

   
  5

46
 

62
8

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

O
ffi

ce
8

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
12

 - 
4 

la
m

p 
40

W
w

/L
ED

 2
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

36
W

, 4
00

0K
, 4

50
0 

lm
16

8
2

   
   

   
0.

34
 

   
   

   
   

   
  9

78
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  1

47
 

36
2

   
   

 0
.0

7 
   

   
   

   
   

21
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
 3

1 
0.

3
76

9
$1

15
 $

   
   

   
 2

4 

62
9

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

O
ffi

ce
8

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
12

 - 
4 

la
m

p 
40

W
w

/4
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
4'

 
tu

be
16

8
4

   
   

   
0.

67
 

   
   

   
   

  1
,9

57
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  2

94
 

42
4

   
   

 0
.1

7 
   

   
   

   
   

48
9 

 $
   

   
   

   
 7

3 
0.

5
14

68
$2

20
 $

   
   

   
 4

6 

63
0

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

R
oo

m
8

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
12

 - 
2 

la
m

p 
40

W
w

/L
ED

 1
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

23
W

, 4
00

0K
, 3

00
0 

lm
84

2
   

   
   

0.
17

 
   

   
   

   
   

  4
89

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 7

3 
23

2
   

   
 0

.0
5 

   
   

   
   

   
13

4 
 $

   
   

   
   

 2
0 

0.
1

35
5

$5
3

 $
   

   
   

 1
1 

63
1

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

St
or

ag
e 

R
oo

m
6

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
12

 - 
2 

la
m

p 
40

W
w

/L
ED

 1
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

23
W

, 4
00

0K
, 3

00
0 

lm
84

3
   

   
   

0.
25

 
   

   
   

   
   

  5
50

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 8

3 
23

3
   

   
 0

.0
7 

   
   

   
   

   
15

1 
 $

   
   

   
   

 2
3 

0.
2

40
0

$6
0

 $
   

   
   

 1
2 

63
2

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

R
es

tro
om

24
7

30
%

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  A

-la
m

p 
- 6

0W
w

/E
IK

O
 L

ED
 A

19
, E

26
, 8

W
60

2
   

   
   

0.
12

 
   

   
   

   
  1

,0
48

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  1
57

 
8

2
   

   
 0

.0
2 

   
   

   
   

   
  9

8 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
5 

0.
1

95
0

$1
43

 $
   

   
   

 2
9 

63
3

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

H
al

l
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
12

 - 
2 

la
m

p 
40

W
w

/L
ED

 1
x4

 T
ro

ffe
r R

et
ro

fit
 

Ki
t, 

23
W

, 4
00

0K
, 3

00
0 

lm
84

3
   

   
   

0.
25

 
   

   
   

   
  2

,2
01

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  3
30

 
23

3
   

   
 0

.0
7 

   
   

   
   

   
60

3 
 $

   
   

   
   

 9
0 

0.
2

15
99

$2
40

 $
   

   
   

 5
0 

63
4

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

H
al

l
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/2

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

4'
 

tu
be

59
1

   
   

   
0.

06
 

   
   

   
   

   
  5

15
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 7
7 

21
1

   
   

 0
.0

2 
   

   
   

   
   

18
3 

 $
   

   
   

   
 2

8 
0.

0
33

2
$5

0
 $

   
   

   
 1

0 

63
5

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Ex
t. 

C
lo

se
t

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  A

-la
m

p 
- 1

00
W

w
/E

IK
O

 L
ED

 A
19

, E
26

, 8
W

10
0

1
   

   
   

0.
10

 
   

   
   

   
   

  2
18

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 3

3 
8

1
   

   
 0

.0
1 

   
   

   
   

   
  1

7 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
3 

0.
1

20
1

$3
0

 $
   

   
   

   
6 

63
6

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

M
R

I B
ui

ld
in

g
   

   
   

   
-  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

  -
   

63
7

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

M
ec

ha
ni

ca
l R

oo
m

6
7

R
et

ro
fit

 --
  T

8 
- 2

 la
m

p 
32

W
w

/2
 e

a.
 B

yp
as

s 
LE

D
 T

8 
4'

 
tu

be
59

2
   

   
   

0.
12

 
   

   
   

   
   

  2
58

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 3

9 
21

2
   

   
 0

.0
4 

   
   

   
   

   
  9

2 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

0.
1

16
6

$2
5

 $
   

   
   

   
5 

63
8

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Zo
ne

 1
 C

om
m

on
8

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  R
30

 - 
75

W
w

/E
IK

O
 L

ED
 D

ow
nl

ig
ht

 K
it,

 6
", 

D
im

, 1
2W

75
5

   
   

   
0.

38
 

   
   

   
   

  1
,0

92
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  1

64
 

12
5

   
   

 0
.0

6 
   

   
   

   
   

17
5 

 $
   

   
   

   
 2

6 
0.

3
91

7
$1

38
 $

   
   

   
 2

8 

63
9

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

D
re

ss
in

g
12

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  R
30

 - 
75

W
w

/E
IK

O
 L

ED
 D

ow
nl

ig
ht

 K
it,

 6
", 

D
im

, 1
2W

75
1

   
   

   
0.

08
 

   
   

   
   

   
  3

28
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 4
9 

12
1

   
   

 0
.0

1 
   

   
   

   
   

  5
2 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

8 
0.

1
27

5
$4

1
 $

   
   

   
   

9 

64
0

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

M
R

I  
12

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  C
FL

 S
cr

ew
-in

 - 
20

W
w

/E
IK

O
 L

ED
 A

19
, E

26
, 

8W
20

4
   

   
   

0.
08

 
   

   
   

   
   

  3
49

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 5

2 
8

4
   

   
 0

.0
3 

   
   

   
   

   
14

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

 2
1 

0.
0

21
0

$3
1

 $
   

   
   

   
7 

64
1

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

M
R

I
12

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  C
FL

 P
lu

g-
in

 - 
2 

la
m

p 
26

W
w

/E
IK

O
 L

ED
 

D
ow

nl
ig

ht
 K

it 
8"

, D
im

, (
12

-1
6-

22
W

), 
12

0-
27

7V
52

3
   

   
   

0.
16

 
   

   
   

   
   

  6
81

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  1
02

 
12

3
   

   
 0

.0
4 

   
   

   
   

   
15

7 
 $

   
   

   
   

 2
4 

0.
1

52
4

$7
9

 $
   

   
   

 1
6 

64
2

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Th
ro

ug
ho

ut
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
23

W
, 4

00
0K

, 3
00

0 
lm

59
25

   
   

   
1.

48
 

   
   

   
   

12
,8

86
 

 $
   

   
   

  1
,9

33
 

23
25

   
   

 0
.5

8 
   

   
   

   
5,

02
3 

 $
   

   
   

  7
53

 
0.

9
78

62
$1

,1
79

 $
   

   
  2

44
 

64
3

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Th
ro

ug
ho

ut
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 3
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r R
et

ro
fit

 
Ki

t, 
36

W
, 4

00
0K

, 4
50

0 
lm

85
25

   
   

   
2.

13
 

   
   

   
   

18
,5

64
 

 $
   

   
   

  2
,7

85
 

36
25

   
   

 0
.9

0 
   

   
   

   
7,

86
2 

 $
   

   
  1

,1
79

 
1.

2
10

70
2

$1
,6

05
 $

   
   

  3
32

 

64
4

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Th
ro

ug
ho

ut
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 4
 la

m
p 

A/
B 

32
W

w
/L

ED
 2

x4
 T

ro
ffe

r 
R

et
ro

fit
 K

it,
 3

6W
, 4

00
0K

, 4
50

0 
lm

11
6

50
   

   
   

5.
80

 
   

   
   

   
50

,6
69

 
 $

   
   

   
  7

,6
00

 
36

50
   

   
 1

.8
0 

   
   

   
 1

5,
72

5 
 $

   
   

  2
,3

59
 

4.
0

34
94

4
$5

,2
42

 $
   

  1
,0

84
 

64
5

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Th
ro

ug
ho

ut
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/2

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

4'
 

tu
be

59
25

   
   

   
1.

48
 

   
   

   
   

12
,8

86
 

 $
   

   
   

  1
,9

33
 

21
25

   
   

 0
.5

3 
   

   
   

   
4,

58
6 

 $
   

   
   

  6
88

 
1.

0
82

99
$1

,2
45

 $
   

   
  2

58
 

64
6

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Th
ro

ug
ho

ut
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 2
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/2

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

4'
 

tu
be

59
25

   
   

   
1.

48
 

   
   

   
   

12
,8

86
 

 $
   

   
   

  1
,9

33
 

21
25

   
   

 0
.5

3 
   

   
   

   
4,

58
6 

 $
   

   
   

  6
88

 
1.

0
82

99
$1

,2
45

 $
   

   
  2

58
 

64
7

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Th
ro

ug
ho

ut
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  T
8 

- 4
 la

m
p 

32
W

w
/4

 e
a.

 B
yp

as
s 

LE
D

 T
8 

4'
 

tu
be

11
4

25
   

   
   

2.
85

 
   

   
   

   
24

,8
98

 
 $

   
   

   
  3

,7
35

 
42

25
   

   
 1

.0
5 

   
   

   
   

9,
17

3 
 $

   
   

  1
,3

76
 

1.
8

15
72

5
$2

,3
59

 $
   

   
  4

88
 

64
8

M
ar

k 
Tw

ai
n

Th
ro

ug
ho

ut
24

7
R

et
ro

fit
 --

  C
FL

 P
lu

g-
in

 - 
2 

la
m

p 
26

W
w

/E
IK

O
 L

ED
 

D
ow

nl
ig

ht
 K

it 
8"

, D
im

, (
12

-1
6-

22
W

), 
12

0-
27

7V
52

25
   

   
   

1.
30

 
   

   
   

   
11

,3
57

 
 $

   
   

   
  1

,7
04

 
12

25
   

   
 0

.3
0 

   
   

   
   

2,
62

1 
 $

   
   

   
  3

93
 

1.
0

87
36

$1
,3

10
 $

   
   

  2
71

 

17
58

   
   

 1
25

.8
 

   
   

   
 7

15
,7

27
 

 $
   

   
 1

07
,3

59
 

16
67

   
   

 4
0.

9 
   

   
  2

34
,2

34
 

 $
   

   
35

,1
35

 
84

.8
48

14
93

$7
2,

22
4

$1
4,

94
2

TO
TA

L

80



 

 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To: Tony Vitagliano 

From: Robert Vandling, Sustainability Program Manager, NRES FMEI  

CC: John Clark, Matt Moffitt, Will Glover, David Chacon 

Date: 9/25/2023 

Subject: Mark Twain Hospital 190-001 – LED Lighting Upgrade 

 
 
Notificiation 

 

At Mark Twain Hospital in San Andreas, CA, NRES FMEI is set to implement a LED Lighting upgrade 
project at this facility.   
 
 
Background 

 

LED Lighting is the latest in lighting technology.  By implementing this project, not only will utility 
usage and costs drop but we will also reduce GHG emissions and provide an overall better lighting 
quality to the facility.  LEDs are easier to maintain and will last roughly three times as long as traditional 
T8 linear tubes. Earthsavers, the LED lighting contractor hired for this endeavor, has installed LED 
lighting throughout the ministry for CommonSpirit and is very familiar with the challenges of working in 
healthcare facilities. 
  

 

Financial Assessment 

Provide breakdown of use of funds for total project request 

 
The uses and sources of funds for the Transaction are summarized as follows: 
 

Uses of Funds  
Design/Build Services $0  
Contractor Budget   
- Earthsavers $242,146  
- Owner’s Contingency Budget $18,487.96  

    PDC Fee @ 2.25% $5,448.29  
    Total Transaction Cost $266,082.24  

  
    Sources of Funds  
CommonSpirit Health FY24 Sustainability Capital Fund $266,082.24  
  

  

81



 

 

 

 

 

Project Timeline 

 

These projects will begin around October 1, 2023 and will take roughly 6 to 8 months to complete. 
 

 

Risk Assessment 

 
Failure to proceed will result in the continued inefficient use of building lighting systems.  Without a 
LED Lighting Upgrade, the facility will continue to endure poor lighting conditions, higher energy bills 
and ongoing challenges regarding the maintenance of the existing lighting infrastructure. 
 
 
PDC Approval 

 

Approved: 
 

N/A 
  
Approver Name Here  Dated 
Approver Title Here  
 
 
Request for Acknowledgement 

 

 
1. Your signature on this form is to acknowledge that you do not have any issues with 
NRES FMEI moving forward with the funding opportunity laid out in this memo.  If you do have 
concerns, please reach out to John Clark, System Director of Sustainably & Infrastructure, for 
National Real Estate Services. (john.clark@commonspirit.org) 

 
 
Thank you. 

 
 
Please kindly sign below if you approve. 
  
Acknowledged: 
 

     
 9/27/23 
John Clark           Dated 
System Director Sustainability and Infrastructure 
CommonSpirit Health 
 

82



1 

P. O. Box 95  
San Andreas, CA 95249 
(209) 754-4468 Telephone
(209) 754-2537 Fax

PERSONNEL MANUAL 

LAST UPDATED AND BOARD APPROVED 

ON 

JULY 26, 2023 

Mark Twain Health Care District Mission Statement 
“Through community collaboration, we serve as the stewards of a community health system that ensures our residents have 

the dignity of access to care that provides high quality, professional and compassionate health care”

       Revised Oct 10, 2023 
      Section 2008 - Overtime
    & Added Emp. Dress Code 

83



 

13 
 

• Federal and State Income Taxes 
• FICA 
• Medicare 
• State Disability Insurance 
• Health Insurance 
• 401k 

 
The DISTRICT is committed to pay equity and transparency, as required by applicable law. The 
DISTRICT will respond to requests for information about the employees’ own wages as required by 
law, but the DISTRICT will not disclose the wages of other employees. 

 
2008 OVERTIME 

 
Non-exempt employees will be paid overtime according to California law. The DISTRICT work week 
starts on Sunday at 12:01am and ends on Saturday at midnight. The DISTRICT’s workday starts 
each day at 12:01am and concludes at midnight. In general, overtime needs to be approved if it 
exceeds two (2) hours per shift. All out of office, weekend or holiday overtime hours are to be 
approved in advance.    

 
2009 PERFORMANCE AND SALARY REVIEWS 
Performance reviews will be conducted at the following times: 
 
Toward the end of the introductory period for all employees; 

• At the initiation of the Chief Executive Officer when determined to be appropriate; 
• When requested in writing by an employee and approved by the Chief Executive Officer 
• Annually, around the anniversary of the hire date: 

 
The review process will address appropriate aspects of the employee’s performance, including the 
following: 
 

• Ability to meet all performance criteria including accuracy, timeliness and completeness; 
• Teamwork/Interpersonal Relations; 
• Attendance; 
• Adherence to policies and procedures; 
• Dependability; 
• Flexibility; 
• Accuracy of work completed in a specific amount of time; 
• Attitude; and 
• Willingness to devote time which may be required to meet established timeframes and/or 

special projects. 
 

The review process may result in three categories of determination: 
 

• An employee’s work is found to be at least satisfactory and consistent with the objectives for 
the position. 

 

84



  Employee Dress Code 
Policy Number 224 

  

MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 
RURAL HEALTH CLINICS 

POLICY AND PROCEDURES 
POLICY: Employee Dress Code 
Guidelines REVIEWED: 8/13/2019;5/29/21; 8/04/22; 7/20/23 
  
SECTION:  Workforce 

REVISED: 5/29/21; 8/30/22; 7/20/23;  
Reviewed by Personnel Committee 9/19/2023;   

  
EFFECTIVE: 9/27/2023 

  
 MEDICAL DIRECTOR: Randall Smart, MD 

  
Subject:  Employee Dress Code Guidelines  
 
Objective: To provide guidelines for acceptable employee work attire and appearance.  

Response Rating: All employees. 
 
Required Equipment: N/A 
 
Statement of Policy: 
 
Dress, grooming and personal cleanliness standards contribute to the morale of all employees and 
affect the business image we present to patients and visitors. During business hours, employees are 
expected to present a professional, business-like appearance and to dress according to the 
requirements of their positions. Employees who appear for work inappropriately dressed will be sent 
home and directed to return to work in proper attire. Under such circumstances, employees will not be 
compensated for their time away from work. Supervisors are responsible for ensuring appearance is 
appropriate. Supervisors will consider the extent of contact with the public, physical requirements of 
each job and hours of work when interpreting this policy. The guidelines established for appearance 
and dress cannot be all inclusive. Consequently, when a decision regarding the appropriateness of 
work attire is needed, management will decide.  
 
General guidelines for all staff:  
 
• ID badges will be issued by the District and should always be visible and positioned at shoulder 
height, so patients can differentiate between staff and the public. ID badges should be kept clean, 
and nothing may cover the name or photo on the ID badge. ID badges can be worn with a collar clip, 
breakaway lanyards by exception. 
• Clothes should be clean, free from stains, tears and/or excessive wrinkles. 
• Hair (including sideburns, mustaches, and beards) should be clean, combed and neatly trimmed. 
Long hair should be tied back or restrained when providing direct patient care.  
• Make-up, fragrances, and accessories will be worn in moderation.  
• Fingernails should be clean and groomed, nail polish without chips, no acrylic nails.  
• Fit and length of clothing should look professional and be appropriate for the physical requirements 
of the employee’s position. 
• Appropriate undergarments will always be worn.  
 
 

85



  Employee Dress Code 
Policy Number 224 

  

• Shoes will be appropriate for the job, low heeled, closed toe (in patient care areas), in good 
condition and clean/polished. 
• Exceptions will be made for Holiday shirts to be worn, per Management discretion, or scheduled 
“Theme” days  
(i.e.: Cowboy dress for Rodeo Week) which will be decided by Management.  
 
•Visible body piercings: Jewelry shall not compromise direct patient care activities, infection control, 
or the covered personnel’s job duties or safety. Spikes, intradermal piercings, chains and tongue 
bars/balls must be removed. If removed, clear or skin-colored spacers may be worn. No lip, mouth, 
chin or cheek piercings. Septum piercings are not allowed. One facial piercing is allowable: a small 
nose stud (no rings), or a small eyebrow stud or ring. Body piercings must be small, maintain a 
professional appearance and be kept clean and disinfected on a regular basis.  Earrings may be 
worn, no more than 2 per ear. Earrings may not be large, as to cause a safety or infection control 
issue when providing direct patient care: i.e.: long dandling earrings that could be pulled out. Jewelry 
that is construed to be offensive, racist, political in nature, represent gangs, death, violence or sex, 
including nudity are not allowed. Ear gauges may be no larger than 22mm (5/8”). A solid black or skin 
colored plug may be worn. Ear gauges also must be kept clean and disinfected on a regular basis.  
 
Tattoos and body art: Tattoos on the arms, hands, exposed (lower) legs and ankles are generally 
acceptable with the following exceptions: All tattoos that are construed as offensive, racist, political in 
nature, represent gangs, death, violence or sex, including nudity are to be covered with makeup, 
bandage or material tattoo covers. No facial or neck tattoos are to be visible.  Any questions 
regarding the interpretation of this requirement shall be decided by management.  
 
Perfume, Aftershave and Deodorant:  
 
Due to the close contact with patients and customers, perfumes and aftershave are not permitted in 
patient care areas. Bathing, the use of deodorants and other acceptable personal hygiene habits 
should always be observed.  
 
The expectation is that all Managers and Supervisors will support this policy, leading by example, and 
will be expected to enforce the standards on a daily basis. 
 
Inappropriate Attire: 
 
 • Shorts, sweats, hoodies, bike style pants, wind suits, Sundresses (spaghetti strap, laced) and 
miniskirts, cropped or midriff tops, spaghetti strap tank tops, shirts and sweatshirts with logos other 
than VSHWC or District logo, excessively baggy clothing, or sleeveless shirts with oversized arm 
holes.  
• Beach thong style sandals, athletic sandals, open toe shoes of any kind while providing direct 
patient care in a patient care area. 
• Unnatural hair colors (i.e., pink, purple, green, etc.). 
 
 
 
Medical Providers and Managers: 

86



  Employee Dress Code 
Policy Number 224 

  

 
• Providers and Managers may wear business or business casual dress.  
• Shoes should be comfortable, closed toe in patient care areas and low heeled. 
• A solid color lab coat is optional, but not required. 
• Providers may wear solid, coordinating scrubs, pants, and shirts. Black scrub pants may be worn 
with a solid, coordinating scrub top of another color.  
 
Cultural Hair Compliance Exemption: 
 
Members who seek culturally protected hairstyles or other exemption to this policy that are protected 
by law should generally be accommodated (Government Code §12926) 
 
Patient Care Nurses, Dental Staff (RDA, Hygienists), Medical Assistants, Lab, Phlebotomist 
and Radiology Staff:  
 
• Staff may wear solid, coordinating scrubs, pants, and shirts. Black scrub pants may be worn with a 
solid, coordinating scrub top of another color.  
• A similar solid color sweater, sweatshirt (no hoodies) or jacket (without logos), or VSHWC or District 
logo sweatshirt may be worn for warmth. 
• Shoes should be comfortable, closed toe and low heeled.  
 
Health Information Services/Medical Billing:  
 
• HIM/Billing staff may wear business or business casual attire. 
• HIM/Billing staff may wear solid, coordinating scrubs, pants, and shirts.  
• A similar solid color sweater, sweatshirt (no hoodies) or jacket (without logos), or VSHWC or District 
logo sweatshirt may be worn for warmth. 
• Shoes should be comfortable, closed toe (if working in patient care areas) and low heeled. 
 
I have read and understand the Dress Code Policy (9/27/2023). If I have any questions, I will ask my 
manager. 
 
 
________________________________________________________________________________
Print Name                                                             Sign Name                                               Date  
 

87



 

39 
 

Confirmation Of Receipt Of Personnel Manual Including At-Will 
Language 

And Harassment, Discrimination And Retaliation Prevention Policy 
 

I have received my copy of the DISTRICT’S personnel manual. I understand and agree that it is 
my responsibility to read and familiarize myself with the policies and procedures contained in the 
handbook. 
I understand that except for employment at-will status, the DISTRICT can change any and all 
policies or practices at any time. The DISTRICT reserves the right to change my hours, wages, 
and working conditions at any time. I understand and agree that other than the Board of 
Directors of the DISTRICT has authority to enter into any agreement, express or implied, for 
employment for any specific period of time, or to make any agreement for employment other 
than at-will; only the Board has the authority to make any such agreement and then only in 
writing. 
I understand and agree that nothing in this personnel manual creates or is intended to create a 
promise or representation of continued employment and that employment at the DISTRICT is 
employment at-will; employment may be terminated at the will of either the DISTRICT or myself. 
My signature certifies that I understand that the foregoing agreement on at-will status is the sole 
and entire agreement between the DISTRICT and myself concerning the duration of my 
employment and the circumstances under which my employment may be terminated. It 
supersedes all prior agreements, understandings, and representations concerning my 
employment with the DISTRICT. 
I have received my copy of the DISTRICT’S Harassment, Discrimination and Retaliation Prevention 
policy included in this handbook. I understand and agree that it is my responsibility to  read and 
familiarize myself with this policy. 

I understand that the DISTRICT is committed to providing a work environment that is free from 
harassment, discrimination, and retaliation. My signature certifies that I understand that I must 
conform to and abide by the rules and requirements described in this policy. 

 
 

Date:_________________________ 
 
 
 
 
  __________________________________  ____________________________________    
  Print Employee’s Name                                      Employee Signature   
 
  Mark Twain Health Care District Board Approved July 26, 2023  

88



G
R

A
N

T 
#

G
R

A
N

T
D

ES
C

R
IP

TI
O

N
A

M
O

U
N

T
R

EC
EI

V
ED

SP
EN

T 
 

R
EP

O
R

TI
N

G
 D

EA
D

LI
N

E
R

EP
O

R
TI

N
G

ST
A

TU
S

A
U

D
IT

 
N

O
TE

S

8
C

H
C

R
U

R
A

L 
IN

TE
R

N
ET

 (
N
O
N
-C
O
V
ID
)

3
8

,2
3

0
.4

1
$

   
   

   
3

7
,1

5
6

.2
9

$
   

   
3

8
,2

3
0

.4
1

$
   

   
O

n
 G

o
in

g
M

o
n

th
ly

 
R

EC
EI

V
ED

C
H

C
P

ai
d

 t
o

 C
H

C
 $

1
0

,7
6

3
.9

7

9
A

N
TH

EM
LI

ST
 B

EL
O

W
1

8
2

,5
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

1
5

5
,9

1
8

.3
0

$
   

9
0

,9
1

4
.3

2
$

   
   

So
m

e
P

O
R

TI
O

N
 R

EC
EI

V
ED

N
O

9
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

w
/r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

(N
O
N
-C
O
V
ID
)

St
u

d
en

t 
V

ac
ci

n
at

io
n

s
3

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

8
,4

1
8

.3
0

$
   

   
  

9
,1

7
0

.3
0

$
   

   
  

W
EE

K
LY

R
EC

EI
V

ED

(N
O
N
-C
O
V
ID
)

P
.S

.D
.A

2
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
2

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
R

EC
EI

V
ED

(N
O
N
-C
O
V
ID
)

C
o

n
fe

rM
ed

1
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
1

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
1

2
/3

1
/2

0
2

3
N

o
n

e
R

EC
EI

V
ED

O
n

lin
e 

R
ef

er
ra

ls

C
O

V
ID

 M
es

sa
gi

n
g

2
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
2

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
R

EC
EI

V
ED

LE
D

 S
ig

n
 -

 V
SH

W
C

1
0

C
C

I  
(N
O
N
-C
O
V
ID
)

A
d

va
n

ci
n

g 
B

H
 E

q
u

it
y 

in
 P

ri
m

ar
y 

C
ar

e
7

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

7
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

8
/1

7
/2

0
2

1
9

/2
0

/2
0

2
1

P
O

R
TI

O
N

 R
EC

EI
V

ED
 

1
0

%
  p

ay
m

en
t 

re
m

ai
n

in
g

1
5

H
EA

LT
H

N
ET

 (
in

ce
n

ti
ve

)
B

eh
av

io
r 

H
ea

lt
h

2
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
1

0
,3

4
4

.0
3

$
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
4

/2
8

/2
0

2
3

 -
 w

ri
tt

en
M

id
te

rm
/F

in
al

A
P

P
R

O
V

ED
P

o
ss

ib
le

#S
G

2
2

1
1

 -
 C

e
n

te
n

e

1
7

C
D

P
H

 (
T2

T)
(P

H
C

) 
P

h
ys

ic
ia

n
s 

fo
r 

H
ea

lt
h

y 
C

a.
1

4
0

,7
0

7
.0

0
$

   
   

 
1

4
0

,7
0

7
.0

0
$

   
 

1
4

0
,7

0
7

.0
0

$
   

 
7/

15
/2

02
3

D
O

N
E

U
se

 F
u

n
d

s 
b

y 
9

/3
0

/2
3

YE
S

Te
st

 2
 T

re
at

1
8

A
N

TH
EM

R
ec

ru
it

in
g

5
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
5

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
3

7
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
R

EC
EI

V
ED

2
0

D
X

F
D

at
a 

Ex
ch

an
ge

5
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
2

0
2

6
Ye

s
A

P
P

R
O

V
ED

2
1

B
H

C
IP

B
H

 E
xp

an
si

o
n

3
,3

2
2

,1
9

8
.0

0
$

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
Ye

s
A

P
P

R
O

V
ED

V
SH

W
C

 B
H

 E
xp

an
si

o
n

2
2

FE
M

A
 #

 3
St

o
rm

 D
am

ag
e

1
2

,7
6

8
.3

0
$

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
1

3
,8

1
7

.0
8

$
   

   
P

en
d

in
g 

Fi
n

al
 R

ev
ie

w
Tr

ee
 D

am
ag

e

2
3

C
C

I #
2

A
d

va
n

ci
n

g 
B

H
1

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

1
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

9
/1

/2
0

2
3

Ye
s

R
EC

EI
V

ED

2
4

C
C

I #
3

A
d

va
n

ci
n

g 
B

H
2

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

A
P

P
R

O
V

ED
Ti

d
es

2
5

C
en

te
n

e
TB

D
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

4
9

,7
8

6
.0

2
$

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

R
EC

EI
V

ED
 7

/1
7

/2
3

2
6

C
H

W
Le

t'
s 

A
ll 

Sm
ile

1
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   

2
7

C
al

av
er

as
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 

Fo
u

n
d

at
io

n
A

ED
 4

 L
if

e 
4

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
  

4
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
  

4
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
  

R
EC

EI
V

ED
 1

1
/7

/2
3

A
ED

 4
 L

if
e

TO
TA

LS
$

4
,8

4
9

,2
9

2
.4

2
$

1
,4

0
1

,8
0

0
.3

4
$

1
,3

0
9

,5
4

1
.2

6
1

1
/7

/2
0

2
3

1
2

:4
0P

M

89



    

MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

RURAL HEALTH CLINICS 

POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

POLICY: Standardized Procedure for Depo Provera 
Injection REVIEWED: 6/21/23; 9/19/23 

  
SECTION:  Standardized Procedures 

 // 
REVISED: 9/19/23 

  
EFFECTIVE: 7/26/2310/25/23 

  
 MEDICAL DIRECTOR: Randall Smart, MD 

  

Subject:  Standardized Procedure for Depo Provera Injection 
 
Objective: To establish guidelines for Medical Assistants to provide subsequent injections for patients 
receiving Depo Provera Injections for Birth Control 
 
Response Rating: Administration of Medication – Nursing Staff (RN, LVN, MA) 
 
Required Equipment: UA Pregnancy Testing, Medication, IM Injection supplies. 
 
Procedure: 
  
Temperature Requirements: DO NOT REFRIGERATE Should be kept at room temperature (67-77 degrees F) 
 
Ist Time Injection for Patients:  
 

1. After being provided with appropriate training, an MA may administer an IM injection of Depo Provera 
that has been ordered by a provider. 

2. Prior to a patient’s 1st injection of Depo Provera, the MA must perform a pregnancy test. The patient 
will receive an initial consultation with the provider, if it is determined that it is an appropriate form of 
birth control, the provider will order the Depo Provera with 3 1 year’s worth of refills (for q 12 weeks 
(+/- 1 week)3-month injections) through the patient’s preferred pharmacy. 

3. The patient will schedule a Nurse visit, returning with the medication. 
4. The patient should be advised to call the pharmacy prior to coming in. and to pick up the Depo Provera 

medication immediately prior to the appointment to prevent any decrease in effectiveness (due to 
temperature requirements) to the medication. 

5. Using the usual protocol of checking and verifying medication, the MA can then administer the Depo 
Provera medication as an IM injection.  

6. Please have the patient wait a minimum of 10 minutes prior to leaving the facility to ensure there is no 
(adverse) reaction. (Provider decision or patient condition may override the length of stay, post 
injection.) 

7. The MA will document per protocol on the medication injection, including medication provided, lot 
number, expiration date, who the medication was verified by and administered by, location of 
injection, how the patient tolerated the injection. 

 
 
 
 

90



    

Patients Returning for Q 12 weeks (+/- 1 week)3 Month Injections 
 
1. Patients returning for subsequent Depo Provera injections may make Nurse visit appointments q 3 

months to receive the next injections. After 1 year (a total of 4 injections) the patient must schedule an 
appointment with their provider to check BP and to follow-up with other healthcare needs. 

2. When the patient arrives with their medication, picked up immediately prior to the appointment to 
prevent any decrease in effectiveness (due to temperature requirements) to the medication, the MA 
will perform a urine pregnancy test to verify the patient is not pregnant, even if the patient is within 
the “window”.  

3. Upon verification of a negative pregnancy test, the MA may proceed with the Depo Provera injection, 
IM, utilizing the proper medication verification procedure. 

The MA will document per protocol on the medication injection, including medication provided, lot number, 
expiration date, who the medication was verified by and administered by, location of injection, how the 
patient tolerated the injection.  
 
 
General Information: 

• Depo-Provera CI is given as a shot into the muscle (intramuscular injection). The shot is given in the 
buttock or upper arm 1 time every 3 months 12 weeks (+/- 1 week). At the end of the 3 monthsOnce 
due, the patient will need to return to their healthcare provider for the next injection to continue 
protection against pregnancy. 

• To make sure that the patient is not pregnant before administration of Depo-Provera CI, the first 
injection should be given only: 

o during the first 5 days of a normal menstrual period, or 
o within the first 5 days after giving birth, if the patient is not breastfeeding, or 
o at the 6th week after giving birth, if the patient is feeding their baby only breastmilk. 

• Depo-Provera CI may be given at other times than those listed above, but the patient will need to have 
a pregnancy test first to show that they are not pregnant. 

• During treatment with Depo-Provera CI, the patient should see their healthcare provider every year for 
a blood pressure check and other healthcare needs. 

 
https://www.pfizermedicalinformation.com/en-us/depo-provera-ci-next-injection-date-calculator 
 

 

Formatted: Font color: Dark Red

91

https://www.pfizermedicalinformation.com/en-us/depo-provera-ci-next-injection-date-calculator


 

   
Autoclave Use and Maintenance 

Policy Number 21 

MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

RURAL HEALTH CLINICS 

POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

POLICY:  Autoclave Use And Maintenance REVIEWED:  10/1/19; 9/09/20; 8/2/21: 10/17/22; 9/19/23 

  
SECTION:  Infection Control 

  
 REVISED:  9/09/20: 10/17/22; 9/26/23 

  
EFFECTIVE:  10/26/2225/23 

  
 MEDICAL DIRECTOR: Randall Smart, MD 

  

Subject:  Autoclave Use and Maintenance 
 
Objective:  To safely sterilize, by steam, instruments and other utensils, and to ensure integrity of the 
sterilization procedure.  No cold sterilization will be utilized at this facility. 
 
Response Rating: Mandatory 
 
Required Equipment: Autoclave, sterilization pouches (assorted sizes), biological indicator strips 
 
Procedure: 
 
1. All instruments, equipment and medicine cups for laceration trays or I&D trays should be scrubbed 

with approved enzymatic cleaner only.  
 

a. Hinged implements will be cleaned in the open position. 
 
2. After cleaning the instruments, they are placed in approved disinfectant for 30 minutes and then are 

scrubbed, .   
 

a. Hinged implements will be disinfected in the open position. 
 

b. Dental instruments will be placed in the Midmark Ultrasonic per manufacturer instructions 
 
3. Allow instruments to air dry.  
 
 a. Hinged implements will dry in the open position. Then sprayed with lubricant. 
 
4. Instruments will be placed into sterilization pouches. 
 

a. Hinged implements will be placed into sterilization pouches in the open position. 
b.  A biological Indicator strip will be placed in the center of each pouch with the implement. 

 
5. Packets will be labeled with load #, initials, date of sterilization and expiration date. A pre-labeled 

stamp may be used with lines for initials and dates. 
 

92



 

   
Autoclave Use and Maintenance 

Policy Number 21 

6.   Place packets on shelf in autoclave.  DO NOT STACK ITEMS. 
  
7.   Select and press appropriate preprogrammed button. 
 
8. Place spore tests in opposite corners (rotating) of the autoclave with each sterilization load. For Dental, 
the 2 spore tests are to be placed in opposite corners (rotating) of the autoclave with the first load of the day, 
but all following batches will still be documented. 
 
8.   Press the start button. 
 
9.  Record autoclave load on the autoclave log. Medical and Dental Departments will maintain separate 

load logs. 
 
 
Autoclave Maintenance 
 
Weekly: 
 
1.   Clean external surfaces with a soft dry cloth and occasionally with a damp cloth and mild detergent. 
 
2.  Wipe internal surfaces with damp cloth. 
 
3.  Drain water from reservoir using drain tube on front of unit.  Drain into large basin. 
 
4.  Using Speed-Clean Autoclave Cleaner and distilled water, wash inside of chamber, trays, door, door  

 gasket, and door gasket mating surface.  Examine door gasket for possible damage that could prevent a 
 good sealing surface. 

 
5.  Refill reservoir with clean distilled water. 
 
 Record cleaning on Autoclave Log. Medical and Dental Departments will maintain separate 

maintenance and cleaning logs. 
6.  
 
Monthly: 
 
1.   Flush system-drain reservoir and fill with clean distilled water.  Add 1 oz. of Speed-Clean Sterilizer to a 

 cool chamber. 
 
2.  Run one pouch cycle.  Instrument WILL NOT be done with this cycle. 

 
3.  Drain cleaning solution from reservoir.  Refill reservoir with clean distilled water and run one 

 unwrapped cycle. 
 
4.  Drain reservoir and allow unit to cool. 

 

93



 

   
Autoclave Use and Maintenance 

Policy Number 21 

5.  Remove door and dam gaskets from gasket housing channel.  Clean channel and gaskets using a mild 
 soap or Speed-Clean Sterilizer Cleaner and clean distilled water.  A small stiff brush will aid procedure.  
 After cleaning gaskets, inspect for damage, shrinkage, or swelling and replace if necessary.  Press 
 gasket into the channel and reinstall dam gasket. 

 
6.  Remove trays, tray rack, and tray plate.  Pressing downward on top band of tray rack pull upward on 

 end of tray plate and slide assembly of the chamber. 
 
7.  Locate chamber filters on bottom and back of chamber.  Grasp filter and pull outward while twisting 

 slightly.  If necessary a pair of pliers may be used.  Filter may be cleaned with mild soap or Speed-Clean 
 Sterilizer Cleaner and clean distilled water.  If cleansing methods do not effectively clean the filter, 
 replacement may be necessary.  Reinstall filters by pressing inward and twisting slightly.   

 
8.  DO NOT OPERATE UNIT WITHOUT FILTERS. 

 
9.  Wipe off all trays, tray rack, and tray plate.  Reinstall assembly by placing back edge of tray plate in 

 chamber.  Pushing downward on top of tray rack, slowly push assembly into chamber. 
 
10.  Angles on end of plate must be toward back of chamber to prevent interference with temperature 

 probe in back of chamber. 
 
11. Fill the reservoir with clean distilled water. 

 
12. Sterilizer is now ready for use. 

 

13. Record cleaning on Autoclave Log. Medical and Dental Departments will maintain separate cleaning logs. 
 

 
 
 

94



 

Autoclave Spore Testing 
Policy 20 

 

 

MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

RURAL HEALTH CLINICS 

POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

POLICY:  Autoclave Spore Testing 
REVIEWED: 12/1/19; 3/25/20; 8/31/20; 8/2/21; 11/07/22; 
9/19/23 

  
SECTION:  Infection Control 

  
 REVISED: 08/31/20; 11/07/22: 9/26/23 

  
EFFECTIVE:  11/30/2210/25/23 

  
 MEDICAL DIRECTOR: Randall Smart, MD 

 
Objective:  To prevent the spread of nosocomial infections, and assure sterility of all sterile products 
autoclaved, spore testing will be performed daily. 
 
Response Rating: Mandatory 
 
Required Equipment: Autoclave, EZTest biological indicators 
 
Procedure: 
 
1.  EZTest biological indicators will be utilized to monitor every sterilizer load in Medical. Dental 

Department .   
 
2.  Utilize two EZTest units in each sterilizer load. 
 

A.   In a horizontal position with the items being sterilized.   
 

B.        In least lethal locations in the load   
 
3. Document the load on the autoclave log, Medical and Dental will keep separate sterilization load logs. 
 
4 Select the required cycle and process the load. 
 
5 Remove the load and EZTest biological indicators from the sterilizer and allow to cool for at least 10 
 minutes.  
 
6.  Retrieve the cooled EZTest biological indicators for incubation. 
  

A.       Activate the media by placing the indicator in an upright position in a plastic crusher. 
 

B.       Gently squeeze the crusher to break the glass ampoule. 
 

C.       Place the activated sterilized indicator in the incubator rack and incubate immediately for a      
minimum of 24 hours at 55-60 degrees Celsius. 

 

95



 

Autoclave Spore Testing 
Policy 20 

 

7. Review the EZTest chemical and biological indicators.   
A. Confirm the chemical indicator on the label has changed from blue to black. 

i. Indicator should turn from blue to black when exposed to steam. 
ii. Black color of the label does not indicate acceptable sterilization. 

 
B. Examine the biological media indicator at periodic intervals for color change. 

i. The incubation time is 24 hours minimum per US FDA/RIT protocol. 
j. The appearance of a yellow color indicates bacterial growth. No color change indicates 

adequate sterilization. 
k. Record incubation results at minimum 24 hours after incubation time on the autoclave load 

log. 
 
 
8. Act on a positive test (a color change of yellow) as soon as the color change is noted. Notify Clinic Manager 

and (for Medical) do not release the load. (For Dental) Pull all unused packets from the failed load and go 
through logs to identify pateints who may have been treated with failed load products. Management will 
determine which patients need to be notified. 
 

A.    Retest the sterilizer with several EZTest biological indicators if a positive test is noted. 
  

B.     Dispose of positive media indicators in biohazard, to be incinerated. 
 
9. Abnormal results are to be reported to the Clinic Director immediately. The unit will be tagged and 

removed from service until device is determined to be functioning correctly and/or needs servicing by a 
Licensed Service Technician. 

 
10.       If service is required, complete a maintenance request form and present it to the Clinic Manager. 
 
11. Clinic Manager will schedule servicing for the equipment or will delegate that responsibility to a staff 

member. 
 
12.   Daily Media Controls. 
  

A. Place an activated, un-sterilized EZTest biological indicator in the incubator daily for Medical and on 
days of operation for the Dental Departments, as a positive growth control.  

 
B. Examine the biological media indicator at regular periods for color change. 
 

C. The incubation time is minimum 24 hours per US FDA/RIT protocol. 
 

D. The yellow color is evidence of bacterial growth. 
 

E. Record incubation results at minimum 24 hours after incubation time on the autoclave spore 
testing daily log. 

 

96



 

Autoclave Spore Testing 
Policy 20 

 

F. Remove all positive indicators as the yellow color is noticed, and dispose of in biohazard waste. 
 

G. If the positive control does not grow (stays purple, not yellow), stop use of units from open box and 
notify Clinic Manager.  

 

H. Clinic Manager or designee will contact MesaLabs to confirm that remaining EZTest biological 
indicator of current box should be discarding or retained for use. 

 
I. EZTest products are stored at room temperature. 

 
J. Do not store indicators near sterilants or other chemicals. 

 
K. EZTest products have a shelf-life designated on each box.   

  
L. After sterilization, the contents of the EZTest biological indicator are hot and under pressure.  
 Always allow to cool for at least 10 minutes.  Failure to cool at least 10 minutes may cause the 
 glass ampule to burst and may result in injury from hot liquid. 

 
13. Should the user observe yellow media in the biological indicator upon removal from the product box, 
 this unit should be discarded in the biohazard waste container. The Manager should be notified 
immediately. 
 
 

97



    

MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

RURAL HEALTH CLINICS 

POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

POLICY: Emerging Infectious Disease REVIEWED: 9/07/22; 9/18/23 

  
SECTION:  Infection Control 

  
REVISED: 9/19/23 

  
EFFECTIVE: 10/26/202225/23 

  
 MEDICAL DIRECTOR: Randy Smart, MD 

  

Subject:  Emerging Infectious Disease   
 
Objective: VSHWC seeks to create and maintain a safe environment within its clinic and community and is 

committed to high standards and compliance with all applicable laws and regulations being prepared for the 

management of future Infectious Disease Outbreaks/Pandemics. 

Response Rating: This Policy and Procedure applies to the following current and future facility staff, regardless 

of clinical responsibility or patient contact, who provide any care, treatment, or other services for the facility 

and/or its patients: 

• facility employees; 

• licensed practitioners;  

• other contracted repair or maintenance persons 

• students, trainees, and volunteers; 

• and individuals who provide care, treatment, or other services for the facility and/or its 

patients, under contract or other arrangement. 

• These requirements do not apply to individuals who provide services 100% remotely, 

including fully remote telehealth or payroll services.  

Required Equipment: PPE, Soap, water, sterile gloves, and approved disinfectant.   
 
Procedure: The Clinic will follow all current guidelines for Infectious disease outbreaks regarding safety 
requirements as put forth by the CDC, Federal and State authorities. 
 
**Refer to the Infection Control Policy 
 
Implementation: 
 
VSHWC will utilize resources, supplies and information updates and coordinate with community resources 
including Calaveras, Amador and Tuolumne County Public Health Department, California Department of 
Health, Calaveras County Office of Emergency Service, CDC, FEMA, Department of Homeland Security 
(contacts are located in the Emergency Operations Binders Tab 7). 
 
VSHWC will also utilize Quest, Yosemite Pathology and Mark Twain Medical Center for lab processing 
and/or lab draws or testing as may be required. 
 
 

98



    

The VSHWC Clinic will monitor any updates on new Infectious disease threats to the local community through 
emergency service, CDPH resources and communications, and take action to protect our staff and patient 
population, while maintaining the ability to provide healthcare services safely for the community. 
 
Key Concepts in This Guidance for Pandemic Contagious and/or Respiratory Infections (I.E. Covid-19): 

• Limit how germs can enter the facility. Cancel elective procedures, use telemedicinetelemedicine, 
when possible, limit points of entry and manage visitors, screen patients for contagious respiratory 
symptoms, encourage patient respiratory hygiene using alternatives to facemasks (e.g., tissues to 
cover cough). 

• Isolate symptomatic patients as soon as possible. Set up separate, well-ventilated triage areas, place 
patients with suspected pandemic, infectious disease or confirmed COVID-19, in private rooms with 
door closed.  Use specific rooms at ends of halls near doorways to have patients enter through side 
doors 

• Protect healthcare personnel. Emphasize hand hygiene, install barriers to limit contact with patients at 
triage, cohort similarly infected (I.E. COVID-19) patients, limit the numbers of staff providing their care, 
prioritize respirators for aerosol-generating procedures, implement PPE optimization strategies to 
extend supplies. 

• Consider increasing cleaning intervals for community areas, like patient waiting room and reception 
countertops and chairs.  

• Identify infectious rooms with signs, allowing time between patients in the isolation rooms, spray with 
hospital grade disinfectant (I.E. Lysol Pro), allowing the room to sit for an extended period, prior to 
being wiped down using normal cleaning protocol. 

• Educate Staff and provide current and updated information, including the Medical Director’s guidance. 
• Utilize Transmission Mitigation Guidelines Guide, created during the COVID-19 pandemic by the 

Medical Director, to determine levels of severity and actions to implement. 

Patient Care: 

Measures should be implemented before patient arrival, upon arrival, throughout the duration of the patient’s 
visit, and until the patient’s room is cleaned and disinfected. It is particularly important to protect individuals 
at increased risk for adverse outcomes from transmissible pathogens (e.g. older individuals with comorbid 
conditions), including HCP who are in a recognized risk category. 

• Before Arrival 
o When scheduling appointments for routine medical care (e.g., annual physical, elective minor 

procedures), instruct patients to call ahead and discuss the need to reschedule their 
appointment if they develop symptoms of a respiratory infection (e.g., cough, sore throat, 
fever1) on the day they are scheduled to be seen. 

o When scheduling appointments for patients requesting evaluation for a respiratory infection, 
use nurse-directed triage protocols to determine if an appointment is necessary or if the 
patient can be managed from home. 

▪ If the patient must come in for an appointment, instruct them to call beforehand to 
inform triage personnel that they have symptoms of a respiratory infection (e.g., cough, 
sore throat, fever1) and to take appropriate preventive actions (e.g., follow triage 
procedures, remain in car as instructed and call upon arrival; wear a facemask upon 
allowed entry and throughout their visit or, if a facemask cannot be tolerated, use a 
tissue to contain respiratory secretions). 

99

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/hcp/ppe-strategy/index.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/mers/infection-prevention-control.html#foot1
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/infection-control/control-recommendations.html#foot1


    

• Upon Arrival and During the Visit 
o Consider limiting points of entry to the facility. 
o Take steps to ensure all persons with symptoms of COVID-19 or other respiratory infection 

(e.g., fever, cough) adhere to respiratory hygiene and cough etiquette, hand hygiene, and triage 
procedures throughout the duration of the visit. 

▪ Post signs and posters at the entrance and in strategic places (e.g., waiting areas) to 
provide patients and HCP with instructions (in appropriate languages) about hand 
hygiene, respiratory hygiene, and cough etiquette. Instructions should include how to 
use tissues to cover nose and mouth when coughing or sneezing, to dispose of tissues 
and contaminated items in waste receptacles, and how and when to perform hand 
hygiene. 

▪ Provide supplies for respiratory hygiene and cough etiquette, including alcohol-based 
hand rub (ABHR) with 70-95% alcohol, tissues, and no-touch receptacles for disposal, at 
healthcare facility entrances, waiting rooms, and patient check-ins. 

▪ Ensure rapid safe triage and isolation of patients with symptoms of suspected COVID-19 
or other respiratory infection (e.g., fever, cough). 

▪ Prioritize triage of patients with respiratory symptoms. 
▪ Triage personnel should have a supply of facemasks and tissues for patients with 

symptoms of respiratory infection. These should be provided to patients with symptoms 
of respiratory infection at check-in. Source control (putting a facemask over the mouth 
and nose of a symptomatic patient) can help to prevent transmission to others. 

▪ Ensure that, at the time of patient check-in, all patients are asked about the presence of 
symptoms of a respiratory infection and history of travel to areas experiencing 
transmission of COVID-19 or contact with possible COVID-19 patients. 

▪ Isolate the patient in an examination room with the door closed. If an examination room 
is not readily available ensure the patient is not allowed to wait among other patients 
seeking care. 

▪ Identify a separate, well-ventilated space that allows waiting patients to be 
separated by 6 or more feet, with easy access to respiratory hygiene supplies. 

▪ In some settings, patients might opt to wait in a personal vehicle or outside the 
healthcare facility where they can be contacted by mobile phone when it is their 
turn to be evaluated. 

▪ Patients with respiratory symptoms may be instructed to wait in their vehicles 
outside the facility and call upon arrival for further instructions.  

o Incorporate questions about new onset of respiratory symptoms into daily assessments of all 
admitted patients. Monitor for and evaluate all new fevers and respiratory illnesses among 
patients. Place any patient with unexplained fever or respiratory symptoms on appropriate 
Transmission-Based Precautions and evaluate. 

Additional considerations during periods of community transmission:  

o Explore alternatives to face-to-face triage and visits. 
o Learn more about how healthcare facilities can Prepare for Community Transmission 
o Designate an area at the facility (e.g., an ancillary building or temporary structure) or identify a 

location in the area to be a “respiratory virus evaluation center” where patients with fever or 
respiratory symptoms can seek evaluation and care. 

o Cancel group healthcare activities (e.g., group therapy, recreational activities). 
o Postpone elective procedures and non-urgent outpatient visits. 

100

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/healthcare-facilities/guidance-hcf.html


    

• Hand Hygiene 
o HCP should perform hand hygiene before and after all patient contact, contact with potentially 

infectious material, and before putting on and after removing PPE, including gloves. Hand 
hygiene after removing PPE is particularly important to remove any pathogens that might have 
been transferred to bare hands during the removal process. 

o HCP should perform hand hygiene by using ABHR with 70-95% alcohol or washing hands with 
soap and water for at least 20 seconds. If hands are visibly soiled, use soap and water before 
returning to ABHR. 

o Healthcare facilities should ensure that hand hygiene supplies are readily available to all 
personnel in every care location. 

 

• Personal Protective Equipment 
Clinic management should select appropriate PPE and provide it to HCP in accordance with OSHA PPE 
standards (29 CFR 1910 Subpart I) external icon. HCP must receive training on and demonstrate an 
understanding of: 

• when to use PPE 
• what PPE is necessary 
• how to properly don, use, and doff PPE in a manner to prevent self-contamination 
• how to properly dispose of or disinfect and maintain PPE 
• the limitations of PPE. 

Any reusable PPE must be properly cleaned, decontaminated, and maintained after and between uses. Facility 
has policies and procedures describing a recommended sequence for safely donning and doffing PPE. The PPE 
recommended when caring for a patient with known or suspected COVID-19 includes: 

• Respirator or Facemask 
o Put on a respirator or (N95) facemask (if a respirator is not available) before entry into the 

patient room or care area. 
o N95 respirators or respirators N95 facemasks that offer a higher level of protection should be 

used instead of a regular facemask when performing or present for an aerosol-generating 
procedure, even if performing the aerosol-generating procedure outside.. Disposable 
respirators and facemasks should be removed and discarded after exiting the patient’s room or 
care area and closing the door. Perform hand hygiene after discarding the respirator or 
facemask.  

▪ If reusable respirators (e.g., powered air purifying respirators [PAPRs]) are used, they 
must be cleaned and disinfected according to manufacturer’s reprocessing instructions 
prior to re-use. 

o When the supply chain is restored, facilities with a respiratory protection program should 
return to use of respirators for patients with known or suspected COVID-19. Those that do not 
currently have a respiratory protection program, but care for patients with pathogens for which 
a respirator is recommended, should implement a respiratory protection program. 

• Eye Protection 
o Put on eye protection (i.e., goggles or a disposable face shield that covers the front and sides of 

the face) upon entry to the patient room or care area. Personal eyeglasses and contact lenses 
are NOT considered adequate eye protection. 

101

https://www.osha.gov/laws-regs/regulations/standardnumber/1910
https://www.osha.gov/laws-regs/regulations/standardnumber/1910


    

o Remove eye protection before leaving the patient room or care area. 
o Reusable eye protection (e.g., goggles) must be cleaned and disinfected according to 

manufacturer’s reprocessing instructions prior to re-use. Disposable eye protection should be 
discarded after use. 

• Gloves 
o Put on clean, non-sterile gloves upon entry into the patient room or care area. 

▪ Change gloves if they become torn or heavily contaminated. 
o Remove and discard gloves when leaving the patient room or care area, and immediately 

perform hand hygiene. 
• Gowns 

o Put on a clean isolation gown upon entry into the patient room or area. Change the gown if it 
becomes soiled. Remove and discard the gown in a dedicated container for waste or linen 
before leaving the patient room or care area. Disposable gowns should be discarded after use. 
Cloth gowns should be laundered after each use. 

o If there are shortages of gowns, they should be prioritized for: 
▪ aerosol-generating procedures 
▪ care activities where splashes and sprays are anticipated 
▪ high-contact patient care activities that provide opportunities for transfer of pathogens 

to the hands and clothing of HCP. Examples include: 
▪ device care or use 
▪ wound care 

3. Patient Placement 

• For patients with COVID-19 or other respiratory infections, evaluate need for hospitalization. If 
hospitalization is not medically necessary, home care is preferable if the individual’s situation allows. 

• As a measure to limit HCP exposure and conserve PPE, facilities could consider designating entire units 
within the facility, with dedicated HCP, to care for known or suspected COVID-19Covid-19 or alternate 
pandemic-infected patients. Dedicated means that HCP are assigned to care only for these patients 
during their shift. 

o Determine how staffing needs will be met as the number of patients with known or suspected 
COVID-19infection rate increases and HCP become ill and are excluded from work. 

o During times of limited access to respirators or facemasks, facilities could consider having HCP 
remove only gloves and gowns (if used) and perform hand hygiene between patients with the 
same diagnosis (e.g., confirmed COVID-19) while continuing to wear the same eye protection 
and respirator or facemask (i.e., extended use). Risk of transmission from eye protection and 
facemasks during extended use is expected to be very low. 

▪ HCP must take care not to touch their eye protection and respirator or facemask 
.facemask. 

▪ Eye protection and the respirator or facemask should be removed, and hand hygiene 
performed if they become damaged or soiled and when leaving the unit. 

o HCP should strictly follow basic infection control practices between patients (e.g., hand 
hygiene, cleaning and disinfecting shared equipment). 

• Patients should wear a facemask to contain secretions during transport. If patients cannot tolerate a 
facemask or one is not available, they should use tissues to cover their mouth and nose. 

• Personnel entering the room should use PPE as described above. 
• Whenever possible, perform procedures/tests in the patient’s room. 

102

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/hcp/guidance-home-care.html


    

Collection of Diagnostic Respiratory Specimens 

• When collecting diagnostic respiratory specimens (e.g., nasopharyngeal swab) from a possible COVID-
19 or infectious patient, the following should occur: 

o HCP proximate to the patient or performing the test should wear an N-95 or higher-level 
respirator (or facemask if a respirator is not available), eye protection, gloves, and a gown. 

o The number of HCP present during the procedure should be limited to only those essential for 
patient care and procedure support. Visitors should not be present for specimen collection. 

o Specimen collection should be performed in a normal examination room with the door closed 
or in the patient’s vehicle as dictated by triage and existing protocols. 

o Clean and disinfect procedure room surfaces promptly and allow the room to air out, 
unutilized, for a minimum of three hours. 

o Any test or procedure that will cause aerosolization should be performed outside whenever 
possible 

 Generalized NON-Covid Infection Control: 

During any identifiable infectious disease every attempt should be made to follow the guidance of CDC, 
California Department of Public Health, Calaveras County Department of Public Health. 
 
1. Wash hands with soap and water: 
         
 a. Before coming on duty 
 b. Before and after direct and indirect patient contact. 
             c. Before and after performing any body functions, such as blowing your nose or using the toilet 
 d. After direct or indirect contact with any body fluid (urine, blood. sputum) 
 e. Before and after catheter insertions, blood draws, dressing changes and other  
  sterile procedures 
 f. Before and after caring for a patient with known or suspected infection 
 g. After completing your shift 
 
 
2. Other guidelines: 
 
 a. Clean under your fingernails with brush before and after working in a high-risk situation 
 b. Avoid personal hand creams while working, as it may interfere with antiseptic solutions  
 c. Always wash hands before and after wearing sterile gloves 
 d. Between patients, it is acceptable use alcohol-based hand sanitizers if your hands are not  

 visibly dirty, however it is understood that handwashing with soap and water for a minimum of   
20 seconds is preferred 

 
3. Disinfectant Guidelines: 
 

a. Utilize manufacture prepared disinfectant solutions or wipes while those products are 
available. 

b. Make fresh disinfectant solution if needed according to manufacturer directions should 
manufacturer prepared disinfectant solutions or wipes not be available 

c. Mark disinfectant solution with name and date prepared, your initials and expiration date 

103



    

 d. Never add fresh disinfectant solution to an already prepared solution 
 
4. Guidelines for medical equipment coming in contact with body fluid 
 
 a. Clean article according to manufacture guidelines. 
 
 
REFERENCE: CDC Guidelines (on-line), California Department of Public Health, Calaveras County Department 
of Public Health 
 
 
 

104



 

New Employee Onboarding and Annual Training 
Policy Number  224 

MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

RURAL HEALTH CLINICS 

POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

POLICY: New Employee Onboarding and Annual 
Training 

REVIEWED:  2/8/20; 12/02/2020; 6/08/21: 8/31/22; 9/19/23 
 

  
SECTION:  Workforce 

  
REVISED: 12/02/2020; 6/08/21; 8/31/22; 9/19/23 

  
EFFECTIVE:  10/26/2225/23 

  
 MEDICAL DIRECTOR: Randall Smart, MD 

  

Policy: This policy applies to all employees who were successful in receiving an offer of employment and have 
accepted it according to the specified protocol. As each new employee is hired to work for the Health Care 
District, the following items must be completed before the new employee can be put on the schedule. 
Documentation and training that will be required annually are listed below. 
 
Objective:  In addition to ensuring that the onboarding process is a positive experience for both the new 
employee and the organization, onboarding will ensure the organization is compliant with governing 
Standards. This policy governs the onboarding process and sets roles and responsibilities to ensure all new 
employees are appropriately oriented and trained. This policy applies to all employees: full time, part time, or 
per diem. 

To ensure that compliance measures are met, this policy governs the process and roles of the District as well 
as the employee initially and annually basis.  

Procedure: 
A. After the new employee has been offered a job the following items need to be completed and returned to 
the Human Resources for processing: 

1.   Resume /CV 
2. Current phone number and email 
3. A color copy of their CDL or current legal photo identification and social security card 

B. Upon receipt of these items, HR will:  
1.  Arrange for a background check and urine drug test.  
2. Upon successful completion, HR will enter the employee into the payroll system - -  
1. 3. HR will provide a copy of the Employee Personnel manual (which includes the Drug-Free 

Workplace Policy) and have employee sign receipt of manual form.  
4.The background check - will be verified and uploaded.  
5. Employee will enter in iSolved Program: 

a) Direct Deposit 
b) W-4 
c) I-9 
d) Emergency contact information 

6. Medical Insurance Enrollment Packet (if employee qualifies) or waiver will be provided and signed.  
They will be eligible the 1st day of the month after the first 60 days. 

5.  
7.    New Employee will be introduced to CEO and Medical Director. 

105



 

New Employee Onboarding and Annual Training 
Policy Number  224 

 
8.The Clinic Manager will be notified that the employee is ready to start work 

 
C. Once the above information is returned, the new employee has been entered into the database, online 
training will be issued (assignments are made by the Clinic Manager). 
The employee will then be scheduled to start in the clinic by the Clinic Manager.  
 
D. On the 1st day, the employee will be provided with a tour of the Clinic, the Manager will collect: 

1. Photocopies of all Professional Licenses  
2. CPR cards 
3. Certificates of Completion 
4. Copies of current PPD/TB tests 
5.  Signed Employee Personnel Manual acknowledgement 
6. Copy of Covid-19 vaccinations with booster (or exemption) 

E. The Manager will have employees review and sign copies of: 

2. Confidentiality Statement 
3. Dress Code 
4. Job Description  
5. Standards of Conduct 
6. Child Abuse Mandated Reporter 
7. Elder Abuse Mandated Reporter 
8. Hep B Acknowledgement 
9. Language Services Form 
10. TB Screening form (if no current PPD is available within the past year) 

F. The Manager will Provide: 

1. A New Employee Orientation Checklist 
2. Usernames and passwords for: Initial computer access, email access, AthenaNet and Dentrix, as 

indicated. 
3. A copy of the Org Chart 
4. A temporary name badge 
5. A door access badge 
6. Required keys 
7. A Holiday Schedule 
8. 401K Information. All employees will be eligible immediately. 
9. Enrollment for RIDE (if clinical role indicates) 
10. HIE access for local hospitals (Dignity, Sutter, Adventist – if clinical role indicates) 
11. Access to Medi-Cal and Availity (if clinical role indicates) 

 
12. Access to Quest, Aegis (if clinical role indicates) 
10.13.  
11.14. Competency Checklists - to be completed as they train, then returned to the Manager when 

completely signed off. 

G. After all of the above documents have been completed, the Manager will scan them to HR for upload into 
the payroll system. The Manager will also keep hard copies in the event of downtime, and or audits.  

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.75",  No bullets or numbering

106



 

New Employee Onboarding and Annual Training 
Policy Number  224 

H. The modular training assignment (at minimum) is as follows (additional training courses may be added at 
the discretion of the Manager or Medical Director, based on Clinic requirements/needs): 

1) HIPAA Basics 
2) HazCom, the GHS, and You 
3)  EZIZ Vaccines for Children Requirements (MAs) 
4)  EZIZ Storing Vaccines (MAs) 
5)  EZIZ Refrigerator and Freezer Temperature Logs (MAs) 
6)  EZIZ Monitoring Storage Unit Temperatures (MAs) 
7)  EZIZ Conducting a Vaccine Inventory (MAs) 
8)  EZIZ Preparing Vaccines (MAs) 
9)  EZIZ Administering Vaccines (MAs) 
10)  Policy and Procedure Review and Test 
11)  CHDP Fluoride Varnish Application (MAs and Dental employees) 
11)12) Lead Tessting (MA) 
12)13)  MedPro: Medication Waste Stream, OSHA Compliance and Biohazardous Waste Management 
13)14)  Patient Rights and Responsibilities 
14)15)  Sensitive Services 
15)16)  Child, Elder, and Dependent Adult Abuse Reporting 
16)17)  Mandatory Reporting 
18)  Donning and Doffing PPE 
19) Emergency Operations Plan 
17)20) Cultural Competency for MediCal Providers 
18)21)  Infection Control Including Blood Borne Pathogens 
19)22)  Active Shooter:  Surviving an Attack 
20)23)  Active Shooter and Workplace Violence 
21)24)  Bloodborne Pathogens:  The Unexpected Hazard 
22)25)  Anti-Harassment Training for Employees 
26)  Ethics for Employees 
23)27) Sexual Harassment and Abusive Conduct Prevention 
24)28)  Waste, Fraud, and Abuse 
25)29)  Autoclave Training (MAs and Dental employees) 
30) Cybersecurity 
31) Back Safety and Injury prevention 
32) Emergency Preparedness and Fire Preparedness Overview 
33) Preventing Slips Trips and Falls 
26)34) Office Ergonomics 
 

I. Required Annual Training will include: 
1) HIPAA Basics 
2) Infection Control Including Blood Borne Pathogens 
3) HazCom, the GHS, and You 
4)3) Anti-Harassment Training for Employees 
5)4) EZIZ Vaccines for Children Requirements (MAs) 
6)5)  EZIZ Storing Vaccines (MAs) 
7)6)  EZIZ Refrigerator and Freezer Temperature Logs (MAs) 

107



 

New Employee Onboarding and Annual Training 
Policy Number  224 

8)7)  EZIZ Monitoring Storage Unit Temperatures (MAs) 
9)8)  EZIZ Conducting a Vaccine Inventory (MAs) 
10)9)  EZIZ Preparing Vaccines (MAs) 
10)  EZIZ Administering Vaccines (MAs) 
11) AntiSexual-Harassment Training for Employees/Supervisors (every 2 years per CA requirements) 
 

J. Annual Requirements: 

1. TB Test Results or Waiver (Manager) 
2. Fit Testing (Manager) 
3. Photocopies of all updated Professional Licenses and/or Certificates of Completion (Manager) 
4. CPR (Manager) 
5. Annual Competency Checklist 
6. OIG (Office of Inspector General) Screening (HR) 

 

Formatted: Font color: Text 1

108



 

  Waste, Fraud, and Abuse 
Policy Number 215 

  

MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

RURAL HEALTH CLINICS 

POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

POLICY:  Waste, Fraud, and Abuse REVIEWED:  11/9/18; 10/14/20; 8/2/21: 9/6/22; 9/19/23 

  
SECTION:  District 

  
REVISED: 9/19/23 

  
EFFECTIVE:  10/26/2225/23 

  
 MEDICAL DIRECTOR: Randall Smart, MD 

  

 
Subject: Prevention, Detection, and Reporting of Waste, Fraud, and Abuse 
 
Objective:  The Clinic will utilize ethical and conscientious practices in the care of patients, use of clinic 
resources, in documentation and billing practices. 

Response Rating: Mandatory 
 
Required Equipment:  
 
Definitions: 
 
Fraud: wrongful or criminal deception intended to result in financial or personal gain. 
 
Abuse: practices that, either directly or indirectly, result in unnecessary costs to the health insurance program. 
includes any practice that is not consistent with the goals of providing patients with services that are medically 
necessary, meet professionally recognized standards, and are priced fairly. 
 
False claim: overcharging or selling substandard goods and/or services 
 
Kick-Back: pay, solicit, or receive remuneration (payment) directly or indirectly to induce or reward referrals of 
items or services reimbursable by a health care program. 
 
Physician Self-Referral: physicians are prohibited from making a referral for certain designated health services 
to an entity in which the physician or a member of their immediate family has an ownership/investment 
interest or with which they have a compensation arrangement unless a specific exception applies. 
 
Identity theft: the appropriation or misuse of a patient’s or [provider’s] unique medical identifying information 
to obtain or bill public or private payers for fraudulent medical goods or services. 
 
Procedure: 
 

1. The following actions, considered fraud, are forbidden by employees, contractors, and/or vendors of 
the Clinic: 

109



 

  Waste, Fraud, and Abuse 
Policy Number 215 

  

 

 A. Knowingly submitting false statements or making misrepresentations of fact to obtain a health  
  care payment for which no entitlement would otherwise exist 
 

 B. Knowingly soliciting, paying, and/or accepting remuneration to induce or reward referrals for  

  items or services for which reimbursement is received 

 C. Making prohibited referrals for certain designated health services as defined by Medicare  

  (CMS). 

 D. Knowingly bill for services not furnished supplies not provided or both 

 E. Falsifying records that show delivery of services or supplies that were not provided  

 F. Billing Medicare for appointments that patients did not keep 

 G. Knowingly billing for services at a level of complexity higher than the service actually provided  

  or documented in the medical record 

2. The following actions, considered abuse are forbidden by employees, contractors, and/or vendors of 
the Clinic: 

 A. Billing for services that were not medically necessary 

 B. Charging excessively for service or supplies 

 C. Misusing codes on a claim, such as upcoding or unbundling codes 

3. Fraud and abuse expose personnel to criminal and civil liability. 

4. Federal laws, including the False Claims Act, Anti-Kickback Statute, Physician Self-Referral Law (Stark 

 Law),  the Criminal Health Care Fraud statute, Social Security Act and United States Criminal Code 

 govern Medicare and Medicaid (Medi-Cal) fraud and abuse. 

5. Scheduled and random audits of billing practices will be performed and documented. 

 A. The Chief Compliance Officer (the District Executive Director) and the Medical Director will  

  ensure billing audits are performed and resulting documentation reviewed and discussed  

  during the course of regularly scheduled Quality Assurance Performance Improvement   

  meetings. 

6. In addition to billing practice audits, personnel are encouraged to report any concerns regarding waste, 

 fraud, and/or abuse to the Compliance Officer. 

 

110



 

  Waste, Fraud, and Abuse 
Policy Number 215 

  

 

7. Reports of suspected waste, fraud, and/or abuse will be thoroughly investigated utilizing Clinic 

 resources, vendors, consultants, or other qualified persons or entities. 

 A. Written documentation including the medical record. 

 B. Statements from the reporting party, as well as other witnesses.  

 C. Ancillary information from third parties, including but not limited to payors, vendors, billings  

  services. 

8. If research identifies that waste, fraud, and/or abuse have occurred, the Compliance Officer will  

 ensure proper consequences are applied, up to and/or including termination and reporting to 

 governing bodies. 

9. Supervisors, managers, or employees are not permitted to engage in retaliation, retribution, or any 

 form of harassment directed against any employee who, in good faith, reports a compliance concern. 

 

 

 

 

Reference: 

“Medicare Fraud *& Abuse, Prevention, Detection, And Reporting”, Medicare Learning Network .  

Downloaded May 19 from https://www.cms.gov/Outreach-Education/Medicare-Learning-Network-

MLN/MNLProducts/downloads/Fraud_and_Abuse.pdf. 

“Common Types of Health Care Fraud”, Medicare Learning Network.  Downloaded July 2016 June 2, 2016 from 

https://www.cms.gov/files/document/overviewfwacommonfraudtypesfactsheet072616pdfhttps://www.cms.gov/Me

dicare-Medicaid-Coordination/Fraud-Prevention/Medicaid-Integrity-Education/downloads/fwa-factsheet.pdf . 

https://www.cms.gov/Medicare-Medicaid-Coordination/Fraud-Prevention/Medicaid-Integrity-

Program/Education 

Page Last Modified: 
  
Page Last Modified: 

  
09/06/2023 04:51 PM 

07/22/2020 10:34 AM 
 

111

https://www.cms.gov/Medicare-Medicaid-Coordination/Fraud-Prevention/Medicaid-Integrity-Program/Education
https://www.cms.gov/Medicare-Medicaid-Coordination/Fraud-Prevention/Medicaid-Integrity-Program/Education


 

  Billing for Services Provided Off-Site 
Policy 229 

  

MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

RURAL HEALTH CLINICS 

POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

POLICY: Billing for Services Provided Off-Site REVIEWED: 4/1/20; 5/29/21; 8/04/22; 9/19/23 

  
SECTION:  Revenue Cycle 

  
REVISED: 

  
EFFECTIVE: 10/26/2225/23 

  
 MEDICAL DIRECTOR: Randall Smart, MD 

  
Subject:  Billing for services provided by Clinic Medical staff from a non-Clinic location (i.e. off-site) 

Objective: To accurately document patient encounters performed away from the Clinic location so as to ensure accurate 

billing. 

Response Rating: Mandatory 

Required Equipment: Electronic Medical Record (EMR); telephone; downtime forms if the EMR is not available 

Procedure:  

1. During the COVID-19 pandemic response and at other times as may be deemed necessary by CMS, the State of 

California, the Board of Directors and/or the Medical Director, Medical Staff members may be called upon to work 

from a location other than the physical Clinic for the purpose of rendering patient care. 

a. The Provider will ensure they are preserving patient privacy by interacting with patients in a secure location 

behind a closed door without others in the room with them. 

 

2. Medical staff members will be equipment with Clinic-provided computer equipment and will utilize that equipment 

to access the Electronic Medical Record for the purpose of documenting patient care rendered via telephone or for 

the purpose of following up on open patient care items (ex. Clinical Inbox, messaging, patient portal contact). 

 

3. Standard documentation to for patient follow-up (Clinical Inbox, messaging, patient portal contact) will be 

completed using the same standard and utilized during in-office patient interaction. 

 

4. If a patient is being contacted by telephone for an arranged telephone appointment, the patient will be pre-

registered and checked by the registration staff and will be instructed to have their medications at hand for provider 

review and reconciliation against the EMR. 

 

5. The provider will utilize the standard EMR encounter documentation and will complete the clinical note including: 

 

a. Patient acknowledgement and consent to have a telephone encounter with the provider 

b. Documentation of the total minutes spent on the call with the patient 

c. Diagnosis code(s) 

112



 

  Billing for Services Provided Off-Site 
Policy 229 

  

d. CPT code(s) 

 

6. The biller will review the clinic note for completeness and notify the provider if they are missing time or code 

documentation 

 

7. The biller will ensure the appropriate CPT code(s) are selected. 

 

8. If the EMR is not available, the physician will utilize downtime forms and retain those in a secure location pending 

their being scanned into the EMR. 

 

 

 

 

113



 

 Business Hours 
Policy Number 41 

   

MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

RURAL HEALTH CLINICS 

POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

POLICY: Business Hours REVIEWED:  11/9/18; 9/23/20; 8/2/21: 11/04/22 

  
SECTION:  Operations 

  
REVISED: 9/23/20 

  
EFFECTIVE:   11/30/2210/25/23 

  
 MEDICAL DIRECTOR: Randall Smart, MD 

  

Subject:  Business Hours 
 
Objective:  To ensure a predictable and organized operation of the Clinic, the Clinic will maintain posted hours 
of operation and will report permanent revisions to District Administration and California Department of 
Public Health. 
 
Response Rating:  
 
Required Equipment:  
 
Procedure: 
 
1. The Clinic will be open Monday through Friday, between 8:00am and 5:00pm  

2. The Clinic will be closed for holidays.  

  

 

114



 

  Cash Collection 
Policy Number 34 

  

MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

RURAL HEALTH CLINICS 

POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

POLICY:  Cash Collections REVIEWED:  7/1/19; 2/18/20: 5/29/21; 8/04/22: 8/30/23 

  
SECTION:  Revenue Cycle 

  
REVISED: 2/18/20: 5/29/21 

  
EFFECTIVE:  10/26/2210/25/23 

  
 MEDICAL DIRECTOR: Randall Smart, MD 

  

Subject: Collection of cash payments from patients 
 
Objective:  To reduce the Accounts Receivable days outstanding and the number of aged, open balance 
accounts carried and managed by the Clinic. 

Response Rating: Mandatory 
  
Required Equipment:  
 
Procedure: At the time of registration, the patient’s account will be reviewed and the patient will be asked 
by staff to address the following financial/payment situations: 
 
Co-pay 
 
Patient co-pays are due at the time of service.  Co-pays are accepted in the form of cash, check, debit or credit 

card.  Confirm the patient’s co-pay amount by checking their insurance card details and/or their online 

eligibility.  Provide the patient with a receipt for the payment made. 

Flat rate fees and/or sliding fees 

Patients that participate in the flat rate or sliding fee schedule programs are required to pay their bill, in full, at 

the time of service.  In part, these program rates are established with the assumption that no statements or 

billing staff follow-up will be required.  Payments are accepted in the form of cash, check, debit or credit card. 

Provide the patient with a receipt for the payment made. 

Current remainder balance 

After a patient’s insurance has paid in full, the patient may be responsible for an unpaid, remainder balance.  

Patients will be sent balance due statements after their insurance payments are received.  Additionally, 

patients should be asked to make a payment toward their current remainder balance when they present to 

the Clinic for a subsequent encounter.  Remainder balance payments are accepted in the form of cash, check, 

debit or credit card.  Provide the patient with a copy of their current account balance and a receipt for any 

payment made. 

  

115



 

  Cash Collection 
Policy Number 34 

  

Aged remainder balance/payment plan 

It is the Clinic’s practice to not allow patient account balances to age to the extent that the account is 

considered for collections or bad debt status.  Patients that do not promptly address their remainder balances, 

will be offered an installment payment plan and will be asked to provide a debit or credit card number to 

support that agreement.  There are a variety of payment plans available. 

Patient self-pay balances will be monitored.  A maximum balance of $300 will be allowed.  If a patient has an 

aged self-pay balance at or exceeding $300 they will be asked to either pay in full or participate in a payment 

plan.  A credit card on file payment plan is the preferred method. 

If the patient refuses to agree to a payment plan and/or fails to meet their existing payment plan agreement, 

the Biller will send the patient a 30 day notice that advises the patient that their care with our practice will 

cease in 30 days, unless and until, the patient clears their aged outstanding balance. 

Should the patient clear their aged outstanding balance and return to the practice, the Biller may recommend 

to Management that the patient be required to make full payment to avoid a repeat of aged balance status. 

Balances in collections 

Patient account balances that remain unpaid for 120 days after the date of service may be submitted to a debt 

collection service.  The Clinic is able to collect payments for accounts in collections.  Staff will see the patient’s 

“collection service” balance on the patient’s registration screen and will ask the patient for a payment toward 

the old balance.  Staff will provide the patient with a receipt for any payment made.  After payment is posted 

in the system, staff will report changes to the patients balance to the agency. The receipt will indicate that the 

payment is to be applied toward a collections balance.  Recording the payment and related accounting 

functions will be performed by the Biller.  

Bad debt balances 

Patient account balances that remain unpaid and are deemed “uncollectable” may be written off as bad debt.  

Once an account has been written off to bad debt, staff will see the bad debt amount displayed on the 

patient’s registration screen.  Staff will ask the patient for a payment toward the bad debt balance and will 

provide the patient with a receipt for any payment made. The receipt will indicate that the payment is to be 

applied toward a bad debt balance.  Recording the payment and related accounting functions will be 

performed by the Biller.  

Non-sufficient fund (NSF) checks 

When a patient’s check is returned for non-sufficient funds (NSF), the Accounting Office is responsible for 

documenting the return of the check and for entering the NSF fund charge in recordkeeping system. The biller 

would then be notified by Accounting for the charge to be re-entered onto the patient’s account to show as a 

balance owed, with the possibility of an additional fee for the returned check. 

116



 

  Cleaning Duties 
Policy Number 38 

 

MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

RURAL HEALTH CLINICS 

POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

POLICY:  Cleaning Duties REVIEWED:  3/1/19; 2/14/20; 4/2/20; 5/29/21; 8/04/22; 9/19/23 

  
SECTION:  Infection Control 

  
 REVISED: 2/14/20; 4/2/20: 6/14/21 

  
EFFECTIVE:  10/26/2225/23 

  
 MEDICAL DIRECTOR: Randall Smart, MD 

  

Subject:  Cleaning Duties 
 
Objectives:  To limit the spread of nosocomial infections by maintaining a hygienic, sanitized environment. 
 
Acuity Rating:  Mandatory 
 
Required Equipment:  Germicidal solutions, dental equipment sleeves, general cleaning supplies, gloves. 
 
Applies to:  All Personnel 
Procedure 
 

1. All surfaces will be cleaned with an approved germicidal solution on a daily basis. 
2. Exam tables will be covered with disposable paper covers and cleaned between patients with an 

approved germicidal solution. 
3. All exam tables will be wiped with approved sanitizing wipe or spray at the end of the shift.  This 

includes the underside of the table. 
4. Dental equipment will be covered with equipment sleeves and covers as appropriate and sleeves will 

be replaced between patients. 
5. Blood or body fluids spilled will be cleaned up immediately by staff using an approved spill kit. 
6. Sinks and door knobsdoorknobs will be cleaned in each examination room and dental operatory, 

between each patient encounter. 
7. Thorough cleaning by a janitorial service will be performed 5 days per week after business hours. 
8. All supplies will be put away and stored properly in a neat and organized manner. 

 
Daily Cleaning 
 

a. Exam tables, dental chairs, exam area guest chairs, wheelchairs, and gurneys will be wiped by staff 
with an approved germicidal wipe after each use. 

b. Clinic supplied toys for patients and guests will be stored in the receptionist work area, offered to 
patients, then wiped with an approved germicidal wipe after each use and returned to the 
designated storage area.  

c. Dental operatory cabinetry will be wiped down. 
d. Spot cleaning of floors and walls is done as needed, using approved products only 
e. Front counters and patient chairs and tables will be wiped frequently using sanitizing wipes and/or 

sprays. (Increased frequency during infectious disease outbreaks i.e.: flu/viral infections per the 

117



 

  Cleaning Duties 
Policy Number 38 

 

Infection Control policy). 
f. Equipment contaminated with body fluids will be cleaned immediately. 
g. Door handles will be wiped. 
h. Waiting room,rooms and restrooms will be monitored throughout the shift and shall be kept free 

of debris and remain in clean status. 
i. Staff will clean dirty dishes as soon as possible after use.  

 
Unscheduled non-hazardous spills, non-biohazardous spills, and/or visibly soiled floors 

a. The spill area may be visibly cleaned with a dry or wet mop utilizing an approved product. 
b. In no circumstance is the dry or wet mop to replace the current approved disinfectant product for 

hazardous or biohazard waste. 

Weekly Cleaning 
 

a. IV stands, vital monitors, cardiac monitors, laboratory equipment, and all medical equipment will 
be cleaned per manufactures’ instructions using approved germicidal and sanitizing products. 

b. Laboratory, exam room, triage, front office, and nursing station counters will be cleaned and free of 
supplies, papers, notes and etc.etc. and will be dusted behind and around computer equipment. 

c. Medication dispensing machine will be wiped down. 
d. Trashcan surfaces will be wiped down.  
e. Staff will clean the Staff refrigerator weekly, discarding any old or unclaimed, unmarked items. 

Monthly Duties 
 

a. All walls, ceilings, lights, vents, windows and doors will be cleaned.  Monthly cleaning will be 
performed by the janitorial service. 

 
Communication with Janitorial Service 
 
A communication log for the janitorial service will be kept at the front desk.  Any concerns or non-urgent task 
that needs to be addressed will be written in the Housekeeping Communication Log.  Any issues with the 
janitorial service will be addressed with the clinical manager.   
 
Hazardous Conditions/ Broken Equipment/Building Damage 
 

a. Conditions that have a potential to cause harm/injury to patients and/or staff are to be reported to the 
Clinic Manager or District Chief Executive Officer immediately.  A maintenance form will be completed 
and faxed following telephonic notification of the hazard.  The item will be marked as out of service 
until repaired. 

b. Areas affected by hazardous conditions will be taken out of service and marked as restricted from use. 
c. Equipment which is broken or functioningfunctions outside of approved parameters will be removed 

from service and marked DO NOT USE, SERVICE/REPLACEMENT PENDING.   
d. Where hazardous conditions, broken equipment, and/or building damage put patients and/or 

personnel at risk, the Clinical Director, District Executive Director and/or the District Board of Trustees 
may make the decision to close the clinic to use until the hazardous conditions, damage, etc. are 
resolved.  

118



 

  Fit Testing 
Poliy Number 77 

  

MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

RURAL HEALTH CLINICS 

POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

POLICY: Fit Testing REVIEWED: 3/1/19; 12/30/20; 9/29/21; 11/07/22:8/30/23 

  
SECTION:  Infection Control 

  
REVISED: 12/30/20; 9/29/21 

  
EFFECTIVE:  11/30/2210/25/23 

  
 MEDICAL DIRECTOR: Randall Smart, MD 

  

Subject:  Fit Testing 
 
Objective: Clinic personnel will comply with the N95 mask fit testing program, consistent with California 

Aerosolized Pathogen Guidelines. 

Response Rating: Severe 
 
Required Equipment: N95 mask 
 
Procedure 
 
1. All Clinic personnel will be fit tested for N95 masks within the first 90 days of their employment by the 

Clinic Manager or trained designee. 
 
2. Personnel will not be allowed to use a N95 mask prior to completing their initial fit test. 
 
3. All Clinic personnel will be re-tested annually. 
 
4. N95 masks will be utilized when any patient presents with symptoms of infectious diseases that 
require  airborne precautions (i.e.: H1N1, flu, tuberculosis, COVID-19). 
 
 

Reference: https://www.dir.ca.gov/title8/5199a.html Last updated July 14, 2021 

 
 

119

https://www.dir.ca.gov/title8/5199a.html


 

 Medication Management Storage of Multi-Use Containers 
Policy Number 116 

  

025MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

RURAL HEALTH CLINICS 

POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

POLICY:  Medication Management – Storage of 
Multi-Use Containers REVIEWED: 11/21/18; 9/7/19; 5/04/21; 6/15/22; 9/19/23 

  
SECTION:  Medication Management 

  
REVISED: 9/7/19; 6/15/22 

  
EFFECTIVE:  8/31/2210/25/23 

  
 MEDICAL DIRECTOR: Randall Smart, MD 

  

Subject:  Medication management and storage of multi-use containers 
 
Objective:  To utilize multiple dose vials appropriately; to store and manage open multiple dose vials in a safe 
and appropriate manner. 
 
Response Rating:  Mandatory 
 
Required Equipment:  
 
Definitions: 

Procedure: 
 
1. Medications will be stored in their original containers according to manufacturer guidelines.  

 

2. Upon opening of a multiple dose container/vial (with preservatives), nursing staff shall affix a “vial 
open” label to the container.  Label will include use by date (also known as the beyond use date) for 
each vial that has been opened and will also state “MDV” to indicate multi-dose vial. 

2. For sterile medications:  when staff hashave used aseptic technique, the shelf life of the open vial will 
be twenty-eight (28) days or the manufacturer’s expiration date, if shorter.  The vial will then be 
discarded regardless of the expiration date of the medication.   

 a.  IPOL polio vaccine shall be considered expired per the expiration date from manufacturer, printed 
on the vial.  This variation of the usual process has been confirmed with the manufacturer, Vaccines for 
Children program, and The Joint Commission. 

3. For non-sterile medications, the beyond use date/discard date shall be one year from the date of 
opening or the manufacturer’s expiration date, if shorter.  This policy includes hydrogen peroxide and 
betadine and over-the-counter type medications (example:  Motrin, Tylenol, Mylanta). 

4. Single-dose vials (without preservatives) shall be discarded after initial puncture  

5. Immuno-compromised patients should not have medications administered from previously used multi-
dose vials. 

120



 

 Medication Management Storage of Multi-Use Containers 
Policy Number 116 

  

6. If suspected contamination has occurred with any open container/vial of medication, regardless of the 
documented beyond use date, that container/vial will be discarded immediately. 

 
7. Opened multi-dose vials will remain in the medication room.  Opened multi-dose vials removed from 

the medication room will be disposed of immediately after use. 
 
8. Wasted/discarded vials will be documented in the medication management waste stream, as well as 

the medication management machine to ensure accurate inventory management and timely 
replacement of inventory.  

121



 

 On Call Program 
Policy Number 126 

   

MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

RURAL HEALTH CLINICS 

POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

POLICY: On-Call Program  REVIEWED:  11/12/18; 2/19/20; 6/07/21; 8/31/22; 9/19/23 

  
SECTION:  Operations 

  
REVISED: 2/19/20; 6/07/21; 8/31/22 

  
EFFECTIVE:  10/26/2225/23 

  
 MEDICAL DIRECTOR: Randall Smart, MD 

  

Subject:  On Call Program 
 
Objective:  To ensure the development and operation of an after-hours on-call program in compliance with 
contractual obligations and to meet patient need. 

Response Rating: Mandatory 
 
Required Equipment:  
 
Procedure: 
 

1. The Medical Director, with the support of the Clinic Manager will be responsible for establishing the 

schedule to staff the On-Call Program. 

2. Medical staff members (Physicians and Mid-level providers) will participate in the On-Call Program, 

with staffing determined based first, upon volunteer’s availability; and, then assignments made by the 

Medical Director to cover any open slots. 

3. Maintenance of the calendar is the responsibility of the Medical Director.  

a. The on-call “shift-day” schedule template will be as follows: 

  i. Monday 1700 – Tuesday 0800 

  ii. Tuesday 1700 – Wednesday 0800 

  iii. Wednesday 1700 – Thursday 0800 

  iv. Thursday 1700 – Friday 0800 

  v. Friday 1700 – Monday 0800 

Holiday hours from 0800 – 1700 will be covered by the Provider scheduled for the prior evening through 8am 

4. Maintenance of the on-call schedule with the practitioners assigned to each day is the responsibility of 

the Clinic Manager. 

 

122



 

 On Call Program 
Policy Number 126 

   

5. A relationship will be established with an answering service vendor who will respond to after-hours 

calls in the manner outlined by the practice, which may be revised from time to time. 

6. Content of the message patients will hear when they contact the clinic after hours is the responsibility 

of the Clinic Manager, who will ensure the message is current and accurately reflects how the practice 

wants after hours contacts managed. 

a. Message content will include: 

a.  Statement that the Clinic is closed 

b.  Statement that the message is available in English and Spanish 

c.  A Reminder that if the patient is calling to report a medical emergency they must hang 

 up and contact 911 immediately 

d.  Statement that Anthem and California Health and Wellness patients may call the 

 appropriate 24-hour Nurses Line for advice 

e.  Options to schedule an appointment by phone, leave a message for someone, or 

 contact the practitioner on-call. 

7. Practitioners will be expected to be available to cover the on-call schedule a minimum of one shift/day 

a month, unless otherwise notified by the Medical Director.  The Medical Director will then assign 

shifts/days; first, on a volunteer basis; and, then as required in rotation to ensure fairness. Holiday 

shifts/days will be rotated as necessary. 

8. Practitioners on-call will be required to respond to patient outreach within a 30-minute timeframe.  

Compliance will be confirmed by daily reports from the answering service. 

9. Practitioners will document their interaction with the patient using the EMR based upon the 

complexity of care and whether any orders (i.e., medications) are given to ensure the patient’s medical 

record is accurately updated. 

123



 

  Provider on Site 
Policy 233 

   

MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

RURAL HEALTH CLINICS 

POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

POLICY: Provider on Site REVIEWED: 4/6/20; 6/07/21; 9/6/22; 9/19/23 

  
SECTION:  Patient Care 

  
REVISED: 

  
EFFECTIVE: 140/26/2210/25/23 

  
 MEDICAL DIRECTOR: Randall Smart, MD 

  
Subject:  Provider on Site 

Objective: Patient care services will not be provided until a licensed rural health provider is on the premises. 

Response Rating: Mandatory 

Required Equipment:  

Procedure:  

1. Licensed providers are limited to:  physician (MD, DO, podiatrist), dentist, chiropractor, nurse practitioner, physician 

assistant, certified nurse midwife, licensed clinical social worker, licensed marriage and family therapist. 

2. Patient care services may not be rendered in the Clinic unless at least one of the above-listed providers is present in 

the building. 

 

a. The sole exception would be life-saving measures implemented in an emergency situation, should a patient 

in the waiting room or the parking lot require them. 

3. Staff may register the patient, ask the patient to complete documentation, and provide identification and/or 

insurance information before a provider is present.   

4. Staff may not: 

 

a. Bring a patient from the waiting area to the clinical area (examination room, lab bathroom, phlebotomy 

collection area) 

b. Take vital signs, unless administering life-saving measures 

c. Collect a urine specimen 

d. Collect a capillary blood specimen, unless collecting a blood glucose specimen in an emergency circumstance 

e. Collect a venous blood specimen 

f. Remove a dressing 

g. Clean a wound 
 
 
Reference: CMS §491.8(a)(6) 

124



 

  Quality Assurance Guidelines 
Policy Number 147 

  

MARK TWAN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

RURAL HEALTH CLINICS 

POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

POLICY: Quality Assurance Guidelines 
REVIEWED:  2/1/19; 10/15/19; 11/23/20: 6/07/21; 9/6/22; 
9/19/23 

 SECTION:  Operations 

  
REVISED: 10/15/19; 9/6/22; 9/19/23 

  
EFFECTIVE:  10/26/2225/23 

  
 MEDICAL DIRECTOR: Randall Smart, MD 

  

Subject:  Quality Assurance Guidelines 
 
Objective:  To define Clinic Quality Assurance Guidelines for application in the development and management 
of the Quality Assurance/Performance Improvement Program. 
 
Response Rating:  
 
Required Equipment: None 
 
Quality Assurance Definition:  
 
An ongoing process designed to objectively and systematically monitor and evaluate patient services in 
accordance with established standards, identify and resolve problems and pursue opportunities to improve 
patient care and outcomes. 
 
Quality Assurance Objectives: 
 

a. Monitor statistics and the utilization of clinic services 
b. Monitor compliance with criteria established for health maintenance and disease specific 

categories, as well as the correct documentation in the medical record 
c. Recognize system problems 
d. Review protocols and procedures 
e. Provide a mechanism for staff continuing education 
f. Enhance teamwork 
g. Comply with regulating requirements for internal chart review 
h. Ensure correct and complete documentation 

 
Procedure 
 
1. Quality Assurance/Peer Review general guidelines 
 

a. Review and signing by the supervising Medical Director within 30 days of medical records for 
10% of patients treated by the mid-level practitioner for whom medication or devices are 
prescribed or dispensed during the first month and 5% every month thereafter. 

 

125



 

  Quality Assurance Guidelines 
Policy Number 147 

  

b. Medical chart audits, peer review, Dental and Behavior Health chart audits will be conducted 
during the month and will be reported to the QAPI Committee during scheduled meetings. 

c. Charts will be audited for adherence to criteria for conditions treated frequently in the clinic.  
Criteria will include standards for historical data, physical exam, laboratory procedures, 
treatment, patient education and follow-up 

 
d. Each audit will consist of at least ten charts quarterly 
 
2. Audit Process and Forms 
 

a. A review form will be used for each chart for Behavioral Health and Dental charts 
a.b. Mid Level Medical Charts shall be reviewed through the EHR. 
b.c. When a significant problem is noted in the review (i.e. failure to follow up an abnormal 

lab result or acute illness), the Medical Director will be notified and responsible for 
assuring that follow-up is carried out. 

c.d. Charts that do not require active follow-up (i.e. missing historical data) will be given to 
the Clinic staff for completion. 

d.e. All chart reviews, quality issues, problems, changes made and follow-up will be 
documented in the minutes of the QAPI meetings. 

e.f. Nursing audit data will be given to the staff for follow-up and completion. 
 

3. Criteria Development 
 

a. Criteria for both audits will be based on current medical practice, professional 
organization recommendations, regulatory standards, and Clinic policy. 

b. Criteria shall reflect accepted standards for care and cost effective practice. 
c. Criteria shall be reviewed at least annually by the Medical Director and the Quality 

Assurance Committee.  It will be updated and /or modified as necessary. 
 

4. Staff meetings, missed appointments, pharmacy outdates 
a. To assure that quality care is provided, the Clinic staff members shall participate in staff 

meetings at least monthly. 
b. The front office personnel will carry out the policy for missed appointments daily, 

utilizing the No Show Campaign through the EHR. 
c. Pharmacy outdates will be checked monthly as outlined. 

 

 
 
 

126



 

   

Quality Assurance Performance Improvement Plan 
Policy Number 148 

MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

RURAL HEALTH CLINICS 

POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

POLICY:  Quality Assurance & Continued 
                Quality Improvement Plan  REVIEWED:  2/1/19; 12/31/20: 6/07/21; 9/6/22; 9/19/23 

SECTION:  Operations 

 
REVISED:  

  
EFFECTIVE:  10/26/2225/23 

  
 MEDICAL DIRECTOR: Randall Smart, MD 

  

Subject:  Quality Assurance & Continued Quality Improvement Plan 
 
Policy:  The Clinic will maintain an active Quality Assurance/Performance Improvement Plan (QAPI Plan) 
covering operational, administrative, and clinical areas.  Data will be reviewed by Clinic Manager and Medical 
Director on a regular basis.  Periodic reports regarding the QAPI program will be made to the District Board. 
 
Objective:  Undertake an active, ongoing process of evaluation, corrective action, and re-evaluation of the 
Quality Assurance Plan.  Continually evaluate procedures and performances in order to increase the quality of 
services being provided both medically and administratively.  In addition, all Protocols, Policies and Procedures 
will be reviewed and updated accordingly on an annual basis by the Clinic Manager and Medical Director. 
 
Response Rating: Mandatory 
 
Procedure Quality Assurance Plan: 
 
1. Questions answered by the Quality Assurance Performance Plan    
 a.   Are quality-related activities present? 
       b.   Are quality-related activities being performed correctly? 
       c.   Are quality-related activities contributing to quality care for the patients? 
        d. Are activities contributing to improved patient outcomes? 
 
2. Importance of the Quality Assurance Performance Improvement Plan 
       a.   Accurate assessment of patient services. 
       b.   Risk Management. 
 
3. Components of the Quality Assurance Performance Improvement Plan 

a.   A written Plan. 
       b.   Staff familiarization of the plan. 
       c.   Successful implementation of the plan. 
 
4. Clinical Information as Components of the Quality Assurance Performance Improvement Plan 

a.   Accurate patient demographics. 
       b.   Medical records and charts. 

c.  Updated logs of medication, refrigerators, sterilizer maintenance, crash cart, 
 immunizations, abnormal labs, and referrals 

127



 

   

Quality Assurance Performance Improvement Plan 
Policy Number 148 

       
5.    Internal Review Components of the Quality Assurance Performance Improvement Plan 

a.   Provide information for staff performance. 
b.   Support staff performance. 

 c.   Provide continuity of patient care. 
 d.   Minimize patient risk. 
 e.   Increase patient satisfaction. 
 f.    Increase patient compliance. 
 g.   Provide accessibility to information. 
 h.   Provide appropriate services. 
 i.   Control cost of services. 
 
6.   Quality Assurance Performance Improvement Committee 
The primary role of the Quality Assurance Performance Improvement Committee is to monitor and evaluate 
the quality related activities of the organization in a structured way. 
 
The Quality Assurance Performance Improvement Committee will be composed of the Medical Director, 
representatives from the staff and management.  The representatives will meet regularly.  This committee will 
perform periodic reviews of pre-selected indicators against pre-determined standards.  The committee will 
report via written minutes of its meetings.  Any problems will be referred to management for consideration 
and resolution. 
 
The primary role of the Quality Assurance Performance Improvement Committee is to review current 
procedures and actions and determine how they can be improved and implemented. 
 
Procedure: 
1.  Perform time and analysis studies 
 
 a.   Staffing verses patient arrival analysis. 
 b.   Patient length-of-visit studies. 
 
2.  Medical evaluations 
 
 a.   Diagnosis and determination methods. 
 b.   Physician cost analysis. 
 
3.  Patient Call Backs 
 
 a.   Perceptions of care. 
 b.   Treatment results. 
 
4. Review of operations data including but not limited to logs, reports, raw data concerning clinic 
 operations. 
 

128



 

  Shelter in Place for Patients and Staff 
Policy Number 161 

MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

RURAL HEALTH CLINICS 

POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

POLICY:  Shelter in Place for Patients and Staff REVIEWED:  8/30/19; 2/25/20: 6/07/21; 9/6/22; 9/19/23 

  
SECTION:  Safety and Emergency Planning 

  
 REVISED: 2/25/20 

  
EFFECTIVE: 10/26/2225/23 

  
 MEDICAL DIRECTOR: Randall Smart, MD 

  

Subject:  Shelter in place for patients and staff in the event of an active shooter or other public safety threat 
and/or weather event. 
 
Objective: Shelter-in-place refers to a designated area of safety when it is not safe to go outside.  An example 
is a small interior room with no or few windows where refuge can be taken.   
Response Rating:  
Required Equipment:  
 
Procedure 
1.  Shelter-in-place for active shooter or other public safety emergency 

a. Stop work and shut down business operations. 
b. Share the notification with staff members and patients, using Code Silver.  
c. Close all windows, exterior doors, and lock same, if possible. 
d. Move patients, guests, and staff to an interior room, preferably offices which have locking doors, 

the breakroom, bathrooms, and/or medical supply storage room. 
e. Block the door using the exam table. 
f. Move persons to the wall furthest from the door, placing children and elders behind adults. 
g. Use cell phone to call 911 and report the emergency. 
h. All cell phones should be turned off or to silent mode, including no vibration. 
i. Remain in place until given the all clear by law enforcement or other trusted source. 

 
2.  Shelter-in-place for severe weather 

a. Determine whether it is appropriate to stop work and shut down business operations. 
b. Share the notification with staff members and patients; do not leave the building. 
c. Close all windows and exterior doors. 
d. Ensure all exhaust fans are turned off and HVAC is turned off. 
e. Select one or more interior rooms that will accommodate patients, guests, and staff being seated. 
f. Utilize offices as they have doors that lock. 
g. Ensure at least one staff member or provider is in each room with patients and guests and 

document who is in each space for future reference. 
h. Remain in place, monitoring weather via radio or online weather reporting sources. 
i. When the all clear is given, ask patients to remain in place and ensure it is safe to leave the room 

by checking the hallway for obstructions.   
 
  
 

129



 

    

MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

RURAL HEALTH CLINICS 

POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

POLICY: Standardized Procedure for Employee 
Influenza Vaccine Administration REVIEWED: 10/09/2020; 9/29/21; 11/07/22; 9/19/23 

  
SECTION:   

  
REVISED: 

  
EFFECTIVE: 11/30/2210/25/23 

  
 MEDICAL DIRECTOR: Randall Smart, MD 

  

Subject:   
 
Objective: To reduce morbidity and mortality from seasonal influenza by vaccinating all employees who meet 
the criteria established by the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention’s Advisory Committee on 
Immunization Practices. 
 
Response Rating: Under these standing orders, eligible RNs and Medical Assistants allowed by state law and 
who have demonstrated competence in administration of routine immunizations, may vaccinate patients who 
meet any of the criteria below. 
 
Required Equipment:  
 
Procedure: 
 
1. Identify adult employees in need of influenza vaccination based on meeting any of the following criteria: 
 

a. Want to reduce the risk of becoming ill with influenza or of transmitting it to others 
 

b. Age 18 years or older 
 

c. Having any of the following conditions: chronic pulmonary (including asthma), cardiovascular 
(excluding hypertension), renal, hepatic, cognitive, neurologic/neuromuscular, hematologic, or 
metabolic (including diabetes) disorders; immuno- suppression, including that caused by medications 
or HIV 

 
d. Being pregnant during the influenza season 

 
e. All healthcare personnel 

 
g. All adults who are household contacts, caregivers, or workplace contacts of persons listed in   
category 1.c.             

 
2. Screen all persons for contraindications and precautions to influenza vaccine prior to administration: 
 

a. Contraindications: serious reaction (e.g., anaphylaxis) after ingesting eggs or after receiving a 
previous dose of influenza vaccine or an influenza vaccine component.  
 

130



 

    

For a list of vaccine components, go to:  
www.cdc.gov/vaccines/pubs/pinkbook/ downloads/appendices/B/excipient-table-2.pdf. 
 
  

b. Do not give live attenuated influenza vaccine (LAIV; nasal spray) to an adult who is pregnant or who 
has any of the conditions described in 1.c. or 1.d. above. 

 
c. Precautions: moderate or severe acute illness with or without fever; history of Guillain Barré 

syndrome within 6 weeks of a previous influenza vaccination; for LAIV only, close contact with an 
immunosuppressed person when the person requires protective isolation 

 
3. Provide all vaccine recipients with a copy of the most current federal Vaccine Information Statement (VIS). 
You must document on the office log and if requested, the employee’s medical record, the publication date of 
the VIS and the date it was given. Provide non-English speaking persons with a copy of the VIS in their native 
language, if available and preferred; these can be found at www.immunize.org/vis. 
 
4.  Provide all influenza vaccine recipients with a vaccine consent form to read and sign prior to 
administration. 
 
5. Administer inactivated influenza vaccine IM per manufacturer guidelines.   
 
6. Document each employee’s vaccine administration information on the consent and Employee flu shot log: 
 

a. Medical chart: If the employee has a medical record with the clinic, it is ok to chart the vaccination in 
their medical record as historical, or record the reason(s) for non-receipt of the vaccine (e.g., medical 
contraindication, patient refusal). 

 
b. Personal immunization record card: It is OK to record the date of vaccination and the name/location 
of the administering clinic on the patient’s record, or to document the vaccine in RIDE. 

 
7.  Maintain a log of Immunizations given per unit guidelines.  All Medical Records, including vaccine logs, visit 
notes, and consents are maintained by the VSHWC guidelines. 
 
8. Be prepared for management of a medical emergency related to the administration of vaccine by having a 
written emergency medical protocol available, as well as equipment and medications. 
 
9. Report all adverse reactions to influenza vaccine to the federal Vaccine Adverse Event Reporting System    
(VAERS) at www.vaers.hhs.gov or (800) 822-7967. VAERS report forms are available at www.vaers.hhs.gov. 
 
This policy and procedure shall remain in effect for all patients of the Valley Springs Health & Wellness Center 
for 1 year or until rescinded. 
 
Medical Director’s signature: Dr. Randy Smart 
 
Electronically signed by Dr. Randy Smart; original signed hard copies on file in the Manager’s office and in the 
Library 11/14/202210/25/23 

131



    

MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

RURAL HEALTH CLINICS 

POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

POLICY: Standardized Procedure for Patients 
Presenting with URI Symptoms REVIEWED: 11/16/22; 9/19/23 

  
SECTION:  Standardized Procedure 

  
REVISED:  

  
EFFECTIVE: November Board Meeting10/25/23 

  
 MEDICAL DIRECTOR: Dr. Randy SmartRandall Smart, MD 

  

Subject:  Standardized Procedure for Patients Presenting with URI Symptoms 
 
Objective: To identify upper respiratory infections 
 
Response Rating: Everyone 
 
Required Equipment: Waived Testing Rapid Tests for RSV, COVID-19, Influenza A & B or Cepheid Xpert Xpress 
(4-in-1) Test 
 
Procedure: 
 

1. Patients will be screened for infectious symptoms. If positive for illness, they will be scheduled as a car 
visit or side door entry. Side door entry patients will be swabbed prior to entry, then roomed in the 
rooms closest to the side door for evaluation.  

2. Any MA performing a nasal swab will have completed training and demonstrated competency with an 
RN. 

3. All staff dealing with infectious patients will wear appropriate PPE, including but not limited to N95 
mask, gown, gloves and eye protection. 

4. Patients presenting with upper respiratory infection symptoms will be swabbed for COVID-19, RSV, 
Influenza A & B. 
a. When using the Cepheid Xpert Xpress (4-in-1) Test, the MA will prepare the test and provide a 

nasopharyngeal swab for the Provider to swab the patient. The provider will return the swab to the 
MA, placing it in a transport tube, for the MA to run the test. 

b. The MA will notify the Provider as to the test results upon completion of the test, and the results 
will be documented in the EHR in a timely manner. 

c. When running the waived tests individually, the MA will test the patient using (3) nasal swabs and 
will run the 3 individual tests (COVID-19, RSV and Influenza A & B).  

d. The MA will notify the Provider of the final results of the tests, and the results will be documented 
in the EHR in a timely manner. 

 
Electronically signed by Dr. Randy Smart; original signed hard copies on file in the Manager’s office and in the 
Library 11/16/202210/25/23. 
 

132



 

  Sterile Shelf Life 
Policy Number 179 

  

MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

RURAL HEALTH CLINICS 

POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

POLICY: Sterile Shelf Life REVIEWED: 2/1/19; 12/31/20; 9/29/21; 10/03/22; 9/19/23 

  
SECTION:  Operations 

  
REVISED: 10/03/22 

  
EFFECTIVE:  10/26/2225/23 

  
 MEDICAL DIRECTOR: Randall Smart, MD 

  

Subject:  Sterile Shelf Life 
 
Objective: To ensure delivery of sterile, quality product for patient care, with sterility being determined by 
proper sterilization technique and uncompromised package integrity rather than by date on the package.  As 
maintenance of sterility is event related, not time related, all items sterilized are to be labeled “sterile unless 
package is damaged or opened”.  The user will have the ultimate responsibility to examine packaging prior to 
use to determine the integrity of the packaging. 

Response Rating: Mandatory 
 
Required Equipment:  
 
Procedure 
 
1. Each sterilized package is to have the date of sterilization and the sterilizer load number.  It will also have 

the initials of the person who prepared and processed the package and the expiration date will be present. 
See the Sterile Supplies and Instruments Policy for 
expirations.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              

 
2. All items processed for sterilization are to be properly wrapped and processed in such a manner as to 

provide an effective barrier to microorganisms.  Infrequently used items will be packaged in peel pouches.  
Items that are properly packaged and sterilized from the manufacturer will remain sterile indefinitely 
unless opened or the integrity of the package is compromised, orcompromised or will expire by the 
manufacturer’s expiration date for the package. 

 
3. Packages that contain medications are to have an expiration date that reflects the expiration date of the 

medication.  Materials that deteriorate with the passage of time will have an expiration date. 
 
4. Stock is to be rotated so that it is current and paper wrappers do not age to the point of brittleness.  

Supplies are to be pulled from the right, front or top of the shelf, depending on how the shelf is arranged 
and newly processed supplies will be added to the shelf from the left, back or bottom. 

 
5. All packages are to be inspected before use.  If the package is torn, wet, has a broken seal or has been 

damaged in any way, it is to be considered contaminated and reprocessed. 
 

133



 

  Sterile Shelf Life 
Policy Number 179 

  

6. Sterile supplies are to be stored in a clean, dust freedust-free environment and in a manner that does not 
aid in the compromise of the packaging of the product. 

 
 
7. Sterile items will remain unused on the shelf for longer than two (2) years are to be evaluated for 

continued need for sterile storage.  These items will either be removed from sterile storage or 
reprocessed. 

 
8. Commercially processed supplies are to have a shelf lifeshelf-life label indicating the date beyond which 

the items should not be used.  This will generally apply when something in the package may deteriorate 
with time rather than loss of sterility unless labeled otherwise, or if the package is damaged.    

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

134



 

Universal Precautions 
Policy Number 229 

  

MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

RURAL HEALTH CLINICS 

POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

POLICY:  Universal Precautions REVIEWED: 3/1/19; 3/5/20; 8/02/21; 9/6/22; 9/19/23 

  
SECTION: Infection Control 

  
REVISED: 3/5/20; 9/6/22 

  
EFFECTIVE:  10/26/2225/23 

  
 MEDICAL DIRECTOR: Randall Smart, MD 

  

Subject:  Universal Precautions 
 
Objective: To prevent the transmission of blood borne pathogens by following universal precautions as 
recommended by the Centers of Disease Control, the California Department of Public Health and other 
pertinent regulatory agencies. 
 
Response Rating: Mandatory 
 
Required Equipment:  
 
Procedure: 
 
General Guidelines: 
 
1. Blood and body fluid precautions will consistently be practiced for all patients since medical history 
 and examination cannot reliably identify all patients infected with HIV or other blood borne pathogens. 
 
2. Wash hands between all patient contacts and immediately if soiled with blood or body fluids. 
 
3. Skin or other mucous membranes should be washed with soap and water, or flushed with water, as 
 appropriate, as soon as feasible following contamination with blood or other body fluids. 
 
4. Gloves will be worn in the following situations: 
 

a. Touching blood and body fluids 
b. Touching mucous membranes (e.g. inside mouth, rectum, vagina) 
c. Touching non-intact skin of all patients or when health care worker’s skin is not intact 
d. Handling items or surfaces soiled by blood or other body fluids 
e. Performing venipuncture 
f. Processing blood or any other fluid specimen 

 
5. Gloves should be changed after contact with each patient and hands should be thoroughly washed 
 with soap and water. 
 
6. Surgical masks and protective eyewear (e.g. goggles) should be worn during procedures that are likely 

135



 

Universal Precautions 
Policy Number 229 

  

 to generate droplets, splattering or aerosolization of blood or body fluids, to prevent exposure to 
 
 mucous membranes of the mouth, nose, and eyes. 
 
7. N95 masks will be utilized when the patient presents with symptoms of infectious diseases that require 
 airborne precautions (i.e.: H1N1, flu, tuberculosis). 
 
8. Impermeable gowns or aprons should be worn during procedures that are likely to generate splashes 
 of blood or other bodily fluids.  This includes all dental procedures performed in the Clinic. 
 
9. Disposable personal protective equipment shall be removed and placed in refuse containers in the 
 immediately area after single patient use. (Dental gowns may be used for multiple patient treatment, 
changed daily unless visibly soiled) 
 
10. All procedures involving blood or other potentially infectious material shall be performed in such a 
 manner as to minimize splashing, spraying, spattering, and generation of droplets of the substances. 
 
11. Eating, drinking, smoking, applying cosmetics or lip balm, and handling contact lenses are prohibited in 
 work areas where there is a reasonable likelihood of occupational exposure.  Food and drink shall not 
 be kept in refrigerators, freezers, shelves, cabinets, or on counter topscountertops or bench tops 
where blood or  other potentially infectious materials are present. 
  
Use and disposal of needles and “sharps”: 
 
1. Precautions should be taken to prevent accidental injuries with needles, scalpels, or other sharp 
 devices used during procedures, when cleaning reusable instruments, during disposal of needles, or 
 when handling sharp instruments during or after procedures. 
 
2. Contaminated needles and other contaminated “sharps” shall not be recapped, purposely bentbent, or 
 broken by hand, removed from disposable syringes, or otherwise manipulate by hand. 
 
3. If the procedure would require that the contaminated needle be recapped or removed and no 
 alternative is feasible and the action is required by the medical procedure, the recapping or removal of 
 the needle must be done by the use ofusing a mechanical device or a one-handed technique. 
 
4. After use, needles and syringes, scalpel blades, and other sharp disposable items should be placed in a 
 puncture resistant container for disposal.  Reusable “sharps” containers should be sealable, puncture 
 resistant, labeled with a biohazard label and leak proof. 
 
5. All collection containers when filled shall be sealed and put in the appropriate place for disposal.  
 Containers shall be disposed of when ¾ full or every 90 days. 
 
6. Although saliva has not been implicated in the transmission of HIV, to minimize the need for 
 emergency mouth-to-mouth resuscitation, mouthpieces, resuscitation bags, or other ventilation 
 devices will be available for use in areas where the need for resuscitation might arise. 

136



Universal Precautions 
Policy Number 229 

7. Personnel with exudative skin lesions or weeping dermatitis should refrain from direct patient contact
or handling patient care equipment, until the skin condition resolves.  If this is not possible, gloves
must be worn during patient examination procedures.

Sterilization and Disinfection: 

1. All non-disposable instruments, items, and devices that come in contact with blood, other body fluids,
or mucous membranes, shall be sterilized prior to re-use.

2. Medical and dental devices that require sterilization shall be thoroughly cleansed prior to sterilization
with the germicidal soap following manufacturer’s guidance as to time.

3. When a brush is used to wash instruments prior to sterilization, workers shall be careful to avoid
splashing to the eyes and face (eye goggles or a face shield are recommended).

4. Surfaces contaminated with blood and body fluids shall be decontaminated with an appropriate
chemical germicide.  Gloves shall be worn during this procedure.

Specimens: 

1. Body fluids, tissues, and other potentially infectious materials shall be placed in a container that
prevents leakage during the collection, handling, processing, storage, and transport of the specimen.

2. Any specimens that could puncture a primary container shall be placed within a secondary container
that is puncture resistant.

3. If outside contamination of the primary container occurs, the primary container shall be placed within
a secondary container that prevents leakage during the handling, processing, storage, transport, or
shipping of the specimen.

Management of Exposures: 

1. An incident must be documented on a Personal Accident/Incident and OSHA 300, 300A, and 301 report
forms  (see Personal Accident/Incident Policy Exposure Control Policy) in the event there is a:

a. Parenteral (e.g.e.g., needle stick or cut) or mucous membrane (e.g. splash of the eye or mouth)
exposure of blood or other body fluids;

b. Cutaneous (e.g.e.g., skin) exposure involving large amounts of blood.

2. If there is an exposure or suspected exposure, please use the exposure report packets and follow the
directions. All paperwork and follow-up will be done through the Employee Health Nurse/Manager.

2. If the source of exposure is known and available, testing for Hepatitis B and C and HIV should be
carried out with informed consent and counseling.  See HIV Testing policy.

137



 

Universal Precautions 
Policy Number 229 

  

3. If the source refused testing, follow the procedure for an unknown source. 

4. If the source is unknown, the employee should be advised to have blood drawn as soon as possible 
following the incidents and this blood should be tested for HIV, Hepatitis B and C. 

5. If on the basis ofbased on clinical history or laboratory information it is suspected that the patient from 
whom the blood came from might be infected with HIV, following the current Human Resources Policy 
requirements.  

6. Any time an OSHA report is initiated, it will be expeditiously forwarded to the Medical Director, the 

CEO. and QAPI committee. 

 

 

 

138



 

  Unscheduled Downtime of Electronic Medical Record 
Policy Number 191 

  

MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

RURAL HEALTH CLINICS 

POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

POLICY:  Unscheduled Downtime of Electronic 
Medical Record REVIEWED: 3/1/19; 11/23/20; 8/25/21; 9/6/22; 9/19/23 

  
SECTION:  Safety and Emergency Planning 

  
REVISED:  

  
EFFECTIVE:  10/26/2225/23 

  
 MEDICAL DIRECTOR: Randall Smart, MD 

  

Subject: Unscheduled Downtime of Electronic Medical Record 
 
Objective:  To ensure documentation of patient care in the event of an unscheduled disruption of access to 
the Electronic Medical Record (EMR), practitioners and staff will document patient care using approved 
downtime paper forms. 

Response Rating: Mandatory 
 
Required Equipment:  
 
Definitions: 

Procedure: 
 

1. In the event of an unscheduled disruption of access to the Electronic Medical Record, approved 
downtime paper forms will be utilized to document patient care. 

2. Clinic Leadership or designee will report the service disruption to IT Department and/or the EMR 
vendor. 

3. Approved downtime paper forms (including administrative and patient care documentation) will be 
maintained in a central location in a binder marked “Downtime Forms” as well as in an online shared 
folder labeled Forms. 

4. Clinic Leadership or designee will access the paper forms, making sufficient copies of the appropriate 
documents to accommodate patients currently being examined/treated and those scheduled to be 
seen in the Clinic through the balance of the Clinic day. 

5. Paper forms will be utilized to capture patient demographics and payor information required to 
successfully complete patient intake. 

6. Paper forms will be provided to all practitioners and will be marked with the patient’s name, birth 
date, medical record number (if available), and visit date. 

 

 

139



 

  Unscheduled Downtime of Electronic Medical Record 
Policy Number 191 

  

 

7. Patients requesting appointments will be listed, along with their phone number and the purpose of the 
visit/visit type.  After the system has been restored, patients on the list will be contacted and 
appointments scheduled in the Electronic Medical Record scheduling application. 

8. When access to the Electronic Medical Record is restored, completed paper documents will be scanned 
into the electronic chart. 

9. After confirming the scanned documents have been placed appropriately in the Electronic Medical 

Record, the paper forms will be collected and given to the Administrative Medical Assistant so that 

they may be used to create claims. Once all claims have been created and submitted to the proper 

payor, they will be destroyed to protect patient privacy. 

 

140



  
  

MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 
RURAL HEALTH CLINICS 

POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

POLICY: PMHNP Standardized Procedures REVIEWED: 11/16/2022; 9/19/23 

  
SECTION:  V1.0 Behavioral Health 

  
REVISED:  

  
EFFECTIVE: 11/30/2210/25/23 

  
 MEDICAL DIRECTOR: Randall Smart, MD 

  
Subjective: To formally recognize the role of the Psychiatric-Mental Health Nurse Practitioner 

(PMHNP) in the provision of services in Behavioral Health Services (BHS), to fully utilize their skillset 

to support the wellness and recovery of clients, and to maximize effectiveness of the clinical 

team. This policy applies to PMHNPs working in-person at Mark Twain Health Care District d/b/a 

Valley Springs Health and Wellness Center and remotely via telemedicine. These procedures are 

developed in collaboration with the site Board of Directors, Pharmacy Director, Medical Director, 

Clinic Director, Supervising Physician(s), and PMHNP(s). 

Objective: Psychiatric mental health nursing practice is a specialized area of nursing committed to 

promoting mental health through the assessment, diagnosis, and treatment of mental illness and 

substance use disorders. Essential components of this specialty practice include health and 

wellness promotion through identification of, prevention of, and care/treatment of persons 

with mental illness and substance use disorders. In collaboration with a Supervising 

Physician(s), the PMHNP assumes primary responsibility and accountability for the assessment 

and care of clients with behavioral health needs. They work in collaboration with the clinical 

team to provide integrated, specialized care to clients. 

Response Rating:  
 
Required Equipment:  
 
Procedures: 

I. Policy Development, Review, and Approval 
 

A. All Standardized Procedures are developed collaboratively by designated PMHNPs, 
Supervising Physicians and Administrators and must conform to all eleven steps of 
the Standardized Procedure Guidelines as specified in Title 16, CCR Section 1474. 
All Standardized Procedures must be approved by the Quality Assurance 
Performance Improvement Committee whose membership consists of at least one 
Nurse Practitioner, Physicians, and Quality Management staff.  

B. All Standardized Procedures are to be kept in a central file by the Clinic Manager. 
This should include approval sheets,  datedsheets, dated  and  signed  by  the  clinic 
Medical  Director, Supervising Physician(s), and PMHNP(s) covered by the 
Standardized Procedures. 

141



  
  

C. All Standardized Procedures are to be reviewed periodically at a minimum of every 
year by PMHNPs, clinic Medical Directors, and designated Supervising Physicians. 

D. Changes in or additions to the Standardized Procedures may be initiated by any of 
the signatories and must be approved by Authorizing Personnel and be 
accompanied by a dated and signed approval sheet. 

 

II. Standardized Procedure Functions 
 

A. A PMHNP is a registered nurse (RN) who has additional preparation and skills in 
physical diagnosis, psychosocial assessment, and management of health/illness; 
and who has met the requirements of Section 1482 of the Nurse Practice Act. 

B. The PMHNP is a professional healthcare provider who assumes responsibility 
and accountability for the assessment and care maintenance of clients with 
behavioral health needs. 

C. The role of the PMHNP is to meet the behavioral health needs of clients in 
outpatient services. In collaboration with the Supervising Physician, the PMHNP 
assesses, diagnoses, plans treatment, and manages care for clients. This includes: 

1. Psychiatric assessment including assessment of substance use disorders 
and mental status evaluationevaluation. 

2. Diagnosis, management, and treatment of acute, episodic, and chronic 
illness 

3. Health promotion and client and family education 
4. Medication management services 
5. Psychotherapeutic techniques including group and individual 

therapytherapy. 
6. Ordering and interpreting laboratory and diagnostic tests 
7. General evaluation of health status 

D. Standardized Procedure functions are to be performed in areas which allow for the 
general supervision (defined by Medicare Title 42; Section 1: 42C.F.R.410.32), 
where the Supervising or Consulting Physician is to be available by telephone, 
electronically or in person when required. Each PMHNP is to function under the 
supervision of a Supervising or Consulting Physician. There is a limit of four (4) nurse 
practitioners per Supervising Physician at one time to meet California drug and 
device furnishing requirements. 

E. Physician consultation or referral or intervention is to be obtained in situations 
which go beyond the competence or scope and practice of the PMHNP or as 
specified under the following circumstances: 

1. Emergent conditions requiring prompt medical intervention after initial 
stabilizing care has been startedstarted. 

2. Acute decompensation of client situation 
3. Problem which is not resolving as anticipated 
4. History, physical or lab findings inconsistent with the clinical picture 
5. Upon the request of client, PMHNP or Supervising Physician 

 

142



  
  

 
 

III. Requirements 
 

A. The Standardized Procedures developed for use by PMHNPs are designed to describe the 
steps of care for given client situations. They are to be used in the following 
circumstances: 

1. General assessment and evaluation of mental status 
2. Management of acute mental illness 
3. Management of chronic mental illness 

4. Consultation with primary care providers 
B. Problem specific guidelines may be used to supplement the client care process and not 

absolutely define it e.g., Epocrates and other widely known Psychiatry publications. 
Alteration and adjustments may be necessary in an individual client’s situation. 

 
IV. Experience and training requirements 

 
A. Each PMHNP performing Standardized Procedure functions must have a registered 

nursing license, be a graduate of an approved Nurse Practitioner training program and be 
certified as a Nurse Practitioner by the State of California Board of Registered Nursing. 

B. Each PMHNP who furnishes drugs and devices must have a furnishing number issued by the 
California Board of Registered Nursing. PMHNPs who furnish controlled substances must 
also have a current Drug Enforcement Agency (DEA) registration certificate. PMHNPs 
who furnish buprenorphine must have an X-number registration certificate issued by 
the DEA. 

C. Each PMHNP will have documented graduate or post-graduate training in advanced practice 
psychiatric nursing. 

D. PMHNP must have appropriate psychiatric training and experience in child,   adolescent, and 
adult behavioral health to evaluate and treat the psychiatric illnesses of children, 
adolescents, and adults. 

 
V. Method of initial and continued evaluation 

 
A. General competency is initially evaluated during the probationary period by the 

Supervising Physician or designee. Each PMHNP is assigned a Supervising Physician who is 
responsible to annuallyannually to evaluate appropriateness of practice and clinical 
decision making. The Supervising Physician shall be a medical doctor or a general 
psychiatrist who is board-certified and has the appropriate training in the mental health 
care of children, adolescents, and adults aged 18 and older. This will be done in 
conjunction with the Performance Appraisal and Evaluation process. 

B. A quality assurance review process is established to assure that compliance towith 
important standards of care is maintained. Quality issues may be identified through 
client complaints, physician, peer, or management observation, self-identified by the 
PMHNP and/or through records reviews. 

143



  
  

 
VI. Persons authorized to perform Standardized Procedures 

 
The current record of PMHNPs authorized under the provisions of this Standardized Procedure is 
maintained by the Clinic Manager.. 
 
VII. Practice setting 
 
 Standardized Procedures are to be performed by PMHNPs on site in the clinic and/or via 
telemedicine. They remain in effect for any work-related outreach, interdisciplinary care 
coordination, and transfers of care to other health care providers and facilities. 
 
VIII. Record keeping requirements 
 
All interactions with clients are to be recorded in the medical record in a timely manner according 
to currentthe current BHS Documentation Policy. 
 
IX. Statement of Approval of the Standardized Procedure 

 
A. Signatures of all PMHNPs, Supervising Physicians, and Medical Director are required. 

 
 
 

Signature: ___________________________________________________________________ 

Date: _______________________________________________________________________ 

Printed Name with Discipline: _____________________________________________________ 

Practice Site: _________________________________________________________________ _ 

 

Signature: ___________________________________________________________________ 

Date: _______________________________________________________________________ 

Printed Name with Discipline: _____________________________________________________ 

Practice Site: _________________________________________________________________ _ 

 

Signature: ___________________________________________________________________ 

Date: _______________________________________________________________________ 

Printed Name with Discipline: _____________________________________________________ 

Practice Site: _________________________________________________________________ _ 

 

144



  
  

 
 

X. Standardized Protocol for performing a diagnostic assessment, formulating diagnoses and 
establishing a treatment plan 

 
A. Definition: This protocol covers the management of common behavioral health conditions 

seen in the outpatient setting including but not limited to depressive disorders, anxiety 
disorders, schizophrenia and related psychosis, bipolar disorder, trauma-related 
disorders, substance use disorders, attention-deficit hyperactivity disorder, autism 
spectrum disorders, and personality disorders. 

B. Database: 
1. Subjective data collection: Perform symptom analysis and collect supporting 

data as appropriate to chief complaint or identified problem, including past 
medical history, past psychiatric history, family history, pregnancy and lactation 
status, and risk factor analysis. 

2. Objective data collection: Perform mental status exam. Perform physical exam 
as indicated. Review available medical, nursing, and diagnostic data. When 
indicated obtain collateral information. 

C. Treatment Plan: 
1. Diagnosis: 

a. Formulate diagnosis based upon section B. This should be most 
consistent with the subjective and objective findings. If diagnosis is not 
clear, assessment to level of surety plus differential diagnosis. 

b. Assessment of severity including functional impairments should be 
documented. 

2. Treatment: 
a. Laboratory testing and other diagnostic studies (e.g., psychological 

testing) when appropriate. 
b. Patient education and counseling. 
c. Furnishing medication if appropriate (see section X.C.4 below) 
d. Follow-up appointments for further evaluation and treatment if 

indicated. 
e. Consultation and referral (e.g. for psychotherapy, to neurology, to 

primary care, etc.) as appropriate. 
3. Physician Consultation: As described in the Standardized Procedure 

Functions, Sections D & E. 
4. Furnish/order appropriate medications and/or devices: The selection of 

pharmacologic therapy may include, but is not limited to, consideration of the 
following factors: 

a. History of past allergies 
b. Current medications 
c. Medication is appropriate for the identified problem 
d. Dosage adjustment to individual client needs, within therapeutic 

range 

145



  
  

e. Determination of pregnancy or lactation status 
f. Medication side effects 
g. Other client health conditions 

 
Distribution: 
BHS Policies and Procedures are distributed by the BH Director or designeedesignee. 
 
Board of Directors 
Medical Director 
Program Director(s) 
Clinic Manager(s) 
PMHNP(s) 

146



C
A

 -
 V

al
le

y 
S

p
ri

n
g

s

Score

Pr
im

ar
y 

Ca
re

 A
ve

ra
ge

 B
en

ch
m

ar
k

Hi
st

or
ic 

(9
19

N̅)
Au

gu
st

 2
02

3 
(9

8N̅
)

Se
pt

em
be

r 2
02

3 
(5

9N̅
)

Staff Works T
ogether

Pleasant Waiting Area
Communication by Phone Respected by Scheduling Staff Respected by Check-out Staff Easy Appointment Scheduling

Informed About Delays Respected by Nursing Staff Protecting Patient Privacy Would Recommend Practice Clearly Explained Procedures

65
%

70
%

75
%

80
%

85
%

90
%

95
%

10
0%

Lo
ca

ti
on

: 
 A

ll 
Lo

ca
ti

on
s

G
en

er
at

ed
 O

ct
ob

er
 1

0,
 2

02
3

ht
tp

s:
//

da
sh

bo
ar

d.
m

ed
st

at
ix

.c
om

147



C
A

 -
 V

al
le

y 
S

p
ri

n
g

s

Score

Re
d 

ou
tlin

es
 h

av
e 

co
lle

ct
ed

 v
er

y 
fe

w 
re

sp
on

se
s 

an
d 

m
ay

 n
ot

 b
e 

ac
cu

ra
te

.

Pr
im

ar
y 

Ca
re

 A
ve

ra
ge

 B
en

ch
m

ar
k

Hi
st

or
ic 

(2
1N̅

)
Au

gu
st

 2
02

3 
(3

N̅)
Se

pt
em

be
r 2

02
3 

(1
N̅)

Staff Works T
ogether

Pleasant Waiting Area
Communication by Phone Respected by Scheduling Staff Respected by Check-out Staff Easy Appointment Scheduling

Informed About Delays Respected by Nursing Staff Protecting Patient Privacy Would Recommend Practice Clearly Explained Procedures

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

Lo
ca

ti
on

: 
B

eh
av

io
ra

l H
ea

lt
h

G
en

er
at

ed
 O

ct
ob

er
 1

0,
 2

02
3

ht
tp

s:
//

da
sh

bo
ar

d.
m

ed
st

at
ix

.c
om

148



C
A

 -
 V

al
le

y 
S

p
ri

n
g

s

Score

Re
d 

ou
tlin

es
 h

av
e 

co
lle

ct
ed

 v
er

y 
fe

w 
re

sp
on

se
s 

an
d 

m
ay

 n
ot

 b
e 

ac
cu

ra
te

.

Pr
im

ar
y 

Ca
re

 A
ve

ra
ge

 B
en

ch
m

ar
k

Hi
st

or
ic 

(5
0N̅

)
Au

gu
st

 2
02

3 
(5

N̅)
Se

pt
em

be
r 2

02
3 

(6
N̅)

Staff Works T
ogether

Pleasant Waiting Area
Communication by Phone Respected by Scheduling Staff Respected by Check-out Staff Easy Appointment Scheduling

Informed About Delays Respected by Nursing Staff Protecting Patient Privacy Would Recommend Practice Clearly Explained Procedures

65
%

70
%

75
%

80
%

85
%

90
%

95
%

10
0%

Lo
ca

ti
on

: 
D

en
ta

l S
er

vi
ce

s

G
en

er
at

ed
 O

ct
ob

er
 1

0,
 2

02
3

ht
tp

s:
//

da
sh

bo
ar

d.
m

ed
st

at
ix

.c
om

149



C
A

 -
 V

al
le

y 
S

p
ri

n
g

s

Score

Pr
im

ar
y 

Ca
re

 A
ve

ra
ge

 B
en

ch
m

ar
k

Hi
st

or
ic 

(8
49

N̅)
Au

gu
st

 2
02

3 
(9

1N̅
)

Se
pt

em
be

r 2
02

3 
(5

3N̅
)

Staff Works T
ogether

Pleasant Waiting Area
Communication by Phone Respected by Scheduling Staff Respected by Check-out Staff Easy Appointment Scheduling

Informed About Delays Respected by Nursing Staff Protecting Patient Privacy Would Recommend Practice Clearly Explained Procedures

65
%

70
%

75
%

80
%

85
%

90
%

95
%

10
0%

Lo
ca

ti
on

: 
V

al
le

y 
S

p
ri

n
g

s 
H

ea
lt

h
 a

n
d

 W
el

ln
es

s

G
en

er
at

ed
 O

ct
ob

er
 1

0,
 2

02
3

ht
tp

s:
//

da
sh

bo
ar

d.
m

ed
st

at
ix

.c
om

150



P. O. Box 95 
San Andreas, CA 95249 
(209) 754-4468 Phone
(209) 754-2537 Fax

Agenda Item:  Financial Reports for September 2023 

Item Type:    Action 

Submitted By: Rick Wood, Accountant 

Presented By: Rick Wood, Accountant 

BACKGROUND: 
The September 2023 financial reports are attached for your review and approval. 

Unfortunately, Dr. Smart warned us September might not be the third month in a row for 
a positive net income at the clinic, but it wasn’t actually all that bad, as reflected below 
😉

9/30/23

Actual Y-T-D 2023/2024

Month Actual Budget

Total Other Revenue 387,110 1,541,969 5,882,085

Labor related costs (203,084) (591,717) (2,913,126)

Non labor expenses (263,731) (859,860) (3,742,372)

Total Expenses (466,816) (1,451,577) (6,655,498)

Net Expenses over Revenues (79,706) 90,392 (773,413)

Mark Twain Health Care District

Direct Clinic Financial Projections

151



09/30/23

Actual Total

Y-T-D District Clinic Rental Projects Admin

Revenues 2,707,589 10,538,718 7,455,963 1,332,755 0 1,750,000

Total Revenue 2,707,589 10,538,718 7,455,963 1,332,755 0 1,750,000

Expenses (2,295,524) (10,316,786) (8,229,376) (1,303,690) (177,900) (605,820)

Total Expenses (2,295,524) (10,316,786) (8,229,376) (1,303,690) (177,900) (605,820)

Surplus(Deficit) 412,064 221,933 (773,413) 29,065 (177,900) 1,144,180

Historical Totals Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20

(154,650)        (194,594)        (499,150)        (322,408)      (375,636)        (269,953)      

DRAFT

Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21

(323,567)        (305,579)        (549,710)        (550,970)      (527,872)        (576,658)      

Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21 Oct-21 Nov-21 Dec-21

(487,374)        (507,779)        (430,419)        (540,634)      (547,627)        (691,685)      

Jan-22 Feb-22 Mar-22 Apr-22 May-22 Jun-22

(636,595)        (667,632)        (1,258,828)     (1,236,253)   (1,068,554)     (1,298,656)   

Jul-22 Aug-22 Sep-22 Oct-22 Nov-22 Dec-22

(115,159)        (212,780)        84,671            (22,389)        (95,377)          (293,261)      

Jan-23 Feb-23 Mar-23 Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23

(304,048)        (1,003,063)     (868,056)        (871,876)      (851,960)        (679,760)      

Jul-23 Aug-23 23-Sep

197,850 392,710 412,064

Mark Twain Health Care District

Annual Budget Recap

2022 - 2023 Annual Budget

152



9/30/23 VSHWC

Monthly Actual Variance Variance Y-T-D Y-T-D Variance Variance 2023/2024

Budget Month $$$ % Budget Actual $$$ % Budget

4083.49 Urgent care Gross Revenues 621,330 494,493 (126,838) 79.59% 1,863,991 1,783,426 (80,565) 95.68% 7,455,963

4083.60 Contractual Adjustments (131,157) (107,382) 23,774 81.87% (393,470) (241,456) 152,013 61.37% (1,573,878)

Net Patient revenue 490,174 387,110 (103,064) 78.97% 1,470,521 1,541,969 71,448 104.86% 5,882,085

0

4083.90 Flu shot, Lab income, physicals 0

4083.91 Medical Records copy fees 0

9108.00 Other - Plan Incentives & COVID Relief 0 - 

0 0 0 0

Total Other Revenue 490,174 387,110 (103,064) 78.97% 1,470,521 1,541,969 71,448 104.86% 5,882,085

7083.09 Other salaries and wages (192,606) (165,600) 27,006 85.98% (577,817) (486,655) 91,162 84.22% (2,311,267)

7083.10 Payroll taxes (12,318) (12,075) 243 98.03% (36,954) (36,796) 158 99.57% (147,816)

7083.12 Vacation, Holiday and Sick Leave (9,729) 0 9,729 0.00% (29,188) 0 29,188 0.00% (116,751)

7083.13 Group Health & Welfare Insurance (20,000) (20,241) (241) 101.20% (60,000) (60,722) (722) 101.20% (240,000)

7083.14 Group Life Insurance 0 0

7083.15 Pension and Retirement (6,486) 0 6,486 0.00% (19,459) 0 19,459 0.00% (77,834)

7083.16 Workers Compensation insurance (1,622) (5,169) (3,548) 318.78% (4,865) (7,543) (2,679) 155.07% (19,458)

7083.18 Other payroll related benefits 0 0 0

Total taxes and benefits (50,155) (37,485) 12,670 74.74% (150,465) (105,062) 45,403 69.83% (601,859)

Labor related costs (242,761) (203,084) 39,676 83.66% (728,282) (591,717) 136,565 81.25% (2,913,126)

7083.05 Marketing (1,000) 0 1,000 0.00% (3,000) (243) 2,757 (12,000)

7083.20.01 Medical - Physicians (105,562) (61,434) 44,128 58.20% (316,685) (193,886) 122,799 61.22% (1,266,738)

7083.20.02 Dental - Providers 0 (7,975) 0 (23,925)

7083.20.03 Behavior Health - Providers 0 0

7083.22 Consulting and Management fees (2,500) (1,938) 562 77.50% (7,500) (7,616) (116) 101.54% (30,000)

7083.23 Legal - Clinic (417) 0 417 0.00% (1,250) (3,315) (2,065) (5,000)

7083.25 Registry Nursing personnel 0

7083.26 Other contracted services (18,583) (56,351) (37,767) 303.23% (55,750) (123,483) (67,733) 221.49% (223,000)

7083.29 Other Professional fees (1,000) (300) 700 30.00% (3,000) (4,165) (1,165) 138.83% (12,000)

7083.36 Oxygen and Other Medical Gases (58) (131) (72) 223.73% (175) (228) (53) 130.05% (700)

7083.38 Pharmaceuticals 0 0 0 0 0 0

7083.41.01 Other Medical Care Materials and Supplies (56,792) (22,841) 33,951 40.22% (170,375) (125,007) 45,368 73.37% (681,500)

7083.41.02 Dental Care Materials and Supplies - Clinic 0 (5,976) (5,976) 0 (45,335) (45,335)

7083.41.03 Behavior Health Materials 0 (71) (71) 0 (433) (433)

7083.44 Linens 0

7083.48 Instruments and Minor Medical Equipment 0 0 0 0 0

7083.74 Depreciation - Equipment (17,917) (24,501) (6,585) 136.75% (53,750) (73,504) (19,754) (215,000)

7083.45 Cleaning supplies 0 0 0 0 0

7083.62 Repairs and Maintenance Grounds (417) 0 417 0.00% (1,250) (1,020) 230 81.60% (5,000)

7083.72 Depreciation - Bldgs & Improvements (62,083) (36,526) 25,557 58.83% (186,250) (109,579) 76,671 58.83% (745,000)

7083.80 Utilities - Electrical, Gas, Water, other (6,417) (8,878) (2,462) 138.36% (19,250) (19,850) (600) 103.12% (77,000)

8870.00 Interest on Debt Service (21,490) (21,708) (218) 101.01% (64,471) (65,124) (654) 101.01% (257,883)

7083.43 Food (333) (213) 120 63.95% (1,000) (498) 502 49.85% (4,000)

7083.46 Office and Administrative supplies (2,092) (4,620) (2,529) 220.90% (6,275) (10,619) (4,344) 169.23% (25,100)

7083.69 Other purchased services (1,250) (796) 454 63.68% (3,750) (3,159) 591 84.25% (15,000)

7083.81 Insurance - Malpractice (2,758) (2,826) (67) 102.44% (8,275) (8,477) (202) 102.44% (33,100)

7083.82 Other Insurance  - Clinic 0 0 0 0 (20,875) (20,875)

7083.83 Licenses & Taxes (125) 0 125 0.00% (375) 0 375 0.00% (1,500)

7083.85 Telephone and Communications (2,500) (2,474) 26 98.97% (7,500) (11,014) (3,514) 146.86% (30,000)

7083.86 Dues, Subscriptions & Fees (2,500) (1,300) 1,200 52.00% (7,500) (1,500) 6,000 20.00% (30,000)

7083.87 Outside Training (375) 0 375 0.00% (1,125) 0 1,125 0.00% (4,500)

7083.88 Travel costs (279) (2,872) (2,593) 1028.87% (838) (7,004) (6,167) 836.33% (3,350)

7083.89 Recruiting (3,333) 0 3,333 0.00% (10,000) 0 10,000 0.00% (40,000)

8895.00 Let's All Smile (2,083) 0 2,083 0.00% (6,250) 0 6,250 0.00% (25,001)

Non labor expenses (311,864) (263,731) 48,133 84.57% (935,593) (859,860) 75,733 91.91% (3,742,372)

Total Expenses (554,625) (466,816) 87,809 84.17% (1,663,874) (1,451,577) 212,297 87.24% (6,655,498)

Net Expenses over Revenues (64,451) (79,706) (15,255) 163% (193,353) 90,392 283,746 192% (773,413)

Mark Twain Health Care District

Direct Clinic Financial Projections

153



Mark Twain Health Care District

Rental Financial Projections

9/30/23

Monthly Actual Variance Variance Y-T-D Y-T-D Variance Variance 2023/2024

Budget Month $$$ % Budget Actual $$$ % Budget

9260.01 Rent Hospital Asset amortized 89,333 89,525 191 100.21% 268,000 268,698 698 100.26% 1072000

Rent Revenues 89,333 89,525 191 100.21% 268,000 268,698 698 100.26% 1,072,000

9520.62 Repairs and Maintenance Grounds 0 0 0

9520.80 Utilities - Electrical, Gas, Water, other (77,500) (73,801) 3,699 95.23% (232,500) (222,177) 10,323 95.56% (930,000)

9520.85 Telephone & Communications (572) (409) 162 71.61% (1,715) (1,130) 585 65.90% (6,860)

9520.72 Depreciation (8,285) (8,432) (147) 101.77% (24,855) (25,419) (564) 102.27% (99,420)

9520.82 Insurance

Total Costs (86,357) (82,642) 3,715 95.70% (259,070) (248,726) 10,344 96.01% (1,036,280)

Net 2,977 6,883 3,906 231.23% 8,930 19,972 11,042 223.65% 35,720

9260.02 MOB Rents Revenue 19,044 14,762 (4,282) 77.51% 57,132 55,438 (1,694) 97.04% 228,527

9521.75 MOB rent expenses (22,284) 0 22,284 0.00% (66,853) (42,489) 24,363 63.56% (267,410)

Net (3,240) 14,762 18,002 -455.57% (9,721) 12,949 22,669 -133.21% (38,883)

9260.03 Child Advocacy Rent revenue 796 796 0 100.00% 2,387 2,387 0 100.00% 9,548

9522.75 Child Advocacy Expenses 0 0 0 0.00% 0 (775) (775) 0.00%

Net 796 796 0 100.00% 2,387 1,612 (775) 67.53% 9,548

9260.04 Sunrise Pharmacy Revenue 1,890 1,872 (18) 99.05% 5,670 5,616 5,616 0.00% 22,680

7084.41 Sunrise Pharmacy Expenses 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Revenues 111,063 106,954 (4,109) 96.30% 333,189 332,139 (1,050) 99.68% 1,332,755

Total Expenses (108,641) (82,642) 25,999 76.07% (325,923) (291,990) 33,932 89.59% (1,303,690)

Summary Net 2,422 24,312 21,890 1003.77% 7,266 40,149 32,883 552.54% 29,065

Rental

154



9/30/2023

Month

2020/2021 2021/2022 2022/2023 2023/2024 to-Date Actual Actual Actual

Actual Budget Budget Budget Budget Month Y-T-D vs Budget

Project grants and support (20,325) (667,000) (85,000) (177,900) (19,475) 3,712 (21,724) 25.56%

8890.00 Community Grants (3,754) (50,000)

8890.00 Friends of the Calaveras County Fair

8890.00 Foundation (628,000)

8890.00 Veterans Support 0 0 0 0

8890.00 Mens Health 0 0 0 0

8890.00 Miscellaneous (TBD) (100,000)

8890.00 Steps to Kick Cancer - October 0 0 0 0

8890.00 Ken McInturf Laptops (2,571)

8890.00 Doris Barger Golf 0 0 0 (2,500)

8890.00 Stay Vertical (14,000) (14,000) (35,000) (37,900) (9,475) (566) (5,516) 14.55%

8890.00 AED for Life (40,000) (10,000) 4,278 (13,708) 34.27%

8890.00 Golden Health Grant Awards

8890.00 Calaveras Senior Center Meals

8890.00 High school ROP (CTE) program (25,000)

Project grants and support (20,325) (667,000) (85,000) (177,900) (19,475) 3,712 (21,724) 25.56%

Mark Twain Health Care District

Projects, Grants and Support

155



9/30/23 ADMIN

Monthly Actual Variance Variance Y-T-D Y-T-D Variance Variance 2023/2024

Budget Month $$$ % Budget Actual $$$ % Budget

9060.00 Income, Gains and losses from investments 29,167          41,573          12,406 142.54% 87,500 118,706        31,206 135.66% 350,000        

9160.00 Property Tax Revenues 108,333        108,333        (0) 100.00% 325,000 325,000        (0) 100.00% 1,300,000    

9010.00 Gain on Sale of Asset

9400.00 Miscellaneous Income 0 0 0 100,000

5801.00 Rebates, Sponsorships, Refunds on Expenses 0 0 0

5990.00 Other Miscellaneous Income 0 0 0

9108.00 Other Non-Operating Revenue-GRANTS 17,821 67,607

9205.03 Miscellaneous Income (1% Minority Interest) (28,148) 0 (17,414)

Summary Revenues 137,500 139,579 2,079 101.51% 412,500 493,898 81,398 119.73% 1,750,000

8610.09 Other salaries and wages (27,217) (25,002) 2,215 91.86% (81,652) (83,457) (1,805) 102.21% (326,606)

8610.10 Payroll taxes (2,082)           (1,366) 716 65.60% (6,246) (4,744) 1,502 75.95% (24,985)

8610.12 Vacation, Holiday and Sick Leave (1,415)           0 1,415 0.00% (4,244) 0 4,244 0.00% (16,976)

8610.13 Group Health & Welfare Insurance (1,467)           0 1,467 0.00% (4,402) 0 4,402 0.00% (17,607)

8610.14 Group Life Insurance - 0 0 0

8610.15 Pension and Retirement (943) (206) 737 21.85% (2,829) (206) 2,623 7.28% (11,317)

8610.16 Workers Compensation insurance (236) 0 236 0.00% (707) 0 707 0.00% (2,829)

8610.18 Other payroll related benefits - 0 0 0

Benefits and taxes (6,143) (1,572) 4,571 25.59% (18,429) (4,950) 13,479 26.86% (73,714)

Labor Costs (33,360) (26,574) 6,786 79.66% (100,080) (88,407) 11,673 88.34% (400,320)

8610.22 Consulting and Management Fees (4,167)           (297) 3,869 7.14% (12,500) (884) 11,616 7.07% (50,000)

8610.23 Legal (333) (117) 216 35.10% (1,000) (10,276) (9,276) 1027.60% (4,000)

8610.24 Accounting /Audit Fees (3,000) (9,561) (6,561) 318.71% (9,000) (18,352) (9,352) 203.91% (36,000)

8610.05 Marketing (1,000) 0 1,000 0.00% (3,000) 0 3,000 0.00% (12,000)

8610.43 Food (167) 0 167 0.00% (500) 0 500 0.00% (2,000)

8610.46 Office and Administrative Supplies (375) (1,151) (776) 306.98% (1,125) (2,932) (1,807) 260.65% (4,500)

8610.62 Repairs and Maintenance Grounds (42) 0 42 0.00% (125) 0 125 0.00% (500)

8610.69 Other-  IT Services (583) (1,044) (460) 178.94% (1,750) (5,643) (3,893) 322.44% (7,000)

8610.74 Depreciation - Equipment - 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0 0.00%

8610.75 Rental/lease equipment 0 0

8610.80 Utilities 0 0 0

8610.82 Insurance (3,667)           0 3,667 0.00% (11,000) (54,063) (43,063) 491.48% (44,000)

8610.83 Licenses and Taxes 0 0 0

8610.85 Telephone and communications 0 0 0

8610.86 Dues,  Subscriptions & Fees (1,667)           (50) 1,617 3.00% (5,000) (7,450) (2,450) 149.00% (20,000)

8610.87 Outside Trainings (833) 0 833 0.00% (2,500) (1,145) 1,355 45.80% (10,000)

8610.88 Travel - 0 0 0

8610.89 Recruiting (42) 0 42 (125) 0 125 (500)

8610.90 Other Direct Expenses (1,250)           (500) 750 40.00% (3,750) (1,500) 2,250 40.00% (15,000)

8610.95 Other Misc. Expenses - 0 0 0 0

Non-Labor costs (17,125) (12,721) 4,404 74.28% (51,375) (102,244) (50,869) 199.02% (205,500)

Total Costs (50,485) (39,294) 11,191 77.83% (151,455) (190,651) (39,196) 125.88% (605,820)

Net 87,015 100,285 13,270 115.25% 261,045 303,247 42,202 116.17% 1,144,180

Mark Twain Health Care District

General Administration Financial Projections

156



Minimum 6/30/2023 2023/2024 2023/2024 9/30/2023

Reserve Funds Target Balance Allocated Interest Balance

Valley Springs HWC - Operational Reserve 2,200,000 30,658 1,000,000 4,869 1,035,527

Capital Improvement 3,000,000 2,522,220 0 34,514 2,556,734

Technology Reserve 250,000 1,039,589 -789,589 10,672 260,672

Lease, Contract, & Utilities Reserve 1,700,000 2,501,410 -801,410 30,622 1,730,622

Communiuty Programs Reserve 250,000 100,000 450 100,450

Lease Termination Reserve 3,250,000 490,999 2,210 493,209

Loan Reserve 2,000,000 2,084,524 0 28,525 2,113,049

Reserves & Contingencies 12,650,000 8,178,401 0 111,862 8,290,263

2023-2024

Reserves 9/30/2023 Interest Earned

Valley Springs HWC - Operational Reserve 31,026 368

Total Cal-Trust Reserve Funds 31,026 368

Valley Springs HWC - Operational Reserve 1,004,501 4,501

Lease & Contract Reserve 1,730,622 30,622

Loan Reserve 2,113,049 28,525

Capital Improvement 2,556,734 34,514

Technology Reserve Fund 260,672 10,672

Community Programs Reserve 100,450 450

Lease Termination reserve 493,209 2,210

Total CA-CLASS Reserve Funds 8,259,237 111,494

Five Star

General Operating - Closed 0 0

General Operating  - NEW 681,609 59

Money Market Account 277,267 3,084

Valley Springs - Checking 88,502 17

Valley Springs - Payroll 37,096 19

Total Five Star 1,084,473 3,179

Umpqua Bank

Checking 232,528 0

Money Market Account 6,446 0.16

Investments 0 0

Total Savings & CD's 238,974 0.16

Bank of Stockton 7,019 21

Total in interest earning accounts 9,620,730 115,063

Beta Dividends 1 0

CSDA Training Scholarship 0

Anthem Rebate 3,643

Total Without Unrealized Loss 118,706

Investment & Reserves Report

30-Sep-23

Mark Twain Health Care District’s (District) Investment Policy No. 22 describes the District’s commitment to managing risk by selecting 

investment products based on safety, liquidity and yield.  Per California Government Code Section 53600 et. seq., specifically section 53646 and 

section 53607, this investment report details all investment-related activity in the current period.  District investable funds are currently invested 

in Umpqua Bank, Five Star Bank, and the CA CLASS investment pool, all of which meet those standards; the individual investment transactions of 

the CA CLASS Pool are not reportable under the government code. That being said, the District’s Investment Policy remains a prudent investment 

course, and is in compliance with the “Prudent Investor’s Policy” designed to protect public funds.

157



Total
ASSETS

   Current Assets

   Bank Accounts

         1001.10 Umpqua Bank - Checking 232,528  

         1001.20 Umpqua Bank - Money Market 6,446  

         1001.30 Bank of Stockton 7,019  

         1001.40 Five Star Bank - MTHCD Checking - Closed 0  

         1001.45 Five Star Bank - MTHCD Checking NEW 669,748  

         1001.50 Five Star Bank - Money Market 277,267  

         1001.60 Five Star Bank - VSHWC Checking 88,502  

         1001.65 Five Star Bank - VSHWC Payroll 36,196  

         1001.90 US Bank - VSHWC 49,348  

         1001.98  Calaveras Wellness Foundation 100,901  

         1820 VSHWC - Petty Cash 400  

  Total Bank Accounts 1,468,355  

   Accounts Receivable

        1201.00 Accounts Receivable 6,337  

        1210.00  Grants Receivable 23,714  

        1215.00  Settlements 488,746  

  Total Accounts Receivable 518,797  

   Other Current Assets

         1003.10 CalTRUST Operational Reserve Fund 31,026  

         1003.20 CLASS Operational Reserve Fund 1,004,501  

         1004.10 CLASS Lease & Contract Reserve Fund 1,730,622  

         1004.20 CLASS Loan Reserve Fund 2,113,049  

         1004.30 CLASS Capital Improvement  Reserve Fund 2,556,734  

         1004.40 CLASS Technology Reserve Fund 260,672  

         1004.50 Community Programs Reserve Fund 100,450  

         1004.60 Lease Termination Reserve Fund 493,209  

         1150.05 Due from Calaveras County 1,300,000  

         1160.00  Lease Receivable 166,262  

         1202.00 Prior Year Grant Revenue 6,211  

         1205.50 Allowance for Uncollectable Clinic Receivables 216,359  

         1205.51  Cash To Be Reconciled 88,681  

         1300.00 Prepaid Expense (USDA) 65,124  

   Total Other Current Assets 10,132,901  

   Total Current Assets 12,120,053  

   Fixed Assets

        1200.00  District Owned Land 286,144  

        1200.10 District Land Improvements 150,308  

        1200.20  District -  Building 2,123,678  

        1200.30  District -  Building Improvements 2,276,956  

        1200.40  District - Equipment 715,764  

        1200.50  District - Building Service Equipment 168,095  

        1220.00  VSHWC - Land 903,112  

        1220.05  VSHWC - Land Improvements 1,691,262  

        1220.10  VSHWC - Buildngs 5,875,622  

        1220.20  VSHWC - Equipment 936,577  

        1221.00  Pharmacy Construction 48,536  

Mark Twain Health Care District
Balance Sheet

As of September 30, 2023

158



        1521.10  CIP Land 3,082  

        1521.20  CIP Buildings 30,388  

        1600.00  Accumulated Depreciation -8,567,604  

   Total Fixed Assets 6,641,920  

   Other Assets

         1710.10 Minority Interest in MTMC - NEW 390,564  

           1810.60 Capitalized Lease Negotiations 305,919  

           1810.65 Capitalized Costs Amortization 14,899  

    Total Intangible Assets 320,818  

      2219.00 Capital Lease 5,823,464  

      2260.00 Lease Receivable - Long Term 841,774  

   Total Other Assets 7,376,620  
TOTAL ASSETS 26,138,593  

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

   Liabilities

      Current Liabilities

         Accounts Payable

            2000.00  Accounts Payable (MISC) 139,546  

            Total 200.00 Accts Payable & Accrued Expenes 139,546  

           2001.00 Other Accounts Payable (Credit Card) 27,891  

            Total 200.00 Accts Payable & Accrued Expenes 27,891  

          2010.00 USDA Loan Accrued Interest Payable 84,955  

          2021.00 Accrued Payroll - Clinic 95,023  

          2022.00 Accrued Leave Liability 42,068  

          2100.00 Deide Security Deposit 2,275  

          2110.00 Payroll Liabilities - New Account for 2019 8,388  

          2110.10 Valley Springs Security Deposit 1,000  

          2140.00 Lease Payable - Current 142,286  

          2200.00 Due to Calaveras Wellness Foundation 100,901  

          2270.00 Deferred Revenue 84,580  

         Total Other Current Liabilities 561,477  
      Total Current Liabilities 728,914  

      Long-Term Liabilities

         2128.01 Deferred Capital Lease 281,818  

         2128.02 Deferred Utilities Reimbursement 515,962  

         2129.00 Other Third Party Reimbursement - Calaveras County 975,000  

         2130.00 Deferred Inflows of Resources 269,375  

         2210.00 USDA  Loan - VS Clinic 6,562,277  

         2240.00 Lease Payable - Long Term 596,895  

      Total Long-Term Liabilities 9,201,327  

   Total Liabilities 9,930,241  

   Equity

        2900.00 Fund Balance 648,149  

        2910.00 PY - Historical Minority Interest MTMC 19,720,638  

        3900.00 Retained Earnings -4,572,500  

     Net Income 412,064  

   Total Equity 16,208,352  

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 26,138,593  

159



 

 
P. O. Box 95 
San Andreas, CA 95249 
(209) 754-4468 Phone 
(209) 754-2537 Fax 

 

Agenda Item:  Financial Reports for October 2023 
     
Item Type:      Action 
 
Submitted By:   Rick Wood, Accountant 
 
Presented By:   Rick Wood, Accountant 
 

 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The October 2023 financial reports are attached for your review and approval.  
 
Another solid month for the Clinic. Interest rates remain very high, helping add to the 
District’s overall net income total 😊 
 

 

10/31/23

Actual Y-T-D 2023/2024

Month Actual Budget

Total Other Revenue 454,342 1,996,312 5,882,085

Labor related costs (196,838) (788,555) (2,913,126)

Non labor expenses (258,655) (1,118,516) (3,742,372)

Total Expenses (455,493) (1,907,070) (6,655,498)

Net Expenses over Revenues (1,151) 89,242 (773,413)

Mark Twain Health Care District

Direct Clinic Financial Projections

160



10/31/23

Actual Total

Y-T-D District Clinic Rental Projects Admin

Revenues 3,468,017 10,538,718 7,455,963 1,332,755 0 1,750,000

Total Revenue 3,468,017 10,538,718 7,455,963 1,332,755 0 1,750,000

Expenses (2,916,092) (10,316,786) (8,229,376) (1,303,690) (177,900) (605,820)

Total Expenses (2,916,092) (10,316,786) (8,229,376) (1,303,690) (177,900) (605,820)

Surplus(Deficit) 551,925 221,933 (773,413) 29,065 (177,900) 1,144,180

Historical Totals Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20

(154,650)        (194,594)        (499,150)        (322,408)      (375,636)        (269,953)      

DRAFT

Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21

(323,567)        (305,579)        (549,710)        (550,970)      (527,872)        (576,658)      

Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21 Oct-21 Nov-21 Dec-21

(487,374)        (507,779)        (430,419)        (540,634)      (547,627)        (691,685)      

Jan-22 Feb-22 Mar-22 Apr-22 May-22 Jun-22

(636,595)        (667,632)        (1,258,828)     (1,236,253)   (1,068,554)     (1,298,656)   

Jul-22 Aug-22 Sep-22 Oct-22 Nov-22 Dec-22

(115,159)        (212,780)        84,671            (22,389)        (95,377)          (293,261)      

Jan-23 Feb-23 Mar-23 Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23

(304,048)        (1,003,063)     (868,056)        (871,876)      (851,960)        (679,760)      

Jul-23 Aug-23 23-Sep 23-Oct

197,850 392,710 412,064 551,925

Mark Twain Health Care District

Annual Budget Recap

2022 - 2023 Annual Budget

161



10/31/23 VSHWC

Monthly Actual Variance Variance Y-T-D Y-T-D Variance Variance 2023/2024

Budget Month $$$ % Budget Actual $$$ % Budget

4083.49 Urgent care Gross Revenues 621,330 498,816 (122,514) 80.28% 2,485,321 2,282,242 (203,079) 91.83% 7,455,963

4083.60 Contractual Adjustments (131,157) (44,474) 86,683 33.91% (524,626) (285,930) 238,696 54.50% (1,573,878)

Net Patient revenue 490,174 454,342 (35,831) 92.69% 1,960,695 1,996,312 35,617 101.82% 5,882,085

0

4083.90 Flu shot, Lab income, physicals 0

4083.91 Medical Records copy fees 0

9108.00 Other - Plan Incentives & COVID Relief 0 -                   

0 0 0 0

Total Other Revenue 490,174 454,342 (35,831) 92.69% 1,960,695 1,996,312 35,617 101.82% 5,882,085

7083.09 Other salaries and wages (192,606) (164,124) 28,482 85.21% (770,422) (650,779) 119,643 84.47% (2,311,267)

7083.10 Payroll taxes (12,318) (11,911) 407 96.70% (49,272) (48,708) 564 98.85% (147,816)

7083.12 Vacation, Holiday and Sick Leave (9,729) 0 9,729 0.00% (38,917) 0 38,917 0.00% (116,751)

7083.13 Group Health & Welfare Insurance (20,000) (19,615) 385 98.08% (80,000) (80,338) (338) 100.42% (240,000)

7083.14 Group Life Insurance 0 0

7083.15 Pension and Retirement (6,486) 0 6,486 0.00% (25,945) 0 25,945 0.00% (77,834)

7083.16 Workers Compensation insurance (1,622) (1,187) 434 73.21% (6,486) (8,730) (2,244) 134.60% (19,458)

7083.18 Other payroll related benefits 0 0 0

Total taxes and benefits (50,155) (32,714) 17,441 65.23% (200,620) (137,776) 62,844 68.68% (601,859)

Labor related costs (242,761) (196,838) 45,923 81.08% (971,042) (788,555) 182,487 81.21% (2,913,126)

7083.05 Marketing (1,000) (589) 411 58.88% (4,000) (832) 3,168 (12,000)

7083.20.01 Medical - Physicians (105,562) (53,711) 51,850 50.88% (422,246) (247,597) 174,649 58.64% (1,266,738)

7083.20.02 Dental - Providers 0 (6,738) 0 (30,663)

7083.20.03 Behavior Health - Providers 0 0

7083.22 Consulting and Management fees (2,500) (1,926) 574 77.04% (10,000) (9,542) 458 95.42% (30,000)

7083.23 Legal - Clinic (417) (312) 105 74.88% (1,667) (3,627) (1,960) (5,000)

7083.25 Registry Nursing personnel 0

7083.26 Other contracted services (18,583) (59,950) (41,367) 322.60% (74,333) (183,433) (109,099) 246.77% (223,000)

7083.29 Other Professional fees (1,000) (500) 500 50.00% (4,000) (4,665) (665) 116.63% (12,000)

7083.36 Oxygen and Other Medical Gases (58) (97) (39) 166.42% (233) (325) (91) 139.14% (700)

7083.38 Pharmaceuticals 0 0 0 0 0 0

7083.41.01 Other Medical Care Materials and Supplies (56,792) (17,574) 39,218 30.94% (227,167) (142,581) 84,586 62.76% (681,500)

7083.41.02 Dental Care Materials and Supplies - Clinic 0 (11,941) (11,941) 0 (57,277) (57,277)

7083.41.03 Behavior Health Materials 0 (71) (71) 0 (504) (504)

7083.44 Linens 0

7083.48 Instruments and Minor Medical Equipment 0 0 0 0 0

7083.74 Depreciation - Equipment (17,917) (10,467) 7,450 58.42% (71,667) (83,971) (12,305) (215,000)

7083.45 Cleaning supplies 0 0 0 0 0

7083.62 Repairs and Maintenance Grounds (417) (952) (535) 228.48% (1,667) (1,972) (305) 118.32% (5,000)

7083.72 Depreciation - Bldgs & Improvements (62,083) (50,561) 11,523 81.44% (248,333) (160,139) 88,194 64.49% (745,000)

7083.80 Utilities - Electrical, Gas, Water, other (6,417) (1,064) 5,352 16.59% (25,667) (20,914) 4,752 81.48% (77,000)

8870.00 Interest on Debt Service (21,490) (21,708) (218) 101.01% (85,961) (86,833) (872) 101.01% (257,883)

7083.43 Food (333) (2,721) (2,388) 816.36% (1,333) (3,220) (1,886) 241.48% (4,000)

7083.46 Office and Administrative supplies (2,092) (926) 1,165 44.28% (8,367) (11,546) (3,179) 138.00% (25,100)

7083.69 Other purchased services (1,250) (1,159) 91 92.72% (5,000) (4,318) 682 86.37% (15,000)

7083.81 Insurance - Malpractice (2,758) (2,826) (67) 102.44% (11,033) (11,302) (269) 102.44% (33,100)

7083.82 Other Insurance  - Clinic 0 0 0 0 (20,875) (20,875)

7083.83 Licenses & Taxes (125) 0 125 0.00% (500) 0 500 0.00% (1,500)

7083.85 Telephone and Communications (2,500) (10,989) (8,489) 439.54% (10,000) (22,003) (12,003) 220.03% (30,000)

7083.86 Dues, Subscriptions & Fees (2,500) 0 2,500 0.00% (10,000) (1,500) 8,500 15.00% (30,000)

7083.87 Outside Training (375) 0 375 0.00% (1,500) 0 1,500 0.00% (4,500)

7083.88 Travel costs (279) (1,874) (1,594) 671.13% (1,117) (8,878) (7,761) 795.03% (3,350)

7083.89 Recruiting (3,333) 0 3,333 0.00% (13,333) 0 13,333 0.00% (40,000)

8895.00 Let's All Smile (2,083) 0 2,083 0.00% (8,334) 0 8,334 0.00% (25,001)

Non labor expenses (311,864) (258,655) 53,209 82.94% (1,247,457) (1,118,516) 128,942 89.66% (3,742,372)

Total Expenses (554,625) (455,493) 99,132 82.13% (2,218,499) (1,907,070) 311,429 85.96% (6,655,498)

Net Expenses over Revenues (64,451) (1,151) 63,300 175% (257,804) 89,242 347,046 188% (773,413)

Mark Twain Health Care District

Direct Clinic Financial Projections

162



Mark Twain Health Care District

Rental Financial Projections

10/31/23

Monthly Actual Variance Variance Y-T-D Y-T-D Variance Variance 2023/2024

Budget Month $$$ % Budget Actual $$$ % Budget

9260.01 Rent Hospital Asset amortized 89,333 89,483 150 100.17% 357,333 358,182 848 100.24% 1072000

Rent Revenues 89,333 89,483 150 100.17% 357,333 358,182 848 100.24% 1,072,000

9520.62 Repairs and Maintenance Grounds 0 0 0

9520.80 Utilities - Electrical, Gas, Water, other (77,500) (39,706) 37,794 51.23% (310,000) (261,883) 48,117 84.48% (930,000)

9520.85 Telephone & Communications (572) (471) 101 82.40% (2,287) (1,601) 685 70.03% (6,860)

9520.72 Depreciation (8,285) (8,390) (105) 101.27% (33,140) (33,810) (670) 102.02% (99,420)

9520.82 Insurance

Total Costs (86,357) (48,568) 37,789 56.24% (345,427) (297,293) 48,133 86.07% (1,036,280)

Net 2,977 40,916 37,939 1374.55% 11,907 60,888 48,981 511.38% 35,720

9260.02 MOB Rents Revenue 19,044 18,605 (439) 97.70% 76,176 74,043 (2,133) 97.20% 228,527

9521.75 MOB rent expenses (22,284) (21,400) 884 96.03% (89,137) (63,889) 25,247 71.68% (267,410)

Net (3,240) (2,795) 445 86.26% (12,961) 10,154 23,115 -78.34% (38,883)

9260.03 Child Advocacy Rent revenue 796 796 0 100.00% 3,183 3,183 0 100.00% 9,548

9522.75 Child Advocacy Expenses 0 0 0 0.00% 0 (775) (775) 0.00%

Net 796 796 0 100.00% 3,183 2,408 (775) 75.65% 9,548

9260.04 Sunrise Pharmacy Revenue 1,890 1,872 (18) 99.05% 7,560 7,488 7,488 0.00% 22,680

7084.41 Sunrise Pharmacy Expenses 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Revenues 111,063 110,756 (307) 99.72% 444,252 442,895 (1,356) 99.69% 1,332,755

Total Expenses (108,641) (69,968) 38,673 64.40% (434,563) (361,958) 72,605 83.29% (1,303,690)

Summary Net 2,422 40,788 38,366 1684.01% 9,688 80,937 71,249 835.41% 29,065

Rental

163



10/31/2023

Month

2020/2021 2021/2022 2022/2023 2023/2024 to-Date Actual Actual Actual

Actual Budget Budget Budget Budget Month Y-T-D vs Budget

Project grants and support (20,325) (667,000) (85,000) (177,900) (25,967) (12,945) (34,669) 40.79%

8890.00 Community Grants (3,754) (50,000)

8890.00 Friends of the Calaveras County Fair

8890.00 Foundation (628,000)

8890.00 Veterans Support 0 0 0 0

8890.00 Mens Health 0 0 0 0

8890.00 Miscellaneous (TBD) (100,000)

8890.00 Steps to Kick Cancer - October 0 0 0 0

8890.00 Ken McInturf Laptops (2,571)

8890.00 Doris Barger Golf 0 0 0 (2,500)

8890.00 Stay Vertical (14,000) (14,000) (35,000) (37,900) (12,633) (8,445) (13,961) 36.84%

8890.00 AED for Life (40,000) (13,333) 500 (13,208) 33.02%

8890.00 Calaveras Mentoring Program (2,500) (2,500)

8890.00 Calaveras Senior Center Meals (2,500) (2,500)

8890.00 High school ROP (CTE) program (25,000)

Project grants and support (20,325) (667,000) (85,000) (177,900) (25,967) (12,945) (34,669) 40.79%

Mark Twain Health Care District

Projects, Grants and Support

164



10/31/23 ADMIN

Monthly Actual Variance Variance Y-T-D Y-T-D Variance Variance 2023/2024

Budget Month $$$ % Budget Actual $$$ % Budget

9060.00 Income, Gains and losses from investments 29,167          42,014          12,847 144.05% 116,667 160,719        44,053 137.76% 350,000        

9160.00 Property Tax Revenues 108,333        108,333        (0) 100.00% 433,333 433,333        (0) 100.00% 1,300,000    

9010.00 Gain on Sale of Asset

9400.00 Miscellaneous Income 0 0 0 100,000

5801.00 Rebates, Sponsorships, Refunds on Expenses 0 0 0

5990.00 Other Miscellaneous Income 0 0 0

9108.00 Other Non-Operating Revenue-GRANTS 509 68,116

9205.03 Miscellaneous Income (1% Minority Interest) 0 0 (17,414)

Summary Revenues 137,500 150,856 13,356 109.71% 550,000 644,755 94,755 117.23% 1,750,000

8610.09 Other salaries and wages (27,217) (25,194) 2,023 92.57% (108,869) (108,651) 218 99.80% (326,606)

8610.10 Payroll taxes (2,082)           (1,381) 702 66.30% (8,328) (6,124) 2,204 73.54% (24,985)

8610.12 Vacation, Holiday and Sick Leave (1,415)           0 1,415 0.00% (5,659) 0 5,659 0.00% (16,976)

8610.13 Group Health & Welfare Insurance (1,467)           0 1,467 0.00% (5,869) 0 5,869 0.00% (17,607)

8610.14 Group Life Insurance -                     0 0 0

8610.15 Pension and Retirement (943)              0 943 0.00% (3,772) (206) 3,566 5.46% (11,317)

8610.16 Workers Compensation insurance (236)              0 236 0.00% (943) 0 943 0.00% (2,829)

8610.18 Other payroll related benefits -                     0 0 0

Benefits and taxes (6,143) (1,381) 4,762 22.47% (24,571) (6,330) 18,241 25.76% (73,714)

Labor Costs (33,360) (26,575) 6,785 79.66% (133,440) (114,981) 18,459 86.17% (400,320)

8610.22 Consulting and Management Fees (4,167)           (294) 3,873 7.06% (16,667) (1,178) 15,489 7.07% (50,000)

8610.23 Legal (333)              0 333 0.00% (1,333) (10,276) (8,943) 770.70% (4,000)

8610.24 Accounting /Audit Fees (3,000)           (6,986) (3,986) 232.87% (12,000) (25,338) (13,338) 211.15% (36,000)

8610.05 Marketing (1,000)           0 1,000 0.00% (4,000) 0 4,000 0.00% (12,000)

8610.43 Food (167)              0 167 0.00% (667) 0 667 0.00% (2,000)

8610.46 Office and Administrative Supplies (375)              (1,128) (753) 300.68% (1,500) (4,060) (2,560) 270.66% (4,500)

8610.62 Repairs and Maintenance Grounds (42)                0 42 0.00% (167) 0 167 0.00% (500)

8610.69 Other-  IT Services (583)              (671) (87) 114.99% (2,333) (6,313) (3,980) 270.58% (7,000)

8610.74 Depreciation - Equipment -                     0 0 0.00% 0 0 0 0.00%

8610.75 Rental/lease equipment 0 0

8610.80 Utilities 0 0 0

8610.82 Insurance (3,667)           0 3,667 0.00% (14,667) (54,063) (39,396) 368.61% (44,000)

8610.83 Licenses and Taxes 0 0 0

8610.85 Telephone and communications 0 0 0

8610.86 Dues,  Subscriptions & Fees (1,667)           (600) 1,067 35.98% (6,667) (8,050) (1,383) 120.74% (20,000)

8610.87 Outside Trainings (833)              (1,435) (602) 172.23% (3,333) (2,580) 753 77.41% (10,000)

8610.88 Travel -                     0 0 0

8610.89 Recruiting (42)                0 42 (167) 0 167 (500)

8610.90 Other Direct Expenses (1,250)           0 1,250 0.00% (5,000) (1,500) 3,500 30.00% (15,000)

8610.95 Other Misc. Expenses -                     0 0 0 0

Non-Labor costs (17,125) (11,113) 6,012 64.90% (68,500) (113,358) (44,858) 165.49% (205,500)

Total Costs (50,485) (37,688) 12,797 74.65% (201,940) (228,339) (26,399) 113.07% (605,820)

Net 87,015 113,168 26,153 130.06% 348,060 416,415 68,355 119.64% 1,144,180

Mark Twain Health Care District

General Administration Financial Projections

165



Total
ASSETS

   Current Assets

     Bank Accounts

         1001.10 Umpqua Bank - Checking 249,374  

         1001.20 Umpqua Bank - Money Market 6,446  

         1001.30 Bank of Stockton 6,996  

         1001.40 Five Star Bank - MTHCD Checking - Closed 0  

         1001.45 Five Star Bank - MTHCD Checking NEW 419,710  

         1001.50 Five Star Bank - Money Market 278,096  

         1001.60 Five Star Bank - VSHWC Checking 61,381  

         1001.65 Five Star Bank - VSHWC Payroll 184,059  

         1001.90 US Bank - VSHWC 80,250  

         1001.98  Calaveras Wellness Foundation 109,901  

         1820 VSHWC - Petty Cash 400  

      Total Bank Accounts 1,396,613  

     Accounts Receivable

        1201.00 Accounts Receivable 7,779  

        1210.00  Grants Receivable 23,714  

        1215.00  Settlements 488,746  

      Total Accounts Receivable 520,239  

     Other Current Assets

         1003.10 CalTRUST Operational Reserve Fund 31,158  

         1003.20 CLASS Operational Reserve Fund 1,009,205  

         1004.10 CLASS Lease & Contract Reserve Fund 1,738,726  

         1004.20 CLASS Loan Reserve Fund 2,122,944  

         1004.30 CLASS Capital Improvement  Reserve Fund 2,568,707  

         1004.40 CLASS Technology Reserve Fund 261,892  

         1004.50 Community Programs Reserve Fund 100,921  

         1004.60 Lease Termination Reserve Fund 495,519  

         1150.05 Due from Calaveras County 1,300,000  

         1160.00  Lease Receivable 166,262  

         1202.00 Prior Year Grant Revenue 6,211  

         1205.50 Allowance for Uncollectable Clinic Receivables 228,964  

         1205.51  Cash To Be Reconciled 41,932  

         1300.00 Prepaid Expense (USDA) 43,416  

     Total Other Current Assets 10,115,857  

   Total Current Assets 12,032,709  

   Fixed Assets

        1200.00  District Owned Land 286,144  

        1200.10 District Land Improvements 150,308  

        1200.20  District -  Building 2,123,678  

        1200.30  District -  Building Improvements 2,276,956  

        1200.40  District - Equipment 715,764  

        1200.50  District - Building Service Equipment 168,095  

        1220.00  VSHWC - Land 903,112  

        1220.05  VSHWC - Land Improvements 1,691,262  

        1220.10  VSHWC - Buildngs 5,875,622  

        1220.20  VSHWC - Equipment 936,577  

        1221.00  Pharmacy Construction 48,536  

Mark Twain Health Care District
Balance Sheet

As of October 31, 2023

166



        1521.10  CIP Land 3,742  

        1521.20  CIP Buildings 40,688  

        1600.00  Accumulated Depreciation -8,628,632  

   Total Fixed Assets 6,591,852  

   Other Assets

         1710.10 Minority Interest in MTMC - NEW 390,564  

           1810.60 Capitalized Lease Negotiations 304,926  

           1810.65 Capitalized Costs Amortization 15,892  

    Total Intangible Assets 320,818  

      2219.00 Capital Lease 5,804,557  

      2260.00 Lease Receivable - Long Term 841,774  

   Total Other Assets 7,357,713  
TOTAL ASSETS 25,982,274  

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

   Liabilities

      Current Liabilities

         Accounts Payable

            2000.00  Accounts Payable (MISC) 45,711  

            Total 200.00 Accts Payable & Accrued Expenes 45,711  

           2001.00 Other Accounts Payable (Credit Card) 22,944  

            Total 200.00 Accts Payable & Accrued Expenes 22,944  

          2010.00 USDA Loan Accrued Interest Payable 84,955  

          2021.00 Accrued Payroll - Clinic 95,023  

          2022.00 Accrued Leave Liability 63,466  

          2100.00 Deide Security Deposit 2,275  

          2110.00 Payroll Liabilities - New Account for 2019 10,324  

          2110.10 Valley Springs Security Deposit 1,000  

          2140.00 Lease Payable - Current 142,286  

          2200.00 Due to Calaveras Wellness Foundation 109,901  

          2270.00 Deferred Revenue 84,580  

         Total Other Current Liabilities 593,811  
      Total Current Liabilities 662,466  

      Long-Term Liabilities

         2128.01 Deferred Capital Lease 246,312  

         2128.02 Deferred Utilities Reimbursement 451,468  

         2129.00 Other Third Party Reimbursement - Calaveras County 866,667  

         2130.00 Deferred Inflows of Resources 269,375  

         2210.00 USDA  Loan - VS Clinic 6,562,277  

         2240.00 Lease Payable - Long Term 596,895  

      Total Long-Term Liabilities 8,992,994  

   Total Liabilities 9,655,460  

   Equity

        2900.00 Fund Balance 648,149  

        2910.00 PY - Historical Minority Interest MTMC 19,720,638  

        3900.00 Retained Earnings -4,593,898  

     Net Income 551,925  

   Total Equity 16,326,815  

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 25,982,275  

167



Minimum 6/30/2023 2023/2024 2023/2024 10/31/2023

Reserve Funds Target Balance Allocated Interest Balance

Valley Springs HWC - Operational Reserve 2,200,000 30,658 1,000,000 9,705 1,040,363

Capital Improvement 3,000,000 2,522,220 0 46,487 2,568,707

Technology Reserve 250,000 1,039,589 -789,589 11,892 261,892

Lease, Contract, & Utilities Reserve 1,700,000 2,501,410 -801,410 38,726 1,738,726

Communiuty Programs Reserve 250,000 100,000 921 100,921

Lease Termination Reserve 3,250,000 490,999 4,520 495,519

Loan Reserve 2,000,000 2,084,524 0 38,420 2,122,944

Reserves & Contingencies 12,650,000 8,178,401 0 150,670 8,329,071

2023-2024

Reserves 10/31/2023 Interest Earned

Valley Springs HWC - Operational Reserve 31,158 500

Total Cal-Trust Reserve Funds 31,158 500

Valley Springs HWC - Operational Reserve 1,009,205 9,205

Lease & Contract Reserve 1,738,726 38,726

Loan Reserve 2,122,944 38,420

Capital Improvement 2,568,707 46,487

Technology Reserve Fund 261,892 11,892

Community Programs Reserve 100,921 921

Lease Termination reserve 495,519 4,520

Total CA-CLASS Reserve Funds 8,297,914 150,170

Five Star

General Operating - Closed 0 0

General Operating  - NEW 472,213 89

Money Market Account 278,096 3,914

Valley Springs - Checking 61,381 23

Valley Springs - Payroll 184,959 25

Total Five Star 996,649 4,052

Umpqua Bank

Checking 249,374 0

Money Market Account 6,446 0.22

Investments 0 0

Total Savings & CD's 255,819 0.22

Bank of Stockton 6,996 22

Total in interest earning accounts 9,588,536 154,744

Beta Dividends 1 2,333

CSDA Training Scholarship 0

Anthem Rebate 3,643

Total Without Unrealized Loss 160,719

Investment & Reserves Report

31-Oct-23

Mark Twain Health Care District’s (District) Investment Policy No. 22 describes the District’s commitment to managing risk by selecting 

investment products based on safety, liquidity and yield.  Per California Government Code Section 53600 et. seq., specifically section 53646 and 

section 53607, this investment report details all investment-related activity in the current period.  District investable funds are currently invested 

in Umpqua Bank, Five Star Bank, and the CA CLASS investment pool, all of which meet those standards; the individual investment transactions of 

the CA CLASS Pool are not reportable under the government code. That being said, the District’s Investment Policy remains a prudent investment 

course, and is in compliance with the “Prudent Investor’s Policy” designed to protect public funds.

168



  Audited Financial Statements

   MARK TWAIN 
HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

  June 30, 2023 and 2022

169



Audited Financial Statements

MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

June 30, 2023

Management’s Discussion and Analysis    .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .  . 1

Report of Independent Auditors .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .  . 5

Audited Financial Statements

     Statements of Net Position   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .  8

     Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position    .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .  . 9

     Statements of Cash Flows .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   . 10

     Notes to Financial Statements   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   . 11

Independent Auditors Report on Internal Control     .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   . 27

170



Management’s Discussion and Analysis

MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

June 30, 2023

The management of the Mark Twain  Health Care District (the District) has prepared this annual discussion and
analysis in order to provide an overview of the District’s performance for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023 in
accordance with the Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34, Basic Financials Statements;
Management’s Discussion and Analysis for State and Local Governments.  The intent of this document is to provide
additional information on the District’s financial performance as a whole in addition to providing a prospective look
at revenue growth, operating expenses, and capital development plans.  This discussion should be reviewed in
conjunction with the audited financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023 and accompanying notes
to the financial statements to enhance one’s understanding of the District’s financial performance.

Financial Highlights

The District’s financial statements consist of three statements: statement of net position; statement of revenues,
expenses, and changes in net position; and statement of cash flows.  These financial statements and related notes
provide information about the activities of the District, including resources held by the District but restricted for
specific purposes by contributors, grantors, or enabling legislation.

The statement of net position includes all of the District’s assets and liabilities, using the accrual basis of accounting,
as well as an indication about which assets can be used for general purposes and which are designated for a specific
purpose. Highlights within the statement of net position and the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net
position for the year ended June 30, 2023 were:

(1) Total assets decreased by $2,795,811 due mainly to decrease of cash and cash equivalents by $1,176,190 and
depreciation of property and equipment of $763,098. 

(2) Patient accounts receivable as of June 30, 2023 were $362,424 net of estimated related allowances of $136,920
to arrive at a net patient accounts receivable total of $225,504.  As of June 30, 2022, patient accounts receivable were
$360,479, net of estimated related allowances of $154,616 to arrive at a net patient accounts receivable of $205,863.

(3) Property and equipment additions were $26,917 while depreciation expense was $763,921.  With the combined
additions and depreciation, property and equipment showed a net decrease of $737,004. 

(4) Total debt borrowings were $6,847,384. The District repaid $146,000 on these debt borrowings during the year.

(5) The District continued with updates of  the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 87 during the
year which changed the way during the year ended June 30, 2022 in the way the District accounted for leases, both
as a lessor and as a lessee.  The main results were decreases to lease receivables (both current and long term) in the
combined amount of $185,651, and decreases to lease payables (both current and long term) in the combined amount
of $167,784.

1

171



Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

(6) The decrease in net position for the year ended June 30, 2023 was $(1,282,214) as compared to the prior year
decrease in net position of $(500,529).  Estimated third party settlements were $117,814 due to  Medi-Cal.  It is
anticipated that in the year 2024 the PPS base year will be audited by the State from which the District is expecting
very favorable results.  

(7) The District recorded grant income for the year in the amount of $374,906 as compared to the prior year grant
income of $662,341 of which $347,687 came from the Department of Finance in the State of California for
reimbursement of COVID related expenses.

The statement of cash flows reports the cash provided by and used by the District’s operating activities, as well as
other cash sources such as investment income and cash payments for capital additions and improvements.  This
statement provides meaningful information on how the District’s cash was generated and how it was used during the
fiscal year.

Cash and Investments

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, the District’s operating cash and investments totaled $9,401,326 as compared
to $10,663,487 in fiscal year 2022.  At June 30, 2023, days cash on hand were 751 as compared to June 30, 2022
when days cash on hand were 751.  The District maintains sufficient cash and cash equivalent balances to pay all
short-term liabilities, plus fund the forthcoming operations of the new rural health clinic. 

Current Assets and Liabilities

Current assets decreased by $1,614,044 due mainly to the previously mentioned decrease in cash and cash equivalents
and a decrease in third party settlements.  Current liabilities increased by $25,619 due mainly to the increase in
estimated third party payor settlements of $117,814. These changes produced a current ratio of 12.64 for June 30,
2023 as compared to 15.16 for June 30, 2022.

Capital and Other Assets

Property and equipment decreased by $737,004 as additions were $26,917, less depreciation expense of $763,921.
Continued improvements are being made to the Clinic in Valley Springs. 

The District has recorded approximately $6.8 million in other assets, offset by approximately $1.8 million in deferred
revenues as of June 30, 2023,  associated both with the 30 year leasing of the Hospital facilities by Dignity and the
implementation of GASB 87. The Hospital facilities lease realized an approximate $$1.1 million in lease revenues
from the lease of the Hospital facilities.

2

172



Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

District Revenues and Rental Income

The District receives approximately 21% of its operating support from property taxes.  These funds are used to
support operations of the District.  They are classified as operating revenue as the revenue is  directly linked to the
operations of the District.  Property taxes are levied by the County on the District’s behalf during the year, and are
intended to help finance the District’s activities during the same year.  Amounts are levied on the basis of the most
current property values on record with the County.  Property taxes increased in 2023 by $135,028 from 2022.

The District also rents and/or leases hospital facilities, private office for physicians and land to various entities and
individuals for purposes of supplying healthcare to the residents in the surrounding area.  Rental income for the year
ended June 30, 2023 decreased slightly by $15,472 over the previous year.

Operating Expenses

Total operating expenses were $6,796,452 for fiscal year 2023 compared to $6,067,630 for the prior fiscal year. The 
increase is mainly due primarily to:

(1) A $353,374 increase in salaries, wages and employee benefits due to the continued hiring of new staff for the
operations of the new Clinic and rate increases.

(2)A $110,173 increase in professional fees due to volume changes in the Clinic.  

(3) A $334,506 increase in utilities for the year ended June 30, 2023 as rates increased.

(4) Other changes in expenses over the prior year were considered either consistent with the prior year or minor.

Other Management Comments

On June 23, 2023 the District received a letter of award for the California BHCIP (round 5).  This is a California
Behavioral Health grant for $3,322,198.  There is an owner match of $283,056, of which $100,000 has been received
from a private donor through the Calaveras Wellness Foundation.  California will secure a service lien on the property
requiring 30 years of behavioral health in the new addition.  The USDA has a lien on the property to secure the 30-
year construction loan.  The USDA, national, has opined that they will not have an interest in the California lien
unless new debt is created.  There is no new debt projected for this construction.

The District is obtaining quotes from various vendors to provide a full facility assessment of the Mark Twain Medical
Center, which the District owns.  It is anticipated that the District board of directors will approve funding for the
assessment and then work with Dignity Health/Common Spirit to remedy facility deficiencies.  The tenant, Dignity
Health/Common Spirit is responsible for any and all upgrades and maintenance. 

3

173



Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

The District has been notified, informally, that Dignity Health/Common Spirit intend to fund permitting, engineering,
testing, and implementation of construction designed to fulfill the requirements of the California seismic retrofit
mandate.  The District is cooperating and has asked for all related documents for approval purposes.  The project is
currently valued at about $15 million.

The District was also notified, informally, that Dignity Health/Common Spirit intend to fund a new IT MDF room
on the hospital campus.  This project is valued at $2.5 million.

The District staff have conducted an informal facility assessment of the Valley Springs Health & Wellness Center. 
A list of issues was developed and will be addressed by facility management.  The cost this next fiscal year will be
immaterial.

The District has received $54,000 in new grant funding since July 1, 2023.

Economic Factors and Next Fiscal Year’s Budget

The District’s board approved the fiscal year ending June 30, 2024 budget at a recent Board meeting.  For fiscal year
2024, the District is budget has the following assumptions:

    Property taxes were budgeted at the approximately the same levels of 2023 while rents increase slightly.

    Professional fees and other operating expenses are expected to remain fairly consistent for the year as compared 
    to 2023

The District is continuing to improve and expand services at the rural health care clinic in Valley Springs which 
began operating in October, 2019.  Continued planning is underway for expanded operations of the Clinic and the
establishment of reasonable reimbursement rates from both Medicare and Medi-Cal for patient services rendered.

4

174



JWT & Associates, LLP
A Certified Public Accountancy Limited Liability Partnership

1111 East Herndon Avenue, Suite 211, Fresno, California 93720
Voice: (559) 431-7708 Fax: (559) 431-7685 Email: rjctcpa@aol.com

Report of Independent Auditors

The Board of Directors
Mark Twain Health Care District
San Andreas, California

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Mark Twain Health Care District (the District) as of
and for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022,  and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.  

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the District as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, and the changes in financial position and its cash flows for the years
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States.  Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.  We are required to be
independent of the District and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical
requirements relating to our audits.  We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

5

175



In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a going concern
for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise
substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but it is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.  The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  Misstatements, including omissions, are considered material
if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgement made
by a reasonable user based on the financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards,
we:

· Exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

· Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.  Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

· Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
District’s internal control.  Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

· Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

· Conclude whether, in our judgement, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a going concern.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters that we identified
during the audit.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note A, the District adopted GASB 87 for the year beginning July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2022. 
Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

6

176



Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the  management’s discussion
and analysis be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures
to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America Government Auditing Standards, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods
of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Governmental Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 14, 2023, on
our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.  The purpose of that report
is solely to describe the  scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

JWT & Associates, LLP

Fresno, California
November 14, 2023

7

177



Statements of Net Position

MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

June 30
     2023          2022     

Assets

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $   9,401,326 $ 10,663,487
Patient accounts receivable 225,504 205,863
Other receivables         295,411         274,754
Estimated third party payor settlements 488,746
Prepaid expenses, inventory and other current assets         122,614           26,049

Total current assets 10,044,855 11,658,899

Property and equipment 7,014,220 7,751,224

Interest in Mark Twain Medical Center 383,709 395,481

Other assets      6,836,670      7,269,661
               Total assets $ 24,279,454 $ 27,075,265

Liabilities and Net Position

Current liabilities:
Current maturities of debt borrowings $      163,000 $      146,000
Accounts payable and accrued expenses       403,247       461,515
Accrued payroll and related liabilities         110,443         147,790
Estimated third party payor settlements 117,814
Deferred grant revenues                                13,580

Total current liabilities 794,504 768,885

Other liabilities 446,177 596,895

Debt borrowings      6,684,384      6,847,384

Total liabilities 7,925,065 8,213,164

Deferred inflows of resources 1,341,657 2,567,155

Net position
Invested in capital assets 166,836 757,840
Unrestricted net position    14,845,896    15,537,106

Total net position    15,012,732    16,294,946

Total liabilities and net position $ 24,279,454 $ 27,075,265

See accompanying notes and auditor’s report

8

178



Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

Year Ended June 30
   2023      2022   

Operating revenues:
Net patient service revenues $   2,380,446 $   2,614,614
District taxes    1,388,660    1,253,632
Hospital lease income 1,078,438 1,084,806
Rental income from medical office buildings 230,454 245,926
Grant revenues 337,847 662,341
Interest and other investment income          374,907           21,936
Other operating income             9,550             6,122

Total revenues, gains and losses 5,800,302 5,889,377

Operating expenses:
Salaries and wages 1,941,552 1,656,726
Employee benefits 366,653 298,105
Professional fees 1,248,183 1,138,010
Supplies 321,917 379,912
Purchased services and repairs 43,003 21,705
Donations, programs and events 372,785 367,181
Medical office building rent 254,567 227,956
Utilities and phone 1,156,083 821,577
Insurance 114,218 117,725
Depreciation and amortization 763,921 763,098
Other operating expenses         213,570         275,635

Total expenses      6,796,452      6,067,630

Excess of revenues over expenses (expenses over revenues)      (996,150)      (178,253)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Interest expense (274,291) (278,019)
Gain (loss) in interest in Mark Twain Medical Center          (11,773)          (44,257)

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)        (286,064)        (322,276)

Increase (decrease) in net position (1,282,214) (500,529)

Net position at the beginning of the year    16,294,946    16,795,475

Net position at the end of the year $ 15,012,732 $ 16,294,946

9See accompanying notes and auditor’s report

179



Statements of Cash Flows

MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

Year Ended June 30
     2023          2022     

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from patients and third parties on behalf of patients $   2,953,785 $   2,115,404
Cash received from taxes, rents & other activities 2,432,282 2,105,199
Cash paid for salaries, wages and administrative benefits (2,345,552) (1,912,631)
Cash paid for suppliers and outside vendors    (4,153,450)    (3,391,972)

         Net cash (used in) operating activities (1,112,935) (1,084,000)

Cash flows from financing and investing activities:
Purchases of property, equipment and other (14,999) (158,582)
Proceeds from debt borrowings 46,266
Repayments of debt borrowings (146,000) (147,000)
Change in Mark Twain Medical Center          11,773          44,257

         Net cash (used in) financing and investing activities       (149,226)       (215,059)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (1,262,161) (1,176,190)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year    10,663,487    11,839,677
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $   9,401,326 $ 10,663,487

Reconciliation of changes in net position to net cash 

provided by operating activities

Increase (decrease) in net position  $   (1,282,214)  $    (500,529)
Adjustments to reconcile increase (decrease) in net position to

net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 763,921 763,098
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Patient accounts receivable (19,641) 1,152
Other receivables (20,657) (175,947)
Estimated third party payor settlements 606,560 (488,746)
Prepaid expenses (96,565) (4,189)
Capital lease 421,072 (614,890)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (58,268) 239,937
Accrued payroll and related liabilities (37,347) 42,200
Deferred grant revenues (13,580) (11,616)
Deferred lease revenue and other     (1,376,216)        (334,470)

Net cash (used in) operating activities $  (1,112,935) $  (1,084,000)

10See accompanying notes and auditor’s report

180



Notes to Financial Statements

MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

June 30, 2023

NOTE A - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Reporting Entity:  Mark Twain Health Care District (the District) is a political subdivision of the State of California
under the California Health and Safety Code and is governed by a five-member elected Board of Directors.  The
District was organized in 1946, and began operating a healthcare facility located in San Andreas, California, in 1951. 

In 1989, the District arranged with St. Joseph’s Regional Health System (SJRHS), who later became Catholic Health
Care West (CHW), who then renamed to Dignity Health (DH) (a California-based not-for-profit public benefit
corporation) to manage the District-owned Mark Twain Hospital, which later became known as the Mark Twain
Medical Center Corporation (the Corporation).  DH entered into an agreement with the District at that time to lease
the Corporation under the “1989 Lease”.  During fiscal year 2019, a new lease was entered into with DH as more
fully described in Footnote H.  The Corporation’s Board of Trustees is appointed by the District and DH whereby
DH appoints three members of the seven-member Corporation Board of Trustees and holds significant reserve
powers.  In the event of its dissolution, the Corporation’s bylaws require that its net position be divided equally
between the District and DH.

Also during fiscal year 2020, the District opened a rural health care clinic in Valley Springs, California. The  District
operates the outpatient clinic in order to help provide health care services to residents who primarily reside in the
local geographic area. 

Basis of Preparation:  The accounting policies and financial statements of the District generally conform with the
recommendations of the audit and accounting guide, Health Care Organizations, published by the American Institute
of Certified Public Accountants.  The financial statements are presented in accordance with the pronouncements of
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). For presentation purposes, transactions deemed to be
ongoing and central to providing health care services are reported as operational revenues and expenses.

The District uses enterprise fund accounting.  Revenues and expenses are recognized on the accrual basis using the
economic resources measurement focus.  Based on GASB Statement Number 20, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting, as
amended, the District has elected to apply the provisions of all relevant pronouncements as the Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB), including those issued after November 30, 1989, that do not conflict with or contradict
GASB pronouncements.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncement: In June, 2017 the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
released GASB 87 regarding changes in the way leases are accounted for.  GASB 87 superceded GASB 13 and GASB
62 and more accurately portrays lease obligations by recognizing lease assets and lease liabilities on the statement
of net position and disclosing key information about leasing arrangements.  The District has adopted GASB 87
effective July 1, 2021 in accordance with the timetable established by GASB 87.

11

181



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

NOTE A - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
results of operations for the period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates.  

Risk Management:  To cover the District against various risks of loss from torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction
of assets; business interruption; errors and omissions; employee injuries and illnesses; natural disasters; and employee
health, dental, and accidental benefits, commercial insurance coverage is purchased. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments: The District considers cash and cash equivalents to include certain
investments in highly liquid debt instruments, when present, with an original maturity of a short-term nature or
subject to withdrawal upon request.  Exceptions are for those investments which are intended to be continuously
invested. Investments in debt securities are reported at market value.  Interest, dividends and both unrealized and
realized gains and losses on investments are included as investment income in nonoperating revenues when earned.

Investments: Short-term investments are funds invested local banks. These investments are measured at fair value
at June 30, 2023 and 2022.  Investment income or losses (including realized and unrealized gains and losses on
investments, interest and dividends) are included in operating revenues under interest and other investment income.

Patient Accounts Receivable: Patient accounts receivable consist of amounts owed by various governmental
agencies, insurance companies and private patients.  The District manages its receivables by regularly reviewing the
accounts, inquiring with respective payors as to collectibility and providing for allowances on their accounting
records for estimated contractual adjustments and uncollectible accounts.  Significant concentrations of patient
accounts receivable are discussed further in the footnotes

Use of Estimates:  The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

Capital Assets: Capital assets consist of property and equipment and are reported on the basis of cost, or in the case
of donated items, on the basis of fair market value at the date of donation.  Routine maintenance and repairs are
charged to expense as incurred.  Expenditures which increase values, change capacities, or extend useful lives are
capitalized.  Depreciation of property and equipment and amortization of property under capital leases are computed
by the straight-line method for both financial reporting and cost reimbursement purposes over the estimated useful
lives of the assets, which range from 3 to 40 years, depending upon the capital asset classification. 

12

182



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

NOTE A - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Compensated Absences: The District’s employees earn vacation benefits at varying rates depending on years of
service.  Employees also earn sick leave benefits. Both benefits can accumulate up to specified maximum levels. 
Employees are not paid for accumulated sick leave benefits if they leave either upon termination or before retirement. 
However, accumulated vacation benefits are paid to an employee upon either termination or retirement.  Accrued
vacation liabilities (PTO) as of June 30, 2023 and 2022 was $66,740 and $52,767, r espectively.

Net Position: Net position can be presented in three categories.  The first category is net position “invested in capital
assets, net of related debt”.  This category of net position consists of capital assets (both restricted and unrestricted),
net of accumulated depreciation and  reduced by the outstanding principal balances of any debt borrowings that were
attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those capital assets.  The second category is
“restricted” net position.  This category consists of externally designated constraints placed on those net position by
creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, law or regulations of other governments or
government agencies, or law or constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.  The third category is “unrestricted”
net position.  This category consists of net position that does not meet the definition or criteria of the previous two
categories.

The District’s reserve policy provides for the designation of unrestricted net position to fund (1)  replacement and
major repairs for District physical assets; (2) replacement and upgrades of information technology (IT) performance
systems; (3) hardware and software; (4) designated projects, programs or other special uses requiring additional
monetary support; (5) capital improvements; and (6) maintain standard operational sustainability in periods of
economic uncertainty. 

Operating Revenues and Expenses: The District’s statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position
distinguishes between operating and nonoperating revenues and expenses.  Operating revenues result from exchange
transactions associated with providing health care services, which is the District’s principal activity.  Operating
expenses are all expenses incurred to provide health care services, other than financing costs.  Nonoperating revenues 
and expenses are those transactions not considered directly linked to providing health care services.

Net Patient Service Revenues: Net patient service revenues are reported in the period at the estimated net realized
amounts from patients, third-party payors and others including estimated retroactive adjustments under
reimbursement agreements with third-party programs.  Normal estimation differences between final reimbursement
and amounts accrued in previous years are reported as adjustments of current year's net patient service revenues.

Charity Care:  The District accepts all patients regardless of their ability to pay.  A patient is classified as a charity
patient by reference to certain established policies of the District.  Essentially, these policies define charity services
as those services for which no payment is anticipated.  Because the District does not pursue collection of amounts
determined to qualify as charity care, they are not reported as net patient service revenues.  Services provided are
recorded as gross patient service revenues and then written off as an adjustment to net patient service revenues

13

183



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

NOTE A - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue Recognition: As previously stated, net patient service revenues are reported at amounts that reflect the
consideration to which the District expects to be entitled in exchange for patient services.  These amounts are due
from patients, third-party payors (including health insurers and government programs), and others and include
variable consideration for retroactive revenue adjustments due to settlement of third-party payor audits, reviews, and
investigations. Generally, the District bills the patients and third-party payors several days after the patient receives
healthcare services at the District’s rural health clinic.  Revenue is recognized as services are rendered.

The District has agreements with third-party payors that provide for payments to the District at amounts different
from its established rates.  Payment arrangements include prospectively determined rates per day, discharge or visit,
reimbursed costs, discounted charges and per diem payments.  Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an estimated
basis in the period the related services are rendered and adjusted in future periods as final settlements are determined.

Gifts of long-lived assets such as land, buildings, or equipment are reported as net assets without donor restrictions
unless explicit donor stipulations specify how the donated asset must be used.  Gifts of long-lived assets with explicit
donor restrictions that specify how the asset is to be used and gifts of cash or other assets that must be used to acquire
long-lived assets are reported as net assets with donor restrictions.  Absent explicit donor stipulations about how long
those long-lived assets must be maintained, expirations of donor restrictions are reported when the donated or
acquired long-lived asset is placed in service.  Cash received in excess of revenue recognized is deferred revenue. 

Contributions are recognized as revenue when they are received or unconditionally pledged.  Donor stipulations that
limit the use of the donation are recognized as contributions with donor restrictions.  When the purpose is
accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported
as net assets released from donor restrictions.  Donor restricted contributions whose restriction expire during the same
fiscal year are recognized as net assets without donor restrictions.  Absent donor imposed restrictions, the District
records donated services, materials, and facilities as net assets without donor restrictions.

From time to time, the District receives grants from various governmental agencies and private organizations. 
Revenues from grants are recognized when all eligibility requirements, including time requirements are met.  Grants 
may be restricted for either specific operating purposes or capital acquisitions. These amounts, when recognized upon
meeting all requirements, are reported as components of the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net
position.

14

184



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

NOTE A - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

District Tax Revenues: The District receives approximately 35% of its operating support from property taxes.  These
funds are used to support operations of the District.  They are classified as operating revenue as the revenue is 
directly linked to the operations of the District.  Property taxes are levied by the County on the District’s behalf
during the year, and are intended to help finance the District’s activities during the same year.  Amounts are levied
on the basis of the most current property values on record with the County. The County has established certain dates
to levy, lien, mail bills, and receive payments from property owners during the year.  Property taxes are considered
delinquent on the day following each payment due date.

Statements of Cash Flows and Reclassifications: For purposes of the statements of cash flows, all highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less are considered to be cash equivalents.  Certain
reclassifications in the grouping of accounts have been made to the June 30, 2022 presentation in order to conform
to the June 30, 2023 presentation.

NOTE B - BANK DEPOSITS

Collateral:  As of June 30, 2023 and 2022, the District had deposits invested in a bank of $9,400,926 and
$10,663,087, respectively.  All of these funds were held in deposits, which are collateralized in accordance with the
California Government Code (CGC), or federally insured.

Under the provisions of the CGC, California banks and savings and loan associations are required to secure the
District’s deposits by pledging government securities as collateral.  The market value of pledged securities must equal
at least 110% of the District’s deposits.  California law also allows financial institutions to secure District deposits
by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the District’s total deposits.  The pledged
securities are held by the pledging financial institution’s trust department in the name of the District.

Investments , at times, may consist of state and local agency funds invested in various permissible securities and are
stated at quoted market values.  Changes in market value between years are reflected as a component of investment
income in the accompanying statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position. 

15

185



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

NOTE C - NET PATIENT SERVICE REVENUES

The District had agreements with third-party payors that provide for payments at amounts different from its
established rates.  A summary of the payment arrangements with major third-party payors follows:

Medicare: Payments for rural health care services rendered to Medicare beneficiaries are paid on an interim rate
during the year with final settlement based on cost report submission.

Medi-Cal: For Medi-Cal, services are paid on a prospective payment system (PPS) rate for rural health care
services rendered to Medi-Cal beneficiaries with final settlement based on the PPS reconciliation and audit process
conducted by the State of California.

Other:  Payments for services rendered to other than Medicare and Medi-Cal patients are based on established
rates or on agreements with certain commercial insurance companies, health maintenance organizations and
preferred provider organizations which provide for various discounts from established rates.

Net patient service revenues percentages for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 are summarized below:

     2023          2022     
    Medicare 21% 22%

Medi-Cal (traditional and managed care) 61% 60%
Other third party payors 17% 17%
Self pay and other     1%     1%

Gross patient service revenues 100% 100%
Less deductions from revenue and related allowances (27%) (27%)

Net patient service revenues  73%  73%

Medicare and Medi-Cal revenue accounts for approximately 82% of the District’s net patient revenues for each year. 
Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medi-Cal programs are extremely complex and subject to
interpretation.  As a result, there is at least a reasonable possibility that recorded estimates will change by a material
amount in the near term.   

16

186



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

NOTE D - CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

Patient Accounts Receivable - The District grants credit without collateral to its patients and third-party payors. 
Patient accounts receivable from government agencies represent the only concentrated group of credit risk for the
District and management does not believe that there are any credit risks associated with these governmental agencies. 
Contracted  and other patient accounts receivable consist of various payors including individuals involved in diverse
activities, subject to differing economic conditions and do not represent any concentrated credit risks to the District. 
Concentration percentages of patient accounts receivable at June 30, 2023 and 2022 were as follows:

     2023          2022     

Medicare 13% 18%
Medi-Cal (traditional and managed care) 67% 59%
Other third party payors 13% 18%
Self pay and other     7%           5%

Gross patient accounts receivable 100% 100%

Financial Instruments:  Financial instruments,  potentially subjecting the District to concentrations of credit risk,
consist primarily of bank deposits in excess of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) limits of $250,000. 
Although deposits exceed the limit in certain bank accounts, management believes that the risk of loss is minimal
due to the high financial quality of the bank with which the District does business.  Management further believes that
there is no risk of material loss due to concentration of credit risk  with regards to investments as the District has no
investments in equity funds, closed-end funds, exchange-traded products, or other perceived “at risk” alternatives
as of June 30, 2023 and 2022.

NOTE E - INTEREST IN MARK TWAIN MEDICAL CENTER

In the former agreement between the Corporation and the District, in the event of a dissolution or a winding up of
the Corporation, 50% of its assets remaining after payment, or provision for payment, of all debts and liabilities of
the Corporation, were to be distributed to Dignity Health, a California nonprofit public benefit corporation.  The other
50% would be distributed to the District.  As a result of this agreement, the District had recorded $14,480,434 as of
June 30, 2018, respectively, as its portion of its interest in the Corporation.  This amount represented the 50% of the
net difference between the assets and the liabilities of the Corporation as of its June 30, 2018 audited financial
statements.  As of result of the new lease agreement with Dignity Health, this agreement was amended to reduce the
50% interest to 1%. For the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, this arrangement resulted in an interest loss of
$(11,773) and an interest loss of $(44,257), respectively.

17

187



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

NOTE F - TRANSACTIONS BETWEEN RELATED ORGANIZATIONS

The Corporation leases the District’s healthcare facilities in order to conduct patient care services in an acute-care
hospital setting.  Lease revenue from the Corporation for the year ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 was $166,034 and 
$161,179, respectively.  During the year ended June 30, 2019, a new lease agreement was signed with other
arrangements as disclosed in Footnote G.

The former hospital facility lease was renegotiated during the year ended June 30, 2018.  The former lease payments
were initially in amounts adequate to cover payment of utilities, debt service and insurance on the Series 1986A
Bonds not covered by the tax and other revenues of the District, and to maintain ratios and fund accounts pursuant
to the terms of a Joint Obligor Agreement between the District and the Corporation dated December 31, 1989, and
the Bond Indenture dated August 1, 1986, between the District and Harris Trust Company of California, the bond
trustee. As previously mentioned, Footnote G discloses the new lease arrangement.

The District has entered into a land and medical office building (MOB) lease agreement with the Arnaudo Brothers
whereas they lease the land and the MOB from them. Lease expense for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022
under this agreement were $254,567 and $227,956, respectively.  The District then subleases the land and the portions
of the MOB to the San Andreas Medical and Professional Office (SAMPO) organization. The District also has
subleased portions of the MOB to the Stockton Cardiology Medical Group and others, and to the Corporation.  Lease
revenues under these subleasing arrangements and other arrangements were $64,420 and $84,747 for the years ended
June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

NOTE G - DIGNITY HEALTH LEASE

On May 31, 2020, the District and Dignity Health (DH) consummated a 30-year lease of the Mark Twain Medical
Center.  The final closure entailed 10 different documents: (1) a Pre-lease Agreement; (2) a Lease Agreement; (3)
a Supplemental Property Agreement; (4) an Equity Transfer Agreement; (5) a Lease Termination Agreement; (6) a
Valley Springs Letter; (7) By-Laws of the MTMC Corporation; (8) By-Laws of the MTMC Community Board; (9)
a Closing and Incumbency Certificate; and (10) a MTMC Third Amended & Restated Articles of Incorporation.  Final
accounting entries made for this May 31st transaction, as well as the true-up of asset depreciation, have been made
to the records of the District for the year ended June 30, 2019.

As a result of this transaction, the District has recorded a capital lease asset valued at $6,806,628 and has recorded
deferred lease revenue of $6,000,000.  The capital lease asset is being amortized over the life of the new lease
agreement of 30 years at $226,884 each year.  The deferred lease revenue is a combination of deferred capital lease
income, deferred facility rent and deferred utility expense income and is being recognized as income each year at
various amounts each year.

18

188



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

NOTE H - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment as of June 30, 2023 and 2022 were comprised of the following:

Balance at Transfers & Disposals & Balance at
June 30, 2022 Additions Retirements June 30, 2023

Land and land improvements $ 3,030,826 $ 3,030,826
Buildings and improvements 10,444,351 10,444,351
Equipment 1,658,991 1,658,991
Construction-in-progress          48,537 $        26,917                                 75,454
   Totals at historical cost 15,182,705 26,917 15,209,622

Less accumulated depreciation for:
   Land and land improvements (633,876) (170,799) (804,675)
   Buildings and improvements (5,739,995) (446,446) (6,186,441)
   Equipment     (1,057,610)        (146,676)                          (1,204,286)
      Total accumulated depreciation     (7,431,481)        (763,921)                            (8,195,402)
Total property and equipment, net $   7,751,224 $     (737,004) $                   $   7,014,220

Balance at Transfers & Disposals & Balance at
June 30, 2021 Additions Retirements June 30, 2022

Land and land improvements $ 3,030,826 $ 3,030,826
Buildings and improvements 10,444,351 10,444,351
Equipment 1,611,360 $       47,631 1,658,991
Construction-in-progress          48,537                                                     48,537
   Totals at historical cost 15,135,074 47,631 15,182,705

Less accumulated depreciation for:
   Land and land improvements (458,645) (175,231) (633,876)
   Buildings and improvements (5,293,067) (446,928) (5,739,995)
   Equipment        (916,671)        (140,939)                          (1,057,610)
      Total accumulated depreciation     (6,668,383)        (763,098)                            (7,431,481)
Total property and equipment, net $   8,466,691 $     (715,467) $                   $   7,751,224

19

189



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

NOTE I - DEBT BORROWINGS

On August 8, 2020, the District’s Board of Directors adopted Resolution 2020-11 entitling the authorizing and
providing for the incurrence of indebtedness for the purpose of providing a portion of the cost of acquiring,
constructing, enlarging, improving and/or extending its facilities to serve an area lawfully within its jurisdiction to
serve.  In a lease-leaseback transaction, two Certificates of Participation (COP) were signed.  COP Series A allowed
up to $6,782,000 and COP Series B allowed up to $678,000.  Details of these borrowings as of June 30, 2023 and
2022, debt borrowings are as follows:

   2023      2022   

Mark Twain Health Care District Certificates of Participation, Series A
(2020 Capital Improvement Project), original amount up to $6,782,000;
principal payments due to be determined; interest charged at 3.625%;
collateralized by District revenues and other property: $   6,248,000 $   6,390,000

Mark Twain Health Care District Certificates of Participation, Series B
(2020 Capital Improvement Project), original amount up to $678,000;
principal payments due to be determined; interest charged at 3.875%;
collateralized by District revenues and other property:         599,384         603,384

6,847,384 6,993,384
Less current maturities of debt borrowings        (163,000)        (146,000)

 $   6,684,384  $   6,847,384

Future principal maturities for debt borrowings for the next succeeding five years are $163,000 in 2024; $168,000
in 2025; $175,000 in 2026; $181,000 in 2027 and $188,000 in 2028.

On May 1, 1996, the Corporation borrowed $11,175,000 to finance a new health facility and to defease the Mark
Twain Hospital District Insured Revenue Bonds Series 1986A (the Series 1986A Bonds) previously issued by the
District.  In exchange for assuming the District’s debt obligation, the Corporation has been granted a prepaid lease
payment to the District that has been recorded as a long-term liability in the accompanying financial statements.  The
prepaid rent was being amortized over the life of the former lease agreement with the Corporation.  As of result of
the new lease agreement, the prepaid lease payment was terminated during the year ended June 30, 2019.

20

190



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

NOTE J - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Construction-in-Progress: As of June 30, 2023 the District has recorded $75,454 as construction-in-progress
representing cost capitalized towards the a pharmacy project.  Future costs to complete this project as of June 30,
2023 are not considered material. During the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 there was no interest expense
capitalized.

Medical Office Building Rent: The District leases various office space under operating leases expiring at various
dates.  Total building rent expense for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, was $254,567 and $227,956,
respectively.   Future minimum lease payments for the succeeding years under these leases as of June 30, 2023, that
have initial or remaining lease terms in excess of one year are not significant for disclosure.

Litigation: The District may from time-to-time be involved in litigation and regulatory investigations which arise in
the normal course of doing business.  After consultation with legal counsel, management estimates that matters 
existing as of June 30, 2023 will be resolved without material adverse effect on the District’s future financial position,
results from operations or cash flows.

Medical Malpractice Insurance: The District maintains commercial malpractice liability insurance coverage under
a claims made and reported policy covering losses up to $1 million per claim and $3 million in the annual aggregate,
with a per claim deductible of $5,000.  The District plans to maintain the insurance coverage by renewing its current
policy, or by replacing it with equivalent insurance.

Workers Compensation Program: The District is a participant in the Beta Risk Management Authority (the Fund)
which administers a self-insured worker’s compensation plan for participating entity employees of its member
entities.  The District pays premiums to the Fund which are adjusted annually.  If participation in the Fund is
terminated by the District, the District would be liable for its share of any additional premiums necessary for final
disposition of all claims and losses covered by the Fund. 

Regulatory Environment: The District  is subject to several laws and regulations. These laws and regulations include
matters such as licensure, accreditation, government health care program participation requirements, reimbursement
for patient services, and Medicare and Medi-Cal fraud and abuse.  Government activity has increased with respect
to possible violations of statues and regulations by health care providers.  Violations of these laws and regulations
could result in expulsion from government health care programs together with the imposition of significant fines and
penalties, as well as significant repayments for patient services previously billed.  Management believes that the
District is in compliance with all applicable government laws and regulations and is not aware of any future actions
or unasserted claims at this time.

21

191



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

NOTE K - LEASES

As of July 1, 2021 the District adopted the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 87 requiring certain
changes in the way the District accounted for leases, both as a lessee and as a lessor.

Lessee: The District leases office space in order to provide various services under an operating lease.  Lease
commencement occurred on March 3, 2007, the date the District takes possession or control of the property.  Original
terms for the lease is 20 years.  This lease contains an option to extend for an undetermined amount of time, as long
as the District notifies the landlord at least six months prior to the end of the lease term.  The annual increase to base
rent is determined by the annual increase to the Consumer Price Index (CPI).  For forecasting purposes for this lease,
an annual CPI increase of 2.0% was assumed for each year.

The lease does not contain a readily determinable discount rate.  The estimated borrowing rate of 3.5% was used to
discount the remaining cash flows for this operating lease.

This lease requires payment of common area maintenance and real estate taxes which represent the majority of
variable lease costs.  Variable lease costs are excluded from the present value of lease obligations.

The District’s lease agreement does not contain any material restrictions, covenants, or any material residual value
guarantees.

Lessee -lease related assets and liabilities as of June 30, 2023 and 2022 consist of the following:

Assets:      2023          2022     
Operating lease asset - current portion $       154,127 $       146,846
Operating lease asset- noncurrent portion          411,007          584,523
       Total lease assets $       565,134 $       731,369

Liabilities:
Operating lease payable- current portion $       150,718 $       142,286
Operating lease payable- noncurrent portion          446,178          596,895
       Total lease liabilities
              

$       596,896 $       739,181

Total operating expense under this lease arrangement for the year ended June 30, 2023, was $154,127 lease expense
and $23,608 related interest expense.  For the year ended June 30, 2022, with implementation of GASB 87 in that
year, total operating expense under this lease agreement was $142,020 lease expense and $28,434 related interest
expense.  The future minimum rental payments required under operating lease obligations as of June 30, 2023, having
initial or remaining non-cancelable lease terms in excess of one year are summarized as follows:

22

192



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

NOTE K - LEASES (continued)

Years ending June 30,

2024  $      169,212
2025 172,596
2026 176,048
2027 119,513

Thereafter                     -0-
Total     637,369

Less: interest          (40,473)
                               Present value of lease liabilities $      596,896

 

The weighted average for the remaining lease term of this operating lease is 3.66 and the weighted average discount
rate for this operating leases is 3.5%

Lessor: The District leases land located in Calaveras County, California and an office building located in Valley
Springs, California, to third parties under operating leases.  Lease commencement occurs on the date the  third parties
take possession or control of the land and office building.  Original terms for the lease is 50 years for the land lease
and 10 years for the office building.  Neither lease contains written options to extend the terms.  The land lease
contains an option for the lessor (the District) to terminate the lease after 35 years.  District management believes
that this option will not be exercised.

The lease does not contain a readily determinable discount rate.  The estimated borrowing rate of 3.5% was used to
discount the remaining cash flows for this operating lease.

The land lease requires payment of real estate taxes, and the office building lease requires payment of common area
maintenance and real estate taxes, which represent the majority of variable lease costs.  Variable lease costs are
excluded from the present value of lease obligations.

The District’s lease agreement does not contain any material restrictions, covenants, or any material residual value
guarantees.

23

193



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

NOTE K - LEASES (continued)

Lessor -lease related assets and liabilities as of June 30, 2023 and 2022 consist of the following:

Assets:      2023        2022   
Lease receivable - current portion $         20,672 $         19,415
Lease receivable - noncurrent portion          236,579          257,251
       Total lease assets $       257,251 $       276,666

Deferred inflow of resources:
Deferred inflows of resources $       243,877 $       269,375
       Total deferred inflows of resources
              

$       243,877 $       269,375

Total operating revenues under these lease arrangements for the year ended June 30, 2023 under GASB 87 were
$25,497 lease revenues and $9,376 related interest income revenues.  Total operating lease revenues for the year
ended June 30, 2022 under GASB 87, was $25,497 lease revenues and $10,032 related interest income revenues. The
future minimum rental payments required under operating lease obligations as of June 30, 2023, having initial or
remaining non-cancelable lease terms in excess of one year are summarized as follows:

Years ending June 30,

2024 $        29,348
2025    29,907
2026    30,468
2027 31,032

Thereafter            204,829
Total     325,584

Less: interest          (68,333)
                             Present value of lease receivable 

         
$   257,251

 

The weighted average for the remaining lease term of this operating lease is 13.8 and the weighted average discount
rate for this operating leases is 3.5%

24

194



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

NOTE L -INVESTMENTS

The District’s investment balances and average maturities were as follows at June 30, 2023 and 2022:

               Investment Maturities in Years               
As of June 30, 2023 Fair Value Less than 1          1 to 5      Over 5   

Money market & ST investments $   8,684,029 $   8,684,029                                              
   Total investments $   8,684,029 $   8,684,029 $                -0- $               -0-

               Investment Maturities in Years               
As of June 30, 2022 Fair Value Less than 1          1 to 5      Over 5   
Money market & ST investments $   9,621,846 $   9,621,846                                              
   Total investments $   9,621,846 $   9,621,846 $                -0- $               -0-

The District’s investments are reported at fair value as previously discussed.  The District’s investment policy allows
for various forms of investments generally set to mature within a few months.  Policies generally identify certain
provisions which address interest rate risk, credit risk and concentration of credit risk.

Interest Rate Risk: Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value
of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to
changes in market interest rates.  One of the ways an entity manages its exposure to interest rate risk is by purchasing
a combination of shorter-term and longer-term investments and by timing cash flows from maturities so that a
position of the portfolio is maturing or coming close to maturity evenly over time as necessary to provide the cash 

flow and liquidity needed for District operations.  Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the District’s
investments to market interest rate fluctuations is provided by the preceding schedules that shows the distribution
of the District’s investments by maturity.

Credit Risk: Credit risk is the risk that the issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the
investment.  This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization,
such as Moody’s Investor Service, Inc.  Generally an entity’s investment policy for corporate bonds and notes would
be to invest in companies with total assets in excess of $500 million and having a “A” or higher rating by agencies
such as Moody’s or Standard and Poor’s.

Custodial Credit Risk: Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g. broker-
dealer), an entity would not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the
possession of another party.  An entity’s investments are generally held by broker-dealers or in the case of many
healthcare district’s, in government-pooled short-term cash equivalents such as mutual funds.

25

195



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

NOTE L -INVESTMENTS (continued)

Concentration of Credit Risk: Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of an entity’s
investment in a single issuer.  An entity’s investment policy generally allows for different concentrations in selected
investment portfolios such as government-backed securities, which are deemed to be lower risk.

Investment Hierarchy - The District categorizes the fair value measurements of its investments based on the
hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles.  The fair value hierarchy, which has three levels,
is based on the valuation inputs used to measure an asset’s fair value: Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active
markets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant other unobservable
inputs.  The District investments are solely measured by Level 1 inputs and does not have any investments that are
measured using Level 2 or 3 inputs.

NOTE M - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The District’s management has evaluated the effect of significant subsequent events on the financial statements
through November 14, 2023, the date the financial statements are issued, and determined that there are no other
material subsequent events that have not been disclosed.

26

196



JWT & Associates, LLP
A Certified Public Accountancy Limited Liability Partnership

1111 East Herndon Avenue, Suite 211, Fresno, California 93720
Voice: (559) 431-7708 Fax: (559) 431-7685

Independent Auditors Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters

Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

The Board of Directors
Mark Twain Health Care District
San Andreas, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States,  the financial statements of the business-type activities of the Mark Twain Health Care
District (the District) as of and for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the District’s financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated
November 14, 2023.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s internal control over
financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will
not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies.  Given those limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that
we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

27

197



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free from material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statement.  However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do
not express such an opinion.   The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control or on
compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards

in considering the District’s internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for
any other purpose.

JWT & Associates,LLP

Fresno, California
November 14, 2023

28

198



 
 
 

P. O. Box 95 
San Andreas, CA 95249 
(209) 754-4468 Telephone 
(209) 754-2537 Fax 

 
 
 
 

Resolution 2023 - 09 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

Change in MTHCD Board Policies 

WHEREAS: The Mark Twain Health Care District's policy is to utilize the resolution process to 
change policy, and to present proposed policy changes to the public at least 30 days prior to 
Board action: and 

WHEREAS: The District has an ad hoc policy committee that is reviewing District policies, 
and: 

WHEREAS: The ad hoc policy committee has reviewed policies No. 4, 5, 12 and 27 and have 
recommended changes in those policies, and presented changes to the public at the 
September 27, 2023, Board of Directors Meeting; 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Directors of the Mark Twain Health Care District does 
order and resolve as follows: 

RESOLVED: That policies Numbers 4, 5, 12, and 27 be amended as published in the 
September 27, 2023, Board of Directors meeting information packet. 

 
This resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Mark Twain 
Health Care District held on the 25th Day of October 2023, by the following vote: 

 
Ayes:  
Noes:  
Absent:  
Abstain:  

 
Attest:  _ 

Debbra Sellick, Secretary 
 

Mark Twain Health Care District Mission Statement 
“Through community collaboration, we serve as the stewards of a community health system that ensures our residents have 

the dignity of access to care that provides high quality, professional and compassionate health care”. 
 

This Institution is an Equal Opportunity Provider and Employer 

199



MTHCD Board Policy No. 4 – Officers of the District 
Board Approved 2021-03-24   Resolution 2021-02 on April 28, 2021           To Comte 9-19-2023        30-Day Review 9-27-2023 

  

 

Mark Twain Health Care District Policy No. 4 
Officers of the District: 

4.1 OFFICERS. The officers of the Board of Directors shall be a President, Secretary, and a Treasurer. All 
officers who shall be chosen from among and shall hold office at the pleasure of the Board of Directors. The 
Board of Directors may create such other offices as the business of the District may require, and the holder of 
each such office shall hold office for such period, have such authority, and perform such duties as are provided 
by the Local Health Care District Law, these Policies, or as the Board of Directors may, from time to time, 
determine. Such additional offices may include General Counsel and a Chief Executive Officer and shall be 
filled either by members or non-members of the Board of Directors. 

 
4.2 ELECTION OF OFFICERS. The officers of the Board of Directors shall be elected every two (2) years 
in January, and each officer shall hold office for two (2) years, or until his or her successor shall be elected and 
qualified, or until he or she is otherwise disqualified. In the event all officers are disqualified or removed from 
office, the District Board shall elect the Chief Executive Officer as President pro tempore who shall conduct 
the first Board of Directors meeting until new officers are elected. 

 
4.3 PRESIDENT. If at any time the President shall be unable to act, the Secretary shall take his or her place 
and perform the duties of the President. If the Secretary shall also be unable to act, the Treasurer shall take his 
or her place and perform the duties of the President. If the Treasurer shall also be unable to act, the District 
Board may appoint some other member of the Board of Directors to do so, and such person shall be vested 
temporarily with all the functions and duties of the office of President. 

 
The President: 

 
A. Shall preside over all meetings of the Board of Directors. 

 
B. Shall sign, as President, and with the attestation of the Secretary shall execute in the name of the 

District, all contracts and conveyances, and all other instruments in writing which have been authorized by the 
Board of Directors, except as otherwise determined by the Board of Directors. 

 
4.4 SECRETARY. The Secretary shall keep, or cause to be kept, accurate and complete minutes of all 
meetings of the Board of Directors, to be kept at the principal office of the District, showing the time and place, 
whether regular or special, call meetings on order of the President or any three (3) Directors, attend to all 
correspondence of the Board, attest the signature of the President on contracts and conveyances and all other 
instruments as outlined in Policy No. 11, and to perform such other duties as ordinarily pertain to the office. 

 
If at any time the President shall be unable to act, the Secretary shall take his or her place and perform the duties 
of such office. 

 
4.5 TREASURER. The Treasurer shall be responsible for ascertaining that all receipts are deposited and 
disbursements made in accordance with these Policies, the directions of the District Board, and good business 
practice. If, at any time, both the President and Secretary shall be unable to act, the Treasurer shall take the 
place of the President and perform the duties of such office. 

200



MTHCD Board Policy No. 4 
Board Approved 2021-03-24 Policy Committee Reviewed Mar. 2, 2021 Resolution 2021-02 on April 28, 2021 

 

The District Board may appoint an Assistant Treasurer, who may or may not be a member of the Board of 
Directors, to maintain the financial records of the District, and render a report to the Board of Directors on the 
financial affairs of the District at least quarterly. 

 
4.6 Board of Directors Representation 

A. Pursuant to the 2018 lease between MTMC and the District, leasing the hospital and clinics 
to MTMC for the next 10 years, the District is required to nominate a District Board member to the 
MTMC fiduciary Board of Directors to serve as one of the five Directors. 

B. The District Board member nominated by the District, whose appointment is contingent on 
Dignity Health approval, whose appointment shall not be unreasonably withheld, will serve for 3 
years, to a maximum of 3 consecutive full 3-year terms on the board. 

C. Subject to the consecutive term restriction above, the President of the District Board shall 
be elected to the MTMC Board of Directors by the District Board. If the President chooses not to 
serve as a Director, then the nominee shall be chosen from among the other members of the 
District Board by a District board vote by a simple majority. If the Directors ceases to be President of 
the District Board, but remains on the District Board, during a term as a member of the Mark Twain 
Medical Center Board of Directors that person shall continue to serve the remainder of their term as 
a MTMC Director. If the MTMC Directors ceases to be a member of the Mark Twain Health Care 
District Board then they are no longer deemed qualified to serve on the MTMC Board. In that case 
another member of the District Board must be nominated under the above guidelines and 
restrictions. 

D. The District member appointed to the MTMC Board of Directors has no requirement to 
report MTMC Board business to the District, unless requested by the MTMC Board. However, the 
District member appointed to the Board of Directors will be responsible for ensuring that the MTMC 
Board of Directors abides by the master lease, and any breaches or potential breaches of the 
master lease will be reported to the District Board. 

E. District members appointed to the MTMC Board of Directors serve at the pleasure of 
the District Board and may be removed at any time with or without cause by a majority vote of 
the District Board. 

4.7 Community Board Representation 

A. The 2018 lease between MTMC and the District, leasing the hospital and clinics to MTMC 
for the next 10 years establishes a Community Board. The nine-member Community Board will be 
responsible for approval of the MTMC Medical Staff Bylaws, Medical Staff privileging and 
credentialing, and quality oversight. The Fiduciary Board of Directors shall also seek the advice of 
the Community Board regarding: i) the MTMC mission, vision, and strategic direction, ii) priorities 
for MTMC’s community benefits, iii) proposals for material changes in clinical services, and 
iv) strategic plans. 

B. One of the Community Board members will be a District Board member, not already 
on the Fiduciary Board of Directors. That member will serve 2 years and can serve for a maximum of 
3 consecutive full 2-year terms on the Community Board. The District Board member will be 
nominated by the District Board by a simple majority and must be approved by the MTMC Fiduciary 
Board of Directors, which shall not be unreasonably withheld. District members appointed to the 

201



MTHCD Board Policy No. 4 
Board Approved 2021-03-24 Policy Committee Reviewed Mar. 2, 2021 Resolution 2021-02 on April 28, 2021 

 

Community Board serve at the pleasure of the District Board and may be removed at any time with or 
without cause by a majority vote of the District Board. 

C. At Large Calaveras County Residents: Five at-large Calaveras County residents shall serve 
on the Community Board. They will serve 2-year terms and can serve for a maximum of 3 
consecutive 2-year terms. At the initial start of the new lease 1 community board member will serve 
for 1 year and two will be appointed for 2 years. Residents will be nominated by a nominating 
committee comprising the MTMC CEO, MTMC Chief of Staff, District Board member who sits on the 
Community Board, and MTMC Board member who is not also a District Board member and sits on 
the Community Board. Nominees require approval by the MTMC Board of Directors, which shall not 
be unreasonably withheld. 

202



 
 

MTHCD Board Policy No. 5 – Committees of the Board: Public Information Officer: Auditors: 
Board Approved 5-26-2021 Resolution 2021-03    To Comte 9-19-2023    30-Day Review 9-27-2023 

 

Mark Twain Health Care District Policy No. 5 
Committees of The Board; Public Information Officer; 
Auditors: 
 
5.1 SPECIAL COMMITTEES. The President, with the concurrence of the District Board, may, from 
time to time, appoint one (1) or more members of the District Board and other persons as necessary 
or appropriate, to constitute special committees for the investigation, study, or review of, specific 
matters. No committee so appointed shall have any power or authority to commit the District Board 
or the District in any manner. 

 
5.2 STANDING COMMITTEES. The standing committees of the Board of Directors shall consist of 
a Finance Committee and such other committees as a majority of the members of the Board of 
Directors may authorize. The President of the District Board shall appoint the members and chairs of 
all standing committees. Standing committees shall be included in these Policies. 

 
5.3 FINANCE COMMITTEE. The Finance Committee should consist of three committee members. 
The President will appoint the Treasurer and one additional District Board member to the Committee. 
The Treasurer will chair the Committee. One additional Committee member will be selected from 
qualified, interested community applicants with knowledge of business-related finance. The Finance 
committee will conduct the search for subsequent interviews and make a recommendation to the 
Board. The appointment must be approved by a majority vote of the Board of Directors. 

 
A. Responsibilities and Authority. 

 
1. The Chair of the Finance Committee shall be the Treasurer who shall report to the full 

District Board on a monthly basis. The Finance Committee shall meet monthly to review the District's 
financial activities. 

 
2. The Finance Committee shall be responsible for the management of all investments of 

the District and endowment and trust funds and to see that proceeds are paid into proper funds of the 
District and used in accordance with the terms of the trust and/or investment objectives of the District. 

 
3. The Finance Committee shall see that a budget is prepared and submitted to the Board 

with specific recommendations prior to the end of the fiscal year. 
 

4. The Finance Committee shall examine monthly financial reports and require 
explanations from the Executive Director Chief Executive Officer or his or her delegate of 
variations from the budget. 

 
5. The Finance Committee shall supervise and review the results of all external audits and 

make specific recommendations to the full District Board for action. 
 
5.4 PUBLIC INFORMATION OFFICER. The Executive Director Chief Executive Officer or his or her 
designee, shall serve as the Public Information Officer for the District. The duties associated with this 
role include, but are not limited to, ensuring effective communication with local residents and 
stakeholders in accordance with the District’s priorities and the District Board’s direction. 

203



 
 

MTHCD Board Policy No. 5 – Committees of the Board: Public Information Officer: Auditors: 
Board Approved 5-26-2021 Resolution 2021-03    To Comte 9-19-2023    30-Day Review 9-27-2023 

 

5.5. ANNUAL AUDITS. The District Board shall contract with an outside auditing firm to conduct an 
annual audit. The District Board shall issue a request for proposals for auditing services and shall 
make best efforts to not contract with the same auditor, even within a firm more than twice without an 
intervening contract with a different auditor. The annual audit shall be completed by October 31st of 
each year. Following the Finance Committee’s review and recommendation, the auditor will present 
the audit results to the full Board. The District Board must approve the annual audit by January 31st  
of each year. 

204



Policy 12 – Conflict of Interest Code & Ethics       Board Approved Sept. 29, 2021 on Resolution 2021-07 
To Comte 9-19-2023    30-Day Review 9-27-2023 

Mark Twain Health Care District Policy No. 12 
Conflict of Interest Code and Ethics: 

 
12.1  CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE. 

 

The Board approved Resolution No. 2020-06 on August 26, 2020 which adopted the terms of Section 
18730 of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations and any amendments to said provision approved 
by the Fair Political Practices Commission, as the District’s Conflict of Interest Code. 

 
12.2 DISCLOSURE OF ECONOMIC INTERESTS. 

 
Individuals required to file statements of economic interests under the District’s Conflict of Interest 
Code must submit those statements to the Chief Executive Officer as the District’s filing officer. The 
Chief Executive Officer shall retain the statements and make them available for public inspection and 
reproduction, as required by the Political Reform Act, or forward them to the County of Calaveras or the 
Fair Political Practices Commission as required by law. 

 
12.3 AB 1234 ETHICS TRAININGS 

 

The Chief Executive Officer shall be responsible for scheduling ethics training for all members of the 
Board of Directors on a biennial basis as required by Assembly Bill 1234 (“AB 1234”). The AB 1234 
training course shall also be held within three (3) months of a newly elected member of the Board of 
Directors assuming office. The training shall conform to the content and length requirements of AB 
1234. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

205



MTHCD Board Policy No. 27                  
 Board Approved May 26 2021       Resolution 2021-03 

 

Mark Twain Health Care District                           Policy No. 27 
Credit Card:  
 
The purpose of this policy is to prescribe the internal controls for management of District credit cards. 
 
27.1     This policy applies to all individuals who are authorized to use District credit cards and/or who are 

responsible for managing credit card accounts and/or paying credit card bills. 
 
27.2     A credit card shall be issued to the Executive Assistant, Accounting  and Clinic Manager. Credit 

cards shall not be issued to or used by members of the Board of Directors. 
 
27.3     A District Credit Card can be issued at the Discretion of the CEO, managed, reconciled and paid 

separately.  
 
27.4     Each transaction is limited to $5,000.00. Approval from the Board President or Treasurer or CEO 

will be necessary for any transaction exceeding this limit unless previously authorized by District 
policies or resolutions.  

 
27.5     All credit card bills shall be paid in a timely manner to avoid late fees and finance charges.  
 

27.6      All credit card expenses shall be reasonable and necessary to the furtherance of District business.  
No personal expenses shall be charged on a District credit card.   

 

27.7      All credit-card transactions shall have third-party documents (receipts) attached and the District 
purpose explained by the cardholder when requested. 

 

27.8      The Chief Executive Officer shall review and approve credit-card transactions by the designated 
cardholders. The Board of Directors shall review and approve credit-card transactions through the 
Board Finance Committee and ultimately by the Board of Directors. 

 
 
 
 

206



Policy 13 – Appointments to the District Board                             Board Approved Sept. 29, 2021 by Resolution 2021-07 
To Policy Comte Sept. 19, 2023 

Mark Twain Health Care District Policy No. 13 
Appointments to the District Board: 
 
Any vacancy on the Board of Directors may be filled by appointment by the remaining members of 
the Board of Directors or by special election, for such term and under such conditions as may be 
specified by law. (Reference Elections Code Sect. 10554). 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

207



Policy 14 – Conduct Related to Elections                   Board Approved Sept. 29, 2021 on Resolution 2021-07 
 To P-Comte Sept 19, 2023 

Mark Twain Health Care District Policy No. 14 
Conduct Related To Elections: 

 
Public elections shall be held to fill all seats on the Board of Directors, except seats becoming vacant prior to 
the expiration of a Director's elected term, or as otherwise provided by law. Elections shall be conducted as 
provided in the Local Health Care District Law and the California Elections Code. 

 
Elections shall be held in even-numbered years and consolidated with general elections, when feasible. The 
person receiving the highest number of votes for each office to be filled shall be elected. The election of the 
Directors shall be staggered in alternatively even-numbered years so that three (3) Directors will be elected in a 
given even-numbered year and the remaining Directors will be elected in the following even-numbered year. 

    Reference CA Election Code (Sect. 10554). 
  
 
   
Note: For Further Information Refer to:          
The County Clerk-Recorder 
Calaveras County Elections Office 
891 Mountain Ranch Rd 
San Andreas, CA 95249 
(209) 754-6376 
Fax (209) 754-6733 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

208



209



210



211



CALAVERAS�� MENTORING FOUNDATION 

ERIK HOFFMAN 

THE WHISKEY 
BROTHERS BANi¥'!e: 

American Folk Dancing! 

Tickets 

$60 

� 
Purchase 

Here 

Get Your Tickets at 

� 

l"\or:'i.ftJ,J"'".W, J J'@ j � Q �@-!£) j �@ 212



213



214



215


	1 Agenda Oct. 25 + Nov 15 2023 MTHCD BOD Meeting
	1.5 Minutes Sept 5 2023 Special MTHCD BOD Meeting (002)
	1.6 Minutes Finance Comte Mtg Sept. 20 2023
	2  Minutes Sept. 27, 2023 MTHCD BOD Meeting
	3 Minutes Finance Comte Mtg Oct. 18 2023 docx
	4 ACHD Advocate Oct 2023
	5 ACHD Legislation
	6 ACHD Oct 2023 Openings
	7 Property Condition Assessment for MTMC (PCA) Quote
	8 Strategic 2023-10-25-23
	9 LED Mark Twain LED Lighting Proposal
	10 LED Assessment
	11 Personnel Manual BOD Approved 7-26-2023 Revised Sec 2008 Add Dress Code
	12 Grant  Summary
	13 October Policies
	Standardized Procedure Depo Provera Injection 102523
	Autoclave Use and Maintenance 102623
	Autoclave Spore Testing 102623
	Emerging Infectious Disease Policy 102523
	New Employee Onboarding 102523
	Waste Fraud and Abuse 102523
	Billing for Services Provided Off-Site 102622
	Business Hours 102523
	Cash Collection 102523
	Cleaning Duties 102622
	Fit Testing 102523
	Medication Management Storage of Multi-Use Containers 102523
	On Call Program 102523
	Provider On Site 102523
	Quality Assurance Guidelines 102523
	Quality Assurance & Continued Quality Improvement Plan 102523
	Shelter in Place for Patients and Staff 102523
	Standardized Procedure for Employee Influenza Vaccine Administration 102523
	Standardized Procedure for Patients Presenting with URI Symptoms 102523
	Sterile Shelf Life 102523
	Universal Precautions 102523
	Unscheduled Downtime of Electronic Medical Record 102523
	VSHWC PMHNP Final Policy 102523

	14 MedStatix Sept. 2023
	15 Financials Sept 2023
	Financials - Narrative Sept - 23
	Recap  September  2023
	VSHWC  September  2023
	Rental  September  2023
	Projects September  2023
	Admin September  2023
	I&R September  2023

	16 Oct 2023 Financials
	Financials - Narrative Oct - 23
	Recap October  2023
	VSHWC October  2023
	Rentals October  2023
	Projects October  2023
	Admin October  2023
	BS - 1 October  2023
	BS - 2  October  2023
	I&R October  2023

	17 Audit - Final AFS 2023
	18 Resolution 2023-09 Chng Policies # 4,5,12 & 27 on 10-25-2023
	19 Policy 4 - Officers of the Dist. (Board Approved Apr 28, 2021 Resolution 2021-02)
	4.6 Board of Directors Representation
	4.7 Community Board Representation

	20 Policy 5
	21 Policy 12 - Conflict of Interest Code and Ethics   To Comte 9-19-2023  30-Day Review 9-27-2023
	12.1  CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE.
	12.2 DISCLOSURE OF ECONOMIC INTERESTS.
	12.3 AB 1234 ETHICS TRAININGS

	22 Policy 27
	23 Policy 13 – Appointments to the District Board  - Approved Sept. 29, 2021 by Resolution 2021-07 To P-Comte 9-1-203
	24 Policy 14
	25  Calaveras County Sr. Center Grant Request for Freezer 9-1-2023
	26 Calaveras Mentoring Grant Request
	Calaveras Mentoring 
	Calaveras Mentoring Grant Request

	27  Hospice of Amador & Calaveras Grant Request



